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Important Notice

VI

VI

VIIL.

Xl.

The board of directors, the supervisory committee and the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company hereby warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of the annual report, guarantee
that there are no false representations, misleading statements or material omissions contained in this annual report,
and are jointly and severally responsible for the liabilities of the Company.

Directors who were not present at the Board meeting

Title of absent Director Name of absent Director Reason of absence Name of proxy
Director LiLei Business engagements Qiao Dewei
Director Liu Shu guang Business engagements Zhong Xia

KPMG Huazhen LLP issued a standard unqualified audit report for the Company.

Qiao Dewei, an officer of the Company; Yi Zhiyong, the Chief Financial Officer; and Zhao Linbin, the Chief Accountant,
declare that they warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial statements in the annual report.

Proposal of profit distribution or capitalisation of capital reserve during the Reporting Period approved by the Board

It is proposed to distribute a cash dividend of RMBO.1 (before tax) for every share to all shareholders based on the
aggregate share capital on the share-based equity registration date. The remaining undistributed profits will be carried
forward to the next year. In 2021, the Company did not convert capital reserve into share capital and did not issue
bonus shares. This proposal needs to be submitted to the Company’s shareholders’ general meeting for consideration.

Risk statement relating to forward-looking statements.
v Applicable [J Not applicable

Forward-looking statements such as future plans and development strategies described in this report do not constitute
an actual commitment of the Company to investors. Investors should be aware of investment risks.

Whether there was any appropriation of the Company’s funds for purposes other than operations by the controlling
shareholder and its related parties

No

Whether there was any provision of guarantee to external parties in violation of the stipulated decision-making
procedures

No

Whether there were more than half of the directors who cannot guarantee the authenticity, accuracy and completeness
of the annual report disclosed by the Company
No

Major risk alerts

Certain risks that may exist have been described in this report in details. Please refer to the “Potential Risks” in Part 6
“Discussion and Analysis of the Company’s Future Development” in Section 4 “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Others
v Applicable [J Not applicable

The contents of this annual report are in compliance with all the disclosure requirements in relation to annual report
under the Standards for the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the
Public No. 2 — Contents and Formats of Annual Reports (Amended in 2021) ({ AR Z1TE A A TS BEREA D EIL
B2 — FEHENAT LRI (20214F1E5]) V), the SSE Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.
In addition, this annual report has been simultaneously published in Mainland China and Hong Kong. This report has
been prepared in Chinese and English. Should there be any discrepancies between the Chinese and English versions,
the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Definitions

DEFINITIONS

In this report, the following expressions shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

Definitions of frequently-used terms

The Company or Dynagreen

The Group
BSAM

Hong Kong Dynagreen

Changzhou Company
Haining Company
Taizhou Company
Wuhan Company
Pingyang Company
Yongjia Company
Rushan Company
Anshun Company

Huizhou Company
Jizhou Company

Jurong Company
Ninghe Company
Bengbu Company

Tongzhou Company
Miyun Company

Shantou Company
Zhanggiu Company
Bobai Company
Hong’an Company

Yichun Company

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
Beijing State-owned Assets Management Co., Ltd.

Dynagreen Investment Holding Company Limited (4k B E) HiREIZRAR A
7)) (formerly known as Blue-ocean Environment Investment Holding Company
Limited (B3 F IRRIREIFIE R A 7))

Changzhou Dynagreen Environmental and Thermoelectric Co., Ltd. (B /14
B HIRRABERAF)

Haining Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (BZ 4k @ E) H B4 RERAR
NG

Taizhou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (ZEIMN4kE@E N BEERER
NG])

Wuhan Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (B4 @8 HBARLRAR
AF)

Pingyang Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (FI54k 28 hBERERAE
PR A )

Yongjia Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (k4B EN I B AR AR
NC])

Rushan Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (FLILAZ@BEN B ARERAR
)

Anshun Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (ZIB4 @8 HBLERER
NG

Huizhou Dynagreen Environment Co., Ltd. (BRM 4B E) HIRIRER A 7))
Tianjin Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (K24 @B B LERBEEERE R
Al)

Jurong Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (AIR4E8 HBAERER
NG|

Tianjin Dynagreen Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (RKIE4BIRIRFEFRAR A
A)

Bengbu Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (4 B E) H B ERLR AR
NG))

Beijing Dynagreen Environment Co., Ltd. (3t &k B2 HIRRE AR A 7))

Beijing Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. At R4k &) B ERERBR A
al)

Shantou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (IUSET4k @8 N B LIRS
RAR))

Zhanggiu Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (EE4k 8 B LIRS
FRAR)) ‘

Bobai Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (8R4 EE) HBEERER A
al)

Hong’an Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (Al Z4x B8 H B AR AR
NG))

Yichun Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (E&4 @ E HBAEEFRAR
AT

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



Fengcheng Company
Huizhou Phase I Company
Yongjia Phase Il Company
Longhui Company
Pingyao Company
Qingdao Company

Shenzhen Jingxiu

Dengfeng Company

Haining Expansion Company
Shishou Company

Guangdong Promising Company

Guangyuan Company
Jiamusi Company

Zhaoqging Company
Shulan Company
Zhangye Company
Yongxing Company
Dongguan Company

Jinsha Company
Pingyang Phase Il Company

Jingxi Company
Enshi Company

Huludao Hazardous Waste Company

[.  Definitions (Continued)

Fengcheng Dynagreen Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (2 4% & 8) HIRIR
BRAT)

Huizhou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (FE/MN4x @ E) H B A RERARR
AR)

Wenzhou Dynagreen Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (R/N4ZEIRRECFEAR
AF)

Longhui Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (ZE4x &) H B ERER
NG

Pingyao Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (FiZ &4k aE HBAERA
BRAE)

Qingdao Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (E S48 h B L RER
)

Shenzhen Jingxiu Environmental Engineering Technology Limited Company
(formerly known as Zhejiang Dongyang Fuli Construction Limited Company (4
TERGTE NEZERAR))

Dengfeng Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (BEt4k@E HEAERA
PR A A))

Haining Dynagreen Haiyun Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (8% 4%
BEERREFEHRAA)

Shishou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (R &4k B8 hB L RER
NS

Guangdong Promising Environmental Protection Company Limited (&3 {88
ITEEIRRBMRAR)

Guangyuan Boneng Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (B TEsEBARLRER A R)
Jiamusi Bohai Environmental Protection and Electricity Company Limited (f£7<
EERRENERAF)

Zhaoging Boneng Renewable Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd. (EET1HAE
BAERERBEEERAA)

Shulan Boneng Environmental Protection Company Limited (5783 T 18 L3R 1%
BRAA)

Zhangye Boneng Environmental Protection Company Limited (GR & B EEIRF
BRAF])

Yongxing Boneng Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. Gk EBIEEERREER AR A
al)

Dongguan Changneng Clean Energy and Greening Service Co., Ltd. (5=
REEBREERELREBARAR)

Guizhou Jinsha Green Energy Co., Ltd. (BN &4k @ EFEER A )
Pingyang Dynagreen Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (ER34kEhIRIREETRE R
NG|

Baise Dynagreen Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (B 24k EIRIR AR A 7))
Enshi Green Power Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (BiE4k @ E) H B A RERAR
AR)

Lvyi (Huludao) Environmental Services Limited (4%35 (35 5) BRIBRIEAR D
al)

Annual Report 2021
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Definitions (Continued)

Huludao Power Generation Company
Huizhou Three-in-One Company

Shantou Sludge Company

Zhangqiu Phase Il Company
Shuozhou Company

LLaizhou Company
Changzhou Project
Wuhan Project
Taizhou Project
Pingyang Project

Anshun Project
Haining Project

Yongjia Project
Rushan Project
Jizhou Project
Huizhou Project
Jurong Project
Bengbu Project
Tongzhou Project
Ninghe Straw Project
Ninghe Biomass Project
Miyun Project
Guangyuan Project
Jiamusi Project

Sihui Project
Shantou Project
Zhangaqiu Project
Bobai Project
Hong’an Project

Yichun Project

Huludao Dynagreen Environment Co., Ltd. (B5E B4 EIRRB R A 7))
Huizhou Dynagreen Environmental Services Co., Ltd. (/N4 B E) HIRIFARTE
BRAR])

Shantou Dynagreen Environmental Services Co., Ltd. (IIZB T4k =8 HIRIBR
BBRAR)

Jinan Dynagreen Environmental Co., Ltd. (EE4EIRRER A A])
Shuozhou Dynagreen Nanshan Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (¥ 4%EhEI L
IRIREEREBMR AR

Laizhou Haikang Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd.( /& B IRRAETR
BRAT])

a municipal solid waste incineration thermoelectric project in Wuijin District,
Changzhou City, Jiangsu (L& &M 2 R A )S bR EREIRE)

Xinghuo Waste-to-Energy Plant project in Wuhan, Hubei (#1t E%E 2 K573
KR EMIER)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Taizhou City, Jiangsu (‘I &&=/
RN BIER)

a solid waste-to-energy plant project in Pingyang, Zhejiang (31T [ 4 /& K13k
RirEEMIER)

a waste-to-energy project in Anshun, Guizhou (B M ZIB5 3K &3 EE )

a waste incineration thermoelectric plant project in Haining City, Zhejiang (41T
TBEMAIR R G ERIER)

a waste-to-energy plant project in Yongjia, Zhejiang (45T 7k 3173 50 52 35 T
1EHH)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Rushan City, Shandong (LI ER FL1L
TMAEENIRREEEIER)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Jizhou District, Tianjin (2 &l
M@ A BRI R EBIRR)

Lanzilong municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Huiyang District, Huizhou
City, Guangdong (B BM T A RIEFEEAELRNEIEIRE)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Jurong City, Jiangsu (L& QAT
AEVERRI R EIRE)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Bengbu City, Anhui (&8
A ERIR IR G ERIE )

a renewable energy power plant in Tongzhou District, Beijing (1t R T B/ & H
A BEIREEE )

a straw incineration power generation project in Ninghe District, Tianjin (/&2
@R EIER)

a biomass power generation project in Ninghe District, Tianjin (K2 %A [& 4
YIEBEEIRE)

a construction project of an integrated waste treatment centre in Miyun
County, Beijing (b R = EF M T AR A BRI F O TR

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Guangyuan City, Sichuan (P9)I1 &
T AN IR BIEE)

a municipal waste-to-energy BOT project in Jiamusi City, Heilongjiang (F& 88T
FERET T T A B B 3 EBOT 15 E)

an environmental energy thermal power plant BOT project in Sihui, Guangdong
(ERMUEIRREEIRE N EBMBOTIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy plant in Chaoyang District, Shantou City,
Guangdong (& 58T 85 B A /& B K 5 3 T )

a municipal waste-to-energy plant in Zhanggiu City, Jinan City, Shandong (L
REETME LR AR R EEER)

a municipal waste-to-energy project in Bobai County, Guangxi (/& 7518 [ 84
SERIRREEEIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy project in Hong’an County, Hubei (#1b 4% 84
TERR R EIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy PPP project in Yichun City, Jiangxi (LA E & T
A IRAIR R GEEEPPPIRR)

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



Fengcheng Project
Huizhou Phase Il Project
Dengfeng Project

Haining Expansion Project
Shishou Project

Yongjia Phase Il Project
Pingyang Phase Il Project
Jingxi Project

Jinsha Project

Enshi Project

Huludao Hazardous Waste Project

Huludao Waste-to-energy Project

Laizhou Project

Shuozhou Project

Zhangqiu Phase Il Project

Huizhou Three-in-One Project

Wuhan Phase Il Project

The Reporting Period

The end of the Reporting Period

RMB or RMB’0,000 or
RMB’00,000,000

PRC or Mainland China

Company Law

SFO

CSRC

Stock Exchange

Stock Exchange Listing Rules

SSE
SSE Listing Rules
PRC Accounting Standards

BOT
Auditor
National Subsidies

[.  Definitions (Continued)

a municipal waste-to-energy PPP project in Fengcheng City, Jiangxi (7T 75 2k
AR RIR R B3 EPPPIE )

phase Il of a municipal waste-to-energy PPP project in Huiyang Environmental
Park (S[73R35[E), Guangdong (R B [5IRRRE A£G IR K E — BIPPPIER)
a municipal waste-to-energy BOT project in Dengfeng City, Henan (7] F8 & &
AR RR R EEEBOTIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy plant expansion project in Haining City,
Zhejiang(i LB ZET A E N R EE B RIERZIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy project in Shishou City, Hubei (81t A & 4 &5z
TR EHEIRR)

a municipal waste-to-energy plant upgrading and reconstruction project in
Yongjia County, Zhejiang (#1) Lok 3z S ar kg 3 B R BGEIR A TIRIE )
phase Il of waste-to-energy power plant PPP project in Pingyang County,

Zhejiang (LA FI5 S R G 2 Bk — i EPPPIE R)
a municipal waste-to-energy project in Jingxi, Guangxi (& P88 78 A & 5 3
REsEEIER)

a municipal waste-to-energy project in Jinsha County, Guizhou (B M& &% &
HEN IR EBIER)

a municipal solid waste-to-energy project in Enshi, Hubei (#1t B i A&
NIRIGEEEIAR)

Liaoning Huludao Industrial Waste Treatment and Disposal Center project (i&
EWESTREYREEETLOIAR)

a municipal waste-to-energy project of Huludao East Waste-to-Energy Power
Plant in Liaoning (R ZE AR S R IR KR B RIEM A SR IR EHE
HH)

a domestic waste comprehensive treatment PPP project in Laizhou City,
Shandong (LR ZIN T A& TE S R AR & R IEPPPIEH)

the concession project of the Nanshan enviro-energy project (including the
municipal solid waste-to-energy project and the kitchen waste treatment
project) in Shuozhou, Shanxi Province (LLIFE¥AMN EILERIBAERIER (LEERIK
R EIA R MERTINERIPIAR ) A EIRE)

the Municipal Solid Waste-to-Energy Project Phase Il and the Venous Industrial
Park Project in Zhanggiu District, Ji'nan City, Shandong Province (L S Er ™
ErRAENRREREIEA _ T RREHIREXRER)

the PPP project of the harmless treatment of sludge, kitchen waste and
excrement for Huiyang District, Huizhou City(B R 2=/ EG @5 « EBT4s
% EEEFEIEPPPIER)

the reconstruction and expansion project of Xinghuo Waste-to-Energy Plant
project in Wuhan, Hubei(#1b EUZ 2 A R 38 1 3 B i s ek B 2 1T 12)

1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

31 December 2021

Renminbi or Renminbi ten thousand or Renminbi hundred million

the People’s Republic of China, for the purposes of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan region

the Company Law of the PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
the China Securities Regulatory Commission

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

The Shanghai Stock Exchange

The Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
the China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises formulated and
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC

Build-Operate-Transfer

the accounting firm which provides audit services

national renewable energy subsidies, the main source of funding of which is
the national renewable energy tariff surcharge, which is paid by the power grid
to eligible renewable energy power generation enterprises

Annual Report 2021
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Il. Company Profile and Key Financial Indicators

. COMPANY PROFILE

Company name in Chinese

Short company name in Chinese
Company name in English

Short company name in English
Legal representative of the Company

HEHHRREERNHERAF

SS=EIpy

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
Dynagreen

Qiao Dewei

Il. CONTACT PERSONS AND CONTACT METHODS

Secretary to the Board/Joint Joint company Securities Affairs

company secretary

secretary Representative

Name Zhu Shuguang Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie  Li Jian

Correspondence 2nd Floor, Jiuzhou Electronic Level 54 2nd Floor, Jiuzhou Electronic

address Building, Keji South 12th Street, Hopewell Centre Building, Keji South 12th
Nanshan District, Shenzhen 183 Queen’s Road East Street, Nanshan District,

Hong Kong Shenzhen

Telephone 0755-36807688-8010 - 0755-36807688-8010

Facsimile 0755-33631220 - 0755-33631220

E-mail address ir@dynagreen.com.cn - ir@dynagreen.com.cn

lll. BASIC INFORMATION

Registered office of the Company
Principal place of business

Postal code of principal place of business
Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Company’s website
E-mail address

2nd Floor, Northeastern Wing, Jiuzhou Electronic Building,

Keji South 12th Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen

2nd Floor, Jiuzhou Electronic Building, Keji South 12th Street,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen

518057

1st Floor, Xiu Ping Commercial Building, 104 Jervois Street, Hong
Kong

http://www.dynagreen.com.cn/

ir@dynagreen.com.cn

IV. INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND PLACE FOR INSPECTION

Name and website of the media for disclosure of
the annual report of the Company

Website designated by the CSRC for publishing
the annual report

Website designated by Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for publishing the annual report

Place for inspection of the annual report

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News,
Securities Times and Securities Daily
SSE: www.sse.com.cn

Stock Exchange: www.hkexnews.hk

2nd Floor, Jiuzhou Electronic Building, Keji South 12th Street,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen
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ll.  Company Profile and Key Financial Indicators (Continued)

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES

Basic Information of the Company’s Shares

Stock exchanges
on which the shares

Stock abbreviation

Class of shares are listed Stock abbreviation Stock code before the change
A Shares Shanghai Stock LREB) 601330

Exchange
H Shares Hong Kong Stock DYNAGREEN ENV 1330

Exchange

OTHER RELATED INFORMATION

Auditors appointed by Name
the Company (Domestic)

Office address
Names of signing accountants

Name
Office address

Sponsor institution
responsible for continuous
supervision during the
Reporting Period
Name of sponsor representative
authorized as signatory
Continuous supervision period

Legal advisers appointed Name
by the Company

(Domestic)

Legal advisers appointed Name
by the Company (Foreign)

Share registrar of the Name
Company (Domestic)

Share registrar of the Name

Company (Foreign) Office address

Principal bankers Name

KPMG Huazhen LLP

8/F, KPMG Tower, Oriental Plaza,
1 East Chang An Avenue, Beijing
Wu Huihuang Huang Qiumei

China Securities Co., Ltd.

Unit 1002, Guangzhou Bank Building,

No. 30 Zhuijiang East Road, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province

Fang Chunjiang Zhao Xu

From 4 August 2021 to 31 December 2021

Beijing Kangda Law Firm

Morrison & Foerster

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited Shanghai Branch

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Asian Development Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
Agricultural Development Bank of China

Annual Report 2021



ll.  Company Profile and Key Financial Indicators (Continued)

VIl. MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS FOR THE

LAST THREE YEARS
() Major Accounting Data
Unit: RMB
Increase/decrease
for the current period
over the corresponding
Major accounting data 2020 period last year (%) 2019
Operating income 5,056,889,425.65 2,277,618,815.00 122.08% 1,752,449,088.97
Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the listed Company 697,785,876.79 508,385,543.61 38.62% 416,088,473.60
Net profit excluding extraordinary gain and loss
attributable to the shareholders of the listed
Company 686,122,447.71 484,699,699.57 41.56% 388,313,038.27
Net cash flows from operating activities 514,917,738.84 230,035,074.55 123.84% -48,189,535.55
Increase/decrease
for the end of
the current period
over the end of
As at the end As at the end the corresponding As at the end
of 2021 of 2020 period last year (%) of 2019
Net assets attributable to shareholders
of the Company 6,528,089,590.66 5,487,665,900.26 18.96% 3,296,228,917.35
Total assets 20,214,466,018.97 17,446,071,422.38 15.87% 13,670,787,404.47
() Key financial indicators
Increase/decrease
for the current
period over
the corresponding
Key financial indicators 2020 period last year (%) 2019
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.50 043 16.28 0.36
Diluted eamnings per share (RMB/share) 0.50 043 16.28 0.36
Basic earnings per share excluding extraordinary
gain and loss (RMB/share) 0.49 0.41 19.51 0.33
Weighted average return on equity (%) Decreased by
11.06 13.8  2.74 percentage points 13.23
Weighted average returmn on equity Decreased by
(excluding extraordinary gain and loss) (%) 10.87 13.29 2.42 percentage points 12.34

Explanations on the major accounting information and financial indicators of the Company for the past three
years before the end of the Reporting Period

v Applicable [J] Not Applicable

Pursuant to the interpretation on accounting treatment for public-private partnership (PPP) project contracts
under the CAS Bulletin No.14 (“Bulletin No. 14”) issued by the Ministry of Finance, PPP project contracts that
meet the corresponding conditions shall be subject to accounting treatment in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue. The preparation of the Company’s 2021 annual financial
report will follow the Interpretation No. 14 in terms of recognition of construction revenue and adjustments to
the amounts of retained earnings at the beginning of 2021 and other relevant items in the financial statements
as required, and no adjustment to the information of the comparable period is required. The restated total
assets and the net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company at the beginning of 2021 amounted to
RMB18,300,555,104.42 and RMB6,094,911,115.52 respectively. The total assets and the net assets attributable
to shareholders of the Company at the end of 2021 increased by 10.46% and 7.11%, respectively, as compared
with the restated opening balances.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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ll.  Company Profile and Key Financial Indicators (Continued)

T

VIILACCOUNTING DATA DIFFERENCES BETWEEN DOMESTIC AND

OVERSEAS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

() Difference Arising from the Net Profit and Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders
of the listed Company in the Financial Statements Disclosed Simultaneously
Pursuant to the International Accounting Standards and the Domestic Accounting
Standards
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

(I) Difference Arising from the Net Profit and Net Assets Attributable to Shareholders
of the listed Company in the Financial Statements Disclosed Simultaneously
Pursuant to the Overseas Accounting Standards and the Domestic Accounting
Standards
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

(Ill) Explanation on Difference between Overseas and Domestic Accounting Standards
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS OF 2021 BY QUARTER

Unit: RMB

Q3 Q4

Q1 Q2 (July to (October to

Key accounting data (January to March) (April to June) September) December)

Operating income 1,163,496,483.27 1,342,526,596.38 1,352,532,106.03 1,198,334,239.98

Net profit attributable to shareholders of

the listed Company 209,434,657.22 228,101,333.02 267,013,300.98 -6,763,414.44
Net profit excluding extraordinary gain and loss

attributable to the shareholders of the listed Company 207,478,832.03 224,588,583.72 264,966,750.66 -10,911,718.70

Net cash flows from operating activities 21,004,668.68 152,926,111.39 125,613,326.69 215,373,632.08

Explanation on Difference Between Quarterly Results and Information Disclosed in
Periodic Reports

v Applicable [J Not Applicable

Pursuant to the interpretation on accounting treatment for public-private partnership (PPP) project contracts under
the Interpretation No. 14 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance, PPP
project contracts that meet the corresponding conditions shall be subject to accounting treatment in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue. The preparation of the Company’s 2021
annual financial report will follow the Interpretation No. 14 in terms of recognition of construction revenue. Therefore,
adjustments were made to the financial data for the first three quarters.

Annual Report 2021



ll.  Company Profile and Key Financial Indicators (Continued)

X. EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES ITEMS AND AMOUNTS

v Applicable [J Not Applicable

Unit: RMB

Extraordinary gains and losses items Note (if applicable) Amount for 2020 Amount for 2019
Gains and losses on disposal of non-current assets -1,993,136.09 68,229.39 -72,516.10
Government grants recognised through profit or loss

(except for government grants which closely related to

company business that are fixed or quantified based on

the national standard) 8,483,877.31 19,894,695.13 27,485,767.51
Fund usage fees received from non-financial institutions

recognised in profit or loss 503,396.23 3,830.20 747,727.57
Gain from the difference between the cost of investment

on the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and

the shared fair value of identifiable net assets of the

investee 545,075.45
Other non-operating income and expenses besides items

above 5,265,809.70 840,538.00 750,151.69
Other gains and losses within the definition of non-

recurring gains and losses 237,845.56
Less: Effects on income tax 666,788.83 1,552,708.93 1,589,005.78
Effects on non-controlling shareholders (after tax) 161,664.30 568,739.75 91,765.01
Total 11,669,339.58 18,685,844.04 27,775,435.33

Explanation of the non-recurring gains or losses items as illustrated in the Explanatory Announcement on Information
Disclosure for Companies Offering Their Securities to the Public No. 1 — Non-recurring Gains or Losses defined as the
recurring gains or losses items
[ Applicable v Not Applicable

Xl. ITEMS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
[ Applicable v Not Applicable

XIl. OTHERS

L1 Applicable v Not Applicable

10 Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



lIll. Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to the shareholders of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) with the Company’s business review for the year 2021 and its business prospects
for the year 2022.

The year 2021 is the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. In order to make a good start, the Group focused on high-quality
development and exerted efforts on both epidemic prevention and control and production and operation, as a result major
operating indicators hit a new record high. The waste treatment capacity of the Group increased by 7,500 tons per day
and the increase in production capacity was over 6,000 tons for three consecutive years; there are 31 power generation
projects under operation bringing the Company’s operation scale to another level; the waste treatment volume exceeded
10 million tons for the first time, and the Group treated a total of 10,537,600 tons of domestic waste, representing a year-
on-year increase of 17.43% and generated 3,329,148,200 kWh of on-grid electricity, representing a year-on-year increase
of 22.10%, and the on-grid electricity generated by a ton of waste reached the best level in history; in response to waste
sorting and the decline of National Subsidies, the Group’s waste-to-energy projects proactively developed the solid waste
co-treatment business and steam supply business. As of the end of 2021, the Group were granted eight kitchen waste
treatment projects, five of which successfully developed steam supply business, and the accumulative steam supply
throughout the year was 139,500 tons. 2021 saw a significant growth in the Group’s results. The Group recorded RMB5,057
million in operating income (including construction income) representing an increase of 122.03% as compared to the same
period last year, and RMB742 million in net profit, representing an increase of 40.39% as compared to the same period last
year.

The capital market is the booster for the rapid development of the Company. Following the successful completion of the
non-public issuance of A shares in 2020, the Company officially launched the public issuance of A share convertible bonds
in June 2021 and the issuance was successfully completed in early 2022. The issuance has set a record for the Company’s
single financing scale and significantly improved the Company’s debt structure, and will provide a strong guarantee for the
Group’s stable and long-term development. As a state-controlled company listed in Hong Kong and the mainland China, the
Company always regards standardized operation as the bottom line of corporate governance, production and operation. It
respects the market and the rule of law, and strictly fuffills its information disclosure obligations in accordance with the listing
rules of the places where the A shares and H shares are listed; the Company attaches great importance to communication
with shareholders and investor relations. In the past year, it maintained good interaction with investors by holding video
results briefings and interim results briefings and attendance of the online collective reception day for investors of listed
companies in Shenzhen.

In recent years, the measures of the PRC to promote pollution prevention and control and build a beautiful China have been
unprecedented in terms of practicality, efforts and remarkable results. However, as the structural, deep rooted and trend
pressures over the ecological environment protection of the PRC have not been fundamentally alleviated, the task of peak
carbon dioxide emission and carbon neutrality are arduous and there is a long way to go for ecological protection. In 2021,
top-level designs were successively made in the PRC for the development of urban domestic waste sorting and treatment
facilities during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, intensifying the battle against pollution, and achieving peak carbon dioxide
emission and carbon neutrality. The reduction of pollution and carbon will be promoted simultaneously and the waste-to-
energy industry is still full of opportunities. However, the growth potential of the industry can no longer be compared with that
during the “13th Five-Year Plan” period and the policy adjustment to the National Subsidies has also settled down, and the
industry will shift from high-speed development to high-quality development. For over two decades, the Group has adhered
to its original intention and always been deeply engaged in the waste-to-energy industry. In the future, with the mission of
“creating a better living environment”, the Company will continue to focus on the main business, strengthen the market
development of waste-to-energy projects, and take advantage of the capital market to strengthen mergers and acquisitions.
It will improve the operation and management of completed projects, and refine, optimise and consolidate the main business
of power generation. Meanwhile, new growth drivers will be proactively cultivated in the solid waste industry, to create
returns to all shareholders with better results and contribute to the construction of ecological civilization of the PRC.

Last, |, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders for their trust and support for the Group
and to all staff of the Group for their efforts and dedication in the last year.

Qiao Dewei
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
29 March 2022
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V. Management Discussion and Analysis

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

(1)

Industry overview

A good ecological environment is an inherent requirement for realizing the sustainable development of the
Chinese nation, a priority area for improving people’s livelihood and well-being, and an important foundation for
building a beautiful China. In recent years, the measures of the PRC to promote pollution prevention and control
and build a beautiful China have been unprecedented in terms of practicality, efforts and remarkable results. The
phased goals and tasks of pollution prevention and control have been successfully accomplished, the ecological
environment has been significantly improved, and the people’s sense of gain has been significantly enhanced,
laying a sound foundation for building a moderately prosperous society in an all-round way. At the same time, it
should be noted that the structural, deep rooted and trend pressures over the ecological environment protection
of the PRC have not yet been fundamentally alleviated, and pollution problems in key regions and industries are
still prominent. The task of achieving peak carbon dioxide emission and carbon neutrality is arduous, and there is
a long way to go for ecological protection.

In March 2021, the State Council announced the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic
and Social Development of the People’s Republic of China and Vision for 2035, pursuant to which, during the
“14th Five-Year” period, China will continue to adhere to the concept that lucid waters and lush mountains are
our invaluable assets, to proceed with pollution prevention and control in an in-depth way. The environmental
governance system will be established and improved. Efforts will be exerted to advance accurate, scientific, legal
and systematic pollution control, continuously improve the quality of air and water environment, and effectively
manage and control soil pollution risks, to build a beautiful China; it is proposed to comprehensively improve the
environmental infrastructure, and build a domestic waste treatment system integrating sorted release, sorted
collection, sorted transportation, and sorted treatment. The environmental protection industry is still promising.

Compared with the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the waste-to-energy industry will enter a new stage of
development. First of all, the original high-speed growth is unsustainable, and the release rate of new projects
may slow down. In May 2021, the NDRC and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development issued the
“14th Five-year” Development Plan for Urban Domestic Waste Classification and Treatment Facilities”, pursuant
to which by the end of 2025, the national urban domestic waste incineration capacity will reach about 800,000
tons per day. The increase in production capacity is lower than that during the “13th Five-Year Plan” period.
Second, the adjustment to the policy on National Subsidies has been implemented, and the upper limit of the
National Subsidies for the existing projects is limited by 82,500 reasonable utilization hours or 15 years. The
on-grid tariff of projects connected to the grid and newly commenced after 2021 shall be subject to on-grid
competitive bidding. The changes in the policy on National Subsidies highlighted the importance of project quality
and the urgency of diversifying project income sources. In addition, with the continuous in-depth advancement
of waste sorting policy in China, a whole-process sorting management system for domestic waste integrating
sorted release, sorted collection, sorted transportation and sorted treatment is being built everywhere, and the
demand for kitchen waste treatment is increasing. In the new development stage, waste-to-energy enterprises
are required to take new measures.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(2) Business review

For details of the principal businesses of the Group, please refer to “lll. Operations of the Company during the
Reporting Period” in this section. During the Reporting Period, the principal businesses of the Group have no
major change. The business review, the discussion and analysis of significant factors relating to results and
financial position, the major risks and the future business development of the Group are set out in Section Ill and
this section of this annual report, respectively. The above discussion is part of the Report of Directors.

The year 2021 is the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. In order to make a good start, the Company focused
on high-quality development in accordance with the annual work plan and exerted efforts on both epidemic
prevention and control and production and operation, and all works were advanced together, as a result major
operating indicators hit a new record high. The scattered outbreaks of the COVID-19 did not have a significant
impact on the operations of the Company. In 2021, the Group achieved revenue of RMB5,056,889,425.6,
representing an increase of 122.03% as compared to the corresponding period last year, and a net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB697,785,876.76, representing an increase of 38.62%
as compared to the corresponding period last year. As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the Group
amounted to RMB20,214,466,019.29, representing an increase of 15.87% over the beginning of the year. During
the year, the Company officially launched the issuance of A share convertible corporate bonds, and the waste
treatment and on-grid electricity hit new highs. The annual plan of the projects under construction has been
successfully completed and the preparatory projects have been steadily promoted. Details are as follows:

1. Official launch of the issuance of A share convertible corporate bonds and
successful completion of the issuance before disclosure of the annual report
The Group officially launched the application for issuance of A share convertible bonds in June 2021 and
submitted the application documents to the CSRC in late August. The Group received feedback from the
CSRC in mid-September, and submitted the feedback report to the CSRC at the end of September. In
January 2022, the Group’s application for the issuance of A share convertible bonds passed the review
by the Issuance Review Committee of the CSRC. The Group obtained the issuance approval at the end
of January and all procedures for the issuance of A share convertible bonds were completed in March.
The total amount of proceeds from the issuance of A share convertible bonds is RMB2.36 billion and the
net amount of proceeds is RMB2.35 billion. The issuance will help strengthen the Company’s strength,
improve the Company’s debt structure, and provide financial guarantee for sustainable development.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Projects under operation performed steadily hitting new highs in volume of
waste treatment and on-grid electricity
In 2021, the Group’s waste treatment exceeded 10 million tons for the first time and the Group treated
10.5376 million tons of municipal waste, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.43%, and generated
on-grid electricity of 3,329.1482 million kWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 22.10%. On-grid
electricity converted by waste per tonne reached the best level in history. Meanwhile, the total amount
of steam supplied was 139,500 tons throughout the year. The Company constantly attaches great
importance to operation management. In 2021, the Company conducted its operation under the concepts
of being “safe, environmental friendly, civilized and effective” to further strengthen security and environment
protection management and continuously deepen refined management, maintaining stable production
and meeting emission standards. Haining Expansion Project won the 2020-2021 “National Quality Project
Award”, becoming the second project of the Group to receive this honor.

Major operating data of the Group in each region in 2021

Region Item 2021
East China Waste input volume (0,000 tons) 449.23
Electricity generation volume ('0,000 kWh) 174,355.47
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 144,379.62
North China Waste input volume (0,000 tons) 162.01
Electricity generation volume (‘0,000 kWh) 51,369.28
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 40,562.50
South China Waste input volume (0,000 tons) 233.18
Electricity generation volume (‘0,000 kWh) 108,959.89
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 91,713.77
Central China Waste input volume (0,000 tons) 92.06
Electricity generation volume (‘0,000 kWh) 33,690.40
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 27,840.95
Southwest China Waste input volume ('0,000 tons) 74.12
Electricity generation volume (‘0,000 kWh) 25,519.66
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 20,930.07
Northeast China Waste input volume (0,000 tons) 43.16
Electricity generation volume ('0,000 kWh) 9,618.97
On-grid electricity volume ('0,000 kWh) 7,487.92

Note: The above data includes the production data of Fengcheng Company, a joint venture.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The projects under construction successfully conducted and six new projects
and three phase Il projects were completed and commenced operation

In 2021, the projects under construction of the Company were conducted smoothly. Six new projects and
three phase Il projects were completed and put into production, including Shishou Project, Yongjia Phase
Il Project, Pingyang Phase Il Project, Jinsha Project, Dengfeng Project, Laizhou Project, second stage
of Huizhou Phase Il Project, Phase Il of Jiamusi Project and Phase Il of Sihui Project, with an increase in
production capacity of 7,500 tons per day. The increase in production capacity was over 6,000 tons for
three consecutive years. As of the end of 2021, 80%, 65% and 50% of construction works were completed
in Huludao Waste-to-energy Project, Shuozhou Project and Enshi Project, respectively. The construction
of Jingxi Project and Wuhan Phase Il Project has commenced. The construction of the Huludao Hazardous
Waste Project has been completed and the project obtained the hazardous waste operation license at the
end of the year.

Maijor projects and works under construction in 2021

Design treatment

No. Project capacity Status

(tons/day)
1 Shishou Project 700  Putinto production in March 2021
2 Yongjia Phase Il Project 750  Put into production in March 2021
3 Pingyang Phase Il Project 750  Put into production in April 2021
4 Stage Il of Huizhou Phase Il Project 1,700  Put into production in August 2021
5 Jinsha Project 800  Put into production in November 2021
6 Dengfeng Project 800  Put into production in December 2021
7 Laizhou Project 1,000  Put into production in December 2021
8 Jiamusi Project Phase |l 500  Put into production in November 2021
9 Sihui Project Phase |l 500  Putinto production in December 2021
10 Huludao Waste-to-energy Project 1,000 In construction
11 Shuozhou Project 800  In construction
12 Enshi Project 1,200  In construction
13 Jingxi Project 800  In construction
14 Wuhan Phase Il Project 1,000 In construction
15 Huludao Hazardous Waste Project - Completed
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

4. Conforming to the development trend of the industry and great achievements
in new business development
In response to industry trends such as waste sorting and changes in policy on national renewable energy
subsidies, the Company proactively developed new businesses centering on existing waste incineration
projects. In 2021, the Company was granted kitchen waste treatment projects in Chaoyang, Shantou
and Ninghe, Tianjin. Therefore, the number of the Company’s kitchen waste treatment projects reached
eight. The kitchen waste treatment projects will achieve business synergy with the Company’s local
waste-to-energy project; Pingyang Project, Rushan Project and Jiamusi Project successfully developed
heating business and the Company had five waste-to-energy projects engaged in development of heating
business.

5. New breakthroughs in technology research and development and further
improvement in core competitiveness
In 2021, the Company continued to research and develop large incinerators in line with the Company’s
trend towards large projects. The 800-ton incinerator as developed independently by the Company
completed trial operation and was in stable operation with good combustion conditions; the Company
completed the design and optimization of the 900-1,000 ton incinerator as developed independently by
the Company which will be used in the large new projects; the online warning and control system of dioxin
generated in waste incineration was tested and applied in Changzhou Project, with good results; the
experiment of polymer denitration SER and low-temperature synthesis retarder of dioxin in the incinerator
was carried out in Changzhou Project, and the expected results were achieved. As of the end of the year,
the Group has obtained a total of 70 patents (including 17 invention patents).

INDUSTRY SITUATION OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

With the steady population growth, continuous advancement of urbanization and economic development in the PRC,
the volume of municipal waste generated in the PRC continues to rise, and the demand for treatment is growing.
According to the Statistical Yearbook of China Urban Construction, from 2008 to 2020, the number of domestic waste
harmless treatments in the PRC increased from 509 to 1,287, and the daily treatment capacity increased from 315,200
tons to 963,500 tons, with a compound growth rate of 9.76%. The daily treatment capacity, actual treatment volume
and treatment rate of harmless treatment increased significantly. Detoxification waste treatment is mainly divided into
three ways: incineration, landfill and composting. Incineration has the advantages of significant reduction in quantity,
less space required and relatively small impact on the environment and is the fastest growing segment. From 2008
to 2020, the number of municipal waste-to-energy plants increased from 74 to 463 in the PRC, which increased by
525.68%. The daily processing capacity increased from 51,600 tons to 567,800 tons and the actual annual processing
capacity increased from 15.697 million tons to 146 million tons, with a compound growth rate of both capacities of
over 20%. Compared with the developed countries, the percentage of waste-to-energy processing capability in China
is still relative low. According to the national “14th Five-Year” plan, by the end of 2025, the national urban domestic
waste incineration capacity will reach about 800,000 tons per day, and the municipal solid waste incineration treatment
capacity will account for about 65%, with great growth potential.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The municipal waste-to-energy industry is characterized by policy encouragement, regional monopoly, capital
intensiveness, and insignificant seasonal and periodic fluctuations. Details are as follows:

(1)

In recent years, with the continuous advancement of China’s industrialization and urbanization, the environmental
problems facing our country have become increasingly serious. The State has raised the construction in relation
to ecological civilization to an unprecedented level. Energy-saving and environmental protection industry,
including waste treatment, is the top of the seven strategic emerging industries of the PRC. In the context of
a small per capita land area in the PRC, waste-to-energy is an important means to achieve the “reduction,
recycling, and harmless treatment” of waste and improve the ecological environment. Due to the large initial
investment and high operating costs of waste-to-energy business, the State has introduced preferential policies
in various aspects such as on-grid tariff and tax to promote the rapid development of the waste-to-energy
industry, e.g. implementation of the national unified waste-to-energy benchmarking tariff of RMBO0.65 per kWh
for the part that does not exceed 280 kWh per ton of municipal waste; eligible waste-to-energy projects will be
eligible for a tax exemption for the first year to the third year, and a 50% reduction in CIT for the fourth year to
the sixth year starting from the year in which the projects first generate operating income; VAT on tariff revenue is
subject to 100% refund and VAT on waste treatment fees is subject to 70% refund.

The waste-to-energy projects in the PRC usually adopt the concession model, and the concession period is
generally from 25 to 30 years. Under this model, the relevant government departments grant concession rights to
investors or operators of waste-to-energy plants, and the grantees of concession rights enjoy the exclusive right
to treat municipal waste in a certain area during the concession period.

The waste-to-energy industry is capital intensive. The initial investment required for the waste-to-energy project is
large. The capital investment for a waste-to-energy plant with a daily treatment capacity of 1,000 tons is generally
RMB400 million to RMB600 million. At the same time, the payback period of waste-to energy projects is relatively
long, generally 8-12 years.

The raw materials of waste-to-energy plants are municipal waste, which is directly related to the local population,
and the production volume is relatively stable and subject to insignificant seasonal and periodic fluctuations.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

lll. OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

1.

Principal operations of the Company

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises to conduct municipal waste-to-energy business in the PRC, and
is mainly engaged in the investment, construction, operation, maintenance and technical consulting business
of municipal waste-to-energy plants under BOT and other concessions. Focusing on the vast market space
of the economically developed Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and Bohai Economic Rim, the Company
has extended its business network to the central and western regions such as Anhui, Hubei, Guizhou, Shanxi,
Guangxi, Jiangxi, Hunan, Shaanxi, Henan and Sichuan, preliminarily forming a market layout based in the
Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and Bohai Rim and spanning across the country. As at 31 December
2021, in respect of the municipal waste-to-energy sector, the Company had 31 projects under operation and 5
projects under construction. The waste treatment capacity of the projects under operation reached 34,000 tons/
day and the installed capacity was 699.5MW, placing the Company in a leading position in the industry in terms
of the number of projects and waste treatment capacity.

Major business model

The Company mainly adopts the BOT model to operate its municipal waste-to-energy business as follows: the
government department responsible for waste disposal selects a service provider to construct and operate the
waste-to-energy plant under the BOT model through tenders or other means. After the Company is awarded
the project, the Company enters into a concession agreement with the relevant local government department
and establishes a project company to conduct business. According to the concession agreement entered into
with the relevant local government department, the project company is responsible for raising funds to construct
and operate the entire waste-to-energy plant. The concession period is usually from 25 to 30 years. The relevant
government department pays the project company a waste treatment fee at the agreed price, and the project
company sells the electricity, steam or hot water generated during the waste incineration process. Upon the
expiration of the concession, the Company has to transfer the relevant infrastructure to the concession grantor.

The upstream industries of the Company include construction enterprises, installation companies, waste
treatment and power generation equipment (such as incinerators, smog and gas treatment systems, turbine
generators and waste heat boilers) suppliers, and the Company selects suppliers through tenders. The
downstream industries mainly include local government departments and power grid companies. The Company
provides waste incineration treatment services to local governments to receive waste treatment fees and
provides electricity to power grid companies to receive electricity tariffs.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



3. Main processes and technologies

IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The specific process of waste incineration power plant is illustrated in the following diagram:

Power grid
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The core equipment of the waste incineration power generation system is incinerator. The Company mainly uses
the self-developed three-drive expeller grate waste incinerator. The incinerator has a unique integrated three-
stage design. lts drying and burning configuration are equipped with independent driving mechanism. It can
flexibly adjust the running speed of each section according to the combustion condition, which can better control

the distribution of the fire bed and achieve lower clinker ignition loss.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IV. ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

v Applicable [ Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, there was no material change in the core competitiveness of the Company.

1.

Focused market layout spanning across the whole country

Since its establishment, the Company has adopted a proactive strategy in market development and strives to
develop various regional markets. Its projects are distributed in an extensive geographical area, with a market
network covering 20 provinces/municipalities/autonomous regions. Focusing on the vast market space of the
economically developed Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and Bohai Economic Rim, the Company has
extended its business network to the central and western regions such as Anhui, Hubei, Guizhou, Shanxi,
Guangxi, Jiangxi, Hunan, Shaanxi, Henan and Sichuan, preliminarily forming a market layout based in the
Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and Bohai Rim and spanning across the country.

Extensive industry experience

The Company is among the first companies to explore industrial applications for waste treatment in the PRC, and
is also one of the earliest enterprises to focus on upgrading and further developing advanced international waste-
to-energy technologies in the PRC. Since its establishment in 2000, the Company has accumulated extensive
experience in project investment, construction and operation management. It has been recognised as the “Top
10 Most Influential Solid Waste Enterprises” for twelve consecutive years. More than two decades of industry
experience builds up the brand of the Company and will help the Company seize the development opportunities
in the industry and achieve its strategic development goals.

Leading expertise

The “multiple drive expeller grate waste incinerator” technology independently developed by the Company is a
leading incineration technology in the industry and was granted an invention patent by the state. The technology is
compatible with the characteristics of the municipal waste in the PRC with an edge in performance, was selected
by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development ((£#58) as a core technology to promote for use
during the “11th Five-Year Plan” period, and was successfully listed in the 2019 Directory of Key Environmental
Protection Practical Technologies and Demonstration Projects ({2019F B IR IFREE A RM M R#E T2
#4$%)) by China Association of Environmental Protection Industry (Ff BIRIE(REE 21 ). The Changzhou
Project was recognised by China Association of Environmental Protection Industry (FF Bl {REE X E) as
a “National Model Project for Use of Environmental Protection Technologies” (& FAIRF R MIEIEI R EEEEE) in
2013. Huizhou Project and Haining Expansion Project were successively awarded the “Quality Chinese Project
for Electricity Engineering Award” (RIS /1128 Ti24%) and the “National Quality Project Award” (BIZ &% T
F28¥). Tongzhou Project was awarded the “Quality Chinese Project for Electricity Engineering Award” (F EB&E
BE T2 4) and “Luban Prize” (BI4E) in 2020. “A multiple drive expeller grate waste incinerator with an online
warning and control system of dioxin” independently developed by the Company was awarded the second prize
for technical progress for 2019 by China Environmental Protection Industry Association. With its professional
technologies, the Company is able to provide more premium environmental services for its customers and
enhance its market position.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

4. Experienced management team

The management team of the Company has been engaged in business management, market development,
technology development and construction and operation of waste-to-energy plants over the years. The Chairman
of the Company, Mr. Qiao Dewei, was recognised as one of the “Top 100 Industry Leaders in Shenzhen” in
2020, proving his social influence and charisma, and the management team under his leadership has nearly
20 years of experience in cooperation and in-depth understanding of the industry. Under the guidance of the
management team, the project construction and operation team can adopt targeted strategies for the changes
in the waste treatment technology and management and operation of waste-to-energy plants in a timely manner,
while the marketing team can actively develop potential regional markets according to the future development
planning of the Company. Such an experienced team of the Company helps to enhance the operating efficiency
and warrants the quality of the projects.

V. MAJOR OPERATIONAL PARTICULARS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

In 2021, the Group achieved an operating income of RMB5,056,889,425.65 and net profit of RMB686,116,535.05.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets and total liabilities amounted to RMB20,214,466,018.97 and
RMB13,296,884,507.65 respectively. The total equity amounted to RMB6,917,581,511.32 and the gearing ratio
(calculated as total liabilities over total assets) was 65.78%, and the net asset value per share attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company was RMB4.68.

(1) Analysis of main businesses

1. Analysis on changes of relevant items in income statement and cash flow

statement
Unit: RMB
Amount for the
Amount for the corresponding
Item current period period last year Change (%)
Operating income 5,056,889,425.65 2,277,618,815.00 122.03%
Operating cost 3,325,173,180.51 967,675,984.97 243.62%
Administrative expenses 181,440,756.77 161,321,513.88 12.47%
Finance costs 447,634,138.22 446,176,244.89 0.33%
Research and development
expenditure 7,085,349.05 7,603,578.05 —6.82%
Net cash flows from operating
activities 514,917,738.84 230,035,074.55 123.84%
Net cash flow generated from
investing activities -1,619,392,165.00 —-1,648,777,701.95 -1.48%
Net cash flow generated from
financing activities 466,574,265.58 2,652,841,900.07 -82.41%
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Explanation on changes in
operating income:

Explanation on changes in
operating cost:

Explanation on changes in
administrative expenses:

Explanation on changes in
finance costs:

Explanation on changes in
research and development
expenditure:

Explanation on changes in net
cash flows from operating
activities:

Explanation on changes in net
cash flow generated from
investing activities:

Explanation on changes in net
cash flow generated from
financing activities:

IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Mainly due to the increase in operating projects, the improvement of
capacity utilization rate of certain operating projects, and the recognition
of construction revenue in an amount of RMB2.427 billion for BOT
projects during the construction period in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, the Interpretation No. 14 and other
relevant regulations

Mainly due to the increase in operating projects and the recognition of
construction revenue in an amount of RMB2.238 billion for BOT projects
during the construction period in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, the Interpretation No. 14 and other
relevant regulations

Mainly due to the increase in operating projects

Minor changes

Minor changes

Mainly due to the increase in operating income and in cash received
from sales of goods and rendering of services; and the decrease in
fuel procurement costs due to the shutdown of Ninghe Straw Power
Generation Project in February, resulting in a year-on-year substantial
decrease in operating costs of Ninghe Straw Power Generation Project.

Minor changes

Mainly due to the receipt of proceeds from non-public issuance of A
shares in an amount of RMB1.8 billion in the corresponding period last
year; and the increase in dividends paid on ordinary shares in the current
period by RMB163 million as compared with the same period last year.

Detailed explanation on material changes in the business type, profit composition or profit source of the

Company in the period

v Applicable [INot Applicable

The construction revenue and construction cost of the BOT projects were recognized during the
construction period according to the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Interpretation No.
14 and other relevant regulations, and construction profits were generated.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Analysis of the revenue and costs
v Applicable [INot Applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved an operating income of RMB5,056,889,425.65
(corresponding period in 2020: RMB2,277,618,815.00), representing an increase of 122.03% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2020. The increase was mainly due to the increase in operating
projects and the improvement of capacity utilization rate of certain operating projects, and the recognition
of construction revenue for BOT projects. Shishou Project, Yongjia Phase Il Project and Pingyang Phase
Il Project of the Company were put into operation in the first half of 2021. Haining Expansion Project,
Huizhou Phase Il Project, Hong’an Project and Yichun Project, which were put into production in the first
half of 2020, were in operation throughout 2021; projects such as Shantou Project operated stably with an
increase in the capacity utilization rate. In particular, operating income amounted to RMB2,277,415,258.35
(corresponding period in 2020: RMB1,964,864,278.74), representing an increase of 15.91% as compared
to the corresponding period in 2020. Construction revenue was recognized for BOT projects in an amount
of RMB2,427,432,006.22 during the construction period in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, the Interpretation No. 14 and other relevant regulations. Interest income amounted
to RMB352,042,161.08 (corresponding period in 2020: RMB312,754,536.26), representing an increase of
12.56% as compared to the corresponding period in 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased by 32.20% to RMB1,731,716,245.14
(corresponding period in 2020: RMB1,309,942,830.03) and the gross profit margin was 34.24%
(corresponding period in 2020: 57.51%), which was mainly due to recognition of construction revenue
and the gross profit margin of the construction business being significantly lower than that of the operation
business.

Total profit

During the Reporting Period, the total profit of the Group amounted to RMB890,127,059.32, representing
an increase of RMB262,238,469.22 as compared to corresponding period in 2020, which was mainly due
to an increase in gross profit.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(1)

Performance of main businesses by segment, product, region and sales model

Unit: RMB
Main businesses by segment

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

decrease in decrease in decrease in

operating operating gross profit

income as costs as margin as

Operating Operating  Gross profit ~ comparedto  compared to compared to

By segment income cost  margin (%) last year (%) last year (%) last year (%)

Environmental 5,046,421,717.38  3,304,400,534.97 34.52 134.18 284.76  Decreased by 25.63

protection service percentage points

Main businesses by product

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

decrease in decrease in decrease in

operating operating gross profit

income as costs as margin as

Operating Operating  Gross profit ~ comparedto  compared to compared to

By product income cost  margin (%) last year (%) last year (%) last year (%)

Solid waste 2,618,989,711.16  1,066,146,869.84 59.29 21.54 2414 Decreased by 0.85

treatment percentage point

BOT project 2,427,432,006.22  2,238,253,665.13 7.79 N/A N/A N/A
construction

service
Main businesses by region

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

decrease in decrease in decrease in

operating operating gross profit

income as costs as margin as

Operating Operating  Gross profit ~ comparedto  compared to compared to

By region income cost  margin (%) last year (%) last year (%) last year (%)

East China 1,183,750,896.14 559,775,067.78 52.71 42.35 79.84  Decreased by 9.86

percentage points

South China 1,207,407,968.31 743,171,906.18 38.45 129.50 22322 Decreased by 17.85

percentage points

North China 779,668,762.84 517,616,013.39 33.61 4471 101.93  Decreased by 18.81

percentage points

Central China 968,923,338.62 787,226,038.88 18.75 545.67 1,454.16  Decreased by 47.49

percentage points

Southwest China 447,012,367.52 304,173,279.76 31.95 167.92 335.77  Decreased by 26.21

percentage points

Others 470,126,092.23 413,210,874.52 12.11 632.10 731.61  Decreased by 10.52

percentage points
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Explanation on the main businesses by segment, product and region

Environmental protection services mainly refer to the construction and operation of waste-to-energy
projects, solid waste treatment mainly refers to the operation of waste incineration power generation
projects, and BOT project construction services mainly refer to the construction of waste-to-energy
projects.

Analysis of production and sales
L1 Applicable v Not Applicable

Performance of material sales and procurement contracts

L1 Applicable v Not Applicable
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Cost analysis table

IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Unit: RMB
Particulars by segment
Percentage
changes in
the amount
Percentage  for the period
Percentage Amount ofthetotal s compared
to the total for the costforthe tothat of the
costforthe  corresponding  corresponding  corresponding
ltem relating to Amount in the period period period last period
By segment cost composition  current period (%) [ast year year(%)  lastyear(%)  Explanation
Environmental protection  Staff cost 269,771,374.28 811 208,506,462.76 2155 2938 Increase in operation
senvice projects, number of
employees and wages
Environmental protection ~ Environmental 190,324,118.53 572 170509,573.09 1762 1162 Increase in operation
snice protection fee projects and improved
environmental
requirements
Environmental protection  Amortization of 300,718,857.74 931 221406,576.76 288 3989 Recognition of BOT
senvice infangiole assets construction revenue,
increase in original value
and amorization of
intangiole assets, and
increase in operation
projects
Environmental protection ~ Material fee 185,017,371.74 406 12362792421 12.78 921 Increase in operation
senice projects
Environmental protection ~ Overhauland other ~ 66,963,006.29 201 6277726404 649 6.67  Minor changes
senvice maintenance costs
Environmental protection ~ Construction costs ~ 2,238,263,665.13 67.31 Recognition of
senvice construction revenue
and construction cost
of the BOT projects
during the construction
period according o

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

the “Interpretation
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Particulars by product

Percentage
to the total
cost for the

Item relating to Amount in the period
By product cost composition current period (%) Explanation
Solid waste treatment -~ Staff cost 269,771,374.28 8.11 Increase in operation
projects, number of
employees and wiages
Soli waste treatment ~ Environmental 190,324,118.53 512 Increase in operation
protection fee projects and improved
environmental
requirements
Solic waste treatment ~ Amortization of 309,718,857.74 931 Recognition of BOT
infangible assets construction revenue,
increase in original value
and amorization of
intangible assets and
increase in operation
projects
Solid waste treatment ~ Material fee 185,017,371.74 406 Increase in operation
projects
Solid waste treatment~ Overhauland other 66,963,062 201 Minor changes
maintenance costs
BOT project construction ~ Construction costs  2,238,23,665.13 67.31 Recognition of
senvice construction revenue
and construction cost
of the BOT projects
during the construction
period according to

Description of other situations of cost analysis

Nil

the “Interpretation

No. 14 of Accounting
Standaras for Busingss
Enterprises”

Changes in the scope of consolidation due to changes in the equity of major subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Significant changes in or adjustments to the Company’s business, products or services during the
Reporting Period
L1 Applicable v Not Applicable

Major customers and suppliers of the Company

A

Major customers of the Company

The customers of the Group mainly comprise the municipal administrative authorities of the
local governments and power grid companies. Pursuant to the “Concession Agreement”
entered into between the Group and the municipal administrative authorities of the local
governments, the Group provides waste treatment service to the municipal administrative
authorities and receives waste treatment fee. The amount of processed waste is measured
with the equipment monitored by both parties, and the waste treatment standards are in line
with the relevant technical and emission standards. The “Concession Agreement” stipulates
the waste treatment fee, which will be reviewed and adjusted on a regular basis, and settled
monthly or every several months. The Group is dedicated to provide quality and professional
waste treatment service to municipal administrative authorities of the local governments, so as
to improve urban environment and establish a brand image.

Pursuant to the “Electricity Sale and Purchase Agreement” entered into by the Group and
the power grid companies, the Group sells the electricity it generated (net of those for self-
consumption) to the power grid companies and receives sales revenue. The unit price of
electricity is based on the unified price issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission. The on-grid electricity is measured by electric meters approved by both parties
and the fee will be settled monthly or every several months.

Sales to the Group’s largest customer amounted to RMB223,196,600, accounting for 8.49%
of the total sales for the year.

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers amounted to RMB851,900,700, accounting for
32.40% of the total sales for the year, in which sales to related parties was nil, accounting for
nil% of the total sales for the year.

Circumstances in which the proportion of sales to a single customer exceeded 50% of the total
sales, there were new customers among the top 5 customers, or the Company was heavily

dependent on a small number of customers

] Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Major customers of the Company

The Group mainly procures various kinds of equipment, construction and installation services
and consumables. The Group maintains a database of suppliers and, in accordance with the
procurement procedures and policies it established, selects suppliers publicly based on their
merits through bidding and other procedures as permitted by laws. The Group will enter into
procurement contracts with the selected suppliers and make payment according to the time
the suppliers provide products or services. The Group values the relationship with suppliers
and has established long term cooperation with them based on the principles of “fairmess and
mutual benefits”.

Purchases from the largest supplier amounted to RMB367,927,000, accounting for 10.02% of
the total purchases for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers amounted to RMB115,280.47, accounting
for 31.40% of the total purchases for the year, in which purchases from related parties was
RMBnil, accounting for nil% of the total purchases for the year.

Circumstances in which the proportion of procurement from a single supplier exceeded 50%
of the total sales, there were new suppliers among the top 5 suppliers, or the Company was
heavily dependent on a small number of suppliers

L] Applicable v Not Applicable

Other Explanation

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any substantial shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own 5% or above of the Company’s

issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and five
largest suppliers.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Expenses
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

(1) Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB181,440,756.77 (corresponding period in 2020: RMB161,321,513.88), representing a year-on-
year increase of 12.47%, which accounted for approximately 3.59% (corresponding period in 2020:

7.08%) of the operating income of Group.

(2)  Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the finance costs for the Group amounted to RMB447,634,138.22,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,457,893.33 or 0.33% over the previous year.

(B)  Income tax expenses

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB148,283,994.85 (2020: RMB99,453,958.03), accounting for approximately 16.66% (2020:
15.84%) of total profit of the Group. The increase in the proportion of income tax expenses and total
profits is mainly due to an increase in deferred income tax recognized as a result of an increase in the

book value of intangible assets arising from the recognition of construction revenue.

4. R&D investment
(1) Table of R&D investment
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

Unit: RMB
Expense-type research and development expenses for the current period 7,085,349.05
Capitalised research and development expenses for the current period 0
Total R&D expenditures 7,085,349.05
Proportion of total research and development expenses to the revenue (%) 0.14
Percentage of capitalised R&D investment (%) 0

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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Table of R&D staff
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

Number of R&D staff

Percentage of R&D staffs to the total staffs of the Company (%)

Educational structure of R&D staff

Category of educational structure

+&0

0%

IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

0.30

Number of staff

Doctor

Master

Bachelor

Junior college

High school and below

Age structure of R&D staff

Category of age structure

O w o=+ O

Number of staff

Under 30 (excluding 30)

30-40 (including 30, excluding 40)
40-50 (including 40, excluding 50)
50-60 (including 50, excluding 60)
60 and above

Explanation
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

O W wwo

Reasons for material changes in the composition of R&D staff and the impact on the future

development of the Company
[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

5. Cash flows

v Applicable [ Not Applicable

Unit: RMB
From the
beginning of the
year to the end
of the reporting
period (January to Corresponding Amount of Change
Item December) period last year change (%)  Main reason
Cash received from sale of goods, 2,611,030,834.05 2,175,616,049.41 435,414,784.64 2001 Shishou Project, Yongjia Phase I
rendering of services and the Project, and Pingyang Phase |l
Buld-Operate-Transfer (‘BOT') Project were put into operation in the
projects and the BuildTransfer year and Haining Expansion Project,
(‘BT") projects Huizhou Phase Il Project, Hong'an
Project, Yichun Project and other
projects that were put into operation
in the first half of 2020 operated
throughout 2021, resulting in an
increase in revenue
Cash paid from sale of goods, 621,894,623.57 £59,630,599.25 -37,735,975.68 =572 Mainly due to a decrease n fuel
rendering of services procurement costs as a result of the
shutdown of Ninghe Straw Project
since February
Increase in principal of contract 941,107,777.81 868,984,007.15 72,123,770.66 830 Mainly due to an increase in investment
assets of BOT project construction in project construction
Cash paid o and for employees 400,497,529.52 325,538,692.22 74,958,837.30 2303 Increase i operation projects, number
of employees and wages
Cash paid for acquisttion of fixed 1,590,728,331.61 1,599,009,706.95 -8,281,375.34 052 Minor changes
assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets
Cash received from non-public 5,743,183,587.60 3,968912,274.30 1,784,271,313.30 4507 Increase in loans from banks and
issuance of shares BSAM
Cash paid for repayment of loans 4,563,722,757.32 2,590,329,167.68 1,973,393,589.64 76.18  Increase in repayment of bank loans
and loans from BSAM
Cash paid for distribution of 729,655,125.50 566,650,057.29 173,005,068.21 31.08  Mainly due to an increase in dividends

dividends and profit or payment of
interests

on ordinary shares by RMB163
milion as compared with the same
period last year

(2) Explanation of major changes in profit due to non-main operations

[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(3) Analysis of assets and liabilities
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

1. Assets and liabilities

Unit: RMB
Change of
amount as at
Percentage of Percentageof  the end of the
Amount amount as at amountasat  current period
asatthe  theend of the Amountasat  theendofthe  toamountasat
endofthe curentperiodto  theendofthe priorperiodto  the end of the
Item current period total assets (%) priorperiod total assets (%) prior period (%)  Explanation
Cashatbankandonhand ~ 966,741,308.85 478 1,608,061,795.80 922 -39.88  Mainly due to that part of the procegds rom the non-public
issuiance of A shares completed at the end of 2020 has
been used
Accounts receivable 1,530,086,535.20 757 7856999509 450 9474 Yongja Phase Il Project, Shishou Project, Pingyang Phase
Il Project and other operating projects were newly added
inthe period; Tongzhou Project, Miyun Project, Jiamusi
Project, Huizhou Project, Ninghe Straw Project end waster-
fo-energy Project, Zhangaiu Project, Jurong Project, Anshun
Project Phase Il were included n the national renewable
energy subsiay catalogue in the period, and the income from
renewable energy electriity subsidy was transferred from
contract assets into the acoounts receivalle, most of which
has not been recelved yet
Contract assefs 207632,558.3 113 4679186372 268 513 Mainly due to that Tongzhou Project, Miyun Project, Jiamusi
Project, Huiznou Project, Ninghe Straw Project and
Incingrafion Project, Znangqiu Project, Jurong Project, Anshun
Project Phase Il were included in the national renewable
energy subsidy catalogue in the period, and the income from
renewable enerqy electricity subsidy was transferred from
contract asses info the acoounts recelvelle
Long-term receivables 49,619,09097 025 523964060364 30.03 9905 Mainly due to changes in accounting policies and acjustments
fo the presentation of PPP project in accordance with the
Interpretation No. 14 of Accounting Standard for Businss
Enterprises
Fixed assets 339251329 165 317431311 030 52613 Mainly cue to that Huludao Hazardous Weste Project was
completectin December this year and transferred from
construction in progress fo fixed assets
Intangble assets 9,546,803,985.26 4723 7.366,230,070.06 02 2960 Mainly dug to the increase in construction projects and

construction investment in the period, as welas the increase
inintangiole assets arising from recognition of construction
revenug of PP project according to “Interpretation No. 14 of
Accounting Standaras for Business Enterprises”
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Change of
amount as at
Percentage of Percentageof ~ the end of the
Amount amount as at amountasat  current period
asatthe  theendoftie  Amountasat  theendofthe  toamountasat
endofthe currentperiodto  theendofthe priorperiodto  the end of the
[tem currentperiod  total assets (%) prior period  totalassets (%) prior period (%)  Explanation
Other non-current assets — 6,712,878,609.68 B2 9399841931 547 60366 Mainly due to chenges in accounting policies and adjusiments
fothe presentation of PP project in accordance with the
Interpretation No. 14 of Accounting Standardis for Businss
Enterprises
Short-term loans 1,248,797,640.41 618 249,169,63387 143 -4995  Mainly due to the increase in repayment of short-ferm loans from
BSAM n the period
Accounts payable 141,772,129 698 1291,193658.66 740 934 Minor changes
Long-term loans 8,709,002229.47 4308 64146805929 ®77 377 Increase i long-term loans from banks and BSAM
Other explanation

Nil

2. Overseas assets
v Applicable [J Not Applicable

(1)  Asset size
Including: overseas assets 2,031,054.24 (Unit: RMB), accounting for 0.01% of total assets.

(2)  Explanation on the relatively high proportion of overseas assets

[J Applicable v Not Applicable

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Assets with restrictive ownership title or right of use as at the end of the

Reporting Period
v Applicable [J Not Applicable

Item

Carrying amount

at the end
of the period (RMB)

Cash at bank and on hand and other non-

current assets
Intangible assets

Accounts receivable

Contract assets

2,222,929,761.93

6,419,824,246.07

1,032,888,291.47

84,556,379.37

Carrying amount
at the beginning

of the period (RMB)
(restated)

Reason for
restriction

1,680,207,631.32

4,821,753,851.33

534,830,988.82

353,919,836.12

Used for issuing
performance bond
Providing guarantees
for loans

Providing guarantees
for loans

Providing guarantees
for loans

Total

9,760,198,678.84

6,941,498,176.48

Other explanation
v Applicable [J Not Applicable

Financial resources and liquidity

The Group adopts prudent principles in cash and financial management to ensure proper risk management

and reduction in costs of fund. It finances its operations primarily from cash flow generated internally
and loans from principal banks. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB954,789,955.35, representing a decrease of RMB638,178,084.51 as compared to
RMB1,592,968,039.86 at the end of 2020. The cash balance decreased as compared with last year mainly
because that part of the proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares completed by the Group at the

end of 2020 has been used. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio decreased from 66.87%

at the end of 2020 to 65.78%.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can provide returns for its shareholders while maintaining reasonable capital
structure to reduce capital costs. The Group makes use of its gearing ratio for the management of capital
structure. The ratio is defined as total liabilities divided by total assets. In 2021, the Group’s strategy
remained unchanged from 2020. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the gearing ratios of
the Group were 65.78% and 66.87%, respectively.

Loans and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB10,718,232,239.51, representing an increase of RMB1,160,194,069.82 as compared
to RMB9,558,038,169.69 at the end of 2020. The borrowings included pledged loans of
RMB4,663,444,481.96 and unpledged loans of RMB6,054,787,757.55. The Group’s borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Most of the Group’s borrowings were at floating
rates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had composite banking credit facilities in the amount of
RMB16,348,458,000.00, of which RMB5,836,542,299.68 had not been utilised. The composite banking
credit facilities had terms ranging from 1 year to 15 years. The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policies. However, the management team keeps monitoring the Group’s interest rate risks and
would consider other necessary actions when significant interest rate risks are anticipated to occur. Certain
receivables and operating rights in connection with the Group’s service concession arrangements (including
intangible assets, other non-current assets, contract assets and accounts receivable) were pledged under
the banking credit facilities. The book value of the pledged receivables and operating rights amounted to
approximately RMB9,748,247,325.34 as at 31 December 2021.

Contingent liabilities

The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks in respect of the banking credit facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries. The Board of the Company does not consider it probable that a claim will be made
against the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 under the guarantees was the credit facility drawn down by the subsidiaries
of RMB6,984,022,374.15 and RMB7,269,238,374.06, respectively.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding purchase commitments in
relation to the construction contracts which had not been provided for in the Group’s financial statements
were RMB4,103,681,296.50 and RMB2,367,683,664.66, respectively.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For details, please refer to “lll. Operations of the Company during the Reporting Period” in this section of this
report and the contents below.

Analysis of operational information in the environmental protection industry
1. Air pollution control
(1) Main business model and upstream and downstream information

L1 Applicable v Not applicable

(2)  Product sales and orders
L1 Applicable v Not applicable

(8)  Project operation
L1 Applicable v Not applicable

2. Solid waste treatment
(1)  Project operation
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Date of Criteria for
Type of Total Designed Capacity  operation Project ~ Term of waste treatment
Project name Place solid waste investment capacity  utilizationrate  commencement  status  concession rights fees
TongzhouProget ~ Tongzhou, ~ Municipal 1,240,000,000 2,250 tonsfday 9849%  August 2018 Completed 27 years RMB152/ton
Beijng waste
ShantouProject ~ Shentou, Municipal 1,040,000,000 2,250 tonsfday T178%  March 2019 for phase Completed 30 years RMB90/ton
Guangdong ~ weste I and September
20201or phase
Huizhou Phase I Huizhou, Municipal 1,790,000,000 3400 tonsfday 90.04%  May2020forphase! Completed 29 years RMBT4.3fton
Project Gangdong ~ waste and August 2021 for
phese
Notes: 1. Stage Il of Huizhou Phase Il Project was put into production in August 2021 and the capacity utilization rate was
calculated according to the actual operating days.
2. Unless otherwise specified, the term of the concession rights includes the construction period, the same applies

below.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(2)  Power generation business
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Electricity

Electricity generation
generation volume On-grid tariff  Subsidy Term of
Project name efficiency ('0,000 kWh) (RMB/kWh) policy concession rights
Tongzhou Project 62.33% 27,299.40 0.65 Note 27 years
Shantou Project 64.52% 33,909.72 0.65 Note 30 years
Huizhou Phase Il Project 67.98% 32,778.40 0.65 Note 29 years

Notes: 1. Stage Il of Huizhou Phase Il Project was put into production in August 2021 and the electricity generation efficiency
was calculated based on the actual operating days.
2. According to the Notice on Improving the Pricing Policy of Waste Incineration Power Generation from the NDRC (Fa
Gai Jia Ge [2012] No. 801) ((EIRZERBEZ N = AR EHBERPERAAX) (FEE2012]8015%) ), for
waste-to-energy projects using municipal waste as raw materials, the portion not exceeding on-grid electricity of 280
kWh per ton of municipal waste implements a national waste-to-energy benchmark on-grid price of RMB0.65 per
KkWh (inclusive of tax). The portion of waste-to-energy benchmark price exceeding on-grid benchmark tariff of local
desulfurization coal-fired electricity generation units is subject to two-tier sharing. Of which, the local provincial power
grid bears at a rate of RMBO.1 per kWh, being the “provincial subsidies”; while the remaining portion is included in the
nationally collected additional subsidies for renewable energy tariff, being the “national subsidies”.

(8)  Equipment

Project name Incineration equipment  Power equipment Flue gas treatment system
Tongzhou Project 3X750 expeller grate waste ~ 2X25MW Turbine Denitration, semi-dry lime deacidification, dry
incinerator generators deacidification, activated carbon injection device,
bag filter and SCR denitration in SNCR fumace
Shantou Project 3X750 expeller grate waste  1X35MW+1X25MW Turbine  Denitration, semi-dry lime deacidification, dry
incinerator generators deacidification, activated carbon injection device

and bag filter in SNCR furnace
Huizhou Phase Il Project  4X850 expeller grate waste  1X40MW+1X45MW Turbine  Denitration, semi-dry lime deacidification, dry
incinerator generators deacidification, activated carbon injection device,
bag filter and SCR denitration in SNCR fumace

(4)  Main processes and technologies
For details, please refer to “Ill. Operations of the Company during the Reporting Period” in this
section.

(5) Market share
According to the latest information disclosed in the China Statistical Yearbook, the waste incineration
capacity in 2020 was 146,000,000 tons in China. In 2020, the Company’s waste incineration
treatment was 8,973,200 tons, accounting for 6.15% of the total treatment amount.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Environmental rehabilitation business
] Applicable v Not applicable

Investment analysis

Overall analysis of external equity investments
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

Investments
Investments during during the corresponding
the Reporting Period (RMB) period last year Change
354,100,000.00 778,828,516.00 -54.53%
1. Material equity investments
[J Applicable v Not Applicable
2. Material non-equity investments
v Applicable [J Not Applicable
Investment
during the Cumulative
Reporting Period investment
Name of project Source of funding (RMB'0,000) (RMB’0,000)  Project progress
Huizhou Phase Il Project ~ Self-financing and 29,397.04 113,637.05  Stage | put into production in
borrowings May 2020, and stage Il put into

production in August 2021

3. Financial assets measured at fair value
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

4, Specific progress of major asset restructuring and integration during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not Applicable

5. Details of future material investment or capital assets plan
As at 31 December 2021, save for the investment or construction of the waste-to-energy projects won by
the Company through tender as announced in prior announcements and described in this annual report,
the Group had no other material investment (including any investment in an investee representing 5%
or above of the total assets of the Company as at the end of the Reporting Period) or plan for material
investment or acquisition of capital assets. However, the Company will actively pursue opportunities for
investments in its ordinary course of business in order to enhance its profitability.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(6) Material disposal of assets and equity
L1 Applicable v Not Applicable
(7) Analysis of major controlling and companies invested by the Company

v Applicable [ Not Applicable

RMB’0,000
Registered
capital/
investment Total Net Net  Operating  Operating
Name of company Principal business ~ Shareholding cost assets assets profit income profit
Tongzhou Company Waste treatment and 100% 37500 154,216.84 72,592.94 10,351.34 23,771.88 12,105.60
power generation
Shantou Company Waste treatment and 100% 21,000 10594194  43549.20 991406 20,7328 10,018.20
power generation
Haining Expansion Company  Waste treatment and 60% 39000 12293494 5961698 901410 2313057 9,230.09
power generation
Huizhou Phase Il Company ~ Waste treatment and 100% 45000  132,633.01 56,424.69 11,688.05  50,758.66 12,180.70
power generation

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total assets of Tongzhou Company represented 7.63% of the total
assets of the Group, the total assets of Shantou Company represented 5.24% of the total assets of the Group,
the total assets of Haining Expansion Company represented 6.08% of the total assets of the Group, and the total
assets of Huizhou Phase Il Company represented 6.56% of the total assets of the Group. For the performance of
each of the above investments during the Reporting Period, please refer to “Net profit” and “Operating profit” in
the above table; for the Group’s discussion on the investment strategies for the above investments, please refer
to Details of future material investment or capital assets planning under (5) Investment analysis in the section.

(8) Structured entities controlled by the Company

[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

VI. DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’S FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

0

Industry pattern and trends
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

In November 2021, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council issued the
Opinions on Deepening Pollution Prevention and Control, which proposed to make an overall plan on pollution
control, ecological protection and response to climate changes. With constant efforts, extended depth and
broadened breadth, the defense of blue sky, clear water and clean soil would be conducted in line with higher
standards. High-level protection will be provided to promote high-quality development and create high-quality
life, striving to build a beautiful China where human and nature coexist in harmony. In May 2021, the NDRC
and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development issued the “14th Five-year” Development Plan for
Urban Domestic Waste Classification and Treatment Facilities”, pursuant to which as of the end of the “13th
Five-year” period, the national incineration facilities had a treatment capacity of 580,000 tons per day, and the
national urban domestic waste incineration rate was about 45%. During the “14th Five-year” period, China will
speed up the establishment of a domestic waste treatment system integrating sorted release, sorted collection,
sorted transportation, and sorted treatment. By the end of 2025, the national urban domestic waste incineration
capacity will reach about 800,000 tons per day, and the municipal solid waste incineration treatment capacity will
account for about 65%. Therefore, the waste-to-energy industry still has a lot of room for growth and the pattern
of fierce competition in the industry will also be maintained.

The adjustment to the policy on National Subsidies has been implemented, and the upper limit of the National
Subsidies for the existing projects is limited by 82,500 reasonable utilization hours or 15 years. The on-grid tariff
of projects newly commenced after 2021 shall be subject to on-grid competitive bidding. In August 2021, the
NDRC, the Ministry of Finance, and the National Energy Administration jointly issued the Notice on Printing and
Distributing the Work Plan for the Construction of Biomass Power Generation Projects in 2021 (Fa Gai Neng
Yuan [2021] No. 1190) (KBARENEE <2021 F AW BEREIRA BRI R>HEAM) (FELIR[2021]111905%) ),
which clarified the details of implementation measures of on-grid competitive bidding. The changes in the policy
on National Subsidies highlight the importance of project quality and the urgency of diversifying project revenue
sources.

The PRC has clarified the timetable and roadmap for achieving peak carbon dioxide emission and carbon
neutrality. Establishing a market-oriented mechanism for carbon emission is an important measure to achieve
peak carbon dioxide emission and carbon neutrality. In January 2021, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
promulgated the Administrative Measures for Carbon Emission Permit Trading (Trial Implementation), and issued
a quota allocation plan for the power generation industry and a list of key emission units. On 16 July, the national
carbon emission permit trading was officially launched at the Shanghai Environment and Energy Exchange. The
Ministry of Ecology and Environment will take the lead in conducting carbon emission permit trading nationwide
in the power generation industry. Based on the stable operation of carbon market of the power generation
industry, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment will gradually expand the scope of the market in the industry, to
enrich trading varieties and trading methods, achieve stable and effective operation and sustainable development
of the national carbon market, and effectively play the important role of the market mechanism in achieving the
peak carbon dioxide emission target and the vision of carbon neutrality. The carbon reduction effect of waste
incineration was significant, and enterprises in the industry may obtain additional benefits through the trading of
Chinese Certified Emission Reduction (CCER) in the future.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(

()

(Iv)

Company development strategy
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

With “creating a better living environment” as the corporate mission, the Company properly responds to the
changes in the national macro environment and industry policies, focuses on the main business, and strengthens
the market development of waste-to-energy projects. It takes advantage of the capital market to strengthen
mergers and acquisitions, improve the operation and management of completed projects, and make the
waste-to-energy business more refined, better and stronger. New growth drivers will be proactively cultivated
in the solid waste industry, to promote the enterprise to shift from high-speed development to a high-quality
and healthy development, striving to build Dynagreen into a domestic first-class and internationally renowned
comprehensive environmental protection industrial group.

Business plan

v Applicable [ Not Applicable

The Company will strengthen the main business, continue to strengthen market development, refine, optimise
and strengthen the business of waste incineration power generation, keep up with the situation, strengthen the
expansion of new business such as kitchen waste and sludge treatment, and work hard to improve the operating
efficiency of the projects. The Company plans to put Huludao Waste-to-energy Project, Shuozhou Project and
Enshi Project into production in the year. Jingxi Project and Wuhan Phase Il Project will complete 45% and 40%
of construction work respectively. The construction of Zhangaiu Phase Il Project will officially start in the second
quarter.

Potential risks
v Applicable [ Not Applicable

1. Risk of industry policies
The waste-to-energy industry is greatly affected by industry policies. Pursuant to the Renewable Energy
Law of the PRC ({FZEARKEMBI AT BAEENRE) ) (as amended in 2009), the government implements a
full coverage purchase system for renewable energy power generation. Pursuant to the Notice on Improving
the Pricing Policy of Waste Incineration Power Generation from the NDRC (Fa Gai Jia Ge [2012] No. 801)
((FEIRBERAEZANTELIRRGEEBERBEREEH) ) (EEM[2012] 8015%) issued by the NDRC on
28 March 2012, the waste-to-energy projects are converted into ongrid electricity based on the volume
of waste treatment received in the plants with a conversion ratio of 280 kWh per ton of municipal waste.
The part that does not exceed the above-mentioned amount of electricity implements a national waste-to-
energy benchmark price of RMB0.65 per kWh (inclusive of tax). The part that exceeds the abovementioned
amount of electricity implements the on-grid tariff for the local coal-fired generating units. All the waste-
to-energy projects approved after 2006 shall follow such regulation. In September 2020, the Ministry of
Finance, the National Development and Reform Commission, and the National Energy Administration
jointly issued the supplementary notice on relevant matters of the Several Opinions on Promoting the
Healthy Development of Non-Hydro Renewable Energy Power Generation (B8R 37K A] B4 §E R 3%
ERRFEERERMNBTEER)), noting that subsidies for biomass power generation projects by the National
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Renewable Energy Fund will cover only the first 82,500 hours or 15 years after the project is put into
operation. In September of the same year, the Ministry of Finance, the National Development and Reform
Commission, and the National Energy Administration jointly issued the Implementation Plan for Improving
the Construction and Operation of Biomass Power Generation Projects ({E&£ Y8 3 T8 B 2 RET
RE 7 2)). Since 1 January 2021, the on-grid tariff of all the biomass power generation projects that
have been approved but not started and newly approved in the planning will be allocated and determined
through competition. In August 2021, the NDRC, the Ministry of Finance, and the National Energy
Administration jointly issued the Notice on Printing and Distributing the Work Plan for the Construction of
Biomass Power Generation Projects in 2021 (Fa Gai Neng Yuan [2021] No. 1190) ({BERENZ <2021 F 4
YEREBEAERTEARSHBRA) (BEekEEIR[2021]11905%) ), proposing to divide the biomass power
generation projects subsidized by the central government into non-competitive allocation projects and
competitive allocation projects. The projects for which all units were completed and connected to the grid
in the current year after 20 January 2020 (inclusive) but which were not included in the subsidy scope of
2020 and the projects for which the construction was commenced by the end of 2020 and all units were
completed and connected to the grid by the end of 2021 are non-competitive configuration projects; the
projects for which the construction was commenced in the current year after 1 January 2021 (inclusive) are
competitive configuration projects. The change of national renewable energy tariff subsidy policy may have
adverse effects on the Company’s profitability and cash flow.

The Company will pay close attention to policy developments and convey our desire to maintain policy
stability through industry organizations. The Company will develop heating business according to local
conditions and expand the source of income. When negotiating a franchise agreement, the Company will
supplement corresponding terms, through which, if there is a major change in the external policy, the loss
can be compensated by raising the garbage disposal fees.

Risk of environmental protection policies

The waste-to-energy business conducted by the Company is strictly regulated by the environmental
protection departments at all levels in the country. In recent years, the environmental pollution problems
have become increasingly prominent in the PRC. On the one hand, the government has introduced
favourable policies to support the rapid development of the environmental protection industry, and on
the other hand, it has also strengthened the supervision on the environmental protection industry. The
Company operates in strict compliance with the relevant requirements of the environmental protection
departments. As the government has been raising the environmental protection standards, the Company’s
investment in environmental protection will correspondingly increase, which may adversely affect the
operations, profitability and cash flows of the Company.

The Company will increase power generation through technology research and development, facility
renovation and improvement of operation management to offset the adverse impact of rising costs in
environmental protection.

Risk of tax policies

The Company and its subsidiaries rely on the government’s policies in respect of the environmental
protection industries to enjoy tax incentives for certain taxes such as corporate income tax and
value-added tax. From 2020 to 2021, the Company enjoyed total tax incentives of RMB181,869,400 and
RMB205,270,400 respectively, accounting for 28.96% and 23.06% of the total profit of the Company for
the year. If the country reduces the tax incentives for the environmental protection industries in the future,
the operations, profitability and cash flows of the Company may be adversely affected.

The Company will pay close attention to policy developments and convey our desire to maintain policy
stability through industry organizations. When negotiating a concession agreement, the Company will
supplement corresponding terms that if there is a major change in the external policy, the loss can be
compensated by raising the garbage disposal fees.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Risk of negative public perceptions on waste-to-energy business

The public may have a negative perception on waste-to-energy business. The public may be worried
that the construction and operation of the projects may cause secondary pollution to the surrounding
environment. With regards to this, the NDRC added a social stability risk assessment procedure in
the project approval procedures, and the Ministry of Environmental Protection also strengthened the
requirements for environmental impact assessment and further regulated the environmental impact
assessment hearings and public investigation procedures. The “Not in My Back Yard” effect and the strict
regulatory policies of the government intensify the difficulty of project site selection, leading to an increase
in project preparation time and costs. If the negative public perceptions on waste-toenergy business are
further aggravated in the future, the profitability of the Company may be adversely affected as a result of
increased difficulty of operation.

The Company will discharge pollutants strictly according to environmental protection standards and will
publish emission data to public. The Group will organize community residents to visit the waste-toenergy
plants operated by the Group to provide the public with a deeper understanding of waste-toenergy
business.

Risk of unstable supply and calorific value of municipal solid waste

The operating efficiency of a waste-to-energy plant depends on the supply and calorific value of municipal
solid waste. Municipal solid waste is mainly transported by the local government to the waste-to-energy
plant of the Company by land transportation. The supply is mainly affected by the local waste collection
system and the size of local population. If the local government lacks or fails to establish a complete waste
collection and delivery system on time, it will not be able to supply the Company with consistent and
stable supply of municipal solid waste, which may result in insufficient capacity utilisation of the Company.
The waste classification being promoted will also affect the waste supply. In addition, the calorific value
of waste will also affect the amount of electricity generated by waste-toenergy plants. If the calorific value
of municipal solid waste is low, the amount of electricity generated cannot be guaranteed. Therefore, the
instability of the supply and calorific value of municipal solid waste may affect the operational efficiency of
the waste-to-energy plants of the Company, which will adversely affect the operations and profitability of
the Company.

Before signing concession agreements, the Group conducts a full evaluation and analysis of the quantity
and calorific value of the wastes provided by the government to ensure that wastes are provided in
accordance with the quantity and quality reasonably agreed in the concession agreement. In the case of
insufficient quantity of garbage and insufficient calorific value, the Group will actively search for domestic
garbage and pollution-free combustion material in the garbage supply area and surrounding areas. In
addition, as agreed in the concession agreement, if the amount of garbage is lower than the guaranteed
value, the government will pay the fee at the guaranteed value to the Group.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

6. Risk of cost overruns and delays in the construction of the BOT projects of the
Company
The cost and progress of the project construction are affected by a number of unfavourable factors,
including price fluctuations in construction materials, equipment and components, shortages in the supply
of equipment, materials or manpower, strikes and labour disputes, unexpected engineering, design,
environmental or geological issues, impact of supporting infrastructure facilities, unexpected increase
in costs, the “Not in My Back Yard” effect and others. These factors may be beyond the control of the
Company, which may lead to cost overruns and delays in the construction of the BOT projects of the
Company, which may in turn result in the Company’s failure to achieve the expected returns and adversely
affect the operations and financial conditions of the Company.

The Group pays attention to the establishment of a harmonious relationship with the government
agencies related to the project and urges the government to complete all legal procedures and ancillary
infrastructure facilities of the project. The Group clearly stipulated in the concession agreement that if the
project construction conditions are not reached, or the project is suspended, the construction period is
delayed, and the cost is increased due to the reasons caused by the government, then the government
should compensate the project investors accordingly. In addition, the Group selects suppliers meticulously,
demands the construction units to keep a high level of attention to project construction, increases
investment in personnel and equipment, and forms a strong project management team.

7. Risk of substandard performance in environmental protection

In the course of project construction and operation, the Company may be subject to environmental
pollution risks such as air pollution, noise pollution, harmful substances, sewage and solid waste discharge.
Although the Company has adopted measures such as waste gas purification, waste water and solid
waste treatment and noise prevention to avoid or minimize the potential adverse impact of its projects on
the environment, environmental pollution risks may still exist due to equipment failures or human errors in
the actual production and operation processes of the project companies, which may adversely affect the
operations, brand reputation and profitability of the Company.

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection compliance, starting with corporate
culture, management system, financial budget as well as supervision and assessment to ensure that the
Group’s emissions meet the standards.

8. Risk of high gearing ratio

Municipal waste-to-energy is a capital-intensive industry, and project construction funds are generally raised
by 30% of capital and 70% of bank loans. The Company has recently many projects under construction,
resulting in an increase in the gearing ratio. After the completion of the Company’s additional A-share
issuance in December 2020, the Company’s gearing ratio was 66.87%. As of the end of December 2021,
the Company’s gearing ratio was 65.78%, which is still higher than the industry average. If the domestic
monetary policy tightens and the lending channels become drained, the operations, financial conditions
and cash flow of the Company may be affected adversely.

The Company prepares an investment and financing plan according to its financial budget each year to
plan on cash inflows and outflows. The Company, on the one hand, maintains sufficient credit line with

banks and seeks financial support from the controlling shareholder when necessary and, on the other
hand, reduces the gearing ratio through equity financing.

(V) Others

L1 Applicable v Not Applicable
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

VII. DESCRIPTION ABOUT THE SITUATION AND THE CAUSE FOR THE
COMPANY’S NOT DISCLOSING PURSUANT TO RELEVANT RULES
DUE TO NON-APPLICABLE RULES, NATIONAL SECRETS OR SPECIAL
REASONS

VIIL,

[ Applicable v Not Applicable

OTHER DISCLOSURE (DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING RULES)

(1

()

(3)

Total comprehensive income attributable to the shareholders of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total comprehensive income attributable to the shareholders of the
Company was RMB711,866,475.14 (corresponding period in 2020: RMB521,980,684.71). The increase was
mainly due to an increase in net profit.

Foreign exchange risks and exchange gains and losses

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi while a portion of funds is in the form of bank deposits
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, it may be subject to the risks of exchange rate fluctuations of
the Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Apart from the above, most of the assets and transactions of the Group
are denominated in Renminbi, and the Group mainly settles its operating expenses in the PRC with income
generated in Renminbi, thus the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risks. The Group
currently has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign exchange risks.

Use of proceeds

As approved by the Approval in Relation to the Non-public Offering of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group
Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2020] No. 2493) ((BARiZ &4k 8 NIRREB KD BR AR EAFRZEITIRER L
&) (FEEFFAI[2020]24935%)) issued by the CSRC, the Company conducted non-public issuance 232,240,000
A shares, which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 December 2020. The par value per share was
RMB1.00. The issue price was RMB7.82 per share, and the gross proceeds were RMB1,816,116,800.00. After
deducting the issuance expenses of RMB30,540,501.80, the net proceeds amounted to RMB1,785,576,298.20.
The net proceeds per share were RMB7.69. On the date the terms of the A share non-public offering were fixed
(i.e. 16 November 2020), the market price of the H shares of the Company was HK$3.5.

In 2020, the Company had used approximately RMB1.786 billion of proceeds to replace those funds previously
invested for investment projects with the proceeds, repay bank loans, and make capital increase and provide
loans to wholly-owned subsidiaries. As of 31 December 2020, the unused proceeds amounted to RMB61 million.
In the financial year of 2021, the Company used the proceeds to repay the bank loan of RMB1 million in January;
and the remaining RMB60 million was used to finance registered capital of wholly-owned subsidiaries in July. The
Company confirms that the purpose and planned use of the proceeds are consistent with the plan disclosed in
the previous announcement and the proceeds have been used up.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(4) Final dividend

The Board proposed to pay a dividend of RMBO.1 (before tax) per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021 Final Dividend”), totaling RMB139,344,000. According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
dividend shall be denominated and declared in Renminbi. The proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval by
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”). Dividend on domestic shares of the Company
will be paid in Renminbi while dividend on H shares will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate shall be
the average central parity rate of the applicable foreign exchange rate announced by the People’s Bank of China
for the seven days before and including the date of the AGM. The payment of 2021 Final Dividend is subject to
the consideration and approval by shareholders at the AGM, which is expected to be paid by 29 July 2022.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({#FZE AR ZEFEEAFTSHIE) ), the Implementation
Regulations of the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({72 A REMEIEAFTEEIEZ G ), the Notice of
the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled
by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No. 124) (B i #%42 mEMN N GEE
REZHRWBEFBEERINE (F1T) ) @A) (B E[2009]1249%)), the Notice of the State Administration
of Taxation on the Questions Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal
of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348)( { B 7 #6542 /5 B8 ) B B 24 [ 199310455k X 5
g |- 1% B B A A FT SRS R RE A B AN (B HH [2011]3485%)), other relevant laws and regulations and other
regulatory documents, the Company shall, as a withholding agent, withhold and pay individual income tax for
the individual holders of H shares in respect of the dividend to be distributed to them. However, the individual
holders of H shares may be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between
the PRC and the countries (regions) in which the individual holders of H shares are domiciled and the tax
arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (or Macau). For the individual holders of H shares in
general, the Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the individual
holders of H shares in the distribution of the dividend. However, the tax rates applicable to individual holders of
H shares overseas may vary depending on the tax treaties between the PRC and the countries (regions) in which
the individual holders of H shares are domiciled, and the Company will withhold and pay individual income tax on
behalf of the individual holders of H shares in the distribution of the dividend accordingly.

For non-resident enterprise holders of H shares, i.e., any shareholders who hold the Company’s shares in the
name of non-individual shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominee Limited, other nominees,
trustees, or holders of H shares registered in the name of other groups and organisations, the Company will
withhold and pay the enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10% for such holders of H shares pursuant to the
Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on the Issues Concerning Withholding the Enterprises Income Tax
on the Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Share Holders Who Are Overseas Non-resident
Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897)( Bl R 7548 BN Bl B R MR/ IEE R (b AR Bk 2%
BERIIRECEFAESHRARBB BB (FF K[2008]18975F)). Should the holders of H shares of the Company
have any doubt in relation to the aforesaid arrangements, they are recommended to consult their tax advisors for
relevant tax impact in Mainland China, Hong Kong and other countries (regions) on the possession and disposal
of the H shares of the Company.

The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or
tax treatment of the individual holders of H shares and for any claims arising from any delay in or inaccurate
determination of the tax status or tax treatment of the individual holders of H shares or any disputes over the
withholding mechanism or arrangements.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(5)

(6)

(7)

@)

©)

AGM

The notice of the AGM will be published and dispatched to shareholders of the Company in the manner as
stipulated on the Articles of Association and the Stock Exchange Listing Rules when appropriate.

Closure of register of members

In order to determine the shareholders entitled to the 2021 Final Dividend, the register of holders of H shares of
the Company will be closed from 30 June 2022 (Thursday) to 5 July 2022 (Tuesday), both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the 2021 Final Dividend
(subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM), all properly completed transfer documents accompanied with
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 54th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on 29 June 2022 (Wednesday), being the last share registration date.

Professional tax advice recommended

If the shareholders of the Company have any doubt about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised to
consult an expert.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the
PRC (the jurisdiction in which the Company was established) which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Fixed assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note VII.21 to
the financial statements.

(10) Reserve

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in the financial statements of this report.

(11) Distributable reserve

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s reserve available for distribution as dividends, calculated in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations, amounted to RMB2,594,406,537.26. In addition, none of the
Company’s share premium account is available for distribution as dividends by way of capitalization issues.
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IV.  Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(12) Permitted indemnity provision
The Company did not have any arrangement with a term providing for indemnity against liability incurred by the

Director during their tenure as such. During the Reporting Period, the Company has taken out liability insurance
for the Directors, Supervisors and senior management.

(13) Charitable donation
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any charitable donation.
(14) Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

(15) Equity-linked agreement
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any equity-linked agreements.

(16) Competing business
During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, Supervisors, chief executive or the shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates engage in or are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

(17) Remuneration for Directors and five highest paid employees

Details of the emoluments for Directors and five highest paid employees are set out in Note XII.5 to the financial
statements.

During the Reporting Period, no Director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

Chairman: Qiao Dewei
29 March 2022
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V. Supervisory Committee’s Report

To all shareholders of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”),

During the year, the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) duly carried out its supervisory
duties in a stringent manner to effectively protect the interests of the Company and its shareholders (the “Shareholder(s)”) in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law and the requirement of the relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong, the listing rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

On 29 March 2022, the Supervisory Committee convened a meeting, at which the 2021 financial statements of the Group
and the auditor’s report were reviewed and approved. The Supervisory Committee was of the opinion that the preparation
and consideration procedures of the annual report were in line with the requirements under laws and regulations and the
relevant provisions of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the annual report reflected the financial
position and results of operations of the Group in a true, accurate, complete and fair manner.

The Supervisory Committee concluded that, during the year, all members of the Board and the senior management of
the Group had, under the principles of diligence, fairness and honesty, duly performed the responsibilities stipulated in the
Articles, and carefully implemented all resolutions of the general meetings and the Board, and did not identify any breach of
law, regulations and the Articles.

In the coming year, the Supervisory Committee shall continue to carry out its duties in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Articles, the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and the listing rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
commit to perform supervisory duties honestly and diligently, with the aim of protecting the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

LUO Zhaoguo

Shenzhen, the PRC
29 March 2022

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



VI.

Corporate Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company complied with requirements under the Company Law, the Securities Law, the Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies and other laws, regulations, rules and regulatory documents and the Articles
of Association, set up an established governance structure comprising of shareholders’ meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and senior manage, and formulated rules of procedures of general mesting, the Board and the
Supervisory Committee, the Working System for Independent Directors, the Working Rules of General Manager; the
Working Rules of Secretary to the Board, as well as formed the Strategy Committee, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee under the Board. During the
Reporting Period, the shareholders’ meeting, the Board and the Supervisory Committee were all operated according
to laws and members performed their roles and responsibilities diligently. During the Reporting Period, the Company
amended the Articles of Association and the rules of procedures of the Board in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance for Listed Companies and the Guidelines for Articles of Association of Listed Companies. The
Company was not aware of any insider trading of the shares of the Company by taking advantage of inside information
by the persons with insider information, and no investigation was conducted by regulatory authorities against insider
trading of shares by the persons with insider information.

Does corporate governance significantly deviate from laws, administrative regulations and relevant CSRC provisions on
governance of listed companies? If so, please explain the reason.

[J Applicablae v Not applicable

SPECIFIC MEASURES TAKEN BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER OF THE COMPANY TO ENSURE
THE INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY’S ASSETS, PERSONNEL,
FINANCE, ORGANIZATION, BUSINESS, ETC., AND THE SOLUTIONS,
WORK PROGRESS AND FOLLOW-UP WORK PLANS THAT AFFECT THE
COMPANY’S INDEPENDENCE

[J Applicablae v Not applicable

Engagement in the business which is the same or similar to that of the Company by the controlling shareholder,
beneficial controller or other units under their control, the impact of horizontal competition or major changes in
horizontal competition on the Company, the resolution measures that have been taken, the progress of the resolution
and the follow-up resolution plan

[J Applicablae v Not applicable
COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to achieving high corporate governance standards in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and enhance corporate value and accountability of the Company. The Company has adopted the Code
Provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange as its own code of corporate governance. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Annual Report 2021

51



52

VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

IV. OVERVIEW OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The enquiry index
at designated

websites where Disclosure date
the resolutions of the published Resolutions
Session of the meeting Date of meeting were published resolutions of the meeting
2020 Annual General Meeting 14 May 2021 www.hkexnews.hk/ 14 May 2021 All resolutions
WWW.SSE.COM.CN 15 May 2021 of the meeting
were approved
First Extraordinary 24 August 2021 www.hkexnews.hk/ 24 August 2021 All resolutions
General Meeting WWW.SSe.com.cn 25 August 2021 of the meeting
for the Year 2021 were approved

Second Extraordinary General 10 November 2021 www.hkexnews.hk/ 10 November 2021  All resolutions
Meeting for the Year 2021 WWW.SSe.com.cn 11 November 2021 of the meeting
were approved

Extraordinary general meetings requested by the shareholders of preference shares with restored voting rights
L] Applicablae v Not applicable

Explanation of general meetings

v Applicablae [ Not applicable

The 2021 first A share class meeting and first H share class meeting were held on 24 August 2021.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Information on the Change of Shareholdings and on the Remuneration of Current
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management, and of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management Resigned during the Reporting Period

v Applicablae [ Not applicable

Unit:  share
Total
remuneration
before tax Whether
received from  received
Number of Increase/ the Company remuneration
shares | \[lil== decreasein shareholding  during the from the
The atthe | ikl | shareholding  during the Reporting  related parties
Position beginning  The end beginning | RGEEL during year Reason Period of the
Name (Note) Gender Age oftheterm oftheterm  of the year |RtlN 2l theyear for change (RMB0'000)  Company
ZH Jun Chairman resigned) Male 59 2012-04-11 2021-03-30 0 0 0 Yes
QIAO Dewei Chaiman, Director ~ Male 55 2012-04-11 2024-119 0 0 0 24464 No
CHENG Suning~ Director Mae 37 2018-10-19  2024-11-9 0 0 0 Yes
LU Shuguang ~ Director Made 53 2012-04-11 2024-119 0 0 0 Yes
CAO Jinjun Director (resigned) ~ Male 61 2018-10-19  2021-02-0 0 0 0 Yes
ZHANG Zhenhai  Director (resigned) ~ Male 41 2021-5-14 2021-11-10 0 0 0 No
ZHONG Xia General Manager, ~ Female 54 2021-5-14  2024-119 0 0 0 No
Director 202.48
HU Shengyong ~ Director Mae 52 20141107 2024-119 0 0 0 153.68 No
LI Lei Director Mae 38 2021-11-10 2024119 0 0 0 Yes
OU Yuezhou Independent Director Male 71 2015-06-19  2021-11-10 0 0 0 No
(resigned) 6.7
FU Jie Independent Director Female 43 2018-02-26  2024-11-9 0 0 0 10 No
XE Lanjun Independent Director Male 56 20181019 2024-119 0 0 0 8 No
ZHOU Behha Independent Director Male 59 2021-11-10  2024-11-9 0 0 0 1.3 No
LUOZhaoguo ~ Chairman of the Mae 44 2013-06-19  2024-11-9 0 0 0 Yes
Supenvisory
Commitiee
HE Hong Supenvisor (resigned) Female 46 2018-10-19  2021-5-14 0 0 0 Yes
WANG Meiin Employee Femae 36 2017-06-02  2021-11-10 0 0 0 No
Representative
Supervisor (resigned) 31.49
YU Ljun Supenvisor Femae 36 2021-5-14  2024-11-9 0 0 0 18.68 No
YAN Shiwen Employee Made 28 2021-11-10 2024119 0 0 0 No
Representative
Supenvisor 17.82
HUANG Jianzhong Deputy General Mae 5 20120411 2024-11-9 0 0 0 No
Manager 149.68
ZHANG Yong Deputy General Made 50 2017-01-01 2024119 0 0 0 No
Manager 143.68
ZHU Shuguang ~ Deputy General Mae 46 2017-01-01 2024119 0 0 0 No
Manager/Secretary to
the Board 143.68
Hao Jingli Deputy General Mae 54 2019-10-10  2024-11-9 0 0 0 No
Manager 148.68
Xl Qiang Deputy General Mae 43 20191010 2024-119 0 0 0 No
Manager 148.68
ZHANG Wi Chief engineer Mae 54 20191010 2024-119 0 0 0 131.59 No
Yl Zhiyong Chief Financial Officer Male 48 2021-3-31  2024-119 0 0 0 12221 No
Total / / / / / 0 0 0/ 1,681.79 /

Note: Qiao Dewei served as the chairman of the Company on 31 March 2021; ZHONG Xia served as the general manager of the Company on
31 March 2021.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Name

Major Working Experience

Qiao Dewei
CHENG Suning
LIU Shuguang
ZHONG Xia

HU Shengyong
LI Lei

FU Jie

XIE Lanjun
ZHOU Beihai
LUO Zhaoguo
YU Lijun

YAN Shiwen
HUANG Jianzhong
ZHANG Yong
ZHU Shuguang
Hao Jingli

Xl Qiang
ZHANG Wei

Y| Zhiyong

Other explanations

[J Applicablae v Not applicable

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

() Information on the positions of current Directors, supervisors and senior
management

1. Resume of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

0]

Directors

Mr. QIAO Dewei (&121), aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director and the General
Manager of the Company on 11 April 2012 and is the Chairman of the Board and resigned as the
General Manager of the Company on 31 March 2021. Mr. QIAO worked as a clerk at the Central
Enterprises Management Department of the Bureau of Finance in Hubei Province (#1t%& BB EE+
R{FEEIBER) from July 1988 to July 1994, and worked as a clerk at the deputy director level from
August 1994 to December 1995. He worked as the deputy manager of the Finance Department at
Wuhan International Trust and Investment Company (BUZBIFRE 5L & A 7)) from January 1996
to December 1997, and worked as a manager of the Finance Department at that company from
January 1998 to February 2001. Mr. QIAO worked as the president assistant of Wuhan Zhengxin
State-owned Assets Management Company (EVEIEEBIA B ELEBRAF]) from March 2001 to
September 2005. Between September 2005 and August 2008, Mr. QIAO served as the chief financial
officer of the Company. Between September 2008 and April 2009, Mr. QIAO worked as the acting
general manager of the Company. He has worked as the General Manager of the Company from
April 2009 to March 2021, and works as the Chairman of the Board since March 2021. Mr. QIAO
was a Director of the Company from September 2005 to May 2011, and has also been a Director
of the Company since April 2012. Mr. QIAO graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law (7P I B4 48 K E2) with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in July 1988 and obtained his Master’s
degree in Law from Hubei University (#1316 A22) in June 1999. Between May 2005 and August
2006, Mr. QIAO furthered his studies in a learning project under the postgraduate course in Financial
Management at Tsinghua University, and obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Peking University in July 2013. Mr. QIAO qualified as an accountant, the certificate of
which was issued by Profession Administration Department of Ministry of Finance (31X 50582 % * & &F
F9), in November 1993. Mr. QIAQ is a member of the Strategy Committee.

Mr. CHENG Suning (X&), aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 19 October 2018. Mr. CHENG served as the sales consultant of the sales department of
Shenyang Huabao Auto Sales & Service Co., Ltd. (JLF53EE 55 4 & RSB R A 7)) from September
2007 to May 2010, and served as officer of sales department of Jianghe Paper Product US Co., Ltd
(IR 4 EEA 7)) from September 2011 to August 2012, Since April 2013, Mr. CHENG has served
various positions of the Urban Function and Social Investment Department of BSAM, including
project director, project manager, senior project manager, deputy general manager and general
manager. He became a director of Capital Healthcare Industry Group Co., Ltd. (H#fEEEFEXE
BAMR AT in April 2020 and a director of Beijing CHICARE Investment Co., Ltd. (1t A &R E
BREE2AF]) in October 2020. Mr. CHENG graduated from the University of llinois at Chicago with
a master’s degree. Mr. CHENG is a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.
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VI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Mr. LIU Shuguang (ZIEE¢), aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company
on 11 April 2012. Mr. LIU served as a director and the vice-president of Beijing Taikeping Electrical
Appliances Limited Company (It "% 7% T & F#E25H R A 7l) between July 1991 and June 1992.
Mr. LIU served as a director and the vice-president of Beijing Huatai Industrial Company (1t %
ZREHEHNT) from June 1992 to April 1994. Mr. LIU also served as the legal representative and
president of Beijing Jupeng Investment Company (1t RE 5% & A 7)) from April 1994 to May 2016.
Since May 2016, Mr. LIU has served as a director of Beijing Jupeng Investment Company. Between
October 2003 and December 2011, Mr. LIU also served as the deputy chairman of the Board of
Capital Securities Co., Ltd. (& &l 5 AR &£ 7). From May 2011 to April 2012, Mr. LIU served as
a Director of Dynagreen Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.. Mr. LIU obtained his Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from China Europe International Business School (FF BRI B T 75
E[T) in September 2007. Mr. LIU is a member of the Strategy Committee and Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee of the Company.

Ms. ZHONG Xia, aged 54, was appointed as the General Manager of the Company on 31 March
2021 and a non-executive Director of the Company on 14 May 2021. Ms. Zhong served as a clerk in
the equipment division of the design and research institute of Maanshan Iron & Steel Company (558
1L 835172 7)) from September 1992 to March 1993, and the manager of the Commerce Department
of Shenzhen Dow’s Trading Co., Ltd. (ZYI;EHTE 5B PR A 7)) from March 1993 to March 2000. She
successively served as an assistant to general manager of the Investment Department, the general
manager of the Purchasing Department, and the deputy general manager of the Company from
March 2000 to March 2021. Ms. Zhong has served as the deputy Party secretary of the Company
since November 2018 and the general manager of the Company since March 2021. Mr. Zhong is a
member of the Strategy Committee of the Company. Ms. Zhong graduated from Anhui University of
Technology (Z & T 2 X £) with a Bachelor’s degree.

Mr. HU Shengyong (8A%25k), aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company on 7 November 2014, and resigned as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 30 March 2021. Mr. HU worked at the finance department of Wuhan Zhengxin State-
owned Assets Management Company (EVEIE{E A EELE G R A F) (‘Zhengxin Company”) from
August 1996 to November 2000. Under the delegation of Zhengxin Company, he served as the chief
accountant at Wuhan Unity Laser Co., Ltd. (ELZ B4 5E5T A% (5 B BR 2 7)) from November 2000 to
May 2001 and served as director of the general office of the chief financial officer and a manager of
Department of Auditors of Zhengxin Company from May 2001 to March 2004. Mr. HU served as the
president assistant as well as the general manager of the Audit Department of Wuhan Securities (E
B AA]) from April 2004 to September 2005, and served as the general manager of the Central
China Region of Sunrise Environmental Protection Group (& B3R {R & 8 /A 5]ZE A &) from September
2005 to August 2008. Between August 2008 and January 2010, Mr. HU served as the president
assistant of Shenzhen Dynagreen Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (®II4kEE) IR TR AR
72 7]) (the predecessor of the Company). From January 2010 to April 2012, Mr. HU served as the
Chief Financial Officer of Shenzhen Dynagreen Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd (&3I4 & &)1
RIBIIEAR AT (the predecessor of the Company). From April 2012 to December 2013, Mr.
HU concurrently served as the Secretary of the Board of the Company. Mr. HU served as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company from April 2012 to March 2021. Since March 2021, Mr. HU has
served as the deputy secretary of the Party committee of the Company. Mr. Hu is a member of the
Strategy Committee of the Company. Mr. HU graduated from China University of Geosciences (1
08 K E2) with an Engineering Bachelor’s degree majoring in Economic Management Engineering.
Mr. HU qualified as a senior accountant, the certificate of which was issued by Senior Evaluation
Committee of Accounting Profession of Hubei Province (i1t & &5t RE S M T E €) in March 2003.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Mr. LI Lei (Z27E), aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 10
November 2021. He worked at Shanghai Shangya Assets Management Company (/& & # & &
B2 /A7) from June 2009 to October 2010, at Sealand Securities Co., Ltd. (E/EEFRMD AR A
7)) from March 2011 to October 2013, and at Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (Bl E AR D BRE A
&]) from October 2013 to November 2015. He served as the temporary head and deputy general
manager of the Industrial Investment Department of Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (=I5
BRI AR S ERT]) from November 2015 to November 2017. Since November 2017, he has
served as the deputy general manager of the Investment Business Department of Three Gorges
Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University with a master’s degree.

Ms. FU Jie (fB#E), aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 26 February 2019. Ms. FU is a member of the China Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. FU worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP from August
2004 to March 2016, and served as the senior manager of audit department from October 2012 to
March 2016. She participated in the audit work for a number of Hong Kong listed companies and
A-share listed companies in China. She served as the chief financial officer of China U-Ton Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 6168) from April 2016 to July 2019. She has served as the chief financial
officer of China Kangda Food Company Limited (Stock Code: 0834) since September 2019 and is
mainly responsible for the Company’s financial management, investment and financing and investor
relations. Ms. FU was an independent non-executive director of Dahe Media Co., Ltd, a company
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8243) from June 2019 to August 2019. Ms. FU is
the chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and a member of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee of the Company. Ms. FU graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics with
a Finance Major from Central University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. XIE Lanjun (B3 E), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 19 October 2019. From February 1989 to May 2000, Mr. XIE served as a lawyer and
deputy director of the law firm of the Heyuan Municipal Justice Bureau of Guangdong Province. Mr.
XIE served as a practicing lawyer of Guangdong V&T Law Firm (5 3R & & 2 R0 = 15 Fr) from May 2000
to August 2002, and a partner and practicing lawyer of Guangdong Xindongfang Law Firm (B3R T8
5 2EMEFEFN) from August 2002 to March 2005. Mr. XIE served as a partner and practicing lawyer
of Guangdong Allied Law Firm (ZREREZENSEHHT) from March 2005 to January 2009. Mr. XIE
has been a senior partner and practicing lawyer of Beijing Zhongyin (Shenzhen) Law Firm (1t =
R CFII) 2EBEASAT) since January 2009 and has served as an external director of Shenzhen Airport
Group since June 2017. Since December 2019, he served as an independent director of China
Resources Shenguotou Trust Co., Ltd. GEEZRBIRZTE R 2 A)). In May 2020, he was appointed as
an independent director of Shenzhen Jinjia Group Co., Ltd. (&3I|$h3= £ E D A R A 7)), Shenzhen
Institute of Building Research Co., Ltd. (&I ZEERE2FFT A () B PR A7), RAYITEK Hi-Tech Film
Company, Ltd., Shenzhen (FIIImEIERERHAR 5 B PR A 7)) and Shenzhen Medlinket Medical
Electronics Co. Ltd. (&Y #):E B ZEE FA 7D AR A F). Mr. XIE is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company. Mr. XIE
graduated from Lanzhou University (/1 X 22) with a bachelor’'s degree.
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Corporate Governance (Continued)

(2

Mr. ZHOU Beihai (JA1b7), aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 10 November 2021. Mr. ZHOU Beihai carried out research on solid waste landfill
technology at the University of Fukuoka in Japan from March 1992 to March 1994, and conducted
research on photocatalysis water treatment technology at Saitama University in Japan from January
1995 to March 1995. He served as the director of the Registration and Management Centre for the
solid waste under the State Administration of Environmental Protection (B 53z (7 44 5 [E 52 & 4
ERBEEH L) from October 1996 to August 2001, and served as the senior diplomatic officer of
science and technology at the Chinese Embassy in Japan from September 2001 to December 2004.
Mr. ZHOU Beihai has been appointed as the professor at the School of Energy and Environmental
Engineering of University of Science and Technology Beijing since January 2005 and was appointed
as an independent director of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (ER/KTEIRE D AR A 7))
(06839.HK) in October 2020. Mr. Zhou is the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
and a member of the Strategy Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhou graduated with
a doctoral degree from Tsinghua University.

Supervisors

Mr. LUO Zhaoguo (ZEH&E), aged 44, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
and became a Supervisor of the Company on 19 June 2013. Mr. LUO worked as an accountant
of the Finance Department and director assistant of Beijing Metallurgical Equipment Research and
Design Institute (1t 50A 4 R AEFERET#268) of China Metallurgical Group Corporation (FF6 %
) from August 2000 to August 2007 and from August 2007 to October 2008 respectively. From
November 2008 to July 2013, Mr. LUO has served as the fund manager of the Department of
Finance Planning of BSAM. Since July 2013, Mr. LUO has served as the deputy general manager
and the general manager of the Department of Finance Planning of BSAM. Mr. LUO graduated from
the Management School of the University of Science and Technology Beijing (1t =EHE KX £) with
a Bachelor’s degree majoring in Accounting in July 2000. Mr. LUO obtained his Master’s degree in
Management from Capital University of Economics and Business (& #4875 % 5 X2 in July 2009.

Ms. YU Lijun REEZE), aged 36, was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 14 May 2021.
From 2015 to 2016, she served as the head of archives of Shenzhen Ainengsen Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (RYITHE se xR AR A F); and since 2017, she has been the head of archives and general
affairs director of the Company. Ms. YU graduated with a bachelor’s degree from Military Economics
Institute of Chinese People’s Liberation Army (FF B A F= fi# i 5 B 25 4575 2205

Mr. YAN Shiwen (EEtt XX), aged 28, was appointed as an employee representative supervisor of
the Company on 10 November 2021. From September 2015 to December 2015, he worked as an
appraisal assistant in GuoZhongLian Asset Appraisal Land Real Estate Valuation Co., Ltd. (B B
BET G L HEEME AR A F]). From December 2015 to December 2016, Mr. Yan Shiwen
served as an intermediate auditor in Zhonghua Certified Public Accountants. From December 2016
to September 2019, he served as a senior auditor in BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yan Shiwen has served as an audit supervisor and compliance supervisor of the
Company since April 2020. Mr. Yan graduated from Hunan University of Arts and Science with a
bachelor’s degree in accounting.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Senior management
Ms. ZHONG Xia ({#E) is the general manager of the Company. Please refer to the sub-section
headed “Directors” for biographical details of Ms. ZHONG.

Mr. HUANG Jianzhong (E#9), aged 56, is a Deputy General Manager of the Company. Between
June 1989 and October 1990, Mr. HUANG served as a director of the General Office of Shenzhen
China Travel Service Home Appliances Unit (RIITT KR BLEE P A=), Mr. HUANG worked at
the Shenzhen China Travel Service (A3 H BIfk7T+t) from October 1990 to December 1991.
Between December 1991 and August 1993, Mr. HUANG served as a director of the General Office
of Shenzhen China Travel Services Automobile Transportation Company (YT 7 i T HE @ 8 A 7))
and served as the assistant to general manager of Transportation Department at Shenzhen China
Travel Services Eastern International Travelling Development Company (73| A fi 52 &6 Bl B hic i
FE AR A F]) from August 1993 to May 1994. Mr. HUANG served as the Head of Credit-lending
Section at Shenzhen Commercial Bank, Longgang Subbranch (ZYIIT i 38R 778 6 2 77) from May
1994 to April 1998 and served as the director of Marketing Department of Shenzhen Commercial
Bank, Zhenhua Sub-branch (FIIIT R R1TIREZ1T7) from April to August 1998. Mr. HUANG
served as a deputy general manager and chief financial officer of Shenzhen Dow’s Waste-to-Energy
Tech Development Co., Ltd (YT B HTR R R IR BT3B R A 7)) from August 1998 to March
2001, and concurrently served as the deputy general manager and chief financial officer of Shenzhen
Dow’s Environmental Science and Technology Co., Ltd (FYIEHRREHEBBR A 7)) from August
1998 to March 2001. Between March 2001 and December 2009, Mr. HUANG was the director,
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of Dynagreen International Holding (4% 58} 7 BIFR
$£1%), and concurrently served as the chairman of the board of Shenzhen Dynagreen Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. (RYIA EE) HIRFETIEBRR A F]) (the predecessor of the Company) from
January 2002 to September 2005 and served as a director of Blue-ocean Environment from
September 2005 to December 2009, and the chairman of the board of Foshan Shunde Shuneng
Garbage Power Company Limited (3 1L T JIB/E [ I g 7 3 35 8 A fR 2 8]) from November 2007 to
August 2010. Mr. HUANG was the chief operational officer of Shenzhen Dynagreen Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. (ZII&EE) HIRIE TIEBR A F) (the predecessor of the Company) from
January 2010 to April 2012, and concurrently served as the general manager of Changzhou
Dynagreen Environmental and Thermoelectric Co., Ltd. (F /N4 @8 HIREAEAFR A F]) from
April to August 2010. Mr. HUANG has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since April
2012. Mr. HUANG graduated from the College of Economics of Jinan University (Zr k2245 7% £
Bt) with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in Planning and Statistics in June 1989, and obtained his
Master’s degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics & Law (7 E3 81 A& BUEA K 22) in
December 2002. Mr. HUANG qualified as a Senior Operating Manager, the certificate of which was
issued by Labor Bureau of Hubei Province (41L& & EhE2), in July 2000.

Mr. ZHANG Yong (3R £8), aged 50, is the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. ZHANG was
a technical management staff of Sichuan Qingyan Machinery Plant (State-owned 5027 Plant) (Z4)1|
AR (H25027/) ) from July 1993 to July 1994; a resident representative at factory of New
Power Tech (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (J1ETEHE: (Rl AR A F]) from July 1994 to October 1996; vice
manager, manager and assistant to general manager of the department of quality control of Weiyong
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (4 AR (XY BR A7) from October 1996 to May 2004; the
operation support director (chief operating officer) of E-Bi International Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd (BB EEEIRH R A7) from May 2004 to September 2006. Mr. ZHANG served
as the deputy officer and officer of the president’s office in the Company from September 2006 to
March 2014; the chairman of labor union of the Company from February 2014 to June 2019; and
served as the chief operating officer and manager of the president’s office from March 2014 to
December 2016. From January 2017 to October 2021, he served as a deputy general manager and
officer of the president’s office of the Company. Since October 2021, he has been the deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Sichuan Normal College (PU) 1| Efi &3 £2F%) (now
known as China West Normal University (782 il &5 A 22)) with a Bachelor of Science in July 1993, and
studied Business Administration in the Antai College of Economics and Management of Shanghai
Jiao Tong University (E/83 AR B LRLHEE R ZF) from September 2002 to January 2005 and
obtained his Master of Business Administration.
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Corporate Governance (Continued)

Mr. ZHU Shuguang (42 t), aged 46, is currently the Secretary of the Board, joint company
secretary and a Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. ZHU worked at China Securities (£
B %) before March 2002. He worked in securities investment while working at Shenzhen Han’s
Laser Technology Co., Ltd. (&Y A& EH (7 B PR A 7)) from August 2002 to March 2004.
Between April 2004 and August 2008, Mr. ZHU was the deputy general director of Department of
Securities of Shenzhen Baoneng Group (FJITTEfERE £ BB R A 7)). Mr. ZHU was a manager of
Department of Securities of AVIC Sanxin Co., Ltd. (i =& %15 B R 2 7)) as well as deputy general
manager and secretary of the board of Shenzhen JMT Glass Co., Ltd. (I = =B AR AR, a
subsidiary of AVIC Sanxin Co., Ltd., from August 2008 to August 2010. Mr. ZHU has been the Officer
of Treasury Department of the Company from September 2010 to February 2017, and the Secretary
of the Board from 3 December 2013 to present. Mr. ZHU also concurrently served as the General
Manager of the Legal Affairs Department of the Company from May 2015 to October 2021. Since
January 2017, he has been the secretary to the Board, a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. ZHU is appointed as a joint company secretary on 17 December 2021. Mr. ZHU graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics (1 & 814 K £2) with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mr. HAO Jingli (8437), aged 54, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. HAO
successively served as a technician, an engineer specialized in thermal control, a project production
manager and a deputy project manager of Heilongjiang First Thermal Power Company (&) T4 X
E— /7)) from July 1990 to March 2007; he successively served as a deputy general manager of
Changzhou Project Company, a deputy general manager of engineering management department
(presiding over work), and the general manager of Wuhan Project Company of Dynagreen
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. from March 2007 to March 2014; Mr. HAO served as
the assistant to general manager of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and
concurrently served as the general manager of Wuhan Project Company, the general manager
of Tongzhou Project Company and the general manager of Miyun Project Company from March
2014 to January 2019; he served as the assistant to general manager of Dynagreen Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd. from January 2019 to October 2019. Since October 2019, he has been
a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. HAO holds an undergraduate degree and is a senior
engineer.

Mr. XI Qiang (¥5%), aged 43, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. XI successively
served as the shift supervisor of the power general department of Taicang Xinhaikang GCL Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. of GCL Group (B EBE AR FNERHEHEFR A F), the manager of operation
department of Jiaxing GCL Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (5 &1 EFR A 7)), the head of Taicang
GCL Waste-to-energy Co., Ltd. (K& &bl EH R A F)) and a deputy general manager of
Dongguan Zhongke Environmental Power Co., Ltd. (RS RERRE HER A R)) from September
1997 to July 2009; he served as the director of operations and technology management at the head
office in China of C&G Environmental Protection (China) Co. Ltd. (BITEIR{R () FBR A &) from July
2009 to October 2011 and successively served as the general manager of Jiamusi Project Company
and director of engineering and technology department of Guangyuan Promising Environmental
Protection Company Limited from October 2011 to March 2014; he served as the general manager
of waste-to-energy business department of Yonker Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. ((K/&IR{R
%17 A& BR A 7)) from March 2014 to April 2015. Mr. Xl served as the general manager of Wuhan
Project Company of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. from April 2015 to January
2019, during which he concurrently served as the general manager of Hong’an Project Company
from October 2016 to August 2018; he served as the general manager of operation management
center and the general manager of Wuhan Project Company of Dynagreen Environmental Protection
Group Co., Ltd. from January 2019 to August 2019. Mr. Xl has served the general manager of the
operation management center of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. since August
2019. Since October 2019, he has been a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. XI holds an
undergraduate degree in management and is a senior engineer.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Mr. ZHANG Wei (5:f7), aged 54, is the chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Zhang successively
served as the assistant engineer, engineer and engineer in charge of the production technology
division of Guangdong Zhongshan Power Development Company (ERH LT E HFEZE A R)
from July 1989 to February 2004; he served as the deputy head of the production technology
management department of Guangdong Zhongshan Zhongfa Power Co., Ltd. (BERFIUFEEHE
R~ &]) from February 2004 to May 2007 and successively served as the manager of the technology
department of the technology research and development center, the general manager of Zengcheng
Project Company and the chief engineer of Nansha Project Company of GZ Environmental Protection
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (BMNIRRIEEEBEHBR A R]) from May 2007 to May 2014; Mr. ZHANG
served as a deputy general manager and the chief engineer of waste-to-energy business department
of Yonker Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. GK/BERRD B R A ) from May 2014 to September
2016; since September 2016, he has served as the general manager of the technology research and
development department of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. Since October
2019, he has been the chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree in
engineering and is a senior engineer.

Mr. YI Zhiyong (5% £8), aged 48, is the chief financial officer of the Company. He served as the
manager of the after-sales service department of Wuhan Intercontinental Yintai Battery Co., Ltd. (&
EMBRERZE AR A a)) from July 1998 to July 1999; the manager (officially dispatched) of the
after-sales service department of Wuhan Intercontinental Yintai Battery Co., Ltd. (FUEMBRIEZRE M
BBRA 7)) from July 1999 to March 2002; the manager of the administrative personnel department
of Shiji Ansoft Information Technology Co., Ltd. (tt42 Z#E T AR A A)) from March 2002
to March 2003; and the manager of the finance department of Beijing Sunco Land Fengrun Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. Gt RIES Z # B HEERZEAFR A F]) from March 2003 to
December 2005; He successively served as the financial supervisor of the financial management
center, the assistant to the general manager of the financial management center and the deputy
general manager of the financial management center of the Company; the person in charge of
Taizhou Project Company of the Company; the general manager of the new business development
department and the international business department (investment and mergers and acquisitions) of
the Company; and a member of the disciplinary committee, the head of the disciplinary inspection
and supervision department and the head of the disciplinary supervision department of the Company
from February 2006 to March 2021. He has served as the chief financial officer of the Company since
March 2021. Mr. Yi graduated from Huazhong Polytechnic University (currently known as Huazhong
University of Science and Technology) with a bachelor’s degree.

Joint company secretaries
Mr. ZHU Shuguang is a joint company secretary of the Company. Please refer to the sub-section
headed “Senior Management” for biographical details of Mr. ZHU Shuguang.

Ms. YUEN Wing Yan, Winnie (Z58fX) (“Ms. YUEN”), graduated from Lingnan College (currently
known as Lingnan University), is currently a director of the corporate services division of Tricor
Services Limited. Ms. YUEN has over 25 year of experience in corporate services and has provided
professional corporate services for listed companies in Hong Kong and multi-national companies,
private companies and offshore companies. She is currently the company secretary/joint company
secretary for a number of listed companies on Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. YUEN is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and a fellow of both of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (“HKCGI”) and The Chartered Governance Institute.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

2. Positions in Shareholder Entities
v Applicablae [ Not applicable

Starting
Position held in date of term  Expiry date of
Name Name of shareholder entities shareholder entities of office term of office
CHENG Suning BSAM General manager of the urban
function and social investment
department
LUO Zhaoguo BSAM General manager of the
Department of Finance Planning
LIU Shuguang Anhui Jianghuai Growth Investment  General manager of Anhui
Fund Centre (Limited Partnership) Botao Venture Capital Fund
Management Co., Ltd.
(REBEAIRESER
AR 7) (Executive Partner)
Ll Lei Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., ~ Deputy general manager
Ltd. of Investment Business
Department
Explanation on Nil
positions held in
shareholder entities
3. Positions in Other Entities
v Applicablae [ Not applicable
Starting
Position held in date of term  Expiry date of
Name Name of other entities other entities of office term of office
FU Jie China Kangda Food Limited Chief financial officer
(FEIEARBERAR)
XIE Lanjun Beijing Zhongyin (Shenzhen) Senior partner, practicing lawyer
Law Firm QERm R (R
M=)
ZHOU Beihai University of Science and Professor
Technology Beijing
Explanation on Nil

positions held
in other entities
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

(1) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(Iv)

v Applicablae [ Not applicable

Procedures for determining the remuneration of
Directors, supervisors and senior management

Determination criteria for the remuneration of
Directors, supervisors and senior management

Payment of the remuneration payable to Directors,

supervisors and senior management

Total remuneration actually received by all Directors,

Non-independent Directors and supervisors do not
receive Directors’ and supervisors’ allowances.
Independent Directors’ allowances shall be discussed
by the Board of the Company and approved by
the general meeting. The emoluments of the senior
management are recommended by the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee of the Board of the Company
and approved by the Board

Such remuneration is determined according to the
remuneration level in the industry, combined with
the remuneration system and annual operation
performance of the Company.

RMB15.7549 million

RMB15.7549 million

supervisors and senior management at the end
of the Reporting Period

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

v Applicablae [ Not applicable

Name Position Change situation Reasons for changes

ZHI Jun Chairman Resignation Resigned as the chairman due to work
reasons

Qiao Dewei Chairman Election By-election of director

CAQ Jinjun Director Resignation Resigned as a director due to personal
reasons

ZHANG Zhenhai Director Election By-election of director

ZHANG Zhenhai Director Resignation Resigned upon expiry of the term of office

ZHONG Xia Director Election By-election of director

ZHONG Xia General Manager Appointment Transfer from general manager to chairman
of the Company

LI Lei Director Election General election

OU Yuezhou Independent Director Resignation Resigned upon expiry of the term of office

ZHOU Beihai Independent Director Election General election

HE Hong Supervisor Resignation Resigned as a supervisor due to work
reasons

WANG Meilin Employee representative Resignation Resigned upon expiry of the term of office

supervisor
YU Lijun Supervisor Election By-election
YAN Shiwen Employee representative Election General election
supervisor

HU Shengyong Chief Financial Officer Resignation Resigned as the Chief Financial Officer due
to work reasons

Y| Zhiyong Chief Financial Officer Appointment Resignation of the former Chief Financial

Officer
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

(V) THE RECORDS OF BEING PUBLISHED BY SECURITIES REGULATORS IN RECENT

THREE YEARS
[J Applicable v Not applicable
(Vl) Others

[J Applicable v Not applicable

VI. BOARD MEETINGS CONVENED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Session of the meeting

Date of meeting

Resolutions of meeting

28th meeting of the third session
29th meeting of the third session
30th meeting of the third session
31st meeting of the third session
32nd meeting of the third session
33rd meeting of the third session
34th meeting of the third session
35th meeting of the third session
36th meeting of the third session
1st meeting of the fourth session
2nd meeting of the fourth session
3rd meeting of the fourth session

26 January 2021
30 March 2021

29 April 2021

31 May 2021

30 June 2021

23 July 2021

30 August 2021

21 October 2021
29 October 2021
10 November 2021
26 November 2021
17 December 2021

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
All resolutions were approved
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

VIl. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

0

(i

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders holding 10% or more Shares (individually or together with others) shall be entitled to request for an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

The aforesaid shareholders may sign one or several written requests stating the subject of the meeting to request
the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting. Shares held by the above shareholders
shall be calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

Putting Forward Proposals at Extraordinary General Meeting

When a general meeting is held by the Company, the Board, Supervisory Committee or shareholders who
individually or together holding more than 3% of the Shares of the Company may propose resolutions to the
Company.

Shareholders who individually or together holding more than 3% of the Shares of the Company may submit ad
hoc proposals in writing to the convener of the general meeting at least 10 days before the holding of the general
meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall
have a clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant requirements
of the laws, administrative regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association.

(Ill) Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

(Iv)

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the following address:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. ZHU Shuguang)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written requisition,
notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact

details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Vil. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0

The Board

1.

Composition of the Board
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Directors of the Company consisted of the following Directors:

Non-executive Directors

ZHI Jun (Chairman) (resigned on 30 March 2021)

CHENG Suning

LIU Shuguang

CAOQ Jinjun (resigned with effect from 5 February 2021)

ZHANG Zhenhai (appointed on 14 May 2021 and resigned on 10 November 2021)
LI Lei (appointed on 10 November 2021)

Executive Directors

Qiao Dewei (Chairman)

ZHONG Xia (General Manager) (appointed on 14 May 2021)
HU Shengyong

Independent Non-executive Directors

OU Yuezhou (resigned on 10 November 2021)
FU Jie

XIE Lanjun

ZHOU Beihai (appointed on 10 November 2021)

During the Reporting Period, the Board consisted of nine members, including three non-executive
Directors, three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographic information
of Directors is set out in the section headed “Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
during the Reporting Period” of the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

None of the members of the Board is related to each other.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Directors of the Company has been appointed for a term ending on the expiration of the term
of the session of the Board (i.e. not more than three years), subject to re-election by shareholders.

() The Board and management

1.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
business, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as well as the services and
advice from the company secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has formulated relevant mechanism in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code
to ensure that the Board of Directors can obtain independent views and opinions. The Board of Directors
reviews the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism every year.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

IX. DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

0

Directors’ attendance of meeting of the Board and general meetings

Attendance
of general
Attendance of the Board meetings meetings

Notin

Meetings attendance
that should inperson Number of
be attended for two general
Independent during  Attendance Attendancevia  Attendance consecutive meeting
Name of Director  Director or not the year inperson communication by proxy Absence times attended
ZH Jun No 2 2 1 0 0 No 0
Qiao Dewei No 12 12 0 0 0 No 3
CHENG Suning No 12 9 8 3 0 Yes 3
LIU Shuguang No 12 11 10 1 0 No 1
CAQ Jinjun No 1 1 1 0 0 No 0
ZHANG Zhenhai No 6 3 3 3 0 Yes 2
LI Lei No 3 1 1 2 0 Yes 1
ZHONG Xia No 9 9 0 0 0 No 3
HU Shengyong No 12 12 0 0 0 No 3
OU Yuezhou Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
FU Jie Yes 12 12 10 0 0 No 3
XE Lanjun Yes 12 12 10 0 0 No 2
ZHOU Beihai Yes 3 3 3 0 0 No 1

Explanation for not attendance in person for two consecutive times

v Applicable [ Not applicable

CHENG Suning, ZHANG Zhenhai and LI Lei, all being non-independent directors, failed to attend the Board

meeting in person for two consecutive times due to work reasons.

Number of board meetings held in the year
Of which: number of on-site meeting

Number of meeting via communication

Number of meeting via on-site and communication

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

(I) Circumstances under which Directors raised dissent for matters of the Company

L] Applicable v Not applicable

(Ill) Others

v Applicable [ Not applicable

1.

Training of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailor-made induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would
be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.

All the Directors have actively participated in the continuous professional development by way of attending
seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or reading materials.
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VI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the following Directors attended seminars/training sessions/
inhouse briefing/reading materials:

Attending Reading journals,

seminars and/ updates, articles

or conferences and/or materials,

Director and/or forums etc.

Executive Directors

Qiao Dewei (Chairman) v v
ZHONG Xia (General Manager) v v
HU Shengyong v v
Non-executive Directors

CHENG Suning v v
LIU Shuguang v v
LI Lei v v
Independent Non-executive Directors

FU Jie v v
XIE Lanjun v v
ZHOU Beihai v v

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Management Measures and
Written Employee Guidance, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board complied with (1) the requirement that the Board of a listed issuer
must include at least three independent non-executive Directors under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange; (2) the requirement that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange; and (3) the requirement that the number of
independent non-executive Directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The positions of the chairman and the general manager are held by Mr. QIAO Dewei and Ms. ZHONG Xia respectively.
The chairman provides leadership for the Board and is responsible for formulating corporate and business strategies
and making major corporations and operations decisions. The general manager focuses on the business development
and is responsible for the daily operation and management. He is also taking part in formulating and implementing the
overall corporate and business strategy. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD
v Applicable [ Not applicable

(1) Members of the special committees under the Board

Special committees Members

Audit and Risk Management Committee FU Jie (Chairman), CHENG Suning, XIE Lanjun
Nomination Committee XIE Lanjun (Chairman), ZHOU Beihai, CHENG Suning
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee ZHOU Beihai (Chairman), FU Jie, LIU Shuguang
Strategy Committee Qiao Dewei (Chairman), LIU Shuguang, ZHONG Xia, HU

Shengyong, ZHOU Beihai

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Company has established an audit and risk management committee (the “Audit and Risk Management
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee include but are not limited to: (i)
proposing appointment, reappointment or removal of external auditors; (ii) reviewing and monitoring external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; (iii) reviewing the financial information of the Company; (iv) overseeing the financial reporting system
of the Company; (v) enhancing communication channels which the Group’s employees can use, in confidence,
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and (vi)
reviewing the risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviewed the financial results of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020, considered the re-appointment of KPMG Huazhen LLP as the Company’s external auditors in
2021 and held two meetings with the external auditors in the absence of the executive Directors.
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VI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Nomination Committee
The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) in compliance with the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited to: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the succession
planning for Directors; (ii) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
and (iii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, selecting or recommending to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or providing advice to the Board in respect thereof.

As a general election was held during the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held the third meeting of
the Nomination Committee of the third session of the Board of Directors in 2021 during the Reporting Period, at
which the Resolution on Recommending Candidates for Directors of the Fourth Session of the Board of Directors
was considered.

As to nomination of suitable director candidates, the Board of the Company adopted the Nomination Policy for
Directorship to clarify the nomination criteria for Directors. The Nominating Committee will refer to the following
factors when evaluating candidates:

° Compliance with the qualifications for appointment required under the Company Law and the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange

° Reputation
° Knowledge and experience in corporate management, legal, financial or environmental industries
° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

° Diversity of the Board in the aspects, amongst others, of gender, age (aged 18 or above), cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The above factors are for reference only and are not intended to cover all factors and are not decisive. The
Nominating Committee may decide to nominate any person it deems appropriate.

In addition, according to the Nomination Policy for Directorship, candidates shall submit the required personal
data in the agreed format and his/her written consent to be appointed as a Director and agree to the public
disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to
his/her appointment as a Director. The Nomination Committee may request the candidate to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary.

As to assessment of the composition of the Board, according to Rule 7 of the Terms of Reference of the
Nominating Committee, the Nomination Committee focuses on developing Board diversity in the member
selection process. Factors to consider include but are not limited to gender, age, culture, education background,
and previous experience. In addition, the Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. The Nominating Committee believes that the diversity of Board is properly balanced.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
The Company has established a remuneration and appraisal committee (the “Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited to: (i) researching and
recommending to the Board on the Company’s remuneration structure and policy for all Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) determining, with delegated responsibilities from the Board, or recommending
to the Board the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and members of the senior
management; (i) recommending to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; (iv) reviewing
and approving compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and (v)
monitoring the implementation of remuneration policies of Directors and senior management.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band(s) (HK$) Number of individuals
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 6
HK$2,000,001 to 2,500,000 1

Details of remuneration of all Directors, Supervisors and certain members of the senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note X to the Financial Statements contained in the annual report.

Strategy Committee
The Company has also established a strategy committee (the “Strategy Committee”).

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee include but are not limited to: (i) researching and
recommending on the medium to long term strategic and development plans of the Company; (ii) researching
and recommending on the significant capital expenditure, investment and financing projects of the Company;
and (jii) researching and recommending on the significant matters relating to the development of the Company.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

(2) The Audit and Risk Management Committee convened 5 meetings during the
Reporting Period

74

Important Other

Date of comments performance
meeting Content of meeting and suggestions  of duties
2021-03-23 Resolutions in relation to the 2020 fourth quarterly All resolutions

and annual internal audit work reports, annual were approved

financial report, annual report, internal control

evaluation plan, and engagement of auditors
2021-04-23  First quarterly internal audit work report and 2021 All resolutions

first quarterly report were approved
2021-08-23 2021 second quarterly internal audit work report, All resolutions

semi-annual interim financial report, 2021 were approved

interim results announcement and 2021 interim

report
2021-10-22  Third quarterly internal audit work report, 2021 All resolutions

third quarterly report and nomination of the were approved

head of the audit department
2021-12-10  Resolution in relation to 2022 internal audit work All resolutions

plan, 2021 internal control evaluation plan and
amendments to the Terms of Reference of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board of Directors

were approved

(3) The Nomination Committee convened 4 meetings during the Reporting Period

Important Other

Date of comments performance
meeting Content of meeting and suggestions  of duties
2021-03-30 Nomination of candidates for the chairman and All resolutions

directors of the Company; appointment of the were approved

general manager and chief financial officer of the

Company and adjustment to the composition of

the special committees of the Board of Directors
2021-05-21 Nomination of members of the Strategy All resolutions

Committee of the Board of Directors were approved
2021-10-08 Recommendation of candidates for directors of All resolutions

the fourth session of the Board of Directors were approved
2021-11-10  Appointment of the general manager, deputy All resolutions

general manager, chief engineer and financial
director and the secretary to the Board of the
Company

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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Corporate Governance (Continued)

(4) The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee convened 1 meeting during the

(®)

(6)

Reporting Period

Date of
meeting Content of meeting

Important Other
comments performance
and suggestions  of duties

2021-03-30  Performance of duties by senior management in
2020, appraisal of remuneration in 2020 and
2021 remuneration plan for senior management
of the Company, remuneration plan for directors
and supervisors of the Company in 2021

All resolutions
were approved

The Strategy Committee convened 1 meeting during the Reporting Period

Date of
meeting Content of meeting

Important Other
comments performance
and suggestions  of duties

2021-03-30 2020 work report of general manager and 2021
business plan

Specific matters with objections

[J Applicable v Not applicable

All resolutions
were approved
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Corporate Governance (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board Diversity Policy has been considered and approved at the twenty-sixth meeting of the first session of the
Board, which aims to set out the Company’s position on the Board diversity and the policy it will continue to adopt in
the process of realization. The Board has established this policy in accordance with the following principles:

(1) Board diversity is an important factor to maintain the Company’s sound corporate governance, achieve
sustainable development and achieve strategic goals.

(2)  When setting the composition of the Board, the Company considers the Board diversity from various aspects,
including but not limited to Directors’ gender, age, cultural and educational background, region, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and service term and other regulatory requirements etc.

(8)  The appointment of Board members is based on the skills and experience required for the overall good operation
of the Board and on merit basis with full consideration of the abovementioned goals and requirements of Board
diversity.

The Nomination Committee of the Board of the Company is responsible for reviewing the number, composition and
organizational structure of the Board, and makes recommendations to the Board on the size and composition of the
Board based on the Company’s strategic planning, business activities, asset size and equity structure; study and
review the selection criteria, nomination and appointment procedures of directors, and making recommendation to the
Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is required to follow this policy when making recommendations on candidates
for directors and when the Board nominates candidates for directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for overseeing the implementation of this policy and reviewing
this policy when appropriate, discussing any amendments that need to be made and making recommendations to the
Board for implementation upon approval by the Board.

At present, the Nomination Committee of the Board has not set any quantifiable goals for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy. However, the Nomination Committee of the Board will consider and review the Board Diversity Policy
and set any measurable goals from time to time.

The Company has achieved gender diversity of Board members and all employees (including senior management). The
composition of the Board and senior management has been disclosed in detail in “V. Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this section. Female employees account for 21.75% of all employees of the Company; the Company
has not formulated any plans or measurable goals for gender diversity of employees.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

Xill. EXPLANATION ON RISKS OF THE COMPANY DETECTED BY THE

XIV.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

[J Applicable v Not applicable

The Supervisory Committee has no objection to the supervision during the Reporting Period.

EMPLOYEES OF PARENT COMPANY AND MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

() Employees
Number of in-service employees of the parent company
Number of in-service employees of the major subsidiaries
Total number of in-service employees
The number of retired employees whose expenses are borne

by the parent company and the major subsidiaries

Composition of professions

Type of profession

110
2,897
3,007

Number of staff
in the profession

Production staff 1,814
Sales staff 0
Technical staff 584
Finance staff 123
Administrative staff 306
Others 180
Total 3,007
Education level

Number of
Type of education level persons
Master and above 23
Bachelor 674
College graduate 1,355
Below college graduate 955
Total 3,007
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VI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

(

()

(Iv)

Remuneration Policy
v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company provides remuneration with “competitiveness in the industry” to employees. The Company has
established a compensation management system based on “management by objectives and performance
appraisal”. The remuneration of employees is linked to their completion of tasks assigned by the Company and
performances. The remuneration management of the Company follows the “model differentiation principle”.
According to work needs, the Company implements two different compensation modes of “annual salary
system” and “performance-based salary system” for different positions.

The Company will maintain the stability of the remuneration system, and will continue to improve on the basis of
the implementation of current remuneration system in accordance with the actual situation of the Company. The
Company will make timely adjustments to the salary level of employees according to the operation situation, price
index and industry salary level, so that the income level of employees will continue to be competitive.

Training Program
v Applicable [ Not applicable

By facilitating various kinds of training, including self-study, after-work training and on-the-job and off-the-job
training, the Group educates its employees about its history, corporate culture, business philosophy, rules and
systems, operations management, relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as the Group’s core technologies
and waste-to-energy procedures. In particular, the Group recruits recent graduates with high level of education
from technical schools, secondary technical schools, colleges and universities and trains them through trainee
mentoring programs so as to expand a pool of reserve talent. The Group also trains cadre candidates to enhance
their management skills and comprehensive capabilities.

Labour Outsourcing

L] Applicable v Not applicable

Post-employment Benefits — Defined Contribution Plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group participated in a defined contribution basic
pension insurance plan in the social insurance system established and managed by government authorities. The
Group makes contributions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government.

The relevant plan is the defined contribution plan, and the Group cannot use the forfeited contribution (i.e.
the contribution by the employer on behalf of employees who leave the plan prior to vesting fully in such

contributions) to reduce the existing contribution level.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contribution or forfeited contribution available
for deduction of the Group’s contribution as at 31 December 2021.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

XV.PROPOSAL OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION OR CONVERSION OF CAPITAL
RESERVE

0

(i

()

Formulation, implementation or adjustment of the cash dividend policy
v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Resolution on the Three-year Shareholders’ Profit Distribution Plan after Listing of A Shares had been
considered and passed at the 6th meeting of the second session of the Board and the first Extraordinary General
Meeting for the year 2016, the Resolution on Shareholders’ Return Plan for the Next Three Years (2020-2022)
had been considered and passed at the 21st meeting of the third session of the Board and the first Extraordinary
General Meeting for the year 2020, and the Resolution on Shareholders’ Return Plan for the Next Three Years
(2021-2023) had been considered and passed at the 23rd meeting of the third session of the Board and the first
Extraordinary General Meeting for the year 2021. The above profit distribution plans proposed that: while the
Company may declare profit distribution by cash, stock or a combination of both, the distribution will be made
primarily by cash. Profit distribution shall not exceed the accumulated profit distributable or adversely affect the
sustainable operating ability of the Company. The Company may distribute interim dividends according to profit
and capital needs of the Company. The Company shall give priority to the payment of cash dividends. If no
cash dividends are available, no scrip dividends shall be issued for the same year. Any cash dividends proposed
shall satisfy the following criteria: the current profit and accumulated retained earnings of the Company shall be
positive and its cash flow shall be sufficient to support the continuous operation and long-term development of
the Company; the profit to be distributed in cash shall not be less than 10% of the distributable profits of the
year, and the cumulative profit distributed in cash in the previous three consecutive financial years shall not be
less than 30% of the average distributable profit of the Company for such three years.

The dividend plan for the year 2018, the dividend plan for the year 2019, the dividend proposal for the year
2020 and the dividend proposal for the year 2021 of the Company were made according to the above plan and
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association.

Special explanation on cash dividend policy

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Whether it is consistent with the requirements of the Articles

of Association or the requirements under the resolution of the general meeting v Yes [ No
Whether the criteria and proportions of dividends are definite and clear v Yes [ No
Whether the relevant decision-making procedures and mechanisms are complete v Yes [JNo
Whether independent directors have fulfilled their responsibilities and duties v Yes [ No
Whether the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their

views and demands and their legitimate rights and interests are fully protected v Yes [ No

If the Company is profitable and the parent company’s profit available for
distribution to shareholders is positive, but no cash profit distribution plan has been
proposed during the Reporting Period, the Company shall disclose the reasons in
detail and the purpose and use plan of the retained earnings.

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

XVl. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN, EMPLOYEE SHAREHOLDING PLAN OR OTHER
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE MEASURES OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR
IMPACTS

0

(i

()

(Iv)

Equity incentive matters which have been published in temporary announcements
and without further progress or changes

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Incentive which have not been published in temporary announcements or with
further progress

Equity incentive

[J Applicable v Not applicable
Other explanation

[J Applicable v Not applicable
Employee shareholding plan
[J Applicable v Not applicable
Other incentive measures

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Equity incentive granted to Directors and senior management during the Reporting
Period

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Appraisal and motivation mechanism for senior management during the Reporting
Period

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company implements the annual salary system for the senior management. The income of the senior
management of the Company includes the basic annual salary and the annual target benefit bonus. The
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the Board of Directors proposes a bonus plan based on the
completion of the annual management objectives of the senior management personnel and submits it to the
board of Directors for approval.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

v Applicable [ Not applicable

For details, please refer to the Self-assessment Report on the Internal Control disclosed by the Company on the same
date

Significant deficiency existed in internal control during the Reporting Period

[J Applicable v Not applicable

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The company has formulated the Controlled Subsidiaries Management System and other systems to standardize the
management of subsidiaries. The Company mainly controls its subsidiaries from the following aspects:

(1)  for the control of the organization and personnel of subsidiaries, exercising the power of investor by appointing
directors, supervisors, managers, financial officers and other important senior management;

(2)  The decision-making authority of subsidiaries’ management is clearly stipulated in the articles of association
and relevant systems of subsidiaries, and subsidiaries’ management shall not engage in transactions or matters
beyond the decision-making authority. For transactions or matters beyond the decision-making authority,
subsidiaries’ management shall submit them to the Company’s centralized management department, and such
transactions or matters can only be implemented after performance of relevant decision-making procedures;

(8)  Assigning annual assessment indicators, and determining the remuneration of subsidiaries’ management
according to the completion of assessment indicators;

(4)  For consolidated financial statements and the control thereof, clarifying the preparation and submission process

and approval system of consolidated financial statements, to ensure the authenticity and reliability of the
consolidated financial statements of parent company and subsidiaries.
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VI.

XIX.

XX.

XXI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Auditors’ Report on Internal Control was issued by KPMG Huazhen LLP

Whether to disclose the internal control audit report: Yes
Opinion type of internal control audit report: standard unqualified

RECTIFICATION OF PROBLEMS FOUND IN THE SPECIAL SELF-
EXAMINATION OF GOVERNANCE OF LISTED COMPANY

Affected by factors including the COVID-19, the Company has independent directors whose on-site working time is
less than 10 working days. The Guidelines No. 1 for the Self-regulation of Listed Companies on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange has no specific requirements on on-site working hours for independent directors. Subsequently, while
maintaining close daily communication with independent directors, the Company will provide necessary conditions
for the on-site work of independent directors and proactively cooperate with the discharge of duties by independent
directors to continuously increase the on-site working hours of independent directors.

OTHERS

v Applicable [ Not applicable

U]

(m

Trading of Shares by Directors, Supervisors and Employees

The Company has adopted Management Measures on Securities Transactions by Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management Personnel (the “Management Measures”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company had made specific inquiries
to all of the Directors and Supervisors on whether they had complied with the Management Measures during
the Reporting Period, and all of the Directors and supervisors had confirmed that they had all complied with
the Management Measures. The Company has established the Employees Written Guidance (the “Employees
Written Guidance”) for its employees who may hold unpublished internal information of the Company in relation
to dealing in securities, with terms no less favourable than the Model Code. The Company was not aware of any
matters in relation to breaches of the Employees Written Guidance by any employee.

Directors’ responsibility in respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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(Ill) Auditors’ Remuneration

(Iv)

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors (including KPMG Huazhen LLP and other PRC
auditors) in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB3 million, of
which RMB2.5 million is for audit services conducted under CASBE and RMBO0.5 million is for audit services
relating to the internal control for financial reporting rendered by KPMG Huazhen LLP. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company incurred a total of RMB1.51 million of fees for non-audit services by its external
auditors relating to the issuance of A share convertible shares and production of the environmental, social and
governance report of the Company.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledge its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing their
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Management Committee, has conducted annual review for the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The management monitors the assessment of the risk management and internal controls and has confirmed to
the Board and the Audit and Risk Management Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied with
by each department.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory
compliance and information security. The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk management progress. The Internal
Audit Department is responsible for providing the internal audit function and performing independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
examined key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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VI.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

(Vi)

The Group adopts the following procedures and internal control measures to handle and release inside
information:

° When handling affairs, the Company will fully consider the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules
and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission

° The Administrative Procedures on the Information Disclosures of the Group govern the Company’s
communications with third parties, especially the procedures for responding to outside inquiries about the
Group’s affairs, enabling specific personnel to obtain relevant authorizations

° The Company widely and non-exclusively discloses information to the public through financial reports,
announcements and the Company’s website, etc., to implement and disclose the Company’s fair
disclosure policy

° Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information is strictly prohibited in the Company’s Compliance
Management Manual.

The Board, as supported by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by reviewing the management report and the internal audit report and
considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are effective and adequate.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. ZHU Shuguang, the secretary of the Board of the Company, and Ms. YUEN Wing Yan, Winnie of Tricor
Services Limited, a service provider, act as the company secretaries of the Company. The primary contact
person of Ms. YUEN at the Company is Mr. ZHU Shuguang.

Mr. ZHU Shuguang and Ms. YUEN Wing Yan, Winnie have complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange by taking more than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors/Investor Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate)
are available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has amended its Articles of Association. Details of the
amendments are set out in the circular to shareholders dated 15 April 2021. The latest Articles of Association of
the Company may also be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VI.  Corporate Governance (Continued)

(VIl) Interests in securities held by Directors, Supervisors and senior management

i)

(IX)

(X)

(X1)

(disclosure pursuant to the requirements of the Stock Exchange)

As at the end of the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Neither the Company nor other members of the Group has entered into or intended to enter into any service
contract with the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’, Supervisors’ or Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or a supervisor or their respective connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.

Save as disclosed, no contracts, transactions or arrangements of significance were entered into during the
Reporting Period between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

Relations with Employees

The Group attaches importance to maintaining good relationship with employees. The Group is of the view
that employees are the most important assets of the Group, and the basis for sustainable development. To
establish good relationship with employees and retain talents, the Group has offered employees with competitive
remuneration package, excellent working environment and welfare. The remuneration policy of the Group is
determined based on the performance of employees, and will be reviewed regularly. The Group will distribute
discretionary bonuses to employees for their contributions to the Group based on its profitability and the
performance of the employees, and promote employees with excellent performance. The Group will also provide
trainings for new and existing staff so as to enhance their skills and knowledge. For frontline production staff, the
Group will also provide firefighting and safety production trainings. These measures can improve the production
capacity and efficiency of the Group.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations of Significant Influence

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations (particularly),
those that have significant impact on the Group such as the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and the Chinese
Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.

To the knowledge of the Company, it has complied in all material aspects with relevant laws and regulations
which have significant impact on its business and operation.

Annual Report 2021

85



86

VII.

l. Environmental information

Environment and Social Responsibility

() Explanation on environmental protection of the Company and its major subsidiaries
falling into the category of major pollutant-emission units designated by the

environmental protection authorities

v Applicable [ Not applicable

1. Information on pollutant emission

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Huizhou Phase Il Company, Haining Expansion Company, Tongzhou Company and Shantou Company,
which are subsidiaries of the Company, are the major pollutant-emission units designated by the
environmental protection authorities. These companies are all the operating entities of municipal waste-to-

energy plants.

The main pollutants generated by the major pollutant-emission units of the Company are sulfur dioxide,
smog, oxynitride and COD. Sulfur dioxide, smog and oxynitride are emitted from smog. The above
pollutants are treated by the smog treatment system according to standard and then emitted through
the chimney. COD is discharged from waste water. After the sewage is treated according to standard
for connecting with the pipeline network, it is carried to the urban sewage treatment plant for centralised
treatment through the sewage pipe network. Generally, an inlet is provided for the sewage pipe network.
There is no discharge outlet for reuse, and certain major subsidiaries have implemented zero emission of

COD.

The concentration of major pollutants discharged from projects of the above companies during the
Reporting Period as stated in the latest commissioned test report is summarised as follows:

Name of Name of Number and date of
No.  unit pollutants Testing institution Emission concentration Emission limit
1 Huizhou Phase I Sulfur dioxide  Guangzhou GRG Metrology 1*fumace ND 50mg/m°
Company &Test Co,, Ltd. 2* fumace Tmg/m? 50mg/m°
([ENESHERARR  BGZ2021070414-04-2 3 fumace gmg/m 50mg/m?
BRAT) 4 fumace Img/m? 50mg/m?
Oxynitrice 1*fumace 91mg/m® 150mg/m?
2* fumace 78mg/m? 150mg/m?
3 fumace 56mg/m? 150mg/m?
4 fumace 102mg/m? 150mg/m?
Smog 1*fumace 2.3mg/m? 10mg/m?
2* fumace 2.6mg/m? 10mg/m?
3* funace 2.9mg/m? 10mg/m?
4 fumace 2.5mg/m? 10mg/m?
Dioxin Jiangsu Weipu Test WJS-21086409-HJ-01C1 1*fumace 0.012ng 0.1ng
Technology Senvice Co., TEQNm? TEQ/Nm?
Ltd. CIERMERERG  WIS-21116157-H-01R1 2 furace 0013ng 0.1ng
ERAR) TEQNm® TEQNm®
3* funace 0.002ng 0.1ng
TEQNm® TEQNm®
4 fumace 0.0044ng 0.1ng
TEQNm® TEQNm®
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Environment and Social Responsibility (Continued)

Name of Name of Number and date of
No.  unit pollutants Testing institution the testing report Emission concentration Emission limit
2 Haining Sulfur dioxide  Ningbo Centre Testing A2210477161104005C 1#fumace 8mg/m? 100mg/m?
Expansion International Co., Ltd. A2210477161104001c 2*fumace ND 100mg/m?
Company ~ Oxynitride EVOES v (9-10 Decernber 2021) 1# fumace 13mg/m? 300mg/m?
ERAT) 2" fumace 2Img/m? 300mg/m°
Smog 1#fumace ND 30mg/m®
2*fumace ND 30mg/m®
coD Waste water 156mg/L 500mg/L
outlet

Dioxin Suzhou Centre Testing A2210477176101CD 1 0.0054ng 0.8ngTEQ/M®

International Co., Ltd. 10 December 2021 for 14 fumace TEQ/m®
EEMmERRAR 9 December 2021 for 24 fumace 2 0.0089ng 08ngTEQ/M®

ERAT) TEQ/m®
3 Tongzhou Suffur dioxide  Befing Centre Testing A2210495219101C 1 fumace 3mg/m? 50mg/m®
Company International Group Co., (3 December 2021) 2 fumace 4mg/m® 50mg/m*
Ltd. (EEMATEED  A2210495219101C001 *3fumace 3mg/mf 50mg/m?
Oxynitride HFERLA) (16 December 2021) 1 fumace 49mg/m? 80mg/m?
A2210495219103C 2 fumace 34mg/m? 80mg/m®
(16 December 2021) 3 fumace Hmg/m? 80mg/m®
Smog 1 fumnace <0.9mg/m? 10mg/m*
2 fumace <09mg/m? 10mg/m?
3 fumace <09mg/m? 10mg/m?
coD Sewage station dmglL <B0mg/L

water

Dioxin Beiing Centre Testing A2210246019170C 1 fumace 0.01ng 0.1ng TEQ/Nm®

International Group Co., (10 November 2021) TEQNm®
Ltd. EHRAREEE 2 furmace 00%ng  0.Ing TEQINm?

FRERAT) TEQMNm?
3 fumace 0.032ng 0.1ng TEQ/Nm®

TEQNm?
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VII.  Environment and Social Responsibility (Continued)

Name of Name of Number and date of
No.  unit pollutants Testing institution the testing report Emission concentration Emission limit
4 Shantou Suffur dioxide  Guangdong Bekind Testing ~ BKEN2021120123EQC 1#fumace Img/m? 100mg/m?
Company Co, Lid. (ERARSH 2021-12-14

ERAT) BKEN2021120188EQC 2021-12-21  2*fumace 22mg/m? 100mg/m?
BKEN2021120123EQC 2021-12-14 3 fumace 3mg/m? 100mg/m?
Oxynitride BKEN2021120123EQC 2021-12-14  1*fumace 168mg/m? 300mg/m*
BKEN2021120188EQC 2021-12-21  2*fumace 180mg/m? 300mg/m*
BKEN2021120123EQC 2021-12-14 3 fumace 162mg/m? 300mg/m*
Smog BKEN2021120123EQC 2021-12-14  1*fumace 5.5mg/m? 30mg/m®
BKEN2021120188EQC 2021-12-21  2*fumace 4 9mg/m? 30mg/m®
BKEN2021120123EQC 2021-12-14 3 fumace 54mg/m? 30mg/m®
coD BKEN2021120123ESC 2021-12-14 1dmglL 100mg/L
Dioxin Jiangsu Weipu Test WJS-21116244-HJ-01R! 1#fumace 0.011ng 0.1ng TEQ/Nm®

Technology Service Co,, 2021-11-20 TEQNm®
Ltd. (TERAER AR 2 furace 0087g  0.Ing TEQMNm?

ERAT) TEQNm?
3*fumace 0.011ng 0.1ng TEQ/Nm®

TEQNm?

Note: “ND” refers to no detect; the unit of sulfur dioxide, oxynitride, smog is mg/m3, and the unit of dioxin is ngTEQ/m3.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VII.  Environment and Social Responsibility (Continued)

The above emission limits of pollutants are based on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration Pollution Control
Standards (AR RIF I LSRR HIZ#E) ) (GB18485-2014) and local standards. The regular commissioned
test reports issued with respect to the major pollutant-emission units during the Reporting Period indicated that
the emissions of pollutant met the prescribed standards and there was no excessive emission.

The estimated total emissions and the approved total annual emissions of major pollutants of the above

companies during the Reporting Period are summarised as follows:

Actual Emission

emissions indicators

Name of pollutant (ton) (ton/year)
Sulfur dioxide 161 821
Oxynitride 991 1,940
Smog 36 200
COD 30 113

2. Construction and operation of facilities for pollution prevention and control
v Applicable [J Not applicable

The pollution prevention facilities constructed for the projects of the Company mainly include smog, waste
water and solid waste treatment facilities. For smog, a combination of “in-furnace SNCR denitrification
+ semi-dry deacidification + dry deacidification + activated carbon adsorption + outfurnace SCR
denitrification + bag filter” is mainly adopted for smog purification techniques and the smog is emitted
through the chimney after being treated and meeting the emission requirements. For waste water, the
processing techniques of “pretreatment + anaerobic + nitrification denitrification + MBR membrane
treatment + nanofiltration + reverse osmosis” are mainly adopted, and the waste water is reused for
production or enters the urban sewage plant through pipeline network after being treated and meeting the
emission requirements. For solid waste, ash is solidified before sending to the landfill. During the Reporting
Period, the pollution prevention facilities of each project were operating normally.

3. Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other
environmental protection administrative licensing
v Applicable [J Not applicable

Date of approval to
environmental impact

No. Name of project assessment Authority for approval

1 Huizhou Phase Il Project 14 August 2020 Ecological Environment
Bureau of Huizhou City

2 Haining Expansion Project 26 November 2018 Environmental Protection
Bureau of Jiaxing City

3 Tongzhou Project 25 December 2015 Environmental Protection
Bureau of Beijing

4 Shantou Project 28 March 2017 Environmental Protection

Bureau of Shantou City
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VII.

Environment and Social Responsibility (Continued)

(

7.

Emergency plan for emergency environmental incidents
v Applicable [ Not applicable

In respect of each project, the Company has formulated emergency plans for emergency environmental
incidents, and filed the plans with the local environmental protection administrative departments of the local
people’s government at or above the county level, and organised emergency drills every year according to
the plans.

Environmental self-monitoring programme
v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company formulates self-monitoring programme for every year according to the national or
local pollutant emission standards, environmental impact assessment reports and their approval and
environmental monitoring technical specifications, in order to keep abreast of its pollutant emission status
and its impact on the surrounding environmental quality. The results of self-monitoring will be disclosed to
the public.

Administrative penalties due to environmental problems during the Reporting
Period
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Other environmental information to be disclosed
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Environmental information of companies other than major pollutant-emission units

v Applicable [ Not applicable

All of the Company’s domestic waste incineration power plants are equipped with complete systems for exhaust
gas, leachate and fly ash treatment, of which the discharge to the environment have met the standard during the
Reporting Period.

1.

Administrative penalties due to environmental problems
L1 Applicable v Not applicable

Disclosure of other environmental information with reference to major
pollutant-emission units
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Reasons for not disclosure of other environmental information
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



()

(Iv)

+&0

0%

VII.  Environment and Social Responsibility (Continued)

Relevant information that is conducive to protecting ecology, preventing pollution
and fulfilling environmental responsibilities

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company’s municipal waste-to-energy business is dedicated to the harmlessness treatment, reduction
and resource utilization of domestic waste and is an important part of the battle of pure land defense in the
fight against environmental pollution. Adhering to the policy of “prevention first and combination of prevention
and control” in environmental protection management, the Company implements “three simultaneous” of
environmental protection facilities and has formulated and strictly implemented the Environmental Protection
Management System of Dynagreen Group and other systems to supervise the entire process of environmental
protection in engineering construction and production and strictly abided by national laws and regulations and
relevant emission standards.

Measures taken to reduce carbon emissions during the Reporting Period and
effects thereof

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The municipal waste-to-energy projects of the Company, on the one hand, replace the landfills and reduce the
emission of methane and other greenhouse gases produced by the landfills. On the other hand, the projects
contribute energy and replace thermal power to a certain extent, which makes direct contributions to carbon
emission reduction and is a field for which it is allowed to apply for Chinese Certified Emission Reduction.

Activities in connection with social responsibilities

v Applicable [ Not applicable

For details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report disclosed on the same date.

Consolidation and expansion of the results of poverty alleviation, rural
revitalization and other specific work

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Annual Report 2021

91



VIIl.  Significant Events

. PERFORMANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS

() Undertakings during or carried forward to the Reporting Period by the Company’s
beneficial controllers, shareholders, related parties, acquirers of the Company and

the Company
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Background of  Type of
undertaking undertaking Undertaking party Details of undertaking

Time and
period of the
undertaking

Whether the  If not If not
Whether undertaking performed performed
there is was strictly timely, describe ~ timely, describe
deadline for ~ and timely  the specific  plans in next
performance  performed  reasons steps

Undertakings Restrictionon BSAM Within 36 months from the lising date
related toinitial  seling of of the A shares of Dynagreen, the
publicoffering~—~ shares shares issued prior to the public

offering of shares by Dynagreen
directly or indirectly held by the

company shall neither be transferred

or entrusted to other parfies for

management, nor be repurchased by

Dynagreen.

Others BSAM For the shares of Dynagreen held by

the company prior to the initial public
offering of A shares by Dynagreen, if
the company reduces the shares held

within two years after the expiry of

the lock-up period, the price shall not
be lower than the issue price and the

Issuer's shares reduced each year
shallnot exceed 5%.

Others QIAO Dewel, HU Shengyong, - For the shares of Dynagreen held by
HOU Zhiyong, CHENG Yan,  the undertaking party prior to the
HUANG Jianzhong, ZHONG  inital public offering of A shares by
Xa, ZHANG Yong, ZHU Dynagreen, ff the undertaking party

Shuguang reduces the shareholding held within
two years after the expiry of the lock-
up period, the price shall not be lower

than the issue price.

92 Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)
Whether the  If not If not
Whether undertaking performed performed
Time and there is was strictly timely, describe ~timely, describe
Background of  Type of period of the deadline for  andtimely the specific plansin next
undertaking undertaking - Undertaking party Details of undertaking undertaking performance  performed  reasons steps
Others BSAM, QIAO Dewei, HU ~ The proposal on price stabiisationwil -~ 11 June 201810 Yes Yes
Shengyong, HOU Zhiyong,  be executed when the share prices of 10 June 2021
CHENG Yan, HUANG Dynagreen are lower than the latest
Jianzhong, ZHONG X, adlted net assets per share for 20
ZHANG Yong, ZHU consecutive trading days within 3
Shuguang years after listing.
Others BSAM For any loss or risk of Dynagreen and its - 30 May 2016 No Yes
subsidiaries caused by BOT projects
not obtained through bidding, BSAM
will provide timely, full and effective
compensation to Dynagreen and it
subsidiaries to ensure Dynagreen
and/or its domestic subsidiaries wil
not suffer any loss.
Undertakings Restrictionon BSAM Within 18 months from the listing date 9 December 2020 to Yes Yes
related to seling of of the non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2022
refinancing shares the non-publicly issed shares held
by the undertaking party shall neither
be transferred nor entrusted to other
parties for management.
Restriction on - Three Gorges Captal Within 6 months from the listing date 9 December 2020 to Yes Yes
selingof ~ Holdings Co,, Ltd. of the non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2021

shares (ZHERER
BRELLE)

the non-publicly issed shares held
by the undertaking party shall neither
be transferred nor entrusted to other
parties for management.
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

Whether the  If not If not
Whether undertaking performed performed
Time and there is was strictly timely, describe ~timely, describe
Background of  Type of period of the deadline for  andtimely the specific plansin next
undertaking undertaking - Undertaking party Details of undertaking undertaking performance  performed  reasons steps
Restriction on - Guangdong Yue Macao Within 6 montfs from the lising date 9 December 2020to Yes Yes
selingof  Cooperative Development  of the non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2021
shares Fund Management Ltd. the non-publicly issuied shares held
- Zhuhai Fuheng Investment by the undertaking party shall nefther
Partnership (Limited be transferred nor entrusted to other
Partnership) parfies for management.
(ERERAMFARECER
BRA A-ERERE
BBER(ERAE)
Restriction on - Guangdong Hengjan Asset  Within 6 months from the listing date 9 December 2020 to Yes Yes
selingof  Management Co., Lid. - ofthe non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2021
shares Guangdong Henghang the non-publicly issued shares held
Industrial Investment by the undertaking party shall neither
Fund Partnership (Limited e transferred nor enfrusted to other
Partnership) parties for management.
(EREREEER
BRAT-ERERER
RERE aBb%
(RRA #)
Restriction onFirst Capital Securities Within 6 months from the listing date 9 December 20200 Yes Yes
selingof ~ Co, Ltd. of the non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2021
shares (E-8ZEARHERAA)  the non-publcly issued shares held
by the undertaking party shal neither
be transferred nor entrusted to other
parties for management,
Restriction on China International Capital  Within 6 months from the listing date 9 December 2020 to Yes Yes

selingof  Corporation Limited of the non-public offering of shares, 8 June 2021
shares (PEEBLBRHERAF)  the non-publicly issued shares held

by the undertaking party shal neither

be transferred nor entrusted to other

parties for management,

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

(I) Where the Company has profit forecasts on assets or projects, and the Reporting
Period was within the term of profit forecasts, the Company has to state whether
such profit forecasts on assets or projects are fulfilled and the reasons therefor
[J Achieved [ Not achieved v Not Applicable

(lll) Execution of the performance undertakings and its impact on the goodwill
impairment testing

[J Applicable v Not Applicable

APPROPRIATION OF THE COMPANY’S FUNDS FOR PURPOSES OTHER
THAN OPERATIONS BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND ITS
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

[J Applicable v Not applicable

ILLEGAL GUARANTEES

[ Applicable v Not applicable

. EXPLANATION OF THE COMPANY ON THE “NON-STANDARD OPINIONS

AUDIT REPORT” FROM ACCOUNTING FIRM
[J Applicable v Not applicable

ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION F
REASONS AND IMPACT OF THE CH
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES OR CO
ACCOUNTING ERRORS

ROM HE COMPANY ON
NGE

JJ
m
O
=7
o

() Analysis and explanation from the Company on the reasons and impact of the
change of accounting policies or accounting estimates

v Applicable [ Not applicable

For the contents and reasons of the changes in the current accounting policies and the main impact of the
changes, please refer to Note V.44,

(I) Analysis and explanation from the Company on the reasons and impact of the
correction on significant accounting errors

[J Applicable v Not Applicable

(Il) Communication with the previous accounting firm
L] Applicable v Not Applicable

(IV) Other Explanation

[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

VI. INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS
BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board has reviewed the accounting standards and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year together with the management and the
external independent auditors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the fourth session of Board of the Company heard the report of KPMG
Huazhen LLP on the progress of the audit on 2021 annual report of the Company, reviewed the “key audit matters” in
the auditor’s Report, and agreed with the judgment of KPMG Huazhen LLP on the “key audit matters” and the audit
procedures implemented.

Vil. APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF AUDITOR

Unit: RMB0O’000

Existing Auditors
Name of domestic auditor KPMG Huazhen LLP
Remuneration of domestic auditor 300
Term of the domestic auditor for audit services Six years
Name Compensation
The auditors for internal control audit KPMG Huazhen LLP 50
Sponsor China Securities Co., Ltd. 0

Explanation of appointment or dismissal of auditors
[J Applicable v Not Applicable
Explanation of change of auditors during the audit period

[J Applicable v Not Applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

VIil. RISK OF DELISTING
() Causes of delisting warning
O Applicable v Not Applicable
() Measures to be taken by the Company
[ Applicable v Not Applicable
(Ill) Situation and causes for termination of listing
O Applicable v Not Applicable
IX. MATTERS RELATED TO BANKRUPTCY AND REORGANISATION
[ Applicable v Not Applicable
X. MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
[ The Company had material litigation and arbitration during the year.

v The Company did not have material litigation and arbitration during the year.

Xl. PUNISHMENT AND RECTIFICATION OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT, CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLERS FOR SUSPECTED
VIOLATION OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

[ Applicable v Not applicable

XILEXPLANATION ON CREDIBILITY OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLERS
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

L1 Applicable v Not applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

Xlll. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

0

Related party transactions in connection with day-to-day operation

1.

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements and without
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements but with
further progress or changes (connected transactions disclosed pursuant to the
requirements of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules)

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Continuing connected transaction

On 31 May 2021, the Company and Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (®JII7Kk @& A B F LA
[R A7) (“Shenzhen CDT”) entered into a Service Framework Contract, pursuant to which publicity display
design and construction were proposed to be carried out for thirteen municipal waste-toenergy projects of
the Company in 2021 to 2022 and the Company will from time to time hold tenders for the publicity display
design and construction services of its municipal waste-to-energy projects in which Shenzhen CDT shall
participate. As the project service contract is awarded through public tender, the pricing and payment
terms for the project services will be determined based on normal commercial terms through tender and
bid procedures. If Shenzhen CDT successfully wins a tender for the project services, the Company will
further enter into a specific project service contract with Shenzhen CDT according to the contents of the
relevant letter of acceptance to specify fees and payment methods. In 2021 and 2022, the estimated caps
of the day-to-day related party transactions with Shenzhen CDT are RMB29 million and RMB11 million,
respectively.

In 2021, the actual contract amount of contract between the Company and Shenzhen CDT was
RMB130,500.00 which did not exceed the annual cap for the year.

Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (RIIIZK A EFEHEBR A ) is an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of BSAM (a controlling shareholder of the Company) and therefore a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the entering into of the Service Framework Contract constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1 June 2021. The
value and terms of the continuing connected transactions between the Company and Shenzhen CDT in
2021 are in line with the pricing terms disclosed in the announcement and the Guidance Letter 73-14.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions
mentioned above, and confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December

2021:

were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

were conducted on normal commercial terms or better, or if there were insufficient number of
comparable transactions to determine whether or not they can be determined as on normal
commercial terms or better, then as far as the Group is concerned, the conditions of such
transactions were no less favourable than those received from, or offered to, an independent third
party; and

were conducted according to the terms of agreement of the relevant transactions, where the terms
of agreement were fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as
a whole.

The Company’s auditors have confirmed that the respective counterparties to the aforementioned
continuing connected transactions had allowed them sufficient access to their records for the purpose
of reporting on the transactions as set out in this report, and the aforementioned continuing connected
transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December 2021:

1.

had been approved by the Board;
were, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of pricing policies of the Company;
had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

had not exceeded the estimated annual caps.

The abovementioned continuing connected transaction constitutes a continuing connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and meets the relevant requirements.

Matters which have not been published in temporary announcements
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Annual Report 2021
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VIII.

Significant Events (Continued)

() Related party transactions in connection with purchase or sale of assets or equity
interest

1.

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements and without
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements but with
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have not been published in temporary announcements
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Disclose the performance of the results relating to the results agreement
during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not applicable

(M) Significant related party transactions in connection with joint external investment

1.

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements and without
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements but with
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have not been published in temporary announcements
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

(IV) Claims and liabilities between related parties

1.

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements and without
further progress or changes
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which have been published in temporary announcements but with
further progress or changes

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The balance of the financial assistance provided by BSAM to the Company based on benchmark interest
rate for RMB loans was RMB2,588 million as at the end of the Reporting Period.

Fengcheng Company applied for a loan of RMB35 million from the Company, the balance of the
borrowings was RMB10 million as at the end of the Reporting Period.

Matters which have not been published in temporary announcements

[J Applicable v Not applicable

(V) Financial business between the Company and the financial company that is related
to the Company, the financial company controlled by the Company and related
parties

[J Applicable v Not applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

(VI) Others
v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Group entered into the Non-Competition Agreement with BSAM (a connected entity of the Company by
virtue of it being the controlling shareholder of the Company) on 23 December 2013, under which BSAM has
agreed not to and will procure its subsidiaries (other than listed subsidiaries of BSAM) not to compete with us
in our core business and has granted us options for new business opportunities, the call option and preemptive
rights. In addition, if requested by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or other regulatory authorities, BSAM will
use its best endeavors to procure its associated companies and joint ventures (if any) to comply with the Non-
Competition Agreement. According to the Non-Competition Agreement, when the Group decides whether to
exercise the options for acquisition of new business opportunities, subscription right or the pre-emptive rights,
the Group shall comply with related requirements under the Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.
The Company and the independent non-executive Directors have received the statement issued by BSAM
confirming its compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement during the Reporting Period.

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting standards during the year ended 31 December 2021. Save as the non-exempt connected transaction and
continuing connected transaction as set out in the section headed “Connected transactions” on pages 98-99
of this annual report, these related party transactions were not regarded as connected transactions under the
Listing Rules and were fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details are set out in note X.5 to the Financial Statements. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Exchange
Listing Rules.

XIV. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE

() Trusteeship, contracting and leasing matters

1. Trusteeship
[1 Applicable v Not applicable

2. Contracting
[1 Applicable v Not applicable

3. Leasing
[1 Applicable v Not applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

() Guarantees

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: RMB
External guarantees provided by the Company (excluding those for subsidiaries)
Date of
Relationship occurrence
Between the of guarantee Connected
guarantor (signature Date of parties
andthe Guaranteed  Amount of dateof commencement  Expirydateof  Guarantee  Collateral Completed  Overdue Amount guarantee ~ Connected
Guarantor Company party  guarantee  agreement) of guarantee guarantee type (if any) ornot ornot  overdue Antiguarantee  ornot relations
The Company ~ Headofficeof ~ Fengcheng 310,000,000 1July 2019 30 July 2019 29 July 2029 Jointand No No 0 Yes Yes  Joint venture
the Company ~ Company severallbiity
Quarantee
Total quarantees during the Reparting Period (excluding those for subsidiares) 0
Total quarantee balance as at the end of Reporting Period (A) [excluding those for subsidiaries) 296,049,999.97
Guarantees for subsidiaries provided by the Company and its subsidiaries
Total quarantees for subsidiaries during the Reporting Period 2,462,872,119.4
Total quarantee balance for subsidiaries as at the end of Reporting Period (B] 6,984,022,374.16
Total amount of guarantees provided by the Company (including those for subsidiaries)
Total amount of guarantees (A+B) 7,280072,374.13
Total amount of quarantees over the net assets of the Company (%) 111,52
Inclucing:
Amount of guarantees provided to shareholders, beneficial controllrs and their reated partes (C) 0
Amount of debt quarantees directly or indirectly provided for guaranteed parties with the
gearing ratio exceeding 70% D) 1,085,160,160.46
Amount of the total guarantees exceeding 50% of net assets (E) 4,016,027,578.79
Total amount of above three guarantees (C+D+E) 5,101,177,730.25

Explanations on outstanding guarantee which may undertake Joint liabitty for safisfaction
Explanations on quarantees

Guarantee to banks in respect of banking credit facilities granted to certain

subsidiaries

In order to ensure the smooth completion of operating targets of the Company, to support the development
of the subsidiary project companies, and to meet financing needs of the project companies, the Company
sought shareholders’ approval on the provision of guarantee in respect of banking facilities granted to its project
companies at the 2020 annual general meeting. As contained in the relevant circular to shareholders, it is
expected that the amount of guarantee to be provided in respect of new banking facilities granted to the project
companies in 2021 would not exceed RMB5,376.75 million. As at 31 December 2021, guarantee provided
by the Company in respect of new banking facilities granted to its project companies amounted to RMB2,463

million.
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

(Ill) Entrusted others to manage cash assets

1. Entrusted wealth management
(1) Overall entrusted wealth management
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Others
L] Applicable v Not applicable

(2)  Individual entrusted wealth management
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Others
L] Applicable v Not applicable

(3)  Provisions for impairment of entrusted wealth management
L] Applicable v Not applicable

2. Entrusted loans
(1) Overall entrusted loans
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Others
L] Applicable v Not applicable

(2)  Individual entrusted loans
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Others
L] Applicable v Not applicable

(8)  Provisions for Impairment of entrusted loan
L] Applicable v Not applicable
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VIII.  Significant Events (Continued)

T

3. Others
[J Applicable v Not applicable

(IV) Other material contracts

[J Applicable v Not applicable

EXPLANATION ON OTHER MATERIAL MATTERS THAT HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON INVESTORS’ VALUE JUDGMENTS AND
INVESTMENT DECISIONS

[J Applicable v Not applicable
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As approved by the Approval for the Public Issuance of A Share Convertible Corporate Bonds of Dynagreen
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.* (k&8 IRIREERH BR A E])” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2022] No. 132) issued
by the CSRC, the Company issued 23.6 million convertible corporate bonds with a nominal value of RMB100 each,
with an issuance size of RMB2.36 billion on 25 February 2022. As approved by the Self-regulation Decision [2002]
No. 70 of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the convertible corporate bonds in an amount of RMB2.36 billion were listed
for trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 23 March 2022. The abbreviation and code of the bonds issued are
“Dynagreen Convertible Bonds” and “113054”, respectively. The initial conversion price is RMB9.82 per share.
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IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders

. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
() Table of changes in shares

1. Table of changes in shares

Unit: share
Before change Increase or decrease (+-) After change
Shares
Percentage converted Percentage
Number (%)  Newissue Bonusissue ~from reserves Others  Sub-total Number (%)
Il Restricted shares 733429618 5263 640,533,618 640533618 92,896,000 6.67
1. Shares held by the state
2. Shares held by state-owned legal
persons 723,199,439 5190 -630,303439  -630,303439 92,896,000 6.67
3. Shares held by other domestic
nvestors 10230,179 073 10230179 10,230,179 0 0
Including: shares held by domestic
non-state-owned legal persons 10,230,179 0.73 -10230,179  -10230,179 0 0
Shares held by domestic natural persons
4. Shares held by overseas investors
Including: shares held by overseas legal
persons
Shares held by overseas natural persons
Il Non-restricted shares 660,010,382 a3 640,633,618 640,533,618 1,300,544,000 9333
1. RMBordinary shares 255,650,590 183 640,633,618 640,533,618 896,184,208 6431
2. Domestic listed foreign shares
3. Overseas listed foreign shares 404,359,792 2902 404,359,792 202
4, Others
Il Total number of shares 1,393,440,000 100 1,393,440,000 100

2. Explanation of changes in shares
v Applicable [ Not applicable

The 501,189,618 restricted shares before the initial public offering and listing of A shares of the Company
held by BSAM were released on 11 June 2021. The Company completed the non-public offering of A
shares in December 2020. The lock-up period for the shares subscribed by BSAM is 18 months, and the
139,344,000 restricted shares subscribed by other investors were released on 9 June 2021. For details,
please refer to relevant announcements published by the Company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
the designated information disclosure media.
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IX.  Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

3. The effects of changes in shares on the financial indicators such as earnings
per share and net assets per share, in the previous year and the latest period (if

any)
1 Applicable v Not applicable
4. Other information considered necessary by the Company or required by the
securities regulatory authorities to be disclosed
1 Applicable v Not applicable
(I) Changes in restricted shares

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: share
Number of Release of Number of
restricted restricted Increase of restricted
shares at the shares restricted shares at Date of release
beginning during shares during the end of Reason for of the restricted
Name of shareholder of the year the year the year the year restriction shares
Beijing State-owned Assets 594,085,618 501,189,618 0 92,896,000 Undertaking in 2021-06-11
Management Co., Ltd. relation to restriction
on selling of shares
and undertaking
of nonpublic
issuance
Three Gorges Capital Holdings 76,726,342 76,726,342 0 0 Undertaking of 2021-06-09
Co., Ltd. non-public issuance
Znhuhai Fuheng Investment 38,361,892 38,361,892 0 0 Undertaking of 2021-06-09
Partnership (Limited Partnership) non-public issuance
Guangdong Henghang Industrial 12,787,723 12,787,723 0 0 Undertaking of 2021-06-09
Investment Fund Partnership non-public issuance
(Limited Partnership)
First Capital Securities Co., Ltd. 10,230,179 10,230,179 0 0 Undertaking of 2021-06-09
non-public issuance
China International Capital 1,237,864 1,237,864 0 0 Undertaking of 2021-06-09
Corporation Limited non-public issuance
Total 733429618 640,533,618 0 92,896,000 / /

The 92,896,000 restricted shares offered in a non-public way by the Company as subscribed by Beijing State-
owned Assets Management Co., Ltd. will be released on 9 June 2022.
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IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

Il. SHARE ISSUE AND LISTINGS

0

(

()

Issuance of securities during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Issuance of securities during the Reporting Period (bonds with different interest rates within the effective period
shall be separately specified):

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Changes in total shares and share structure and changes in the structure of assets
and liabilities

[J Applicable v Not applicable
Shares held by employees

[J Applicable v Not applicable

lll. SHAREHOLDERS AND DE FACTO CONTROLLER

0

Total number of shareholders:

Number of holders of the ordinary shares as of the end of the Reporting Period 57,563
Number of holders of the ordinary shares as of the end of the month preceding the 69,775
disclosure of the annual report

As of the Latest Practicable Date prior to the publication of this annual report, based on the publicly available
information and as far as the Directors are aware, the Company has a total public float of 761,183,512 shares,
representing 54.63% of the issued share capital of the Company. Among them, public float of H shares is
379,500,000 shares, accounting for 27.23% of the issued share capital of the Company; public float of A shares is
381,688,512 shares, accounting for 27.39% the issued share capital of the Company. Based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, from the date on which the
Company became listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and up to the Latest Practicable Date prior to the
publication of this annual report, the Company had maintained a public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IX.  Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

() Table of shareholdings of the top ten shareholders and the top ten holders of

tradable shares (or shareholders not subject to selling restrictions) as at the end of

the Reporting Period

Shareholding of the top ten shareholders

Unit: share

Number of
Change Number of shares held
duringthe  shares held subject to
Reporting  asattheend  Percentage selling Pledged, marked or frozen - yat e of
Name of shareholder (full name) Period  of the Period (%) restrictions  Status Number  shareholder
Beijng State-owned Assets 0 594,085,618 42,63 92,896,000 N State-owned legal
Management Co., Ltd. person
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 3000 379,480,000 2123 0 Unknown Overseas legal
person
Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. 7,539,554 84,265,896 6.05 0 Ni State-owned legal
person
Beijing State-Owned Assets Management 0 24,859,792 1.78 0 N Overseas legal
(Hong Kong) Company Limited person
Beijing Huitai Hengrui Investment Co., Ltd. 0 18,000,707 1.29 0 Ni Domestic non-
state-owned legal
person
National Social Security Fund Portfolio 110 10,814,953 10,814,953 0.78 0 Ni Other
(GEIRES —FHR)
Gongaingcheng Jingxiu Investment 6,180,700 7,130,378 0.51 0 Ni Domestic non-
Partnership (Limited Partnership) state-owned legal
person
Hong Kong Securities Clearing 3,021,218 4,437,540 0.3 0 Ni Overseas legal
Company Ltd. person
Zhang Dan 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.14 0 Ni Domestic natural
person
Huatai Securtties Co., Ltd. 1,539,685 1,630,559 0.12 0 Ni State-owned legal

person
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IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

Top ten holders of shares not subject to selling restrictions

Number of tradable
shares not subject
to selling restrictions

Class and number of shares

Name of shareholder held Type Number
Beijing State-owned Assets 501,189,618 RMB ordinary shares 501,189,618
Management Co., Ltd.
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 379,480,000 Overseas listed foreign shares 379,480,000
Three Gorges Capital Holdings 84,265,896 RMB ordinary shares 84,265,896
Co., Ltd.
Beijing State-Owned Assets 24,859,792 QOverseas listed foreign shares 24,859,792
Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
Beijing Huitai Hengrui Investment 18,000,707 RMB ordinary shares 18,000,707
Co., Ltd.
National Social Security Fund 10,814,953 RMB ordinary shares 10,814,953
Portfolio 110 (2 BIHIRE S ——
ZHE)
Gonggingcheng Jingxiu Investment 7,130,378 RMB ordinary shares 7,130,378
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
Hong Kong Securities Clearing 4,437,540 RMB ordinary shares 4,437,540
Company Ltd.
Zhang Dan 2,000,000 RMB ordinary shares 2,000,000
Huatai Securities Co., Ltd. 1,630,559 RMB ordinary shares 1,630,559
Description of the special account  Nil
for repurchase of the top ten
shareholders
Description of the abovementioned Nil
shareholders’ entrusting of voting
rights, entrusted voting rights,
and waiver of voting rights
Particulars of related-party Beijing State-Owned Assets Management (Hong Kong) Company Limited is
relationship or concert party a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Stateowned Assets Management Co.,

arrangement among the Ltd.

Shareholders above

Explanation on shareholders of N/A

preference shares with restored
voting rights and the number of
shares held by them

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IX.  Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

Number of shares held by the top ten shareholders subject to selling restrictions and conditions of such selling

restrictions
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: share
Listing and trading of
restricted shares
Number of
Number of shares
shares held Time permitted permitted
subject to to be listed to be listed Conditions
Name of shareholders selling and traded and traded of selling
No. subject to selling restrictions restrictions in the market  in the market restrictions
1 Beijing State-owned Assets 92,896,000 2022-6-9 Undertaking of
Management Co., Ltd. non-public
issuance

Particulars of related-party relationship ~ N/A
or concert party arrangement among
the Shareholders above

Note: The 92,896,000 shares held by BSAM subject to selling restrictions will be released on 9 June 2022.

(Ill) Strategic investors or general legal persons becoming the top 10 shareholders by

placing of new shares

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

(IV) Particulars of shareholding of substantial shareholders disclosed pursuant to the
SFO

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests in securities held by Directors, Supervisors and senior
management”, as at 31 December 2021, according to the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO, the
following shareholders who had 5% or more interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

XV of the SFO:
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of share holding
share holding in the total
Number of in the relevant share capital of
Shareholder shares held Capacity class of shares!" the Company®
Beijing State-owned 594,085,618 Beneficial owner 60.06 42.63
Assets Management A shares
Co., Ltd. (‘BSAM”) (Long position)
Beijing State-Owned 24,859,792  Beneficial owner 6.15 1.78
Assets Management H shares
(Hong Kong) Company (Long position)
Limited (“‘BSAM (HK)")®
BSAM® 24,859,792 Interest in controlled 6.15 1.78
H shares corporation
(Long position)
Three Gorges Capital 84,265,896 Beneficial owner 8.52 6.05
Holdings Co., Ltd. A shares
(Long position)
Tenbagger Capital 36,230,000 Investment manager 8.96 2.60
Management CO., LTD H shares
(Long position)
Notes:
(1) The calculation is based on the number of Shares in the relevant class of shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.
) The calculation is based on the total number of 1,393,440,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Q) BSAM (HK) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BSAM. Pursuant to the SFO, BSAM is deemed to be interested in the H Shares held by
BSAM (HK), holding 24,859,792 H Shares, representing approximately 6.15% of the total H Shares of the Company and approximately
1.78% of the total share capital of the Company.

Apart from the above, as at 31 December 2021, no other interests required to be recorded in the register kept
under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Mr. Cheng Suning, a non-executive director of the Company, is an employee of an entity under BSAM.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IX.  Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

IV. INFORMATION ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND DE FACTO

CONTROLLER

() Information on controlling shareholder

1 Legal Representative
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Name

Authorised Representative or
Legal Representative

Date of establishment

Main business

Control and shareholdings in
other domestic or overseas
listed companies during the
Reporting Period

Other explanations

2 Natural person
L1 Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing State-owned Assets Management Co., Ltd.

YUE Peng

4 September 1992
Assets management; project investment; investment management.

Holding 63.30% of the shares of CAPINFO COMPANY LIMITED (&
iz BEEMRM AR AR (1075.HK); directly and indirectly holding
52.48% of the shares of Beijing Certificate Authority Co., Ltd. (b &
FRFMRDAPRAF) (300579).

Nil

3 Special explanation on the Company not having controlling shareholders

L1 Applicable v Not applicable

4 Changes in controlling shareholders during the Reporting Period

L1 Applicable v Not applicable

Annual Report 2021

113



114

IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

5 Diagram of the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company
and its beneficial controller

v Applicable [ Not applicable

BSAM

A 4

100%

Beijing State-owned Assets Management
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

42.6345%

A 4 A 4

1.7841%

Dynagreen Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd.

() De Facto Controller

1 Legal Representative
v Applicable [J Not applicable

Name

Authorised Representative or
Legal Representative

Date of establishment

Main business

Control and shareholdings in
other domestic or overseas
listed companies during the

Reporting Period

Other explanations

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Beijing State-owned Assets Management Co., Ltd.

YUE Peng

4 September 1992
Assets management; project investment; investment management.
Holding 63.30% of the shares of CAPINFO COMPANY LIMITED (1075.

HK); directly and indirectly holding 52.48% of the shares of Beijing
Certificate Authority Co., Ltd. (300579).

Nil
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IX.  Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

2 Natural person
[J Applicable v Not applicable

3 Special explanation on the Company not having controlling shareholders
[J Applicable v Not applicable

4  Changes in controlling shareholders during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not applicable

5 Diagram of the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company
and its beneficial controller
v Applicable [ Not applicable

BSAM

100%

v
Beijing State-owned Assets Management
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

42.6345%
1.7841%

v v
Dynagreen Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd.

6 Control of the Company by de facto controllers by way of trust or other means
of asset management
[ Applicable v Not applicable
(Ill) Other explanation regarding the controlling shareholder and the de facto controller

[J Applicable v Not applicable
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IX. Changes in Shares and Particulars of Shareholders (Continued)

V. THE ACCUMULATIVE PLEDGED SHARES OF THE COMPANY’S
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR LARGEST SHAREHOLDER AND ITS
PERSONS ACTING IN CONCERT ACCOUNT FOR MORE THAN 80% OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES HELD BY THEM

[ Applicable v Not applicable

VI. OTHER LEGAL PERSON SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING OVER 10% OF THE
TOTAL SHARES OF THE COMPANY

[J Applicable v Not applicable
Vil. EXPLANATION ON REDUCED SHAREHOLDING

[J Applicable v Not applicable

VIIl. Specific implementation of share repurchase during the Reporting Period

[ Applicable v Not applicable

116 Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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X. Preference Shares

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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Xl

Bonds

ENTERPRISE BONDS, (FZORPORATE BONDS AND DEBT FINANCING

INSTRUMENTS OF NO

OA

INANCIAL ENTERPRISES

pplicable v Not applicable

CONVERTIBLE CORPORATE BONDS

v Applicable [J Not applicable

0

(i

()

(Iv)

(V)

Issuance of convertible bonds
v Applicable [ Not applicable

As approved by the Approval for the Public Issuance of A Share Convertible Corporate Bonds of Dynagreen
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.* ((%&8) HIRREBRMD AR A F])” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2022] No.
132) issued by the CSRC, the Company issued 23.6 million convertible corporate bonds with a nominal value
of RMB100 each, with an issuance size of RMB2.36 billion on 25 February 2022. As approved by the Self-
regulation Decision [2022] No. 70 of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the convertible corporate bonds in an
amount of RMB2.36 billion were listed for trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 23 March 2022. The
abbreviation and code of the bonds issued are “Dynagreen Convertible Bonds” and “113054”, respectively.
The initial conversion price is RMB9.82 per share. For details, please refer to the announcement on “Proposed
Issuance of A Share Convertible Corporate Bonds” dated 23 July 2021, the “Announcement Poll Results of the
Extraordinary General Meeting, A Shares Class Meeting and H Shares Class Meeting Held on 24 August 2021”
dated 24 August 2021 and the circular on “Proposed Issuance of A Share Convertible Corporate Bonds” dated 6
August 2021.

Holders and guarantors of convertible bonds during the Reporting Period
L] Applicable v Not applicable
Changes in convertible bonds during the Reporting Period

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Accumulated conversion of convertible bonds during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Previous adjustments to conversion price
[J Applicable v Not applicable

The Company’s liabilities, creditworthiness and availability of cash for repayment
of debts in future years

v Applicable [J Not applicable

As of 31 December 2021, the Company’s total assets amounted to RMB20.214 billion and its gearing ratio was
65.78%. China Chengxin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd. conducted a credit rating on the convertible bonds
issued by the Company and issued the Credit Rating Report on the Convertible Corporate Bonds Issued Publicly
by Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (CCXl —20212332D-01) on 18 August 2021, pursuant
to which the credit rating of the convertible bonds issued by the Company was AA+. In the past three years, the
Company’s interest coverage ratio was relatively high and the Company’s loan repayment was good, without
overdue repayment of bank loans.

Other description of convertible bonds

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



Xll.  Financial Report

AUDITOR’S REPORT
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

All Shareholders of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.:
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (“the
Company”), which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
and company income statements, the consolidated and company cash flow statements, the consolidated and company
statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated and company financial performance and
cash flows of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants (“CSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for
Certified Public Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of construction revenue

KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

Refer to Note 11120 of Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates and Note V.36 of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Key Audit Matter

The Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) has
entered into service concession arrangements with different
local governments in China (“grantor”) in respect of its
waste-to-energy (“WTE”) projects on a Build-Operate-
Transfer (“BOT”) basis. Under the service concession
arrangements, the Group builds WTE plants (construction)
and operates these WTE plants (operation) for a concession
period ranging from 23 to 30 years. Upon the expiry of the
concession period, the Group would transfer these WTE
plants to respective grantor without consideration.

The Group executed the accounting for private capital’s

contract for public-private partnership projects under

the Interpretation No. 14 of Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises (the “Interpretation No. 14”)
in 2021. The Group has recognized the construction
revenue at the commencement of project construction
as well as contract assets since 2021. In 2021, the
contraction revenue recognized by the Group amounted

to RMB2,427,432,006.22, accounting for 48.00% of

operating income.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Our audit procedures to assess recognition of construction
revenue included the following:

° understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
key internal controls over recognition of construction
revenue;

° understanding the Group’s process for applying the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards
and inspecting the associated contracts for projects
which commenced construction in the current year
to assess whether these fell within the scope of
private capital’s contract business for public-private
partnership projects under Interpretation No. 14;

° assessing the impact of any changes to the terms of
arrangements entered into in previous years which
could affect the accounting for BOT projects in the
current year;

° Selecting projects and engaging our internal valuation
specialists to evaluate whether the assumption
of gross profit margin of project construction
services adopted by the management in estimating
construction service income is reasonable by
comparing it with the relevant market information on
gross profit margin of project construction services;
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

jl/

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Recognition of construction revenue (Continued)

Refer to Note 11120 of Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates and Note V.36 of Notes to the consolidated
financial statements. (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The construction services of the Group meet the conditions
for recognition of revenue within a certain period of time.
The investment method is used to determine the progress
of the contract performance according to the proportion
of the accumulated actual cost to the estimated total
construction cost. The estimated total construction cost
is mainly estimated based on the purchase price of raw
materials and equipment and other related costs.

In view of the importance of construction revenue to the
consolidated financial statements, and that the estimation
of the gross profit margin of construction services for each
project and the estimated total construction cost involves
significant management judgments and estimates and
may be affected by management bias, we recognize the
recognition of construction revenue as a key audit matter.

conducting site visits to significant construction
projects and discussing with project managers
and site personnel to understand the construction
progress of BOT projects;

inspecting the progress of incomplete projects based
on the progress reports for BOT projects under
construction which were prepared by management,
and certified by independent supervising engineers
if applicable, and comparing, on a sample basis, the
actual costs incurred to date with relevant underlying
documents, including suppliers’ contracts, payment
records and supervision reports, to assess whether
the recorded contract progress was consistent with
the terms of the contracts, the payments made to
date and the surveyors’ reports;

comparing the total budgeted costs for BOT
projects under construction in the current year with
prior years’ projects with similar waste treatment
capacities and assessing whether or not there was
an indication of management bias in the preparation
of total budgeted costs by comparing the budgeted
costs with the costs included in major suppliers’
contracts signed for these BOT projects.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Assessing potential impairment of intangible assets relating to service concession
arrangements

Refer to Note Ill.15 of Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates and Note V.16 of Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Intangible assets mainly represent waste-to-energy
operating rights where the Group has the right to charge
local government authorities for treating waste, which
is supplied by the local government authorities, and to
convert the waste to energy using the Group’s waste
toenergy infrastructure upon fulfiiment of its obligations as
stipulated in the service concession arrangements.

There is a risk that the value of certain waste-to-energy
operating rights may not be recoverable in full through
the future cash flows to be generated from the specific
waste-to-energy operations. Therefore, at the end of each
reporting period:

o for those waste-to-energy projects which have not
yet commenced operations, management assesses

the recoverable amount of each operating right; and

° the recoverable amount of each operating right when
an indicator of impairment has been identified.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of intangible assets relating to service concession
arrangements included the following:

° understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
key internal control, over impairment of intangible
assets relating to service concession arrangements;

° inquiring the management of the criteria adopted
for identifying indicators of impairment for wasteto-
energy operating projects so as to assess if all BOT
projects with indicators of impairment are identified
by management;

° evaluating management’s discounted cash flow
forecasts for each waste-to-energy operating
rights by comparing the key assumptions adopted
by management with the budgets approved by
management and the external data, in particular, for
the assumptions relating to the revenue growth rate
over the concession period and the amount of future
operating costs;

° comparing the key assumptions and estimates
included in the discounted cash flow forecasts for
each operating right as projected by management
in previous year with the 2021 actual results and
inquiring management of the reasons for any
significant differences between the forecast and
actual figures to assess whether there were any
indicators of management bias;
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

1

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Assessing potential impairment of intangible assets relating to service concession
arrangements (Continued)

Refer to Note .15 of Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates and Note V.16 of Notes to the consolidated
financial statements. (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The recoverable amount of each operating right
is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
Management assessed value-in-use of each operating right
using discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial
budgets covering each specific operating period. The
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves the
exercise of significant management judgement, in particular
in assessing revenue growth rates over the concession
period, future operating costs and the discount rates
applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of intangible
assets relating to service concession arrangements
as a key audit matter because determining the level of
impairment involves a significant degree of management
judgement, in particular in estimating the present value of
future cash flows forecasts, which is inherently uncertain
and could be subject to management bias.

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the discount rates adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
by comparison with available financial information
of other companies in the relevant industry on a
sampling basis and considering any country and
company specific risk premiums; and assessing
whether the discount rates applied were within the
range adopted by other companies in the same
industry;

assessing the sensitivity of key assumptions in
management’s discounted cash flow forecasts to
changes and considering whether there were any
evidence of potential management bias;

considering the disclosures in the financial statements
in respect of the impairment of intangible assets
relating to service concession arrangements, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in 2021 annual report of the Company, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of such internal control
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+&0

&
“‘ .,‘f —
O

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2203362

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commmunicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Huazhen LLP Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Wu Huihuang(Engagement Partner)

Huang Qiumei

Beijing, China
29 March 2022

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

31 December 1 January 31 December
Note 2021 2021 2020
Restated

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand VA 966,741,308.85 1,608,061,795.80 1,608,061,795.80
Bills receivable V.2 8,816,400.00 27,687,500.00 27,687,500.00
Accounts receivable V.3 1,530,086,535.20 785,699,955.92 785,699,955.92
Receivables under financing V.4 500,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Prepayments V.5 26,417,264.13 15,139,014.07 15,139,014.07
Other receivables V.6 43,457,908.02 42,029,816.24 42,029,816.24
Inventories V.7 43,491,074.67 37,184,080.74 37,184,080.74
Contract assets V.8 227,632,588.36 566,662,217.31 467,951,853.72
Held-for-sale assets V.9 108,489,032.00 - -
Long-term receivables due within one year V.10 41,347,119.04 36,483,249.32 135,193,612.91
Other current assets V.11 227,450,849.72 208,380,072.22 208,380,072.22
Total current assets 3,224,430,049.99  3,329,327,701.62  3,329,327,701.62
Non-current assets:
Long-term receivables V.12 49,619,090.97 79,576,161.81 5,239,640,603.64
Long-term equity investments V.13 89,838,632.91 80,348,703.59 66,190,681.00
Fixed assets V.14 332,942,513.29 53,174,313.11 53,174,313.11
Construction in progress V.15 - 184,879,239.06 184,879,239.06
Right-of-use assets V.55 7,185,985.49 781,466.98 781,466.98
Intangible assets V.16 9,546,803,985.25  8,204,023,206.95  7,366,230,070.06
Goodwiill VA7 43,910,821.67 43,910,821.67 43,910,821.67
Long-term deferred expenses V.18 76,373.47 402,028.28 402,028.28
Deferred tax assets V.19 206,779,956.25 207,536,077.65 207,536,077.65
Other non-current assets V.20 6,712,878,609.68 6,116,595,383.70 953,998,419.31
Total non-current assets 16,990,035,968.98 14,971,227,402.80 14,116,743,720.76
Total assets 20,214,466,018.97 18,300,555,104.42 17,446,071,422.38
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans V.21 1,248,797,640.41 2,495,169,633.87  2,495,169,633.87
Bills payable 19,467,708.34 - -
Accounts payable V.22 1,411,772,142.99  1,291,193,658.66  1,291,193,658.66
Contract liabilities V.23 11,750,162.24 26,043,106.14 26,043,106.14
Employee benefits payable V.24 104,938,148.73 95,551,982.29 95,551,982.29
Taxes payable V.25 46,140,255.29 47,874,599.04 47,874,599.04
Other payables V.26 132,552,974.49 101,598,868.06 101,598,868.06
Non-current liabilities due within one year V.27 790,591,361.79 674,419,529.18 674,419,529.18

Total current liabilities

3,766,010,394.28

4,731,851,377.24

4,731,851,377.24

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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31 December 1 January 31 December
Note 2021 2021 2020
Restated
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans V.28 8,709,002,229.47 6,414,689,592.99  6,414,689,592.99
Lease liabilities V.55 3,569,175.43 515,729.38 515,729.38
Long-term payables V.29 264,706,626.08 289,389,673.47 289,389,673.47
Deferred income V.30 132,032,044.50 78,431,192.88 78,431,192.88
Deferred tax liabilities V.19 421,564,037.89 364,631,689.96 150,915,654.85
Total non-current liabilites =~~~ =~~~ ! 9,530,874,113.37  7,147,667,878.68 = 6,933,941,843.57
Total liabilities 13,296,884,507.65 11,879,509,255.92 11,665,793,220.81
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital V.31 1,393,440,000.00  1,393,440,000.00  1,393,440,000.00
Capital reserve V.32 2,412,410,905.73  2,412,410,905.73  2,412,410,905.73
Other comprehensive income V.33 24,553,948.30 10,473,349.95 10,473,349.95
Surplus reserve V.34 103,278,199.37 103,278,199.37 101,862,397.11
Retained earnings V.35 2,594,406,537.26  2,175,308,660.47 1,669,479,247.47
Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 6,528,089,590.66 6,094,911,115.52  5,487,665,900.26

Non-controlling interests

389,491,920.66

326,134,732.98

292,612,301.31

Total shareholders’ equity

6,917,581,511.32

6,421,045,848.50

5,780,278,201.57

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

20,214,266,018.97

18,300,555,104.42

17,446,071,422.38

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

Zhao Linbin

Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

(Company stamp)
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Financial Report (Continued)

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
31 December 1 January 31 December
Note 2021 2021 2020
Restated

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand 213,422,050.77 439,958,075.95 439,958,075.95
Accounts receivable XV.1 144,776,114.44 107,336,363.20 107,336,363.20
Prepayments 124,966.50 833,325.22 833,325.22
Other receivables XV.2 1,014,415,904.70  1,189,714,812.51 1,189,714,812.51
Long-term receivables due within one year 74,713,094.44 196,727,227.49 196,727,227.49
Other current assets 2,401,777.37 1,267,822.89 1,267,822.89
Total current assets 1,449,853,908.22  1,935,837,627.26 1,935,837,627.26
Non-current assets:
Long-term receivables XV.3 304,558,272.96 261,664,200.00 261,664,200.00
Long-term equity investments XV.4 5,886,799,500.12  5,523,209,570.80  5,509,051,548.21
Fixed assets 2,055,418.35 2,360,453.27 2,360,453.27
Right-of-use assets 5,252,917.32 - -
Intangible assets 1,509,930.00 1,356,377.85 1,356,377.85
Long-term deferred expenses 76,373.47 - -
Deferred tax assets 1,218,276.57 1,925,917.36 1,925,917.36
Other non-current assets 2,562,029.73 9,860,000.00 9,860,000.00
Total non-currentassets 6,204032,718.52 5800376,619.28  5,786,218,496.69
Total assets 7,653,886,626.74  7,736,214,146.54  7,722,056,123.95

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans

Bills payable

Accounts payable

Contract liabilities

Employee benefits payable

Taxes payable

Other payables

Non-current liabilities due within one year

1,424,732,972.91
20,000,000.00
214,899.14
32,144,067.78
21,080,140.97
1,923,205.56
195,473,070.46
115,774,009.89

2,484,118,926.91
172,721.24
25,864,406.74
20,060,092.10
243,209.46
242,880,113.84
108,475,385.22

2,484,118,926.91
172,721.24
25,864,406.74
20,060,092.10
243,209.46
242,880,113.84
108,475,385.22

Total current liabilities

1,811,342,366.71

2,881,814,855.51

2,881,814,855.51

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term loans
Lease liabilities

31 December
2021

1,690,869,071.73
1,798,167.20

1 January
2021
Restated

31 December
2020

388,354,927.77

388,354,927.77

Total non-current liabilities

1,692,667,238.93

388,354,927.77

388,354,927.77

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital
Capital reserve
Surplus reserve
Retained earnings

V.31
XV.5
V.34
XV.6

1,393,440,000.00
2,459,501,733.70
103,278,199.37
193,657,088.03

1,393,440,000.00
2,459,601,733.70
103,278,199.37
509,824,430.19

1,393,440,000.00
2,459,601,733.70
101,862,397.11
497,082,209.86

Total shareholders’ equity

4,149,877,021.10

4,466,044,363.26

4,451,886,340.67

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

7,653,886,626.74

7,736,214,146.54

7,722,056,123.95

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

Zhao Linbin

(Company stamp)

Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

l. Operating income V.36 5,056,889,425.65 2,277,618,815.00
Less: Operating costs V.36 3,325,173,180.51 967,675,984.97
Taxes and surcharges V.37 52,303,160.13 46,567,497.50

General and administrative expenses V.38 181,440,756.77 161,321,513.88

Research and development expenses V.39 7,085,349.05 7,603,578.05

Financial expenses V.40 447,634,138.22 446,176,244.89

Including: Interest expenses 438,381,349.64 429,221,807.42

Interest income 7,304,706.94 6,528,405.47

Add: Other income V.41 65,427,688.62 82,424,498.85
Investment income V.42 9,993,325.55 3,286,528.36

Including: Income from investment in joint ventures 9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
Impairment loss of credit V.43 (60,915,347.61) (80,451,159.44)
Impairment loss of assets V.44 (170,904,121.82) (76,628,379.14)
(Loss)/gains on disposal of assets V.45 (1,989,012.69) 57,092.39

Il. Operating profit 884,865,373.02 626,962,576.73
Add: Non-operating income V.46 5,461,418.24 2,455,092.02
Less: Non-operating expenses V.46 199,731.94 1,5629,078.65

Illl. Total profit 890,127,059.32 627,888,590.10
Less: Income tax expenses V.47 148,283,994.85 99,453,958.03

Net profit

741,843,064.47

528,434,632.07

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

697,785,876.79
44,057,187.68

503,385,543.61
25,049,088.46

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

Note

V.  Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Other comprehensive income attributable to shareholders
of the Company, net of tax
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified into
profit or loss in the future
Translation differences arising from translation of

2020

foreign currency financial statements V.33 14,080,598.35 18,595,141.10

Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests, net of tax - -
VI. Total comprehensive income 755,923,662.82 547,029,773.17

Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests

VIl. Earnings per share
() Basic earnings per share V.48

711,866,475.14

44,057,187.68

0.50

521,980,684.71

25,049,088.46

0.43

(I Diluted earnings per share V.48

0.50

0.43

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Zhao Linbin
Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp)

(Company stamp)
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

l. Operating income XV.7 114,764,616.88 69,352,381.54
Less: Operating costs XV.7 11,380,976.87 9,005,561.30
Taxes and surcharges 500,358.35 692,849.38

General and administrative expenses 48,508,917.13 44 138,416.55

Research and development expenses 7,085,349.05 7,603,578.05

Financial expenses 129,190,689.74 160,865,895.79

Including: Interest expenses 132,140,473.87 161,628,711.94

Interest income 4,088,193.39 4,127,837.18

Add: Other income 559,282.23 1,268,318.40
Investment income XV.8 41,742,392.89 297,530,515.88

Including: Income from investment in

joint ventures 9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
Impairment gains/(loss) of credit 2,832,563.16 (1,449,921.25)
(Loss)/gains on disposal of assets (4,265.39) 49,073.38

Il. Operating (loss)/profit (36,771,701.37) 144,444,066.88
Add: Non-operating income - -
Less: Non-operating expenses - 4.01

lll. Total (loss)/profit (36,771,701.37) 144,444,062.87
Less: Income tax expenses 707,640.79 (987,855.13)

IV. Net (loss)/profit (37,479,342.16) 145,431,918.00

V. Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -

VI. Total comprehensive income (37,479,342.16) 145,431,918.00

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei Yi Zhiyong Zhao Linbin (Company stamp)
Authorised Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
l. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods, rendering of services and
the Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) projects and the
Build-Transfer (“BT”) projects V.50 (7) 2,611,030,834.05 2,175,616,049.41
Refund of taxes 61,294,108.54 59,441,547.76
Cash received from other operating activities V.50 (1) 104,423,148.62 146,749,926.15
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 2,776,748,091.21 2,381,807,523.32
Cash paid for goods and services 621,894,623.57 659,630,599.25
Increase of BOT projects in principal V.50 (7) 941,107,777.81 868,984,007.15
Cash paid to and for employees 400,497,529.52 325,538,692.22
Payments of various taxes 223,907,129.70 203,260,415.84
Cash paid for other operating activities V.50 (2) 74,423,291.77 94,358,734.31
Sub-total of cash outflows for operating activities 2,261,830,352.37  2,151,772,448.77
Net cash generated from operating activities V.51 (1)(a) 514,917,738.84 230,035,074.55
Il. Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets 318,984.77 420,674.80
Cash received from other investing activities V.50 (3) 27,747,355.94 2,003,830.20
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 28,066,340.71 2,424,505.00
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,590,728,331.61 1,599,009,706.95
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries V.51 (2) 41,296,340.60 19,332,500.00
Cash paid for other investing activities V.50 (4) 15,433,833.50 27,860,000.00
Sub-total of cash outflows for investing activities 1,647,458,505.71 1,646,202,206.95
Net cash used in investing activities (1,619,392,165.00) (1,643,777,701.95)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from investments 19,300,000.00 67,400,000.00
Including: Cash received from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 19,300,000.00 67,400,000.00
Cash received from non-public issuance of shares - 1,816,116,800.00
Cash received from loans 5,743,183,587.60  3,958,912,274.30
Cash received from other financing activities V.50 (5) 2,732,141.89 -
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 5,765,215,729.49  5,842,429,074.30
Cash paid for repayment of loans 4,563,722,757.32  2,590,329,167.68
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or payment of interests 729,655,125.50 556,650,057.28
Cash paid for other financing activities V.50 (6) 5,263,581.09 42,607,949.27
,,,,,, Sub-total of cash outflows for financing activites = 5298,641,463.91 3,189,587,174.23
Net cash generated from financing activities 466,574,265.58  2,652,841,900.07
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changesoncash =~~~ =~ =~~~ = 277,923.93) 1,885,348.64
V. Net (decrease)/increase in cash V.51 (1)(b) (638,178,084.51) 1,240,984,621.31
Add: Balance of cash at the beginning of the year 1,592,968,039.86 351,983,418.55
VI. Balance of cash at the end of the year V.51 (3) 954,789,955.35 1,5692,968,039.86

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

Zhao Linbin
Chief Accountant

(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

(Company stamp)
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

l. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from rendering of services 87,192,146.13 55,870,473.34
Cash received from other operating activities 33,697,321.56 52,376,107.12
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 120,889,467.69 108,246,580.46
Cash paid for goods 2,002,535.67 4,025,535.70
Cash paid to and for employees 49,021,957.73 44,048,207.62
Payments of various taxes 1,774,532.88 1,700,184.53
Cash paid for other operating activities 57,981,779.84 89,185,824.58
Sub-total of cash outflows for operating activities 110,780,806.12 138,959,752.43
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  XV.9 (1)(a) 10,108,661.57 (80,718,171.97)

Il. Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash received from investment income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash received from other investing activities

35,000,000.00

8,288.50
851,121,721.53

215,200,000.00

102,495.88
1,171,239,206.53

Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities

886,130,010.03

1,386,541,702.41

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

2,568,591.80

1,298,641.29

Cash paid for investments 354,100,000.00 622,457,500.00
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries 41,296,340.60 48,995,272.50
Cash paid for other investing activities 556,818,103.46 1,239,694,100.00
Sub-total of cash outflows for investing activities 954,783,035.86 1,912,445,513.79
Net cash used in investing activities (68,653,025.83) (625,9083,811.38)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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lll. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from loans 3,737,239,072.96  1,260,000,000.00
Cash received from non-public issuance of shares - 1,816,116,800.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 3,737,239,072.96  3,076,116,800.00
Cash paid for repayment of loans 3,490,305,661.34 1,810,568,407.39
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or payment of interests 411,205,860.48 283,072,650.52
Cash paid for other financing activities 4,841,437.95 30,094,754.47
,,,,,, Sub-total of cash outflows for financing activites = 3,906,352,959.77  2,123,735,812.38
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (169,113,886.81) 952,380,987.62
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changesoncash =~~~ =~~~ =~ = @37,77411) 19,693.57
V. Net (decrease)/increase in cash XV.9 (1)(b) (227,896,025.18) 395,783,597.84
Add: Balance of cash at the beginning of the year 430,958,075.95 35,174,478.11
VI. Balance of cash at the end of the year XV.9 (2) 203,062,050.77 430,958,075.95

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

Zhao Linbin
Chief Accountant

(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

(Company stamp)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

Other Total

Share Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus Retained Non-controlling  shareholders’

Note capital reserve income reserve earmnings Sub-total interests equity

At 1 January 2021 (before restatement) 1,303,440,000.00 241241090573  10,473,349.95  101,862,397.11 1,569,479,247.47 5487,665900.26  292,612,301.31 5,780,278,201.57
Effect of changes in accounting

policies 1. 32 - - - 141580226  605829,413.00  607,245215.26  33,522,431.67  640,767,646.93

At 1 January 2021 (restated) 1,303,440,000.00 241241090573  10,473,349.95  103,278,199.37 2,175,308,660.47 6,004911,11552  326,134,732.98 6,421,045,848.50

Changes for the year

() Total comprehensive

income - - 14,080,598.35 - 697,785876.79  711,866,475,14  44,057,187.68  755923,662.82

(I)  Capital contrioution and
reduction from shareholders
1. Ordinary shares
contributed by
shareholders - - - - - - 19,300,000.00  19,300,000.00
() Profit distrioution
1. Appropriation for
surplus reserve V.33 - - - - - - - -
2. Distrioutions to
shareholders V.34 - - -

(278,688,000.00)  (278,688,000.00) (278,688,000.00)

At 31 December 2021 1,393,440,000.00 241241090673  24,553,048.30  103,278,199.37 2,504,406,537.26 6,528,089,590.66 ~ 389,491,920.66 6,917,581,511.32

At 1 January 2020 1,161,20000000 85907460768 (8,121,791.15) 8731920531 1,196,756,895.60 3296,228917.35  200,286,772.32  3,496,515,689.67

Changes for the year
() Total comprehensive
income - - 1859514110
() Capital contribution from
shareholders
1. Ordinary shares
contributed by
shareholders 232,240,000.00  1,553,336,298.20 - - 1,785,57629820  67,400,000.00 1,852,976,298.20
2. Others - - - - - - (123,559.47) (123,559.47)
(Il Profit distrioution
1. Appropriation for
surplus reserve V.33 - - - 1454319180  (14543191.80) - - -
2. Distributions to
shareholders V.34 - - - - (116,120,000.00)  (116,120,000.00)

503,385,543 61  521,980,684.71  25,049,088.46  547,029,773.17

(116,120,000.00)

At 31 December 2020 1,393,440,00000 2412,410906.73 1047334095 10186230711 1569,479247.47  5,487,665,90026 ~ 292,612,301.31  5,780,278,201.57

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei Yi Zhiyong Zhao Linbin (Company stamp)
Authorised Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note Share capital Capital reserve  Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total
At 1 January 2021 (before restatement) 1,393,440,000.00  2,459,501,733.70 101,862,397.11 497,082,209.86  4,451,886,340.67
Effect of changes in accounting policies IIl. 32 - - 1,415,802.26 12,742,220.33 14,158,022.59
At 1 January 2021 (restated) 1,393,440,000.00  2,459,501,733.70 103,278,199.37 509,824,430.19  4,466,044,363.26
Changes for the year
() Total comprehensive income - - - (37,479,342.16) (37,479,342.16)
(I} Profit distribution
1. Distribution of profit to
shareholders XV.6 - - - (278,688,000.00)  (278,688,000.00)
At 31 December 2021 1,393,440,000.00  2,459,501,733.70 103,278,199.37 193,657,088.03  4,149,877,021.10
At 1 January 2020 1,161,200,000.00 906,165,435.50 87,319,205.31 482,313,483.66  2,636,998,124.47
Changes for the year
() Total comprehensive income - - - 145,431,918.00 145,431,918.00
() Ordinary shares contributed by
shareholders 232,240,000.00  1,5583,336,298.20 - - 1,785,576,298.20
(Il Profit distribution
1. Appropriation for surplus
reserve XV.6 - - 14,543,191.80 (14,543,191.80) -
2. Distribution of profit to
shareholders XV.6 - - - (116,120,000.00)  (116,120,000.00)
At 31 December 2020 1,393,440,000.00  2,459,501,733.70 101,862,397.11 497,082,209.86  4,451,886,340.67

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2022.

Qiao Dewei
Authorised Representative
(Signature and stamp)

Yi Zhiyong
Chief Financial Officer
(Signature and stamp)

Zhao Linbin
Chief Accountant
(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 140 to 294 form part of these financial statements.

(Company stamp)
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Financial Report (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint-stock limited liability company
established based on the reorganisation of Shenzhen Dynagreen Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. (FYIIZE & E) 1138
RITEBRAT]) on 23 April 2012. Its registered address is 2nd Floor, Northeastern Wing, Jiuzhou Electronic Building,
007 Keji South 12th Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Its head office
is located in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The parent company and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Beijing State-owned Assets Management Co., Ltd. (‘BSAM”).

On 19 June 2014, the Company was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On 29 June 2014, the underwriter
of the Company of the public offering project on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange exercised all of the over-allotment
options stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 9 June 2014.

As approved by the Approval in Relation to the Initial Public Offering of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group
Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jiang Xu Ke [2018] No. 746) (BN EF B NRARFERMNBR AR ERXRARETRENILE)
(FBESFT A [2018]7465%)) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”), the Company issued not
more than 116,200,000 ordinary shares (A shares) under the non-public offering on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
23 April 2018. Under the offering, the actual size of the public offering was 116,200,000.00 RMB ordinary shares with
a nominal value of RMB1 per share, increasing the share capital by RMB116,200,000.00. Upon the public offering of
A shares, the paid-in capital (share capital) of the Company amounted to RMB1,161,200,000.00 comprising a total of
1,161,200,000.00 shares.

Approved by the “Approval on the Non-Public Issuance of Shares of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co.,
Ltd.r ((EARZEREE NIREREERMD AR A TFAHEITREMNME) )" (Zheng Jiang Xu Ke [2020] No. 2493)
on 9 October 2020, the Company issued no more than 232,240,000 shares under non-public issuance of A shares.
According to the issuance result, the actual non-public issuance of 232,240,000.00 RMB ordinary shares with a par
value of RMB1.00 each to six specific targets will increase the share capital by RMB232,240,000.00. After this non-
public issuance of A shares, the Company’s share capital is RMB1,393,440,000.00, and the total number of shares is
1,393,440,000.00.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in technological research in environmental
protection industries including waste-incineration, and the design, development and systematic integration of
relevant equipment, as well as management of waste treatment projects, operation management and the provision of
technological services and associated technological consultation.

For the information about the subsidiaries and new subsidiaries of the Group during the Reporting Period, please refer
to Notes VI and VII.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

Il. BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the “MOF”) and the disclosure requirements in the Preparation
Convention of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public No.15 — General Provisions
on Financial Reporting (amended in 2014) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”).

In addition, these financial statements also included the relevant disclosure in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Going concern

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current liabilities were RMB541,580,344.29, including short-term
borrowings from BSAM of approximately RMB600,000,000.00. In addition, the Group’s committed capital
expenditure within one year is approximately RMB1,403,986,017.23, which presents a certain degree of liquidity
risk.

The management of the Group intend to take or has took the following measures to ensure the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its operation requirement for the coming 12 months:

(@  The Group maintained good long-term business relationship with various financial institutions, so as to
ensure that it can obtain adequate lines of credit from them. At 31 December 2021, the available banking
facilities of the Group amounted to RMB5,836,542,299.68;

(b)  With the constant completion and commencement of operations of the new waste-to-energy projects, the
management foresees that the Group will generate stable cash inflow from future operating activities to
meet its liquidity requirement.

In view of the above factors, the management is of the opinion that, the Group will have sufficient working capital

to meet its operation requirement for the next twelve months from 1 January 2022, and thus the management
believes that the Group’s preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis is appropriate.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of provisions for receivables, amortisation of intangible assets,
and revenue recognition and measurement of the Group are adopted according to the specific characteristics of the
Group’s operations. Please refer to the relevant notes on accounting policies.

1.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, and present truly and completely the consolidated financial position and
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated financial performance and
financial performance and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company for 2021.

Accounting period
The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.
Operating cycle

The Group is engaged in the investment, construction and operation of waste-to-energy (WTE) plants treating
solid waste. The operating cycle of the Group for the operation of WTE plants which including processing of
waste and power generation is usually less than 12 months.

Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and these financial statements are presented in Renminbi.
Functional currency is determined by the Company and its subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which
major income and costs are denominated and settled. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries have functional
currencies that are different from the Company’s functional currency. Their financial statements have been
translated based on the accounting policy set out in Note I1.8.

Accounting treatments for business combinations involving entities under common
control and not under common control

For the transaction that the Group obtains the control over one or more companies (a group of assets or net
assets) which constitutes a business, the transaction or matter constitutes a business combination. Business
combinations are divided into business combinations involving entities under common control and not under
common control.

For business combinations not under common control, the acquirer will consider whether to adopt the simplified
judgment method of “concentration test” when judging whether the acquired production and operation activities
or the combination of assets constitute a business. If the combination passes the concentration test, it does not
constitute a business. If the combination fails the concentration test, the judgment shall be made according to
business conditions.

If the Group obtains a group of assets or net assets which does not constitute a business, the Group shall
allocate the acquisition costs based on the relative fair values of the acquired identifiable assets and liabilities
on the acquisition date, rather than account for it with the following accounting treatment methods for business
combinations.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

5. Accounting treatments for business combinations involving entities under common
control and not under common control (Continued)

(1)

2

Business combination involving entities under common control

A business combination involving entities under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets
acquired and the consideration paid for the combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is adjusted
against share premium in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against retained earnings. Any costs
directly attributable to the combination are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The combination date
is the date on which one combining entity obtains control of other combining entities.

Business combination involving entities not under common control

A business combination involving entities not under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination. Where (1) the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred
(including the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2) the
acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference
is recognised as goodwill. If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised in profit or loss for the current
period. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed when incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met, are recognised by the Group at their
acquisition-date fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the
acquiree.

For a business combination involving entities not under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its acquisition-date fair value and
recognises any resulting difference between the fair value and the carrying amount as investment income
for the current period. Any amount recognised in other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss, in prior reporting periods relating to the previously-held equity interest, and any other changes
in the owners’ equity under equity accounting, are transferred to investment income at the date when the
acquisition occurs (see Note ll.11(2)).
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(1)

2

General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated financial
statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the investor has all of
following: power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
The financial position, financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-controlling shareholders is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement below the net profit line item. Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated income statement below the total
comprehensive income line item.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’ share of the opening owners’ equity of the subsidiary,
the excess is still allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they represent impairment losses that are recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the Reporting Period, through a business combination involving
entities under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements based on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party as if the combination had occurred at the date that the
ultimate controlling party first obtained control. The opening balances and the comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements are also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the Reporting Period, through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

6.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Continued)

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, any resulting disposal gains or losses are recognised as
investment income for the current period. The remaining equity interests is re-measured at its fair value at
the date when control is lost, any resulting gains or losses are also recognised as investment income for
the current period.

(4) Changes in non-controlling interests
Where the Company acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-controlling shareholders
or disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the difference between
the proportion interests of the subsidiary’s net assets being acquired or disposed and the amount of
the consideration paid or received is adjusted to the capital reserve (share premium) in the consolidated
balance sheet, with any excess adjusted to retained earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign currency financial
statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to Renminbi at the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.
A rate that approximates the spot exchange rate is an average exchange rate of the current period determined
under a systematic and rational method that approximates the spot exchange rate on the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they arise
from the re-translation of the principal and interest of specific borrowings for the construction of qualifying assets
(see Note lll.14). Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated to
Renminbi using the spot exchange rate at the transaction date.

In translating the financial statements of a foreign operation, assets and liabilities of foreign operation are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Equity items, excluding retained
earnings and the translation differences in other comprehensive income, are translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rates at the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign operation are translated to Renminbi at
the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. The translation differences accumulated in other comprehensive
income with respect to a foreign operation are transferred to profit or loss in the period when the foreign
operation is disposed.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

o.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Group include cash at bank and on hand, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
loans and share capital.

(1) Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

2

A financial assets and financial liabilities is measured initially at fair value. For financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related directly attributable transaction costs are directly
charged to profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets or financial liabilities, any related directly
attributable transaction costs are included in their initial costs. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component or do not consider the financing component of the contract not exceeding one year is
initially measured at the transaction price determined according to the accounting policies in Note 11.20.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

@

Classification of financial assets

The classification of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset
is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first Reporting Period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows;

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets;

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

@

(b)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
designate it as financial assets at FVOCI. This designation is made on an investment-by-investment
basis, and may only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The business model refers to how the Group manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. That is, the Group’s business model determines whether cash flows of the financial assets
managed will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. The Group
determines the business model for managing the financial assets according to the facts and based
on the specific business objective for managing the financial assets determined by the Group’s key
management personnel.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. For the purposes of this assessment,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin. In addition the Group evaluates the contractual terms that may result in a change in the
time distribution or amount of financial asset contractual cash flows to determine whether it meets
the requirements of the above contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Group does not have financial liability at FVTPL during the Reporting Period.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
- Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured at amortised cost and is not
part of a hedging relationship shall be recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is
derecognised, through the amortisation process or in order to recognise impairment gains or
losses.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
- Equity instrument investment measured at FVTOCI as a result of interest income included in
other comprehensive income.

Upon initial recognition, such financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value. Gains
or losses shall be recognized in other comprehensive income. Upon termination of recognition,
the accumulated gains or losses previously recorded in other comprehensive income shall be
transferred to the profit and loss for the current period.

(3) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

(4)

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at FVTPL and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading (including derivative
financial liability) or it is designated as such on initial recognition.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value and
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss, unless the financial
liabilities are part of a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
The financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The Group does not have financial liability at FVTPL during the Reporting Period, and only holds
financial liability measured at amortised cost.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet, and are not offset.
However, a financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;

the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the financial asset and settle the
financial liability simultaneously.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(5)

(6)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following conditions is met:

- the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

- the financial asset has been transferred and the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

- the financial asset has been transferred, although the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it does not retain control over the
transferred asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in profit or loss:

- the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred measured at the date of derecognition;

- the sum of the consideration received from the transfer and, when the transferred financial asset is
a debt investment at FVOCI, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income for the part derecognised.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
extinguished.

Impairment
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets and contract assets
measured at amortised cost:

The expected credit loss model is not applicable to financial assets invested in equity instruments held by
the Group that are measured at fair value changes on financial assets are included in other comprehensive
income.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period (including
extension options) over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the balance sheet date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12

months).
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(6)

Impairment (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the balance sheet date.

Except for trade receivables and contract assets, the Group measures loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL for the following financial instruments, and at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for all other
financial instruments.

- If the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date; or
- If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Financial instruments that have low credit risk

The credit risk on a financial instrument is considered low if the financial instrument has a low risk of
default, the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort, including forward-looking information. In particular, the
following information is taken into account:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(6)

Impairment (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group having
granted to the borrower a concession that would not otherwise consider;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for debt investments that
are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)

(6)

(7

Impairment (Continued)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognised
in shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from shareholders’ equity.

10. Inventories

(1)

2

Classification and cost
Inventories include turnover materials. Turnover materials include low-value consumables, packaging
materials and other materials, which can be used repeatedly but do not meet the definition of fixed assets.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Measurement method of cost of inventories
Cost of inventories recognised is calculated using the weighted average method on a monthly basis.

Turnover materials including low-value consumables and packaging materials are amortised when they are
used. The amortisation charge is included in the cost of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

10. Inventories (Continued)

(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and method for provision for
obsolete inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The net
realisable value of materials held for use in the production is measured based on the net realisable value of
the finished goods in which they will be incorporated.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(4) Inventory count system
The Group maintains a periodic inventory system.

11. Long-term equity investments

(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@ Long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination
- The initial cost of a long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination
involving entities under common control is the Company’s share of the carrying amount of the
subsidiary’s equity at the combination date. The difference between the initial investment cost
and the carrying amount of the consideration given is adjusted to the share premium in the
capital reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained earnings.

- For a long-term equity investment obtained through a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the initial cost comprises the aggregate of the fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the Company, in
exchange for control of the acquiree.

(b)  Long-term equity investments acquired other than through a business combination

A long-term equity investment acquired other than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the Group acquires the investment by cash.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition in profit loss of long-term equity
investment

@

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements, long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent measurement. Except for cash dividends
or profit distributions declared but not yet distributed that have been included in the price or
consideration paid in obtaining the investments, the Company recognises its share of the cash
dividends or profit distributions declared by the investee as investment income for the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries, please refer to Note IIl.18.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with
the policies described in Note III.6.

Investment in joint ventures
A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties have joint control (see Note
l11.11(3)) and rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method for subsequent
measurement.

The accounting treatments under the equity method adopted by the Group are as follows:

- Where the initial cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment is initially
recognised at cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment is initially
recognised at the investor’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

- After the acquisition of the investment, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s net
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares any cash dividends or profit distributions, the carrying
amount of the investment is reduced by the amount attributable to the Group.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition in profit loss of long-term equity
investment (Continued)
(b)  Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

In calculating its share of the investee’s net profits or losses, other comprehensive income
and other changes in owners’ equity, the Group recognises investment income and other
comprehensive income after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies or
accounting periods with those of the Group based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no impairment.

The Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment and any long-term interest that in substance forms
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture is reduced to zero, except to the extent
that the Group has an obligation to assume additional losses. If the joint venture subsequently
reports net profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits has fully covered the share of losses not recognised.

For the impairment test and provisioning of the investments in a joint venture, please refer to
Note IIl.18.

(3) Criteria for determining the existence of joint control over an investee
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities (activities with significant impact on the returns of the arrangement) require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The following factors are usually considered when assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control
over an investee:

- Whether no single participant party is in a position to control the investee’s relevant activities
unilaterally;

- Whether strategic decisions relating to the investee’s relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of all the parties sharing control.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

12. Fixed assets

(1) Recognition of fixed assets
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in production of goods, for use in
supply of services or for administrative purposes with useful lives over one accounting year.

The initial cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes, and any attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives or provide economic benefits to the
Group in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different depreciation rates or methods, each part is
recognised as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as assets
when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

(2) Depreciation of fixed assets
Except the subsidiary of the Group, Lvyi (Huludao) Environmental Services Limited (defined as “Huludao
Hazardous Waste Company”, whose fixed asset is depreciated using the unit-of-production method, the
cost of a fixed asset, less its estimated residual value and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its useful life.

The useful lives, residual value rates and depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets depreciated using
the straight-line method are as follows:

Estimated

useful life Residual Depreciation
Class (years) value rate (%) rate (%)
Motor vehicles 5-10 years 5% 19.00%-33.00%
Office and other equipment 3-5 years 0%-5% 19%-33%
Buildings and structures 20-50 years 20-50% 1.90%-4.75%
Production equipment 10 years 5% 9.50%

Useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at least at each year end.

(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, please refer to Note 111.18.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

12.

13.

14.

Fixed assets (Continued)

(4) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

- when the fixed asset is holding for disposal; or
- when no future economic benefit is expected to be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress

The cost of self-built fixed assets includes costs for engineering materials and direct labor, borrowing costs for a
qualifying asset (see Note lll. 14) and necessary expenses incurred before the assets reach the intended available
state.

Self-built fixed assets, previously presented below the construction in progress, are transferred into fixed assets
when they reach the intended available state, and no provision of depreciation is made.

The construction in progress is presented in the balance sheet as cost less provision (see Note lIl. 18).
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as financial expenses when
incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest (including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period is determined as follows:

- Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset, the amount
of interest to be capitalised is the interest expense calculated using effective interest rates during the period
less any interest income earned from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds before being used on the asset;

- To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the asset
over the above amounts of specific borrowings. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
interest rates applicable to the general-purpose borrowings.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

14.

15.

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through
the expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The
exchange differences related to the principal and interest on foreign currency borrowings other than a specific-
purpose borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to
the date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of
more than three months.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note lIl.18). For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment losses is amortised using the straight-line method over its

estimated useful life.

The respective amortisation periods for intangible assets are as follows:

Item Amortisation period
Concession rights 23-30 years
Software 10 years
Land use rights 50 years

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life and is not amortised when there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.
The Group reassesses the useful lives of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives in each accounting period.
If there is evidence indicating that the useful life of that intangible asset is finite, the Group estimates its useful
life and accounts for it in accordance with the same policy as intangible assets with finite useful lives described
above.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

15. Intangible assets (Continued)

(1)

2

Concession rights

The Group has entered into concession agreements with different local governments in China (“the
grantor”) in respect of its waste-to-energy (“WTE”) projects on a Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) basis.
Under the concession agreements, the Group builds WTE plants (construction period) and operates these
WTE plants (operation period) for a concession period of 23 to 30 years. Upon the expiry of the concession
period, the Group would transfer these WTE plants to respective grantor without consideration. The terms
of the service concession arrangements allow the Group to earn waste treatment fees and electricity tariffs
for the processing of waste and generation of electricity during the operation period.

The Group has entered into service concession arrangements with local governments in China (“the
grantor”) in respect of its hazardous waste treatment project on a Build-Operate-Own (“BOQO”) basis. Under
the service concession arrangements, the Group builds and operates the hazardous waste treatment plant
and the terms of the service concession arrangements allow the Group to earn waste treatment fees for
the processing of waste.

If the Group meets the conditions for receiving cash (or other financial assets) of an identifiable amount
during the operation of the project, it shall be recognized as a account receivable when the Group has the
right to receive such consideration (the right only depends on the factor of time passing), and accounting
treatment shall be conducted in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 22 —
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments. During the operation period of the project, if the
Group has the right to receive variable cash flow from the party which receives the public goods and
services and the right does not constitute an unconditional right to receive cash, the Group recognizes the
difference between the consideration for the project assets or the amount of revenue recognized in respect
of the construction project and the determinable amount of cash flow (or other financial assets) that the
Group has the right to receive as an intangible asset — concession right when the project assets are ready
for intended use.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on an internal research and development projects is classified into expenditure incurred during
the research phase and expenditure incurred during the development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase is expensed when incurred. Expenditure during the development
phase is capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the
development. Capitalised development costs are stated in the balance sheet at cost less impairment
losses. Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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16.

17.

18.

Goodwill

The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business combination not involving entities under common
control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
Note [.18). On disposal of an asset group or a set of asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised using a straight-line method within the benefit period. The respective
amortisation periods for such expenses are as follows:

Amortisation
Item period

Renovation costs for office under operating lease and others 1-5 years

Impairment of assets other than inventories and financial assets

The carrying amount of the following assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date based on internal and
external sources of information to determine whether there is any indication of impairment:

- fixed assets

- construction in progress

- intangible assets

- right-of-use assets

- long-term equity investments

- goodwill

- long-term deferred expenses

If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates the
recoverable amounts of intangible assets not ready for use at least annually at each year-end, irrespective of
whether there is any indication of impairment. The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each

year-end. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination for the purpose of impairment testing.
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18.

19.

Impairment of assets other than inventories and financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note
[11.19) less costs to sell and its present value of expected future cash flows.

An asset group is composed of assets directly related to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset
groups.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related
to an asset group or a set of asset groups, are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However, such allocation would not reduce the
carrying amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less costs to sell (if measurable), its present value
of expected future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value as follows:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, and uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data and other information
are available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques mainly include the market approach, the income
approach and the cost approach.
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(Continued)

20. Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligation in the contract by transferring the
control over relevant goods or services to the customers.

Where a contract has two or more performance obligations, the Group determines the stand-alone selling price
at contract inception of the distinct good or service underlying each performance obligation in the contract
and allocates the transaction price in proportion to those stand-alone selling prices. The Group recognises as
revenue the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to each performance obligation. Stand-alone selling
price refers to the price at which the Group sells goods or provides services to customers separately. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the Group shall consider all information that is reasonably available
to the Group and maximize the use of observable inputs and apply estimation methods consistently in similar
circumstances.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Group recognises the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Where the contract contains a significant financing component, the
Group recognises the transaction price at an amount that reflects the price that a customer would have paid
for the promised goods or services if the customer had paid cash for those goods or services when (or as) they
transfer to the customer. The difference between the amount of promised consideration and the cash selling
price is amortised using an effective interest method over the contract term. The Group does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the
period between when the Group transfers a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer
pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time if one of the following criteria is met; or otherwise, a
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

- the customer can control the asset created or enhanced during the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to it and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Group recognises revenue over time by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. When the outcome of that performance
obligation cannot be measured reasonably, but the Group expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time
that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation.
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20. Revenue (Continued)

For performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at which
the customer obtains control of relevant goods or services. To determine whether a customer has obtained
control of goods or services, the Group considers the following indicators:

the Group has a present right to payment for the goods or services;
the Group has transferred physical possession of the goods to the customer;

the Group has transferred the legal title of the goods or the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods to the customer; and

the customer has accepted the goods or services.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that it has transferred to
a customer when that right is conditional on factors other than the passage of time. The Group recognises loss
allowances for expected credit loss on contract assets. Accounts receivable is the Group’s right to consideration
that is unconditional (only the passage of time is required). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The following is the description of accounting policies regarding revenue from the Group’s principal activities:

(1)

(a)

(b)

Revenue from construction services

For participating in public infrastructure construction businesses under BOT arrangement, in accordance
with the provisions of the Interpretation No. 14 on Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, if the
Group provides construction service for Publicp-Private Partnership projects as a principal, the Group
shall measure the percentage of the actual cost incurred to date as to determine the percentage of the
completion and the stand-alone selling price. The PPP project asset construction service is a performance
obligation performed within a certain period of time. The changes in the accounting policy have been
disclosed in Note I11.32 (1).

During the operating period, the Group recognises the electricity tariff and waste treatment fees according
to the following principles respectively.

Electricity tariff

Revenue is recognised by the Group when the electricity is supplied to and controlled by the local grid
company. The Group recognises the electricity tariff according to the actual volume of electricity supplied
and the unit price and on-grid electricity as agreed in the electricity purchase and sale contracts.

Waste treatment fees

Revenue is recognised by the Group during the course of providing waste treatment services. The Group
recognises the waste treatment fees according to the actual volume of waste treated and the unit price as
agreed in the BOT agreements, deducting the portion recognised as financial assets.
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21.

22.

Interest income

The Group recognises the relevant interest income at amortised cost using the effective interest method for the
financial assets recognised in the course of BOT and BT construction.

Contract cost

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if
it expects to recover those costs. Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

If the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer are not within the scope of inventories or other accounting
standards, the Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract only if those costs meet all
of the following criteria:

- the costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract, including
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of overheads (or similar costs), costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are incurred only because the Group entered into the contract;

- the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

- the costs are expected to be recovered.

Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and assets recognised for the costs to fulfil
a contract (the “assets related to contract costs”) are amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate and recognised in profit or loss
for the current period. The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when
incurred if the amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset
related to contract costs exceeds:

- remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates; less

- the costs that relate directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet been recognised as
expenses.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+&0

&
OO

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

23. Employee benefits

(1) Short-term employee benefits
Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund, measured at the amount incurred or accrued at the
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liability as the employee provides services, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets where appropriate.

(2) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group participated in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance plan in the social insurance system established and managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable
benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance contributions payable are
recognised as a liability as the employee provides services, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or
include in the cost of assets where appropriate.

(3) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment with employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a
provision is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

- When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits because of an
employee termination plan or a curtailment proposal;

- When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring plan involving the payment of termination benefits
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting
to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

24. Government grants

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of monetary or non-monetary assets from the government to the
Group except for capital contributions from the government in the capacity as an investor in the Group.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government grant related to assets is recognised as deferred income
and amortised over the useful life of the related asset on a reasonable and systematic manner as other income or
non-operating income. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses or losses to be incurred in the future
is recognised as deferred income, and included in other income or non-operating income in the periods in which
the expenses or losses are recognised, otherwise, the grant is included in other income or non-operating income
directly.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

25.

Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases, which include the deductible losses and tax credits carried forward to subsequent
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (or deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured based on the tax consequences that would follow from the
expected manner of recovery or settlement of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted at the balance sheet date that are expected to be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following conditions
are met:

- the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities;

- they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

26. Lease

A contract is lease if the lessor conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset to lessee for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset. An identified asset may be specified explicitly or
implicitly specified in a contract and should be physically distinct, or capacity portion or other portion of an
asset that is not physically distinct but it represents substantially all of the capacity of the asset and thereby
provides the customer with the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right throughout the period of use, then the asset is not
identified;

- the lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use;

- the lessee has the right to direct the use of the asset.

For a contract that contains more separate lease components, the lessee and the lessor separate lease
components and account for each lease component as a lease separately. For a contract that contains lease and
non-lease components, the lessee and the lessor separate lease components from non-lease components. For a
contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the lessee allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

26. Lease (Continued)

The Group acts as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date (less any lease incentives received), any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method. If the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option by the end of the lease term, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. Impairment losses of
right-of-use assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 111.18.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

A constant periodic rate is used to calculate the interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term
with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets where appropriate. Variable lease
payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is charged to profit or loss or included in the cost
of assets where appropriate as incurred.

Under the following circumstances after the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities based
on the present value of revised lease payments:

- there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

- there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine
those payments;

- there is a change in the assessment of whether the Group will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option, or there is a change in the exercise of the extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases in profit or loss or as the cost of the assets where appropriate using the straight-line
method over the lease term.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

27.

28.

29.

Held-for-sale

The Group classified a non-current asset or disposal group as held for sale when the carrying amount of a non-
current asset or disposal group will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, .

A disposal group refers to a group of assets to be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a whole in a
single transaction and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

A non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale when all the following criterias are met:

- According to the customary practices of selling such asset or disposal group in similar transactions, the
non-current asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in their present condition subject
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets or disposal groups;

- Its sale is highly probable, that is, the Group has made a resolution on a sale plan and has obtained a firm
purchase commitment. The sale is to be completed within one year.

Non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
(see Note lI.19) less costs to sell (except financial assets (see note 11.9) and deferred tax assets (see note 111.25))
initially and subsequently. Any excess of the carrying amount over the fair value (see Note Ill.19) less costs to sell is
recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

Profit distributions

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice
versa, or where two or more parties are subject to common control or joint control from another party, they are
considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.

In addition to the related parties stated above, the Company determines related parties based on the disclosure

requirements of Administrative Procedures on the Information Disclosures of Listed Companies issued by the
CSRC.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

30. Segment reporting

31.

Reportable segments are identified based on operating segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.

The Group operates as a whole with a unified internal organisational structure, management evaluation system
and internal reporting system. Management conducts resource allocation and performance evaluation by
regularly reviewing the financial information of the Group. The Group does not have any operating segment under
separate management and therefore the Group has only one operating segment.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management of the Group to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates as well as underlying assumptions
and uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Except for accounting estimates relating to depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed assets and
intangible assets (see Notes Ill.12 and 15) and provision for impairment of various types of assets (see Notes V.2,
3,4,6,7,8,15,16 and 17 and Notes XV.1 and 2). Other significant accounting estimates are as follows:

(1)  BOT Projects — The Group’s revenue from construction services is determined based on construction cost,
and the performance progress of the construction services is determined according to the proportion of
the actual construction service costs incurred during the construction process to the estimated total cost.
In the course of project construction, the Group reviews and revises the revenue from construction services
based on the budgeted construction costs and the estimated construction period.

(2)  Recognition of deferred assets (see Note V.19)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

32. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

(1) Description and reasons of changes in accounting policies
In 2021, the Group has adopted the following newly revised accounting standards and implementation
guidance and illustrative examples issued by the MOF:

- CAS Bulletin No.14 (Caikuai [2021] No.1)(“Bulletin No. 14”)

- Notice of Extending the Applicable Period of ‘Accounting Treatment of COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions’ (Caikuai [2021] No.9)

(@)  Bulletin No.14
Bulletin No.14 takes effect on 26 January 2021 (implementation date).

(i) “Public-private partnership” (PPP) arrangements
Bulletin No.14, implementation Q&As and illustrative examples clarify the features and
conditions of PPP arrangements, sets out the accounting and disclosure requirements of a
private entity in PPP arrangements. Item 5 of CAS Bulletin No.2 (Caikuai [2008] No.11) on “How
to account for entities participating in public infrastructure construction businesses under build-
operate-transfer arrangement” is repealed accordingly.

PPP arrangements which are commenced before 31 December 2020 and not completed on
the implementation date and new PPP arrangements occurred during 1 January 2021 to the
implementation date are subject to retrospective adjustments. Cumulative effects are adjusted
to the opening retained earnings and other relevant line items in the financial statements for the
year 2021. Comparative information is not restated.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

32. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Contents and reasons of the changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(@  Bulletin No. 14 (Continued)
“Public-private partnership” (PPP) arrangements (Continued)
The impact of the above changes in accounting policies on the items in the consolidated
balance sheet and company balance sheet on 1 January 2021 is summarized as follows:

U

The Group
Carrying amount Carrying amount
before adjustment Adjustment  after adjustment
Assets:
Contract assets 467,951,853.72 98,710,363.59 566,662,217.31
Long-term receivables due
within one year 135,193,612.91 (98,710,363.59) 36,483,249.32
Long-term receivables 5,239,640,603.64  (5,160,064,441.83) 79,576,161.81
Long-term equity investments 66,190,681.00 14,158,022.59 80,348,703.59
Intangible assets 7,366,230,070.06 837,793,136.89  8,204,023,206.95
Other non-current assets 953,998,419.31 5,162,596,964.39 6,116,595,383.70
Liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities 150,915,654.85 213,716,035.11 364,631,689.96

Shareholders’ equity:
Surplus reserve
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests

101,862,397.11
1,569,479,247.47
292,612,301.31

1,415,802.26
605,829,413.00
33,522,431.67

103,278,199.37
2,175,308,660.47
326,134,732.98

Carrying amount
before adjustment

The Company

Adjustment

Carrying amount
after adjustment

Assets:
Long-term equity investments

Shareholders’ equity:
Surplus reserve
Retained earnings

5,509,051,548.21

101,862,397.11
497,082,209.86

14,158,022.59

1,415,802.26
12,742,220.33

5,523,209,570.80

103,278,199.37
509,824,430.19
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

32. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Contents and reasons of the changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(@  Bulletin No. 14 (continueqd)
(i)  Benchmark interest rate reform
Bulletin No.14 introduces the accounting and disclosure requirements for the modification of
financial instruments and lease liabilities resulting from the benchmark interest rate reform.
Transactions related to the benchmark interest rate reform that occurred before 31 December
2020 and during 1 January 2021 to the implementation date are subject to retrospective
adjustments. Cumulative effects are adjusted to the opening retained earnings or other
comprehensive income for the year 2021.Comparative information is not restated.

The adoption of Bulletin No.14 does not have significant effect on the financial position and
financial performance of the Group.

(b)  Caikuai [2021] No.9
The Accounting Treatment of COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions(Caikuai [2020] No.10) provides
practical expedient under certain conditions for rent consessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic, and combining the requirements of Caikuai [2021] No.9, such practical
expedient is only applicable to any reduction in lease payments due before 30 June 2022.Cumulative
effects of adopting [2021] No.9 are adjusted to the opening retained earnings or other comprehensive
income for the year 2021.Comparative information is not restated.

The adoption of the above regulations does not have significant effect on the financial position and
financial performance of the Group.
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IV. TAXATION

1. Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax type

Tax basis

Tax rate

Value-added tax (VAT)

City maintenance and
construction tax

Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable
services revenue according to taxation laws. The
remaining balance of output VAT, after subtracting
the deductible input VAT of the period, is VAT
payable.

Based on VAT effectively paid

3%*, 6% and 13%

5% and 7%

Education surcharges Based on VAT effectively paid 3%

Local education surcharges Based on VAT effectively paid 2%

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) Based on taxable profits 25% and 16.5%

PRC withholding Based on dividends declared to foreign investors 10%
income tax

* Qingdao Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (& &4t &) B A RERAEMR A F)) (‘Qingdao Company”) was small-scale VAT taxpayer

and its applicable tax rate was 3%.

The applicable income tax rate for the Company and its subsidiaries (except for Dynagreen Investment Holding
Company Limited (“Hong Kong Dynagreen”) was 25% for the year.

An income tax rate of 16.5% as stipulated by the Hong Kong tax laws was applicable to Hong Kong Dynagreen,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
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IV. TAXATION (Continued)

2. Tax preferential benefits and approvals

2.1 CIT preferential benefits and approvals

(1)

The Company’s subsidiary Huizhou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Huizhou Company”),
Tianjin Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jizhou Company”), Jurong Dynagreen Renewable
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jurong Company”), Guangyuan Boneng Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Guangyuan
Company”), Bengbu Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Bengbu Company”), Tianjin
Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (“Ninghe Company”), Beijing Environmental Protection
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Tongzhou Company”) Jiamusi Bohai Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Jiamusi Company”), Shantou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Shantou Company”),
Zhaoging Boneng Renewable Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Zhaoging Company”), Beijing
Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Miyun Company”), Zhanggiu Dynagreen Renewable Energy
Co., Ltd. (“Zhangqgiu Company”), Bobai Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Bobai Company”),
Yichun Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Yichun Company”), Hong’an Dynagreen Renewable
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Hong’an Company”), Huizhou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Huizhou
Phase Il Company”), Haining Dynagreen Haiyun Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (“Haining
Expansion Project Company”), Pingyang Dynagreen Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (“Pingyang
Phase Il Project Company”), Wenzhou Dynagreen Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (“Yongjia Phase
Il Project Company”) Shishou Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Shishou Company”) and
Dengfeng Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Dengfeng Company”), Guizhou Jinsha Green
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jinsha Company”) Shantou Dynagreen Environmental Services Co., Ltd. (“Shantou
Sludge Company”) which all were subsidiaries of the Company, were qualified for the earnings from
environmental protection, water and energy conservation as stipulated under the Enterprise Income
Tax Law, and were eligible for a tax exemption for the first year to the third year, and a 50% reduction
in CIT for the fourth year to the sixth year starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “3+3 tax holiday”). The details are as follows:

° The Huizhou Company Incineration Plant Project and phase | project of Jizhou Company
completed the CIT preferential benefits and approvals” in 2016 and were entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday from 2016 to 2021;

° Anshun Company is an encouraged industry established in the Northwest region and
completed its filing in 2018. The taxable income of phase | project of Anshun Company is
subject to corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15%; The phase Il project of
Anshun Company is entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday from 2020 to 2025;

° Jurong Company, Guangyuan Company and Bengbu Company completed the “CIT preferential
benefits and approvals” in 2017 and were entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday from 2017 to 2022;

° Ninghe Company Biomass Power Generation Project, Tongzhou Company, Miyun Company
and Jiamusi Company completed the “CIT preferential benefits and approvals” in 2018 and
were entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday from 2018 to 2023;

° Shantou Company, Zhaoging Company, Zhanggiu Company and Bobai Company completed

the “CIT preferential benefits and approvals” in 2019 and were entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday
from 2019 to 2024;
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IV. TAXATION (Continued)
2. Tax preferential benefits and approvals (Continued)

2.1 CIT preferential benefits and approvals (Continued)
(1)  (Continued)
° Yichun Company, Hong’an Company, Huizhou Phase Il Company, Haining Expansion Project
Company, phase Il project of Jizhou Company and phase Il project of Shantou Company were
entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday from 2020 to 2025;

° Pingyang Phase |l Project Company, Yongjia Phase Il Project Company, Shishou Company,
Dengfeng Company, Jinsha Waste Incineration, Sihui Company Phase Il Company, Phase ||
of Jiamusi Company and Shantou Sludge Company were entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday from
2021 to 2026.

Before obtaining the notification of CIT, the subsidiaries made income tax provisions and payment
based on a tax rate of 25% and income tax expenses.

(2)  Pursuant to the Announcement on Implementation of Tax Preferential Benefits Policy for Small and
Micro Enterprises and Individual Businesses (SAT Announcement 2021 No. 12) (B8R E i/ Ml
EMERTITEPAMEHMERBRHAE) (BBEREA%E2021F5E125%) ) published by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Taxation Administration, the small-scaled minimal profit enterprise with
an annual taxable income below RMB1 million is entitled to another 50% reduction in CIT under
the preferential policy as stipulated in article Il in the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State
Taxation Administration on implementation on Inclusive Tax Relief Policy of Small-scaled Minimal
Profit Enterprise (Cai Shui [2019] No. 13) (<BF BB Hi 5 48 5 BE P B i) Mill b 56 BRI WOR S BUR
gimEn) (BFE2019]135%)).

Pingyao Dynagreen Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Pingyao Company”) and Longhui Dynagreen
Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (“Longhui Company”), being subsidiaries of the Company, meet the
conditions of small-scaled minimal profit enterprise and the part of their annual taxable income below
RMB1 million is entitled to a preferential tax treatment of 12.5% exemption of taxable income and
application of CIT rate as 20%. The execution period of the announcement is from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2022.

2.2 VAT preferential benefits and approvals
According to the Notice on Publishing the VAT Catalogue for Products Generated from Comprehensive
Utilisation of Resources and Services (Cai Shui [2015] No. 78) issued by MOF and State Administration of
Taxation, 70% refund of VAT in respect of the waste treatment services and 100% refund of VAT in respect
of the sale of power or heat produced from waste or methane from waste fermentation. The tax rates and
preferential tax rate policies applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries had no obvious change from
2020.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+&0

ofe

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

T

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash on hand 2,372.96 5,666.56
Deposits with banks 954,787,582.39  1,592,962,373.30
Other monetary funds 11,951,353.50 15,093,755.94
Total 966,741,308.85 1,608,061,795.80
Including: Total overseas deposits 2,031,054.24 2,146,921.75

At 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any time deposit (31 December 2020: Nil).
Other monetary funds of the Group mainly comprised the retention money for BOT projects with restricted use.
Bills receivable

(1) Classification of bills receivable

Commercial acceptance bills 2,296,400.00 3,237,500.00
Bank acceptance bills 6,520,000.00 24,450,000.00
Total 8,816,400.00 27,687,500.00

All of the above bills receivable were due within one year.

(2) At 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any pledged bills receivable.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2. Bills receivable (Continued)

(8) Outstanding endorsed or discounted bills that had not matured at the balance sheet date:

31 December 2021

Amount not

derecognized

at the end

Type of the period
Bank acceptance bills 5,190,000.00
Commercial acceptance bills 1,996,400.00
Sub-total 7,186,400.00

Impairment loss -

Total 7,186,400.00

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any bills transferred to accounts
receivable due to non-performance of the issuers.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable

(1)

(2

Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows:

Customer Type

2020

1,623,839,657.64
10,000,000.00
(103,753,122.44)

Due from third parties
Due from related parties
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

821,771,322.02
10,000,000.00
(46,071,366.10)

Total 1,530,086,535.20

785,699,955.92

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

Ageing

2020

1,267,243,247.77
316,451,163.03

Within 1 year (inclusive)
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive)

Over 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive) 45,386,814.37
Over 3 years but within 4 years (inclusive) 4,498,449.07
Over 4 years but within 5 years (inclusive) 259,983.40

746,536,414.49
74,522,904.67
10,452,019.46
259,983.40

Sub-total 1,633,839,657.64

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (103,753,122.44)

831,771,322.02

(46,071,366.10)

Total 1,530,086,535.20

785,699,955.92

The ageing is counted starting from the date when accounts receivable is recognised.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

180

P

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(8) Accounts receivable by provisioning method:

31 December 2021
Provision for bad and
Book balance doubtful debts
Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category Note Amounts (%) Amounts (%) amount
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
individually )] 10,000,000.00 1% (2,000,000.00) 20% 8,000,000.00
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
collectively b)) 1,623,839,657.64 99%  (101,753,122.44) 6%  1,522,086,535.20
- Receivables from national renewable
energy subsidies 999,644,263.76 61% (34,473,147.03) 3%  965,171,116.73
- Receivables from tariff and waste
treatment service fee 624,195,393.88 38% (67,279,975.41) 11% 556,915,418.47
Total 1,633,839,657.64 100%  (103,753,122.44) 6% 1,530,086,535.20
31 December 2020
Provision for bad and
Book balance doubtful debts
Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category Note Amounts (%) Amounts (%) amount
Provision for bad and doubtful
debts collectively o)c) 831,771,322.02 100%  (46,071,366.10) 6% 785,699,955.92
Total 831,771,322.02 100%  (46,071,366.10) 6% 785,699,955.92
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) (Continued)

(@

Rationale for provision for bad and doubtful debts individually in 2021:

Name Rationale for provision

- Fengcheng Dynagreen Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. Overdue and not recovered

Criteria and statement of recognition of provision for bad and doubtful debts collectively in 2021:

Customers of accounts receivable of the Group are the grid customers who are located in the PRC, to whom the Group sells
electricity or those public services units to whom the Group provide waste treatment service. The receivables from national
renewable energy subsidies and receivables from tariff and waste treatment service fee were further segmented when calculating
the provision for bad and doubtful debts.

Expected credit loss assessment on accounts receivables:

At all times the Group measures the impairment loss for accounts receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, and the ECLs
are based on the comparison table of ageing and the expected credit loss rates. According to the historical experience and
collection cycle of funds of the Group, the receivables from national renewable energy subsidies, receivables from tariff and waste
treatment service fee were further segmented when calculating the provision for impairment. In 2020, based on the Group’s
historical experience, there was no significant difference in the loss incurred by different customer groups. Therefore, different
customer groups were not further segmented when calculating the provision for bad and doubtful debts.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) (Continued)

() Expected credit loss assessment on accounts receivables: (Continued)
2021

Portfolio I: Receivables from national renewable energy subsidies:

Provision for
Expected credit Book balance at impairment at

Ageing loss rate the end of the year the end of the year

Within 1 year (inclusive) 0.92% -~ 1.45% 703,339,004.98 7,916,157.66
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 3.59% - 14.04% 274,434,927.19 13,487,992.58
Over 2 years 43.00% - 100% 21,870,331.59 13,068,996.79
Total 999,644,263.76 34,473,147.03

Portfolio II: Receivables from tariff and waste treatment service fee:

Provision for
Expected credit Book balance at impairment at

Ageing loss rate the end of the year the end of the year

Within 1 year (inclusive) 2.73% * 15.61% 563,904,242.79 29,249,976.57
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 38.85% - 57.00% 42,016,235.84 19,755,083.59
Over 2 years 100.00% 18,274,915.25 18,274,915.25
Total 624,195,393.88 67,279,975.41
2020

Provision for

Book balance at the impairment at
Ageing Loss give default end of the year the end of the year
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1.32% * 6.55% 746,536,414.49 15,298,497.87
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 19.83% ~ 58.16% 74,522,904.67 20,060,865.37
Over 2 years 100.00% 10,712,002.86 10,712,002.86
Total 831,771,322.02 46,071,366.10

The expected credit loss rate is calculated based on the past experience on actual credit losses and adjusted based on the
economic conditions during the historical data collection period, the prevailing economic situation and the economic conditions
considered by the Group during the expected lifetime.
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T

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(4) Change in provision for bad and doubt debts:

Balance at the beginning of the year 46,071,366.10 25,047,141.46
Provisions for the year 57,681,756.34 21,024,224.64
Balance at the end of the year 103,753,122.44 46,071,366.10

During this Reporting Period, the Group did not write off any accounts receivable. For the accounts
receivable with restricted ownership, please see Note V. 52.

(5) Five largest accounts receivable by debtor at the end of the year
As at 31 December 2021, the subtotal of five largest accounts receivable of the Group amounted to
RMB824,234,801.47, representing 50% of the total accounts receivable at the end of the year, and the
provisions of bad and doubtful debts amounted to RMB55,089,410.32.

As at 31 December 2020, the subtotal of five largest accounts receivable of the Group amounted to
RMB333,749,728.96, representing 40% of the total accounts receivable at the end of the year, and the
provisions of bad and doubtful debts amounted to RMB8,559,554.21.

4. Receivables under financing

Balance at Balance at
the end the beginning
Item of the year of the year

Bills receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income 500,000.00 2,000,000.00

In its day-to-day capital management, the Group endorses or discounts some of its bank acceptance bills. Such
bills receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, the Group categorizes these bills receivables of fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Outstanding endorsed or receivables under financing of the Group that had not matured at the balance sheet
date in the year:

Amount

derecognized
Item in the year

Bank acceptance bills 1,000,000.00
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Prepayments

(1) Prepayments by category:

Prepayments to third parties 26,417,264.13 15,139,014.07

The ageing is counted starting from the date when prepayments are recognised. As at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020, the ageing of the Group’s prepayments were within one year and the Group did
not need to make provisions for impairment.

(2) Five largest prepayments by debtor at the end of the year
As at 31 December 2021, the subtotal of five largest prepayments of the Group amounted to
RMB8,049,534.45, representing 30% of the total prepayments at the end of the year, and no provisions for
bad and doubtful debts had been made.

As at 31 December 2020, the subtotal of five largest prepayments of the Group amounted to
RMB5,030,114.29, representing 33% of the total prepayments at the end of the year, and no provisions for
bad and doubtful debts had been made.

Other receivables

Interest receivable - -
Others (1) 43,457,908.02 42,029,816.24

Total 43,457,908.02 42,029,816.24

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6.

Other receivables (Continued)

Others

@

®)

Analysis by category of customer type as follows:

Customer Type m 2020
Due from related parties 10,000,000.00 -
Due from third parties 53,608,780.30 66,868,360.20
Sub-total 63,608,780.30 66,868,360.20
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (20,150,872.28) (24,838,543.96)

Total

43,457,908.02

42,029,816.24

The ageing analysis of others is as follows:

Within 1 year (inclusive) 28,639,285.85 34,841,660.78
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 13,819,592.46 6,344,443.56
Over 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive) 1,232,752.46 1,048,235.68
Over 3 years but within 4 years (inclusive) 495,681.32 3,046,027.58
Over 4 years but within 5 years (inclusive) 2,616,714.29 545,798.94
Over 5 years 16,804,753.92 21,042,193.66
Sub-total 63,608,780.30 66,868,360.20
LLess: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (20,150,872.28) (24,838,543.96)

Total

43,457,908.02

42,029,816.24

The ageing is counted beginning from the date when other receivables are recognised.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6. Other receivables (Continued)

Others (Continued)
(c)  Other receivables are disclosed by type based on the methods of provision for bad and doubtful debts:

2021
Provision for bad and Carrying
Book balance doubtful debts amount

Percentage Percentage
Category Amounts (%) Amounts (%)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
individually
- Due from former shareholders 12,961,261.85 20% (12,961,261.85) 100% -

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

collectively
- VAT refunds receivable and
other tax refunds receivable 5,584,855.58 9% - 0%  5,584,855.58
- Others 45,062,662.87 1% (7,189,610.43) 16%  37,873,052.44
Total 63,608,780.30 100% (20,150,872.28) 32% 43,457,908.02
2020
Provision for bad and Carrying
Book balance doubtful debts amount
Percentage Percentage
Category Amounts (%) Amounts (%)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
individually
- Performance bond 6,000,000.00 9% (5,050,000.00) 84% 950,000.00
- Due from former shareholders 17,956,189.25 27% (13,380,047.32) 75%  4,576,141.93
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
collectively
- VAT refunds receivable and
other tax refunds receivable 8,503,492.16 13% - 0%  8,503,492.16
- Others 34,408,678.79 51% (6,408,496.64) 19%  28,000,182.15
Total 66,868,360.20 100% (24,838,543.96) 37% 42,029,816.24
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)

Others (Continued)
(@)  Criteria and statement of recognition of provision for bad and doubtful debts individually in 2021:

Provision for
Other receivables bad and
(by entity) Book balance  doubtful debts el Rationale for provision
Shenzhen Hanyang Holdings Company 6,988,073.50 (6,988,073.50) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Dynagreen Environment Investment Limited 5,160,600.00 (5,160,600.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Zheng Sheng 355,664.38 (355,664.38) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Dynagreen International Holding 294,835.67 (294,835.67) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
(Group) Co., Ltd. on collection
Huang Jianzhong 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Han Jianhui 30,000.00 (30,000.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Li Yipo 23,345.00 (23,345.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Lu Jianhua 19,922.00 (19,922.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Zheng Daobin 11,061.30 (11,061.30) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Xie Ajjun 3,730.00 (3,730.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Sun Gang 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Zhao Hui 1,030.00 (1,030.00) 100%  Had long ageing and risk
on collection
Total 12,961,261.85 (12,961,261.85)

Criteria and statement of recognition of provision for bad and doubtful debts collectively in 2021:

Other receivables are primarily grouped by nature. Of which, VAT refunds receivable and other tax refunds
receivable are mainly refunds receivable from taxation bureaus; others are mainly prepayments.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)

Others (Continued)
(e)  Changes in provision for bad and doubtful debts:

Provision for bad and doubtful debts:

2021 2020

Secondstage  Third stage Second stage  Third stage

Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime

First stage ECL-  ECL-credit First stage ECL-  ECL-credt

ECL for next nocredit  impairment ECL for next nocredt  impairment
12months  impairment occurred 2months  impaiment oceurred Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 131690843  5,641400.68 17,880,234.85 2483854396 54649146 404769072 1803173485 22,625917.03
Transfer to the second stage (679,082.12)  679,082.12 - - 72218 31722218 - -

Transfer to the third stage - - - - - - - -
Tum back to the second stage - - - - - - - -
Tum back to the first stage - - - - - - - -
Business combinafion involving entities not

under common control - - - - - - - -
Provisions/(Reversals) for the year 140,772.85 9052847  (4,918973.00) (4,687,671.68 1087,630.15  1276487.78  (161,50000) 221262693
Belance at the end of the year 71859916 6411,011.27 12961,261.85 20,150,872.28 131690843 504140068 1788023485 24,838,543.96

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)

Others (Continued)
() Other receivables by nature

Nature of money m 2020
Performance bond 3,003,000.00 6,000,000.00
VAT refunds receivable and other tax refunds receivable 5,584,855.58 8,503,492.16
Others 55,020,924.72 52,364,868.04
Sub-total 63,608,780.30 66,868,360.20
LLess: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (20,150,872.28) (24,838,543.96)
Total 43,457,908.02 42,029,816.24

(9)  Five largest other receivables by debtor at the end of the year

Provision
Percentage for bad and
of total other doubtful
receivables debts
Balance at the Balance
Nature of the at the end end of the at the end
Entity name receivable of the year Ageing year (%) of the year
Huludao City Land Reserve Center Others 12,550,215.00 1-2 years 20% (627,510.75)
Fengcheng Dynagreen Borrowing 10,000,000.00  Within 1 year 16% (500,000.00)
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (inclusive)
Shenzhen Hanyang Holdings Current accounts 6,988,073.50  Over 5 years 1%  (6,988,073.50)
Company of former
shareholders
Dynagreen Environment Current accounts 5,160,600.00  Over 5 years 8%  (5,160,600.00)
Investment Limited of former
shareholders
Shaowu Financial Treasury Performance bond 3,000,000.00  Within 1 year 5% -
Collection and Payment Center (inclusive)
Total 37,698,888.50 60%  (13,276,184.25)
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Other receivables (Continued)

Others (Continued)

@

Five largest other receivables by debtor at the end of the year (Continued)

2020

Percentage Provision

of total other for bad and

receivables  doubtful debts

Balance atthe Balance

Nature of the at the end end of the at the end

Entity name receivable of the year Ageing year (%) of the year

Huludao City Land Reserve Others 12,550,215.00  Within 1 year 19% (627,510.75)
Center (inclusive)

Shenzhen Hanyang Holdings Current accounts 6,988,073.50 Over 5 years 10%  (6,988,073.50)

Company of former
shareholders
Dynagreen Environment Current accounts 5,160,600.00 Over 5 years 8%  (5,160,600.00)
Investment Limited of former
shareholders

Tianjin Municipal Tax Service, VAT refunds 5,145209.56  Within 1 year 8% -
State Taxation Administration (inclusive)

Former shareholder of Guangyuan ~ Current accounts 5,075,954.40  Within 1 year 8% (499,812.47)
Promising Environmental Protection  of former (inclusive)
Company Limited shareholders Within 2 years

Total 34,920,052.46 53% (13,275,996.72)
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7.

Inventories

Inventories by category

Inventories Type

Turnover materials

31 December 2021
Provision for
impairment

Book balance of inventories

43,491,074.67

Carrying amount

43,491,074.67

Inventories Type

31 December 2020
Provision for
impairment of

Book balance inventories

Carrying amount

Turnover materials

37,184,080.74 -

37,184,080.74

The Group’s balance of inventories as at 31 December neither included capitalised borrowing costs nor was

pledged as security.

There was no provision for impairment of inventories by the Group for this year and last year.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8. Contract assets

(1) Contract assets by nature are as follows:

31 December 2021
Provision for

Item Book balance impairment Carrying amount

Contract assets generated

by electricity sales contract 130,141,153.83 (10,486,126.37) 119,655,027.46
PPP project construction services 107,977,530.90 - 107,977,530.90
Total 238,118,684.73 (10,486,126.37) 227,632,558.36

1 January 2021
Provision for

Item Book balance impairment  Carrying amount

Contract assets generated by

electricity sales contract 519,261,410.38 (51,309,556.66) 467,951,853.72
PPP project construction services 98,710,363.59 - 98,710,363.59
Total 617,971,773.97 (51,309,556.66) 566,662,217.31

31 December 2020
Provision for
Item Book balance impairment Carrying amount

Contract assets generated
by electricity sales contract 519,261,410.38 (561,309,556.66) 467,951,8538.72

The Group’s contract assets generated by electricity sales contract primarily relate to the tariff revenue
from the national renewable energy subsidies in the electricity supply contract between the Group and the
grid customers at the balance sheet date. The tariff revenue from the national renewable energy subsidies
for selling electricity shall be paid after the project is included in the National Renewable Energy Subsidy
Catalogue. When the Group obtains the right to receive the unconditional consideration, the contract assets
will be recognized as accounts receivable.

If the Group meets the conditions for receiving cash of an identifiable amount from the contract assets
recognized during PPP project construction services during the operation of the project, it shall be
recognized as a account receivable when the Group has the right to receive such consideration (the right
only depends on the factor of time passing).

For the details of contract assets with restricted ownership, please see Note V. 52.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8. Contract assets (Continued)

(2) Significant changes in contract assets for the year:
Significant changes in the balance of the Group’s contract assets for the year are as follows:

For the 12-month period
ended 31 December 2021

Amount
(Increase/
[tem (decrease)) Reason
Jurong Company (39,406,144.47) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Zhanggiu Company (33,673,590.60) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Huizhou Company (27,371,338.77) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Ninghe Company (211,202,824.82) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Tongzhou Company (94,231,927.20) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Shantou Company 15,263,487.61 Due to sales of electricity
Miyun Company (17,267,018.43) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Haining Expansion Company 18,879,179.22 Due to sales of electricity
Jiamusi Company (26,017,361.92) Transfer from contract assets
to receivables
Tongzhou Company 20,867,403.45 PPP project construction

services due within one year
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8. Contract assets (Continued)

(3) Provision for impairment of contract assets:

For the 12-month period ended 31 December 2021

Balance

at the Write-back Balance

beginning Provisions Reversed or write-off at the end
Item of the year for the year for the year for the year of the year Reason
Provision for impairment ~ 51,309,556.66 ~ 6,529,164.55 (47,352,594.84) - 10,486,126.37 Inclusion of
additional
companies in
the category
of national
subsidies in
the year

For the 12-month period ended 31 December 2020

Balance

atthe Write-back Balance

beginning Provisions Reversed or write-off at the end
ltem of the year for the year for the year for the year of the year Reason
Provision for impairment  36,019,345.67  15,290,211.09 - - 51,309,556.66 Extension of
operating time
and increase in
new operating
projects
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o.

10.

11.

Held-for-sale assets

2021
Held-for-sale assets

Carrying amount Fair value
Fixed assets 46,078.09 46,078.09
Intangible assets 33,729,634.23 26,857,636.17
Inventories 757,396.73 388,982.00
Other non-current assets 101,931,315.51 81,196,335.74
Held-for-sale assets Total 136,464,424.56 108,489,032.00

In December 2021, the Group and Haining Municipal Bureau of Comprehensive Administration and Law
Enforcement entered into the Agreement on Termination of the Yanguan Waste-to-energy Plant Project in
Haining City, Zhejiang Province, pursuant to which both parties agreed that in light of the completion of the
expansion and stable operation of the Group’s waste-to-energy plant in Haining, the Yanguan Waste-to-
energy Plant Project in Haining City shall be shut down after being recovered by Haining Municipal Bureau of
Comprehensive Administration and Law Enforcement. The compensation is RMB108,489,032.00, and the
expected handover time is the first half of 2022. The abovementioned Yanguan Waste-to-energy Plant Project in
Haining City to be handed over was presented as held for sale assets. The Group reduced the carrying amount
of the held for sale assets to the net amount after the fair value minus the selling expenses, and recognized an
impairment loss of RMB27,975,392.56.

Long-term receivables due within one year

31 December 1 January 31 December
Item 2021 2021 2020

BOT projects - 98,710,363.59
BT project 56,482,689.86 43,697,557.19 43,697,557.19
Sub-total 56,482,689.86 43,697,557.19  142,407,920.78
Less: Provision for impairment (15,135,570.82) (7,214,307.87) (7,214,307.87)
Total 41,347,119.04 36,483,249.32 135,193,612.91

For the long-term receivables due within one year with restricted ownership, please see Note V.52.
Other current assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the other current assets of the Group mainly comprise deductible VAT.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

12. Long-term receivables

2021
Provision for
bad and

Carrying

ltem Book balance doubtful debts amount
BT projects 70,688,666.37 (15,135,570.82) 55,553,095.55
Performance bond 35,413,114.46 - 35,413,114.46
Sub-total 106,101,780.83 (15,135,570.82) 90,966,210.01
Less: Due within one year 56,482,689.86 (15,135,570.82) 41,347,119.04
Total 49,619,090.97 - 49,619,090.97
1 January 2021

Provision for
Item Book balance impairment Carrying amount
BT projects 67,135,861.89 (7,214,307.87) 59,921,554.02
Performance bond 56,137,857.11 - 56,137,857.11
Subtotal 123,273,719.00 (7,214,307.87) 116,059,411.13
Less: Due within one year 43,697,557.19 (7,214,307.87) 36,483,249.32
Total 79,576,161.81 - 79,576,161.81

2020

Provision for

bad and
[tem Book balance doubtful debts Carrying amount
BOT projects 5,258,774,805.42 - 5,258,774,805.42
BT projects 67,135,861.89 (7,214,307.87) 59,921,554.02
Performance bond 56,137,857.11 - 56,137,857.11
Sub-total 5,382,048,524.42 (7,214,307.87)  5,374,834,216.55
Less: Due within one year 142,407,920.78 (7,214,307.87) 135,198,612.91

Total

5,239,640,603.64

5,239,640,603.64

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the ranges of discount rates of the long-term receivables of

BOT projects were 5.29% and 8.42% respectively.

For the long-term receivables with restricted ownership, please see Note V.52.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments

(1) Long-term equity investments by category at the end of the accounting year were as follows:

31 December 1 January 31 December
Item 2021 2021 2020

Investments in joint ventures (Note VII.2) 89,838,632.91 80,348,703.59 66,190,681.00

Sub-total 89,838,632.91 80,348,703.59 66,190,681.00

Less: Provision for impairment - - -

Total 89,838,632.91 80,348,703.59 66,190,681.00

(2) Analysis of the movements of long-term equity investments is as follows:

Changes for 2021
Balance
atthe Investment
beginning Effectof  Adjustment income
oftheyear  changesin tobalance at recognized Other  Balance at
before  accounting the beginning Additional ~Investment  under equity changes the end
Investee adjustment policies  oftheyear investment deducted method inequity  of the year
Joint ventures
Fengcheng Company 66,190,681.00 14,158,022.59  80,348,703.59 - - 9,480,920.32 - 89,838,632.91
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

14. Fixed assets

Office and Buildings and
ltem Motor vehicles  other equipment structures* Total
Cost
1 January 2020 24,932,718.97 35,323,831.16 23,779,400.00 84,035,950.13
Additions for the year
- Purchases 5,840,341.53 6,468,863.20 - 12,309,204.73
Disposals during the year (3,141,160.52) (207,705.87) - (3,348,866.39)
31 December 2020 27,631,899.98 41,584,988.49 23,779,400.00 92,996,288.47

Additions for the year

— Transfer from construction in progress

91,484,408.38

190,330,941.93

281,815,350.31

- Purchases 810,197.72 6,869,984.59 - 7,680,182.31
Disposals during the year (835,613.40) (1,124,965.84) - (1,960,579.24)
31 December 2021 27,606,484.30  138,814,415.62  214,110,341.93  380,531,241.85

Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2020 13,076,394.40 16,577,780.13 4,384,933.05 34,039,107.58
Provisions for the year 2,650,224.88 4,836,252.81 1,292,815.05 8,779,292.74
Disposals during the year (2,819,100.57) (177,324.39) - (2,996,424.96)
31 December 2020 12,907,518.71 21,236,708.55 5,677,748.10 39,821,975.36
Provisions for the year 3,144,424.84 5,035,021.51 1,292,815.05 9,472,261.40
Disposals during the year (649,039.73) (1,056,468.47) - (1,705,508.20)
_ 81December202t 1540290382 2521526159 697056315  47,588,728.56
Carrying amount
31 December 2021 12,203,580.48  113,699,154.08  207,139,778.78  332,942,513.29
31 December 2020 14,724,381.27 20,348,279.94 18,101,651.90 53,174,313.11

The land occupied by Dongguan Changneng Clean Energy and Greening Service Co., Ltd. (Re=m KL ZLRALERIS AR Q)
(hereinafter referred to as “Dongguan Company”), was provided free of charge by the Chang’an Town People’s Government and the
Yongtou Community Residents Committee of Chang’an Town, Dongguan City. Dongguan Company does not have a land use right
certificate, so 31 December 2021, the building with a book value of RMB16,808,836.85 (31 December 2020: RMB18,101,651.90) has no
House Title Certificate. The management believes that the Group can effectively occupy and use the above fixed assets.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 December
2021

31 December
2020

- 184,879,239.06

Construction in progress

Changes of major projects under construction for the year

Transferred
into fixed

Balance
atthe
beginning Additions

for the year

assets
Item Budget

of the year

for the year

Huludao Hazardous Waste
Project

200,075,765.50 184,879,236  96,096,111.25  281,815,350.31

Other
decrease

Balance
atthe end
of the year

Proportion
of cumulative
project
investment
in budget

97.49%

Including:

Accumulated  amount of Interest

amount interest ~ capitalisation
ofinterest ~ capitalisation rate for the Source
capitalisation  forthe year year (%) of funding
12950,153.12  10,099,463.37 490%  Loansfrom
financial
institutions
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
16. Intangible assets

(1) Intangible assets

Construction
Item Concession rights Land use right Software license Total
Cost
1 January 2020 6,920,198,880.95 83,989,226.27 2,356,927.14 6,529,123.58  7,013,074,157.94
Additions for the year
- Purchases/construction  1,218,978,290.61 - 464,816.85 - 1,219,443,107.46
Decreased during the year - (12,542,667.83) - - (12,542,667.83)
Exchange gains and losses (845,112.24) - - - (845,112.24)
31 December 2020 8,138,332,059.32 71,446,558.44 2,821,743.99 6,529,123.58  8,219,129,485.33
Effects of changes in
accounting policies 975,831,001.33 - - - 975,831,001.33
1 January 2021 9,114,163,060.65 71,446,558.44 2,821,743.99 6,529,123.58  9,194,960,486.66
Additions for the year
- Purchases/construction  1,891,444,265.99 - 469,223.01 - 1,891,913,489.00
Decreased during the year (80,523,068.02) - - - (80,523,068.02)
Exchange gains and losses (375,258.56) - - - (375,258.56)
31 December 2021 10,924,709,000.06 71,446,558.44 3,290,967.00 6,529,123.58  11,005,975,649.08
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2020 538,031,814.54 2,066,298.25 880,355.24 3,396,442.65 544,374,910.68
Provisions for the year 230,433,823.82 1,470,740.10 233,067.51 - 232,137,631.43
Decreased during the year - (334,471.14) - - (334,471.14)
Exchange gains and losses (297,268.01) - - - (297,268.01)
31 December 2020 768,168,370.35 3,202,567.21 1,113,422.75 3,396,442.65 775,880,802.96
Effects of changes in
accounting policies 114,320,196.17 - - - 114,320,196.17
1 January 2021 882,488,566.52 3,202,567.21 1,113,422.75 3,396,442.65 890,200,999.13
Provisions for the year 316,747,514.36 1,428,931.20 272,359.54 - 318,448,805.10
Decreased during the year (33,819,688.57) - - - (33,819,688.57)
Exchange gains and losses (146,891.96) - - - (146,891.96)
81 December 2021 116526950035 463149841 138678229 33944265 117468322370
Provision for impairment
of assets
1 January 2020 12,547,763.33 - - 3,132,680.93 15,680,444.26
Provisions for the year 61,338,168.05 - - - 61,338,168.06
31 December 2020 73,885,931.38 - - 3,132,680.93 77,018,612.31
Effects of changes in
accounting policies 23,717,668.27 - - - 23,717,668.27
1 January 2021 97,603,599.65 - - 3,132,680.93 100,736,280.58
Provisions for the year 188,752,159.55 - - - 183,752,159.55
_ O1December2021 281367500 R . 319268093 284,488,440.13
Carrying amount
31 December 2021 9,478,083,740.51 66,815,060.03 1,905,184.71 - 9,546,803,985.25
31 December 2020 7,296,277,757.59 68,243,991.23 1,708,321.24 - 7,366,230,070.06

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Intangible assets (Continued)

(1)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(@)

The cost of concession rights is recognised using the method stated in Note Ill.15(1). The concession
rights were deemed to be definite life intangible assets as the BOT arrangements stated that the
operation periods vary from 23 years to 30 years.

For those waste-to-energy projects which have not yet commenced operation, the Group assesses
the recoverable amount of each concession right at the end of each year. As at 31 December 2021,
the recoverable amounts of the concession right of the projects which have not yet commenced
operation are estimated to be higher than the carrying amount, and no impairment is required.

For those waste-to-energy projects which have commenced operation, the Group assesses the
recoverable amount of each concession right when an indication of impairment has been identified. As
the Ninghe Straw Power Generation Project’s operating efficiency and benefits have not yet reached
expectations. From the beginning of operation at the end of 2017 to 2021, it has suffered operating
losses or not yet reached expectations. Management has assessed and considered the impact
of national renewable energy subsidy policy, and drew a conclusion that there was an indicator
of impairment for this project. In 2021, the Group made provision for asset impairment losses
of RMB183,752,159.55 (2020: RMB50,388,668.05) for the difference between the recoverable
amount of the franchise of the Ninghe Straw Power Generation Project and its carrying amount. The
recoverable amount was determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the franchise assets, and the after-tax discount rate used to estimate its present value was 9.39%
(2020: 11.00%).

For the franchise of hazardous waste disposal projects, since the BOO agreement does not stipulate
the franchise period, the franchise of the hazardous waste disposal project is regarded as an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life. As the recoverable amount of the franchise of hazardous
waste disposal projects is higher than the carrying amount, no impairment is required.

(2) For the intangible assets with restricted ownership, please see Note V.52.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Goodwill

(1)

2

Changes in goodwill

Balance
at the Disposals Balance

Name of investees or beginning Additions during at the end
issues forming goodwill of the year for the year the year of the year
Original book value
Lvyi (Huludao) Environmental Services Limited*

(2 (BBES) BRRBARAF)

(“Huludao Hazardous Waste Company”) 43,910,821.67 - - 48,910,821.67
Provision for impairment
Huludao Hazardous Waste Company - - - -
Carrying amount 43,910,821.67 - - 43,910,821.67

Note: On 5 January 2018, the Group acquired 80% of interests in Huludao Hazardous Waste Company at the consideration of
RMB90,000,000.00. The consideration exceeded the difference of RMB43,910,821.67 between the identified asset and liabilities
at fair value of Huludao Hazardous Waste Company on a pro rata basis, and recognised as the goodwill relating to Huludao
Hazardous Waste Company.

Goodwill Provision for impairment

Huludao Hazardous Waste Company - _

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to a group of cash-generating
units (being subsidiaries acquired in each acquisition). Such group of cash-generating units represents the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The
recoverable amount of Huludao Hazardous Waste Company is determined under the method of present
value of estimated future cash flows. The present value of future cash flows of the asset group was estimated
by the Group according to the nearest five-year financial budget and using the after-tax discount rate
of 13% (2020: 13%). The cash flows beyond five-year financial budget remained steady. The estimated
outcome of recoverable amount did not result in recognition of impairment loss. However, it is estimated
that the significant assumptions on which the present value of future cash flow of the asset group is based
may change. The management believes that any negative changes in the significant assumptions will
probably result in the book value of the asset group exceeding its recoverable amount.

The significant assumptions used for impairment testing include the growth rates of future incomes
from hazardous waste treatment, gross margin ratios and applicable discount rates, etc.. Management
determined those significant assumptions based on historical operating condition and its expectation to
future market development.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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2021

Amortisation Decreased
for the year during the year

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Balance
at the end
of the year

Office renovation costs 152,905.20 84,859.41 (161,391.14) - 76,373,47
Others 249,123.08 - (249,123.08) - -
402,028.28 84,859.41 (410,514.22) - 76,373.47

2020
Balance at Balance
the beginning Additions for Amortisation Decreased at the end
ltem of the year the year for the year  during the year of the year
Office renovation costs - 366,972.48 (214,067.28) - 152,905.20
Others 581,287.19 - (332,164.11) - 249,123.08
581,287.19 366,972.48 (546,231.39) - 402,028.28
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(1) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

2021 2020
Deductible Deductible
or taxable or taxable
temporary temporary
differences Deferred differences Deferred
(for taxable tax assets (for taxable tax assets
temporary or liabilities temporary or liabilities
Item difference) (for liabilities) difference) (for liabilities)
Deferred tax assets:
Tax losses 33,603,630.36 8,400,907.59 53,944,644.20 13,486,161.06
Deferred income 11,007,876.56 2,751,969.14 10,741,385.56 2,685,346.39
Provision for impairment 135,032,347.53 21,709,475.21 115,718,075.17 18,550,203.95
Unrealised profits 879,166,832.11 208,064,350.92 835,380,464.92 196,369,565.88
Amount offset (34,146,746.61) (23,555,199.63)
Balance after offsetting 206,779,956.25 207,536,077.65
Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary difference from concession
rights and contract assets/other non-
current assets/long-term receivables (1,534,121,125.89)  (383,530,281.46)  (424,843,693.72)  (106,210,923.43)
PRC withholding tax on dividends (132,571,382.67) (13,257,138.27) (46,997,446.75) (4,699,744.68)
Additions from asset appraisal for business
combination involving entities not under
common control (235,693,459.08) (58,923,364.77)  (254,240,745.49) (63,560,186.37)
Amount offset 34,146,746.61 23,555,199.63
Balance after offsetting (421,564,037.89) (150,915,654.85)

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+&0

03

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

1

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)
(2) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

During the period of these financial statements, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets for the
following items:

Tax losses 289,777,359.95 224,386,590.99
Deductible temporary differences 295,885,503.91 74,883,609.20
Total 585,662,863.86 299,270,200.19

According to the accounting policy stated in Note IIl.25, as it is not probable for some of the the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries to obtain taxable profit which can be used to offset the loss and reversal
of deductible temporary differences, and the Group expects that some provisions for bad and doubtful
debts are not likely to be approved by the local competent tax authorities for being deducted from taxable
income, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect of the above accumulated deductible
tax losses and deductible temporary difference. According to the prevailing PRC tax laws, these tax
deductible losses may offset future taxable profits within 5 years after the year incurred. According to the
prevailing HK tax laws, these tax deductible losses may offset future taxable profits without expiration.

(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised deferred tax assets

2022 8,585,587.50 9,480,590.65
2023 2,275,726.18 2,3583,480.73
2024 43,292,537.33 51,328,815.16
2025 107,374,619.00 161,228,704.45
2026 and afterwards 128,248,889.94 -
Total 289,777,359.95 224,386,590.99
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20.

21.

22.

Other non-current assets

31 December 1 January 31 December
Item 2021 2021 2020

Assets of BOT projects 5,956,188,897.73 5,162,596,964.39 -
Prepayments for BOT projects and equipment 274,138,070.39 527,818,511.18 527,818,511.18
Deductible VAT 479,989,611.83  416,162,388.13  416,162,388.13
Others 2,562,029.73 10,017,520.00 10,017,520.00

Less: Provision for impairment - - _

Total 6,712,878,609.68 6,116,595,383.70  953,998,419.31

Short-term loans

Credit loans 1,218,787,244.58  2,449,130,690.80
Guaranteed loans 30,010,395.83 46,038,943.07
Total 1,248,797,640.41 2,495,169,633.87

At the end of each accounting year, the Group did not have short-term loans past due.
Accounts payable

Details of accounts payables are as follows:

Materials and equipment payables 1,411,772,142.99  1,291,193,658.66

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the accounts payable aged over one year amounted to
RMB224,652,829.01 and RMB216,399,538.52 respectively, which were mainly the final payments payable that
were quality guarantee deposit of construction and equipment.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23.

24,

Contract liabilities

Item

Electricity and waste treatment fees received in advance

2020

11,750,162.24

26,043,106.14

Contract liabilities for the year mainly consist of the feces, kitchen waste and other waste disposal fees collected
in advance by the Group from the Urban Management Committee of Miyun District, Beijing. The relevant revenue
from that contract will be recognized upon the execution of the contractual obligation by the Group.

Employee benefits payable

(1) Employee benefits payable

2021
Balance at Balance
the beginning Additions Decreased at the end
of the year for the year  during the year of the year
Short-term employee benefits 92,067,899.04  408,364,900.26  (399,549,682.29) 100,883,117.01
Post-employment benefits
— defined contribution plans 3,484,083.25 38,151,562.14 (37,580,613.67) 4,055,031.72
Total 95,551,982.29  446,516,462.40 (437,130,295.96) 104,938,148.73
2020
Balance at Balance
the beginning Additions Decreased at the end
of the year for the year during the year of the year
Short-term employee benefits 82,094,943.43  363,881,249.02  (353,908,293.41) 92,067,899.04
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans 3,859,615.64 2,943,366.72 (3,318,899.11) 3,484,083.25
Total 85,954,650.07  366,824,615.74  (357,227,192.52) 95,551,982.29
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24. Employee benefits payable (Continued)
(2) Short-term employee benefits

2021

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and

Balance at

the beginning
of the year

Additions
for the year

Decreased
during the year

Balance
at the end
of the year

subsidies 84,5683,950.29  327,647,561.23 (317,894,961.25) 94,336,550.27
Staff welfare 197,160.81 17,868,583.05 (17,814,575.98) 251,167.88
Social insurance 279,895.89 20,163,418.25 (20,103,695.94) 339,618.20
Medical insurance 265,259.51 17,963,126.53 (17,924,550.36) 303,835.68
Work-related injury insurance 3,832.46 1,255,886.30 (1,235,527.73) 24,191.03
Maternity insurance 10,803.92 944,405.42 (943,617.85) 11,591.49
Housing provident 541,676.79 32,447,615.52 (32,501,980.52) 487,311.79

Labour union fee, staff and
workers’ education fee 6,431,146.96 5,230,105.37 (6,228,751.87) 5,432,500.46
Commercial insurance 34,068.30 1,621,627.85 (1,619,727,74) 35,968.41
Others - 3,385,988.99 (3,385,988.99) -
Total 92,067,899.04  408,364,900.26  (399,549,682.29) 100,883,117.01

2020
Balance at Balance
the beginning Additions Decreased at the end
of the year for the year during the year of the year
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and

subsidies 74,220,582.48  298,978,202.34  (288,614,834.53) 84,583,950.29
Staff welfare 930,844.97 12,359,272.30 (13,092,956.46) 197,160.81
Social insurance 258,180.42 13,929,486.78 (13,907,771.31) 279,895.89
Medical insurance 220,220.35 12,942,965.21 (12,897,926.05) 265,259.51
Work-related injury insurance 20,4083.31 100,872.03 (117,442.88) 3,832.46
Maternity insurance 17,556.76 885,649.54 (892,402.38) 10,803.92
Housing provident 540,789.79 27,956,462.35 (27,955,575.35) 541,676.79

Labour union fee, staff and
workers’ education fee 6,094,517.24 5,435,358.84 (5,098,729.12) 6,431,146.96
Commercial insurance 50,028.53 1,220,194.65 (1,236,154.88) 34,068.30
Others - 4,002,271.76 (4,002,271.76) -
Total 82,094,943.43  363,881,249.02  (353,908,293.41) 92,067,899.04

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Balance at

the beginning
of the year

2021

Additions
for the year

Decreased
during the year

Balance
at the end
of the year

Basic pension insurance 3,484,057.42 36,991,444.82 (36,440,279.93) 4,035,222.31
Unemployment insurance 25.83 1,160,117.32 (1,140,333.74) 19,809.41
Total 3,484,083.25 38,151,562.14 (37,580,613.67) 4,055,031.72
2020

Balance at Balance

the beginning Additions Decreased at the end

of the year for the year during the year of the year

Basic pension insurance 3,844,669.94 2,851,464.23 (3,212,076.75) 3,484,057 .42
Unemployment insurance 14,945.70 91,902.49 (106,822.36) 25.83
Total 3,859,615.64 2,943,366.72 (3,318,899.11) 3,484,083.25

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contribution available for deduction of retirement
scheme contribution of the Group for the next year (2020: nil).

25. Taxes payable

Item

2020

Corporate income tax 26,958,596.02 31,112,375.58
Individual income tax 324,129.15 257,191.48
City maintenance and construction tax 499,111.62 678,896.70
Urban land use tax 2,914,219.84 1,904,416.60
Property tax 8,291,956.55 4,700,128.49
Value-added tax 6,075,044.55 8,050,011.90
Others 1,077,197.56 1,171,578.29
Total 46,140,255.29 47,874,599.04
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other payables

Interest payables
Others

(1)

132,552,974.49

2020

101,598,868.06

At the end of each accounting year, the Group did not have overdue interest payment.

Others
(@ By nature

Item

Intermediary fees payable

Risk guarantees payable for suppliers

Payable for purchase of equity

Management fee payable to Urban Construction Bureau

2,871,850.94
27,432,048.09
1,234,620.00
24,631,208.79

2020

2,466,850.94
16,072,590.38
42,734,620.00
20,260,870.41

Slag processing fee - 727,070.00
Refund of power supply bureau 59,470,086.63 -
Other payables 16,913,160.04 19,336,866.33
Total 132,552,974.49 101,598,868.06

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26. Other payables (Continued)

Others (Continued)
(b)  Significant other payables aged over one year:

Significant other payables aged over one year as at 31 December 2021:

Balance
at the end

Item of the year Reason for no repayment

Risk guarantees payable for suppliers 10,037,533.99 Risk guarantees for suppliers

Significant other payables aged over one year as at 31 December 2020:

Balance
at the end
ltem ofthe year  Reason for no repayment
Risk guarantees payable for suppliers 6,485,210.50  Risk guarantees for suppliers

27. Non-current liabilities due within one year

Non-current liabilities due within one year by category are as follows:

31 December 31 December
Item 2021 2020
Long-term loans due within one year (Note) 778,571,898.68 665,854,955.24
Long-term payables due within one year 8,050,575.11 8,287,770.60
Lease liabilities due within one year 3,968,888.00 276,803.34
Total 790,591,361.79 674,419,529.18

Note: As at the end of the accounting year, the Group did not have overdue long-term loans due within one year.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Long-term loans

(1) Long-term loans by nature:

Credit loans 1,994,982,626.44 485,598,277.78
Guaranteed and pledged loans 7,492,591,501.71 6,594,946,270.45
Less: Long-term loans due within one year (778,571,898.68) (665,854,955.24)
Total 8,709,002,229.47  6,414,689,592.99

There was no long-term loans formed from extension of overdue loans of the Group as at the end of the
accounting year.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the interest rates of the Group’s long-term loans were
3.85% —5.09% and 3.25% — 5.77%, respectively.

In 2016, Beijing Dynagreen Environment Co., Ltd. Gt R4k 28 HIRIRB R A ) (“Tongzhou Company”), a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract with Beijing State-owned Financial Leasing Company
(“BSOFL”), pursuant to which, BSOFL appointed Tongzhou Company to purchase heat recovery steam
generator and other equipment (“Underlying Equipment”) from third party suppliers, amounting to
RMB102,725,000.00. At the same time, BSOFL entered into an agreement with Tongzhou Company to
hand over the underlying equipment to Tongzhou Company for the construction and operation of WTE
projects in a BOT business model. According to the agreement, Tongzhou Company had to pay the initial
payment of RMB5,136,250.00 to BSOFL on the date of receiving the consideration for the purchase from
BSOFL, and pay RMB5,510,564.99 to BSOFL at each quarter during the first five years. In substance, the
above arrangement was BSOFL paid for the price of equipment for Tongzhou Company initially, and then
recovered the money from Tongzhou Company by instalments, which is financing in nature. The effective
interest rate of such arrangements was 5.77%. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of related loans from
BSOFL was RMBO0.00 (2020: RMB16,066,035.25).

In 2020, the parent company of the Group, Green Power Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.,
subsidiary Changzhou Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Company”) and
CIB Leasing Co., Ltd. (“CIB Leasing Company”). Three parties jointly signed a financial lease contract.
Industrial Financial Leasing Company purchased from Changzhou Company the equipment and facilities
related to the item waste incineration power generation of the first phase and second phase of the
domestic waste incineration thermal power project in Wuijin District, Changzhou City, and leased it to the
parent company and Changzhou Company. The purchase price of the leased property It is RMB100 million
and the lease term is 5 years. As of 31 December 2021, the balance of the Group’s borrowings from CIB
Leasing Company was RMBO0.00, which has been repaid in advance in 2021.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Long-term loans (Continued)

(1)

2

Long-term loans by nature: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bank loans amounting to RMB4,098,768,965.09
and RMB3,137,597,135.32 of the Group were secured by certain accounts receivable relating to the
Group’s concessionary projects and concession rights (Note V.52).

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bank loans amounting to RMB3,017,253,409.06
and RMB2,898,878,078.03 of the Group’s subsidiaries were secured by the guarantees provided by the
Company (Note X.5(1)).

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the bank loans amounting to RMB128,937,195.92 and
RMB214,992,857.26 were secured by the guarantees provided by the parent company of the Group (Note
X.5(1)).

Repayment terms of the long-term loans:

Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 1,140,343,729.11 801,862,826.40
Over 2 years but within 5 years (inclusive) 3,866,212,730.21  2,757,636,906.07
Over 5 years 3,702,445,770.15  2,855,189,860.52
Total 8,709,002,229.47  6,414,689,592.99
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29.

30.

Long-term payables

Long-term payables for leachate treatment stations 272,757,201.19 297,677,444.07
Less: Long-term payables due within one year 8,050,757.11 8,287,770.60
Total 264,706,626.08 289,389,673.47

The net amount of the above long-term payables due within one year deducting the unrecognised financing
expenses is disclosed in Note V.26.

Deferred income

2021
Balance at the Balance
beginning Additions Decreased at the end
ltem of the year for the year during the year of the year

Government grant (Note) - related to assets 78,431,192.88  56,641,710.00  (3,040,858.38) 132,032,044.50 Granted by the

government
2020
Balance at the Balance
beginning Additions Decreased atthe end
[tem of the year for the year  during the year of the year Reason

Government grant (Note) - related to assets 46,592,569.32  33,440,000.00 (1,601,376.44)  78,431,192.88  Granted by the
government

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30. Deferred income (Continued)

Projects involving government grants:

Credited
Balance at the for income Balance
beginning of Increase Others for attheend  Related to assets/
Liabilities the year in the period the year oftheyear  Related to income

Infrastructure subsidies for the

Anshun WTE project 16,333,333.48  7,200,000.00 (692,018.75) 22,841,314.73  Related to assets
Specific fund for Guangyuan technology

upgrading and phasing out outdated

production capacities 3,358,928.72 - (135,714.24)  3,223,214.48  Related to assets
Award fund for investment promotion

enterprise infrastructure in Hong’an County ~ 4,394,172.44 661,710.00 (170,638.68)  4,885,343.76  Related to assets
Specific fund for ecological civilization

construction of the Finance Bureau of

Hong’an County - 30,000,000.00 (834,129.03)  29,165,870.97  Related to assets
Subsidies for state-owned construction land

use right of Yichun 6,347,213.28 - (224,680.08)  6,122,5633.20  Related to assets
Subsidies for ecological civilization construction

of Zhangaiu 14,557,544.96 - (549,341.28)  14,008,203.68  Related to assets
Shuozhou Gity Human Settlement

Improvement Award Supplementary Fund ~ 14,340,000.00 - - 14,340,000.00  Related to assets
Enshi special financial subsidies 19,100,000.00 - - 19,100,000.00  Related to assets
Specific fund for ecological civilization

construction of Shishou - 17,780,000.00 (431,301.52) 17,348,698.48  Related to assets
Specific fund for ecological civilization

construction of Dengfeng - 1,000,000.00 (3,134.80) 996,865.20  Related to assets
Total 78,431,192.88  56,641,710.00  (3,040,858.38) 132,032,044.50

Note: On 9 December 2021 and 27 December 2021, Anshun Company received infrastructure subsidies in an amount of RMB7,200,000.00
for the phase Il of the Anshun Waste-to-energy Project from the Housing and Urban-Rural Development Bureau of Anshun City; in the
first half of 2021, Hong’an Company received the specific fund for ecological civilization construction of the Finance Bureau of Hong’an
County in an total amount of RMB30,000,000.00 and infrastructure incentive funds of Hubei Jinyuan Investment Development Group Co.,
Ltd. in an amount of RMB661,710.00. Shishou Company received RMB10,000,000.00 and RMB7,780,000.00 from the specific fund for
ecological civilization construction of Hubei Province on 14 January 2021 and 15 June 2021, respectively; Dengfeng Company received
RMB10,000,000.00 of subsidies from the investment plan in the central budget of the specific fund for ecological civilization construction
of Zhengzhou City on 9 April 2021. The government subsidy is related to assets, and is carried out according to the amortization method
of BOT assets during the operating period of relevant BOT assets.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31. Share capital

Balance at the New shares Balance

beginning issued at the end

of the year during the year of the year

Total number of shares (@ 1,393,440,000.00 - 1,393,440,000.00

(@  On 19 June 2014, the Company conducted an initial public offering of 300,000,000 shares with a par value
of RMB1 each on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a price of HK$3.45 per share, in which an amount
of RMB300,000,000.00 was the par value of the ordinary shares and was included in the share capital
of the Company, and the amount of RMB470,587,493.90 after deducting issuance expenses from the
total amount of proceeds in the excess of the par value of the ordinary shares was included in the capital
reserve of the Company.

On 29 June 2014, the underwriter of the Company in respect of the public offering project on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange exercised all of the over-allotment options stated in the Company’s prospectus
dated 9 June 2014 (the “Prospectus”), pursuant to which the Company issued 45,000,000 ordinary
shares. The ordinary shares were issued at HK$3.45 per share on 3 July 2014. The additional proceeds of
approximately RMB123,361,650.00 from the over-allotment issuance on 3 July 2014 were included in the
share capital and capital reserve of the Company respectively.

On 11 June 2018, the Company publicly issued 116,200,000.00 ordinary shares with a nominal value
of RMB1 per share on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The subscription price was RMB3.29 per share.
The amount of the total proceeds is RMB382,298,000.00, after deducting the issuance expenses
RMB36,279,200.00 (tax not included). The actual availability of the total proceeds is RMB346,018,800.00,
RMB116,200,000.00 was included in the paid-in capital (share capital) and RMB229,818,800.00 was
included in the capital reserve of the Company.

On 23 November 2020, the Company privately issued 232,240,000 shares with a par value of RMB1
per share by non-public offering on the Shanghai Stock Exchange at an issue price of RMB7.82 per
share. The gross proceeds raised from the non-public issuance of shares was RMB1,816,116,800.00,
and the net proceeds was RMB1,785,576,298.20 after deducting the related issuance expenses of
RMB30,540,501.80 (excluding value-added tax), of which, RMB232,240,000.00 was included in equity,
and RMB1,553,336,298.20 in capital reserve.

32. Capital reserve

Balance at the Balance

beginning Additions Decreased at the end

ltem of the year for the year during the year of the year
Share capital premium 2,412,139,740.03 - - 2,412,139,740.03
Other capital reserve 271,165.70 - - 271,165.70
Total 2,412,410,905.73 - - 2,412,410,905.73
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Other comprehensive income

Balance at the
beginning
of the year

attributable to
shareholders
of the

ltem Company

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Including: Translation differences arising from

tranglation of foreign currency financial

Before-tax
amount
during the year

2021

Balance

at the end

of the period
attributable to
shareholders
of the Company

Less:
Previously
recognised
amount
transferred

to profit or loss

After-tax
amount
attributable to
non-controlling
interests

Less:
Income tax
expenses

statements 10,473,349.95  14,080,598.35 - - - 24,553,948.30
2020
Balance at the Less: Balance
beginning Previously After-tax atthe end
of the year recognised amount of the period
attributable to Before-tax amount Less: attrbutableto  atfributable to
shareholders amount transferred Income tax  non-controlling shareholders
tem of the Company ~ duringthe year ~ to profit or loss Xpenses interests  of the Company
Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Including: Translation differences arising
from tranglation of foreign currency financial
statements (8,121,791.15)  18,595,141.10 - - - 10473349.95
34. Surplus reserve
Statutory surplus reserve m 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year before adjustment 101,862,397.11 87,319,205.31
Effect of changes in accounting policies on surplus reserve
(Note 111.31) 1,415,802.26 -
Surplus reserve at the beginning of the year after adjustment 103,278,199.37 87,319,205.31
Additions for the year - 14,543,191.80
Balance at the end of the year 103,278,199.37 101,862,397.11

Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, after making up for the losses incurred in the previous years, 10% of
the after-tax profit shall be appropriated to statutory reserve. When the accumulated appropriation exceeds 50%
of the Company’s registered capital, the Company may cease to make such allocation.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Retained earnings

Retained earnings at the end of last year before adjustment 1,5669,479,247.47  1,196,756,395.66
Effect of changes in accounting policies on retained earnings (Note 1) 605,829,413.00 -
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year after adjustment 2,175,308,660.47 1,196,756,895.66
Add: Net profits for the year attributable to shareholders of the

Company 697,785,876.79 503,385,543.61
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve - (14,543,191.80)

Distributions to shareholders (Note 2) (278,688,000.00) (116,120,000.00)
Retained earnings at the end of the year (Note 3) 2,594,406,537.26  1,569,479,247.47

Note 1: Effect of changes in accounting policies on retained earnings

Due to the retrospective adjustment under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and related new regulations, the effects
on the retained earnings at the beginning of the year amounted to RMB605,829,413.00 (see Note 11.32).

Note 2: Distributions to shareholders

In June 2021, as resolved at the general meeting, the Company distributed dividends of RMB278,688,000.00 at RMBO0.2 per share to
shareholders.

Note 3: Retained earnings at the end of the period

As at 31 December 2021, the retained earnings attributable to the Company included appropriation to surplus reserves made by the
Company’s subsidiaries amounting to RMB410,776,704.51 (31 December 2020: RMB301,674,555.99).

218 Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+5®

ofo

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

T

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. Operating income and operating costs

(1

@)

Operating income and operating costs

2021 2020
ltem Note income cost income cost

Income from principal activities 5,056,889,425.65 3,325,173,180.51 2,277,618,815.00  967,675,984.97

Including: Income generated from
contracts V.35 (2) 4,704,847,264.57  3,325,173,180.51 1,964,864,278.74  967,675,984.97
Other income 352,042,161.08 - 312,754,536.26 -

Income generated from contracts

Contract classification m 2020

Commaodity or service type

Income from construction services 2,427,432,006.22 -
Electricity tariff 1,741,544,658.41 1,5672,648,231.41
Waste treatment fees 419,368,238.54 291,828,625.75
Others 116,502,361.40 100,387,421.58
Total 4,704,847,264.57  1,964,864,278.74

Categorized by time of transfer of commodities or rendering of

services
Recognized at a certain point of time 1,858,047,019.81 1,673,035,652.99
Recognized during a certain period 2,846,800,244.76 291,828,625.75
Total 4,704,847,264.57 1,964,864,278.74

The Group’s revenue from electricity supply business and other income are recognized at the time of
transfer of control rights, while construction services and waste treatment services recognize revenue
during the period in which services are rendered.

37. Taxes and surcharges

City maintenance and construction tax 4,863,802.00 5,229,117.07
Education surcharges 3,789,314.34 4,046,731.46
Property tax 32,661,391.43 26,328,108.30
Land use tax 7,501,492.60 6,248,451.55
Others 3,487,159.76 4,715,089.12
Total 52,303,160.13 46,567,497.50
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38.

39.

40.

General and administrative expenses

Item

Staff cost

2020

113,553,194.11

94,861,836.52

Depreciation and amortisation 7,441,593.78 5,849,748.66
Utilities and leasing expenses 3,358,133.24 4,333,187.84
Business entertainment expenses 3,381,250.52 3,545,208.29
Transportation expenses 4,399,642.24 3,960,062.33
Intermediary service fees 9,747,970.98 8,084,421.89
External labour costs 16,058,873.09 15,949,859.27
Tax expenses 257.90 199,474.88
Others 23,499,840.91 24,537,714.20
Total 181,440,756.77 161,321,513.88

Research and development expenses

Staff cost 6,291,848.64 6,661,757.65
Depreciation and amortisation 81,937.19 283,093.74
Utilities and leasing expenses 174,323.26 160,352.20
Others 537,239.96 498,374.46
Total 7,085,349.05 7,603,578.05
Financial expenses

Interest expenses from loans and accounts payable
Interest expenses from lease liabilities

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised

Interest income from deposits and receivables

Net exchange loss

Others Financial expenses

468,682,347.92
296,527.95
30,597,526.23
(7,304,706.94)
14,589,835.56
1,967,659.96

457,710,452.00
42,771.15
28,531,415.73
(6,528,405.47)
19,240,358.42
4,242 484.52

Total

447,634,138.22

446,176,244.89

The interest rates at which the borrowing costs were capitalised by the Group during the Reporting Period were

4.10% — 4.65% (2020: 3.25% — 5.77%).
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41.

Other income

VAT refund income 58,375,471.96 62,454,734.17
Specific fund for ecological civilization construction

of Hong’an County Note V.30 834,129.03 -
Subsidy received for stabilizing employment 702,770.43 1,027,907.81
Infrastructure subsidies for the Anshun WTE project Note V.30 692,018.75 666,666.64
Tax incentive funds of Hong’an 579,036.00 -
Subsidies for ecological civilization construction of

Zhanggiu Note V.30 549,341.28 549,341.28
Specific fund for ecological civilization construction of

Shishou Note V.30 431,301.52 -
Incentive income from district and city for industrial

enterprises in Huizhou Phase Il which were “newly

upgraded” for the first time and recorded annual

output value of over RMB100 million in 2020 400,000.00 -
VAT reduction 321,733.79 -
Refund of withholding tax and handling fees 237,845.56 269,179.05
Subsidies for state-owned construction land

use right of Yichun Note V.30 224,680.08 149,786.72
Special fund of Shantou for promoting high-quality

economic development of small and micro

enterprises in 2020 200,000.00 -
Environmental incentives from Ninghe government - 5,000,000.00
Financial subsidy for epidemic prevention and

control in Wuhan - 3,100,000.00
Ecological subsidy for fly ash treatment in Zhanggiu - 2,858,637.98
Partial incentives for local financial contribution by

the increase in tax paid by industrial and trade

enterprises in Yongjia - 1,094,900.00
Provincial special funds for housing and urban

construction of Haiyun - 741,600.00
Property tax, land use tax refunds - 606,314.86
Jiamusi industry and information support award - 500,000.00
Enterprise R&D fund of Shenzhen Science and

technology innovation Commission in 2019 - 445,000.00
Supporting funds for the offices of listed companies

from Shenzhen Economic Promotion Bureau - 238,200.00
Unemployment insurance refunds received by

Yongjia Company - 81,316.54
Others 1,879,360.22 2,640,913.80
Total 65,427,688.62 82,424,498.85
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

42. Investment income

Income from long-term equity investments accounted

for using equity method 9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
Interest income 503,396.23 3,830.20
Total 9,993,325.55 3,286,528.36

43. Impairment loss of credit

Accounts receivable V.3 57,681,756.34 21,024,224.64
Long-term receivables V.12 7,921,262.95 7,214,307.87
Other receivables V.6 (4,687,671.68) 2,212,626.93
Total 60,915,347.61 30,451,159.44

44. Impairment loss of assets

Contract assets V.8 (40,823,430.29) 15,290,211.09
Intangible assets V.16 183,752,159.55 61,338,168.05
Held-for-sale assets V.9 27,975,392.56 -
Total 170,904,121.82 76,628,379.14

45. Gains on disposal of assets

Included in
extraordinary

gains and
2020 losses in 2021

Item

Gains/(losses) from disposal of fixed assets
and intangible assets (1,989,012.69) 57,092.39 (1,989,012.69)
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46. Non-operating income and expenses
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

Included in
extraordinary

gains and losses

Item 2020 in 2021
Government grant - 74,338.36 -
Gains from disposal of

non-current assets 2,228.74 30,201.76 2,228.74
Others 5,459,189.50 2,350,5651.90 5,459,189.50
Total 5,461,418.24 2,455,092.02 5,461,418.24

(2) Non-operating expenses

Included in
extraordinary

gains and losses
2020 in 2021

Item

Losses from retirement of

non-current assets 6,352.14 19,064.74 6,352.14
Others 193,379.80 1,510,013.91 193,379.80
Total 199,731.94 1,5629,078.65 199,731.94

47. Income tax expenses

Current tax expenses for the year based on tax law and

relevant regulations 89,433,559.31 76,078,634.71
Adjustments for tax filling differences 1,161,966.21 3,955,608.68
Changes in deferred income tax (1) 57,688,469.33 19,419,714.64
Total 148,283,994.85 99,453,958.03
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47. Income tax expenses (Continued)

(1) The analysis of changes in deferred income tax is set out below:

()

ltem m 2020
Origination of temporary differences (57,688,469.33) (19,419,714.64)
Relationship between income tax expenses and accounting profit:

ltem m 2020

Profit before tax

Statutory tax rate

CIT based on statutory tax rate

Effect of tax preferential benefits and tax rate differences

890,127,059.32
25%

222,531,764.83

(146,894,923.17)

627,888,590.10

25%
156,072,147.53
(117,308,652.07)

Non-deductible expenses 2,521,334.12 2,742,587.77
Additional deduction on research and development expenses (1,328,502.95) (1,425,670.88)
Reversal of the temporary differences recognised in

previous years (2,027,074.02) 1,707,204.47
Tax losses and other temporary differences for which no

deferred income tax was recognized 70,434,859.40 55,657,462.30
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised of

previous years (247,435.54) (4,167,051.67)
Adjustments for tax filling differences 1,161,966.20 3,955,608.68
PRC withholding tax on dividends 4,922,773.35 2,210,153.02
Non-taxable income (3,343,035.10) (989,232.72)
Others 552,267.73 99,401.60
Income tax expenses for the year 148,283,994.85 99,453,958.03
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

(1)

2

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as dividing consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company 697,785,876.79 503,385,543.61
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,393,440,000.00 1,184,105,863.01
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.50 0.43

Weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 1,393,440,000.00  1,161,200,000.00
Effect of the issue of shares under the non-public offering - 22,905,863.01

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at the end of the year 1,393,440,000.00 1,184,105,863.01

Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share, because the Company did
not have any potential dilutive shares during the year.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49. Supplementary information on income statement

Expenses in the income statement are analysed by their nature:

Item

Operating income

Less: Construction service, waste treatment

and power generation costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee benefits
External labour costs
Intermediary service fees
Impairment loss of credit
Impairment loss of assets
Rental expenses
Financial expenses
Other income
Tax expenses
Business entertainment expenses
Transportation expenses
Communication expenses
Office expenses
Other expenses

5,056,889,425.65

(2,732,544,068.65)

(328,075,271.23)
(391,545,305.86)
(16,058,873.09)
(9,978,009.28)
(60,915,347.61)
(170,904,121.82)
(2,492,485.38)
(447,634,138.22)
65,427,688.62
(52,303,418.03)
(3,381,250.52)
(4,706,023.90)
(1,420,549.79)
(3,034,213.77)
(12,458,664.10)

2020

2,277,618,815.00

(517,793,304.27)
(240,304,433.01)
(316,855,076.62)
(15,949,859.27)
(8,092,636.04)
(30,451,159.44)
(76,628,379.14)
(3,369,645.96)
(446,176,244.89)
82,424,498.85
(46,766,972.38
(3,545,208.29
(3,960,062.33
(1,337,526.27
(2,849,857.06
(19,000,372.15

= = o= ==

Operating profit

884,865,373.02

626,962,576.73
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50. Cash flow statement items

(1

@)

(3)

Cash received from other operating activities

Retention money 11,532,826.00 20,900,000.00
Government grants and others 62,084,728.93 49,637,363.38
Other monetary funds with restricted use 4,000,000.00 65,000,000.00
Others 26,3805,593.69 11,212,562.77
Total 104,423,148.62 146,749,926.15

Cash paid for other operating activities

Retention money and deposits 9,135,168.67 18,910,000.00
Other monetary funds with restricted use - 5,093,755.94
Intermediary service fee, travel and communication expenses

and others 65,288,123.10 70,354,978.37
Total 74,423,291.77 94,358,734.31
Cash received from other investing activities
Interest income 533,600.00 3,830.20
Recovery of performance bond 24,213,755.94 -
Borrowings 3,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Total 27,747,355.94 2,003,830.20
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50. Cash flow statement items (Continued)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Cash paid for other investing activities

Item

2020

Payment of performance bond 1,933,833.50 25,860,000.00
Borrowings 13,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Cash paid for disposal of intangible assets 500,000.00 -
Total 15,433,833.50 27,860,000.00

Cash received from other financing activities

Item | 2021 | 2020
Performance bond for financial lease 2,732,141.89 -
Cash paid for other financing activities

Item | 2021 2020

Financing expenses 2,822,532.08 41,568,583.05
Cash paid for repayment of lease liabilities and

payment of interests and others 2,211,189.01 1,039,366.22
Payment of lease bond 229,860.00 -
Total 5,263,581.09 42,607,949.27

Cash received from selling goods, rendering services and BOT projects comprises the receipt of the
principal and interest of long-term receivables/other non-current assets. The increase in the principal of
BOT long-term receivables/other non-current assets is listed in the cash outflows for operating activities

item.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51. Information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement
(@)  Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit 741,843,064.44 528,434,632.07

Add: Impairment loss of credit 60,915,347.61 30,451,159.44
Impairment loss of assets 170,904,121.82 76,628,379.14
Depreciation of fixed assets 8,875,866.32 8,256,224.04
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,179,664.66 1,052,955.79
Amortisation of intangible assets 317,011,254.32 230,663,089.07
Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 257,609.02 332,164.11
Losses/(Gains) from scrapping of fixed assets 1,993,136.09 (68,229.39)
Financial expenses 436,819,846.51 432,020,113.29
Investment income (9,993,325.55) (8,286,528.36)
Increase in inventories (6,306,993.93) (8,070,057.46)
Changes in deferred income tax assets 756,121.40 (4,108,942.25)
Changes in deferred income tax liabilities 56,932,347.93 23,528,656.89
Increase in restricted deposits 4,000,000.00 59,906,244.06
Increase in operating receivables (1,620,897,483.90) (1,343,460,376.75)
Increase in operating payables 349,627,162.07 197,755,590.86

Net cash generated from operating activities 514,917,738.84 230,035,074.55

(b)  Net changes in cash:

Cash at the end of the year 954,789,955.35 1,592,968,039.86
Less: Cash at the beginning of the year (1,592,968,039.86) (851,983,418.55)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash (638,178,084.51) 1,240,984,621.31
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51. Information on cash flow statement (Continued)

(2) Acquisition of subsidiaries and other companies during the year

Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures

2020

Cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries -

Cash and cash equivalents paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by subsidiaries -
Add: Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
in the previous years 41,296,340.60

19,332,500.00

Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries 41,296,340.60

19,332,500.00

(3) Components of cash

Cash
Including: Cash on hand 2,372.96 5,666.56
Bank deposits available on demand 954,787,582.39 1,5692,962,373.30
Other monetary funds with restricted use 11,951,353.50 15,093,755.94
Balance of cash at the end of the year 966,741,308.85 1,608,061,795.80
Less: Other monetary funds with restricted use (11,951,353.50) (15,098,755.94)
Cash balance available on demand at the end of the year 954,789,955.35 1,592,968,039.86

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

52. Assets with restrictive ownership title or right of use

31 December 2021

Reason for
restriction

Balance at
the beginning Balance
of the year Additions Decreased atthe end
(restated) for the year during the year of the year

Assets for providing guarantees

- Cash at bank and hand V.1 25,111,275.94 1,933,833.50 (15,093,755.94) 11,951,353.50
- Other non-current assets V.20 1,655,096,355.38 678,172,132.48 (122,290,079.43)  2,210,978,408.43
- Intangible assets V.16 4,821,753,851.33 1,875,100,491.20 (277,030,096.46)  6,419,824,246.07
- Accounts receivable V.3 534,830,988.82 1,836,756,378.49  (1,338,699,075.84)  1,032,888,291.47
- Contract assets V.8 353,919,836.12 62,141,822.04 (331,505,278.79) 84,556,379.37
Total 7,390,712,307.59 4454104,657.71  (2,084,618,286.46)  9,760,198,678.84

Mainly used for

Issuing performance
bond

Providing guarantees
for loans

Providing guarantees
for loans

Providing guarantees
for loans

Providing guarantees
for loans
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

52. Assets with restrictive ownership title or right of use (Continued)

53.

31 December 2020

Balance Balance
at the beginning Additions Decreased attheend  Reason for
tem Note of the year for the year during the year oftheyear  restriction
Assets for providing guarantees Mainly used for
- Cash at bank and on hand VA 80,157,520.00 9,953,765.94 (65,000,000.00) 25,111,275.94  Issuing performance
and other non-current bond
assets
- Intangible assets V.16 2,371,539,207.79 2,258,947,925.51 (227,085,248.63)  4,403401,88467  Providing guarantees
for loans
- Accounts receivable V.3 248,064,017.38 1,400,630,822.75  (1,113,863,851.31) 534,830,988.82  Providing guarantees
for loans
- Contract assets V.8 353,727,976.53 140,478,812.82 (171,149,117.68) 323,057,671.67  Providing guarantees
for loans
- Long-term receivables V.12 1,672,678,688.85 858,517,179.10 (845,237,348.12)  1,685958,519.83  Providing guarantees
for loans
Total 472616741085  4668,5284%.12  (2422,335,565.74)  6,972,360,340.93

Foreign currency translation

Hong Kong Dynagreen is registered in Hong Kong and its financial statements are stated in Hong Kong dollars.
The accounting policy used by the Company in the translation of the financial statements of Hong Kong
Dynagreen is stated in Note IIl.8. The spot exchange rates adopted in the translation of the financial statements
at the balance sheet date are as follows:

HKD 0.8176 0.8416

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
54. Government grants

(1) Basic information of government grants

Type

Amount

Items presented

Amount
included

in current
profit or loss

VAT refund income

58,375,471.96

Other income

58,375,471.96

Specific fund for ecological civilization construction of Hong'an County 29,165,870.97  Deferred income/ 834,129.03
Other income
Subsidy received for stabilizing employment 702,770.43  Other income 752,770.43
Infrastructure subsidies for the Anshun WTE project 22,841,314.73  Deferred income/ 692,018.75
Other income
Tax incentive funds of Hong'an 579,036.00  Other income 579,036.00
Subsidies for ecological civiization construction of Zhangqjiu 14,008,203.68  Deferred income/ 549,341.28
Other income
Specific fund for ecological civilization construction of Shishou 17,348,698.48  Deferred income/ 431,301.52
Other income
Incentive income from district and city for industrial enterprises in Huizhou 400,000.00  Other income 400,000.00
Phase Il which were “newly upgraded” for the first time and recorded
annual output value of over RMB100 million in 2020
Provincia-level Specific Fund for Promoting High-quality Economic Development 1,580,615.00  Financial cost 1,580,615.00
of Chaoyang Industry and Information Technology Bureau of Shantou (interest
subsidy for loans granted to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises)
Interest subsidy for loans from Hua Xia Bank received in Wuhan 410,625.00  Financial cost 410,625.00
Subsidies for state-owned construction land use right of Yichun 6,122,533.20  Deferred income/ 224,680.08
Other income
Special fund of Shantou for promoting high-quality economic development 200,000.00  Other income 200,000.00
of small and micro enterprises in 2020
Award fund for investment promotion enterprise infrastructure 4,885,343.76  Deferred income/ 170,538.68
sin Hong'an County Other income
Specific fund for Guangyuan technology upgrading and 3,223,214.48  Deferred income/ 135,714.24
phasing out outdated production capacities Other income
Specific fund for ecological civilization construction of Dengfeng 996,865.20  Deferred income/ 3,134.80
Other income
Enshi special financial subsidies 19,100,000.00  Deferred income -
Shuozhou City Human Settlement Improvement 14,340,000.00  Deferred income -
Award Supplementary Fund
Others 1,569,972.50  Other income 1,669,972.50
Total 195,850,535.59 66,859,349.27
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

55. Leases

(1) the Group as lessee
Right-of-use assets

Buildings and Motor
Item structures vehicles Others Total
Cost
Balance at the beginning of
the year 735,594.38 389,030.76 178,940.47 1,303,565.61
Additions for the year 7,157,904.00 - 1,502,287.78 8,660,191.78
Decreased during the year (167,069.57) - - (167,069.57)
Balance at the end of the year 7,726,428.81 389,030.76 1,681,228.25 9,796,687.82
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of
the year 355,370.16 154,327.17 12,401.30 522,098.63
Additions for the year 2,014,665.83 154,327.10 86,680.34 2,255,673.27
Decreased during the year (167,069.57) - - (167,069.57)
Balance at the end of the year 2,202,966.42 308,654.27 99,081.64 2,610,702.33
Carrying amount
Carrying amount at
the end of the year 5,523,462.39 80,376.49 1,5682,146.61 7,185,985.49
Carrying amount at the
beginning of the year 380,224.22 234,703.59 166,539.17 781,466.98
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
55. Leases (Continued)

(1) the Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

Long-term lease liabilities 7,538,063.43 792,532.72
Less: Lease liabilities due within one year (3,968,888.00) (276,803.34)
Total 3,569,175.43 515,729.38
Short-term lease expense under simplified approach 5,100,437.30 5,674,639.87
Low-value lease expense (except short-term lease expense of

low-value assets) under simplified approach 285,557.29 178,483.75
Total cash outflows relating to leases 7,597,183.60 6,838,748.53

The Group leases staff dormitories, office equipment and printing equipment with lease terms ranging from
six months to three years. These leases are short-term or low-value asset leasing. The Group decided not
to recognise right-of-use assets and leasing liabilities for these leases.

VI. CHANGE OF CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

No subsidiaries were established and there was no increase in other new subsidiaries during the period of these
financial statements.
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VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

1. Interests in subsidiaries

Composition of the Group

Principal place

of business and Registered capital/paid-in capital Shareholding (%)

Name of subsidiary Companytype registration Business nature Currency Amountin original currency ~ Direct  Indirect  Acquisition method

Taizhou Company Limited fiability Taizhou, Weste treatment and RMB 180 milion/180 million 100% - Establishment
company Jangsu power generation

Yongjia Company Limited fiability Yongja, Weste treatment and RMB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Establishment
company hejang power generation

Pingyang Company Limited fiability Pingyang, Weste treatment and RMB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Establishment
company Zhejang power generation

Rushan Gompany Limited fiability Rushan, Weste treatment and RMB  100.88 millon/100.88 milion 100% - Establishment
company Shandong power generation

Zhangaju Company Limited fiability Zhangaju, Weste treatment and RMB 17294 million/172.94 millon 100% - Establishment
company Shandong power generation

Anshun Gompany Limited fiability Anshun, Weste treatment and RMB 100 milion/100 milion 100% - Establishment
company Guizhou power generation

Jurong Company Limited fiability Jurong, Weste treatment and RVB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Establishment
company Jangsu power generation

Pingyao Company Limited fiability Pingyao, Weste treatment and RMB 100 milion/20 milion 100% - Establishment
company Shanxi power generation

Huizhou Company Limited fiability Huiyang, Weste treatment and RMB 220 millon/220 milion 100% - Establishment
company Guangdong power generation

Jizhou Gompany Limited fiabty Tianjin Waste treatment and RVB 120 milion/120 million 60%  40%(a)  Establishment
company power generation

Ninghe Company Limited fiability Ninghe, Weste treatment and RMB 150 milion/150 milion 100% - Establishment
company Tianjin power generation

Hong'an Company Limited fiability Hong'an, Weste treatment and RMB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Establishment
company Hubel power generation

Tongzhou Gompany Limited fiability Bejjing Weste treatment and RMB 375 millon/375 milion 100% - Establishment
company power generation

Shantou Company Limited fiabty Shantou, Waste treatment and RVB 210 millon/210 milion 75% 2% Establishment
company Guangdong power generation
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1.

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Composition of the Group (Continued)

Principal place
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of business and Registered capital/paid-in capital Shareholding (%)
Name of subsidiary Companytype registration Business nature Currency Amount in original currency ~ Direct  Indirect  Acquisition method
Longhui Company Limited liabiity Longhu, Waste treatment and RVB 100 milion/20 milion 100% - Establishment
company Hunan power generation
Bobai Company Limited liabiity Boba, Waste treatment and RVB 100 milion/100 milion 75% %) Establishment
company Guangd power generation
Bengbu Company Limited liabity Bengbu, Waste treatment and RVB 166 millon/166 milion 100% - Establishment
company Anhui power generation
Changzhou Company Limited liabity Changzhou, Waste treatment and RMB  138.40 millon/138.40 milion 75%  25%()  Business combination
company Jangsu power generation involving entities under
common control
Qingdao Company Limited liabity Qingaeo, Waste treatment and HKD 93.50 miliory/93.50 million 75%  25%()  Business combination
company Shandong power generation involving entities under
common control
Wuhan Company Limited liabity Wohan, Waste treatment and RMB  129.484 miion/129.484 millon 100% - Business combination
company Hubei power generation involing entlies under
common control
Hong Kong Dynagreen Limited labifty Hong Kong Investment holding HKD  239.329 million/239.329 millon 100% - Business combination
company involing entties under
common control
Haining Company Limited liabiity Haining, Waste treatment and RVB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Business combination
company hejiang power generation involing entties not under
common control
Shenzhen Jingxu Limited labifty Shenzhen, Construction engineering RMB - 20.80 millon/20.80 milion 100% - Business combination
company Guangdong involving entities not under
common control
Miyun Company Limited liabiity Miyun, Waste treatment and RVB 120 millon/120 million 100% - Establishment
company Bejjng power generation
Yichun Company Limited liabiity Yichun, Waste treatment and RVB 165 millon/165 million - 60%()  Establshment
company Jangy power generation
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VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Composition of the Group (Continued)

Principal place

of business and Registered capital/paid-in capital Shareholding (%)
Name of subsidiary Companytype registration Business nature Currency Amount in original currency ~ Direct  Indirect  Acquisition method
Yongja Phese Il Company Limited liabity Yongja, Waste treatment and RVB 100 milion/100 million 5%  49%(d)  Establishment
company hejiang power generation
Huludao Hazardous Waste Company Limited liabity Huludao, Hazardous waste RVB 100 milon/100 milion ~~~ 80% () - Business combination
company Liaoning treaiment involving entities not under
common control
Huizhou Phase Il Company Limited liabity Huizhou, Waste treatment and RVB 450 millon/350 milion 100% - Establishment
company Guangdong power generation
Dengfeng Company Limited labifty Dengfeng, Waste treatment and RVB 100 million/100 million 100% - Establshment
company Henan power generation
Haining Expansion Company Limited liabiity Haining, Waste treatment and RVB 390 millon/390 milion 60% () - Establishment
company hejiang power generation
Shishou Company Limited liabiity Shishou, Waste treatment and RVB 100 milion/100 million 100% - Establishment
company Hubei power generation
Guangyuan Company Limited liabiity Guangyuan, Waste treatment and RVB 140 milion/140 million 100% - Business combination
company Sichuan power generation involing entties not under
common control
Dongguan Company Limited labifty Dongguan, Garbage transfer RVB 10milion/10 million - 100%(g  Business combination
company Guangdong involving entities not under
common control
Jamusi Company Limited liabity Jamusi, Waste treatment and RVB 209 millon/209 milion - 100%(g  Business combination
company Helongjang power generation involving entities not under
common control
Zhaoging Company Limited liabiity Shu, Waste treatment and RVB 225 million/210 milion - 100%(g  Business combination
company Guangdong power generation involving entities not under
common control
Guangdong Promising Company Limited labifty Dongguan, Environmental protection RMB 58450 milion/584.50 milion 100% - Business combination
company Guangdong industry and new energy involving entities not under
investment common control
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of business and Registered capital/paid-in capital Shareholding (%)
Name of subsidiary Companytype registration Business nature Currency Amount in original currency ~ Direct  Indirect  Acquisition method
Shulan Company Limited liabiity Shulan, Jiin Waste treatment and RVB 90 milion/83 million - 100%(g  Business combination
company power generation involving entties not under
common control
Yongxing Company(’ Limited liabity Yongxing, Waste treatment and RVB 83 millor/3 million - 100%(g  Business combination
company Hunan power generation involving entties not under
common control
Znangye Company Limited liabity Zhangye, Garbage transfer RVB 6 millor/6 milion - 100%(g  Business combination
company Gansu involing entties not under
common control
Jinsha Company Limited liabiity Bile, Guizhou ~ Garbage transfer, waste RVB 160 milion/160 million 100% - Business combination
company treatment and power involving entties not under
generation common control
Pingyang Phase Il Company Limited liabiity Pingyang, Waste treatment and RVB 110 millon/110 million 100% - Establishment
company hejiang power generation
Jingri Gompany Limited labifty Jng, Guangd ~ Waste treatment and RvB 120 milion/155 million 100% - Establshment
company power generation
Enshi Company Limited liabiity Enshi, Hubel Waste treatment and RVB 200 millon/105 milion 100% - Establishment
company power generation
Huludao Power Generation Company Limited liabity Huludao, Waste treatment and RVB 122.6575 millon/ 100% - Establishment
company Liaoning power generation 110.1575 millon
Shantou Sludge Company Limited liabity Shantou, Sludge treatment RVB 13 milion/13 million 100% - Establishment
company Guangdong
Laizhou Halkang Environmental Protection ~ Limited!liabilty Laizhou, Waste treatment and RVB 200 millon/200 milion - 87.5%M  Business combination
Energy Co., Ltd. (Laizhou Company’) company Shandong power generation involing entties not under
common control
Shuozhou Dynagreen Nanshan Environmental — Limited fabifty Shuozhou, Waste treatment and RVB 195 millon/195 million 98%) - Establishment
Energy Co., Ltd. (the “Shuozhou Company’)  company Shanxi power generation
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VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Composition of the Group (Continued)

Principal place

of business and Registered capital/paid-in capital Shareholding (%)
Name of subsidiary Companytype registration Business nature Currency Amount in original currency ~ Direct  Indirect  Acquisition method
Jinan Dynagreen Environmental Co,, Ltd. Limited liabiity Jnan, Waste treatment and RVB 265 millon/255 millon - 100)  Establishment
(‘Zhangoju Phase Il Company’) company Shandong power generation
Huizhou Dynagreen Environmental Senices  Limited fabifty Huizhou, Collection, storage, RVB 63 millon/284 milion ~~ 80% (K) - Establishment
Co., Ltd. (*Huizhou Three-in-One Company’) - company Guangdong trangportation and clsposel

of kitchen waste (including
qutter oil and swil o,
municipal sludge and
excrement

* Yongxing Company was cancelled on 19 October 2021.
() 40% held by Hong Kong Dynagreen;

(b) 25% held by Hong Kong Dynagreen;

(© 60% of equity interest in Yichun Company is held by Hong Kong Dynagreen, 40% held by Yichun Municipal Development Co., Ltd. (H&

THRERERAR),
(d) 49% held by Hong Kong Dynagreen;
(e) 20% held by Fan Jie;
) 40% held by Haining Municipal Water Investment Group Co., Limited (8 Z /K& & £ E AR A 7);

()] 100% held by Guangdong Promising Company;

(h) 10% held by Laizhou Donghai Urban Construction Comprehensive Development Co., Ltd.* G&/N T E/GHREAFZE AR AR, 2.40%
held by Shanghai SUS Environment Co., Ltd.* (_E/8EIERE 5 AR A 7)), and 0.10% held by Hunan Industrial Equipment Installation

Co., Ltd.* (#F & T XX ELEBRLQRF);

[0} 2% held by China Energy Engineering Group Shanxi Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd.* (fEIE TR 2% £ 1L P E H 2R B R A 7);

0] 100% held by Hong Kong Dynagreen;

(k) 20% held by Huizhou Jinxiong Industrial Co., Ltd.* (/N T &R E E B R A 7).

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

2. Interests in joint ventures

Joint ventures — immaterial joint ventures (Note) 89,838,632.91 66,190,681.00
Less: Provision for impairment - -

Total 89,838,632.91 66,190,681.00

Note: In 2018, the Group jointly invested and established Fengcheng Company with Fengcheng Municipal Utilities Operation Co., Ltd. (&4 M1
BAF#EARAT]). The Group holds 51% of the equity of Fengcheng Company. Pursuant to the articles of association of Fengcheng
Company, its highest authority shall be its general meetings. The decisions in relation to business policies, investment plans and others
of the company shall be subject to the agreement of shareholders holding more than two-thirds of its shares. As the Group cannot solely
decide on the main operations of the Fengcheng Company, it does not have control over that company.

(1) The summary financial information of the insignificant joint ventures is as follows:

Joint ventures

Total carrying amount of investment 89,838,632.91 66,190,681.00
The total of the following items calculated according to
the shareholding ratio
— Net profit 9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
— Other changes in equity - -
— Other comprehensive income - -
— Total comprehensive income 9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
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VIIl. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
operations, which mainly include:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Interest rate risk

- Foreign currency risk

The following mainly presents information on the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for risk management, the method used in
measuring risk, and their changes during the year.

The objectives of the Group’s risk management are to seek appropriate balance between the risks, and to mitigate
the adverse effects that the risks of financial instruments have on the Group’s financial performance. Based on such
objectives, the Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate and acceptable risk limits and design corresponding internal controls processes, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and the relevant internal control systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s operating activities. The internal audit department of
the Group undertakes both regular and random inspection of the internal control system for its compliance with risk
management policies.

1. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank and on hand as well as
receivables. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by management on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with reputable financial institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these deposits and does not expect that these financial institutions may default
and cause losses to the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. The maximum exposure to accounts receivable, other receivables and contract assets is disclosed in
Notes V.3, 6 and 8, respectively. Other than the financial guarantees provided by the Group as set out in Note,
the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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VIIl. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

1.

Credit risk (Continued)

(1) Accounts receivable and contract assets
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry, country or area in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant receivables and contract assets
from individual customers. At the balance sheet date, 7% (2020: 26%) of the total accounts receivable and
contract assets of the Group were due from the five largest customers of the Group.

In respect of receivables, the Group has established a practicable credit policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers to determine the credit limit and terms applicable to
the customers. These evaluations mainly focus on the financial position and the external ratings of the
customers. Receivables are due within 30 days from the date when the amount was confirmed by both
parties. In general, the Group does not require collateral from customers.

For detailed information on accounts receivable and contract assets, please refer to relevant disclosures in
Note V.3 — Accounts receivable and Note V.8 — Contract assets.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter shortage of fund in meeting obligations that are settled
by the delivery of cash or another financial asset. The Company and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for
their own cash management, including short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s Board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions, so as to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

VIIl. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2. Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables set out the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at 31 December) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

Within 1 year or
on demand

Contractual undiscounted cash flow for 2021

More than 1 year
but less than
PATCE)

More than 2 year
but less than
5years

Over 5 years

Carrying amount
at balance sheet
date

Short-term loans 1,274,257,816.10 - - - 121425781610 1,248,797,640.41
Accounts payable 1,411,772,142.99 - - - 1471214299 1,411,772,142.99
Other payables 132,552,974.49 - - - 132,552,974.49 132,552,974.49
Long-term payables 26,373,334.15 26,373,334.15 79,120,002.45 366,228,176.33 498,094,847.08 212,757,201.19
Lease liabilties 4,210,970.96 2,056,662.82 327,045.60 2,298,294.20 8,892,973.58 7,538,063.43
Long-term loans 1,215,301,74440  1,505,109,530.58  4,601,248,279.48  4,306,314,20067  11,628,063,755.13  9,487,574,128.15
Total 4,064,558,983.09  1,533,539,527.55  4,680,695,327.53  4,674,840,671.20  14,953,634,500.37  12,560,992,150.66
Contractual undiscounted cash flow for 2020
More than 1 year More than 2 year Carrying amount
Within 1 year or but less than but less than at balance sheet
Item on demand 2 years 5 years QOver 5 years Total Oate
Short-term loans 2,537,731,481.23 - - - 253773148123 2,495,169,633.87
Accounts payable 1,291,193,658.66 - - - 129119365866  1,291,193,658.66
Other payables 101,598,868.06 - - - 101,598,868.06 101,598,868.06
Long-term payables 28.216,534.15 28,216,534.15 84,649,602.45 409,190,310.48 550,272,981.23 297,677,444.06
Lease liabilties 276,803.34 207,305.76 159,514.29 236,675.00 900,298.39 792,532.72
Long-term loans 086,034,467.46  1,082,77347694  3388,172,38168 333054477308  8758,125099.16  7,080,544,548.24
Total 494566181290 1,11121731685 344298149842 373097175856  13,239,822,386.73  11,266,976,685.61

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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VIIl. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

3.

Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at fixed rates and at floating rates expose the Group to fair value interest
risk and cash flow interest rate risk, respectively. The Group determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed
and floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the current market conditions and performs regular
reviews and monitoring to maintain an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate instruments. The Group does not

use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk.

(a) At 31 December, the Group held the following interest-bearing financial instruments:

Fixed rate financial instruments:

2021 2020
Effective interest Effective interest

Item rate (%) Amount rate (%) Amount
Financial assets

- Long-term receivables 5.29 55,553,095.55 4.97-8.53 5,326,301,102.08
Financial liabilities

— Short-term loans 3.25-4.35  (1,227,250,000.00) 0-4.05  (2,470,000,000.00)

- Long-term loans 4,00-5.09  (2,384,429,448.02) 3.40-5.09  (1,399,960,378.00)

- Lease liabilities 4,50 (7,538,063.43) 450 (792,632.72)

- Long-term payables 5.73-7.99 (272,757,201.19) 5.73-7.99 (297,677,444.07)
Total (3,836,421,617.09) 1,157,870,747.29
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VIIl. RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

3. Interest rate risk (Continued)

(a) At 31 December, the Group held the following interest-bearing financial instruments: (Continued)

Floating rate financial instruments:

2021
Effective interest

Item rate (%)

Financial assets

2020
Effective interest
rate (%) Amount

- Cash at bank and on hand 0.35 966,738,935.89 0.35 1,608,056,129.24
Financial liabilities

- Long-term loans 3.85-490  (7,086,516,685.90) 4,08-5.77  (5,666,077,791.71)

- Short-term loans 2.05 (20,036,105.60) 3.70-3.92 (22,000,000.00)
Total (6,139,813,855.61) (4,080,021,662.47)

(b) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, it was assumed that an increase of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease the Group’s net profit and
shareholders’ equity by RMB56,367,091.00 and RMB40,244,549.58, respectively.

In respect of the cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments, which were
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on the Group’s net profit and shareholders’ equity
mentioned in the above sensitivity analysis was estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis of the last year was based on the same assumptions

and methods.

4. Foreign currency risk

In respect of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional currency, such
as cash at bank and on hand and accounts payable, the Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term

imbalances.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group’s exposure to currency risk arising from recognised

assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies was less.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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IX. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE

The following table presents the fair value information and the hierarchy of fair value measurement at the end of the
current Reporting Period, of the Group’s assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date on a recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which the result of fair value measurement is categorised is
determined by the lowest level input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement. The three levels of input are
defined as follows:

Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are observable at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are either directly or indirectly observable for underlying
assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for underlying assets or liabilities.

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any other assets and liabilities
measured at fair value expect for receivable finance and held-for-sale asset.

2. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group mainly include cash at bank and on hand, receivables, payables,

long-term receivables, long-term payables and long-term loans. There is no significant difference between the
carrying amounts and fair values of these financial assets and liabilities.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1.

Information on the parent of the Company:

Shareholding Parent
percentage  company's
of the parent  percentage
company  ofvoting  Ultimate
Related inthe rightsinthe  controlling
party Type of Registered  Legal Business Company ~ Company  partyofthe  Organisation
Companyname  relationship enterprise place representative nature Registered capital (%) (%)  Company code
Parent Limited liabiity Investment
BSAM company  company Bejing Yue Peng management RMB10 billion 4263 4263 Bejing SASAC 400502164

Information on the subsidiaries of the Company

For information on the subsidiaries of the Company, please refer to Note VII.1.

Information on joint ventures of the Company

For information on joint ventures of the Group, please refer to Note VII.2.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.



+&0

0%

Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4.

Information on other related parties

Information on other related parties that are not mentioned in the above notes 1, 2 and 3 are disclosed as

follows:

Names of other related parties

Related party relationship

Organisation code

Beijing State-owned Assets Management
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

Gonggingcheng Jingxiu Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

Beijing State-owned Financial Leasing Company
JtREEREHERA)

Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
(RYKRABFRERAR AR

Beijing Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
GERKRABFREAR AR

Beijing Software and Information Service
Trading Co., Ltd.
L RBMHUAEBRERZ S ERRA)

Shenzhen Crystal Digital Image Technology
Co., Ltd. (RIIK B ABFHEEHZBER AR

Beijing Beiao Group Corporation Limited
bRt REEFREE LN A])

Shouxin Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.
(BEERMERAR)

Haining Municipal Water Investment Group
Co., Limited* (BE /KKK EEBBR AT

Shareholder and a subsidiary of the
Company’s ultimate controlling party
Shareholder

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
controlling party

A shareholder of subsidiaries of the
Company

N/A
N/A

06125014-2

724711406

665629276

57524839-X

78022396-8

101138105

MAO1CGBC5

779382857

# The senior management of the Company held shares in this company.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties

The transactions below with related parties were conducted under normal commercial terms or agreements.

(1) Related guarantee

The Group acts as the guaranteed party

2021
Guaranty
A\leitiie i Commencement  Maturity completed
Name of guarantor slElecs  date of guarantee date of guarantee (Y/N)
BSAM 22,147,195.93 9 December 2013 9 December 2023 N
BSAM 106,789,999.99 8 January 2015 5 December 2023 N
Total 128,937,195.92
2020
Guaranty
Amount of  Commencement Maturity completed
Name of guarantor guaranty  date of guarantee  date of guarantee (Y/N)
BSAM 56,336,190.61 9 December 2013 9 December 2023 N
BSAM 158,656,666.65 8 January 2015 5 December 2023 N
Total 214,992,857.26
The Group as the guarantor
Guaranty
Name of \gleltiie it Commencement  Maturity completed
guaranteed party CllEley.  date of guarantee date of guarantee (Y/N)
Fengcheng Company 296,049,999.97 30 July 2019 29 July 2029 N

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(1) Related guarantee (Continued)
The Company as the guarantor

2021
Guaranty

Name of A\t i Commencement Maturity date of completed
guaranteed party Gl | date of guarantee guarantee (Y/N)
Huizhou Company 104,798,179.05 13 July 2015 13 July 2027 N
Jurong Company 87,781,216.00 21 May 2021 20 May 2029 N
Taizhou Company 44,500,000.00 8 August 2018 22 December 2024 N
Jizhou Company 137,500,000.00 9 March 2018 8 March 2032 N
Jizhou Company 79,212,123.98 31 August 2020 23 August 2032 N
Ninghe Company 101,430,306.28 23 November 2016 15 November 2026 N
Tongzhou Company 637,890,520.09 8 July 2016 7 July 2031 N
Tongzhou Company 25,000,000.00 30 December 2021 29 December 2022 N
Tongzhou Company 29,776,246.74 13 January 2020 12 January 2034 N
Tongzhou Company 35,985,357.43 20 June 2019 19 June 2032 N
Rushan Company 54,594,000.00 27 October 2019 27 October 2024 N
Bengbu Company 306,600,000.00 20 July 2016 19 July 2033 N
Bengbu Company 5,000,000.00 16 December 2021 17 January 2022 N
Anshun Company 118,000,000.00 28 August 2019 17 August 2026 N
Anshun Company 24,770,000.00 24 May 2021 23 May 2031 N
Shantou Company 554,447,496.31 8 June 2021 7 June 2036 N
Zhanggiu Company 308,485,265.53 4 April 2018 3 April 2032 N
Guangyuan Company 218,640,000.00 17 November 2020 17 November 2037 N
Jiamusi Company 85,000,000.00 23 December 2015 22 December 2026 N
Jiamusi Company 51,258,629.27 31 December 2020 30 December 2028 N
Jiamusi Company 186,127,500.00 3 February 2021 2 February 2029 N
Zhaoging Company 226,000,000.00 27 October 2017 31 January 2029 N
Zhaoqing Company 182,060,000.00 25 December 2019 24 December 2036 N
Guangdong Promising

Company 9,577,958.73 2 December 2016 1 December 2022 N
Yichun Company 254,689,983.12 28 April 2019 27 April 2032 N
Yichun Company 39,660,000.00 7 January 2021 15 December 2030 N
Haining Expansion Company 337,249,540.02 19 April 2019 18 April 2037 N
Huizhou Phase Il Company 244,610,000.00 29 April 2019 28 April 2034 N
Huizhou Phase Il Company 185,840,000.00 30 December 2020 25 September 2030 N
Huizhou Phase Il Company 19,219,546.15 12 May 2020 12 May 2035 N
Bobai Company 135,000,000.00 24 April 2020 14 April 2028 N
Hong’an Company 239,589,999.53 19 May 2020 18 May 2033 N
Pingyang Phase Il Company 225,273,860.31 9 January 2020 20 August 2033 N
Yongjia Phase Il Company 194,092,801.18 14 January 2020 13 January 2027 N
Shishou Company 213,940,000.00 9 January 2020 8 January 2030 N
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 226,243,787.91 30 March 2020 30 March 2037 N
Jinsha Company 219,804,510.00 27 April 2020 26 April 2037 N
Dengfeng Company 221,149,937.00 24 August 2020 23 August 2037 N
Huludao Power Generation

Company 184,000,000.00 25 November 2020 25 November 2035 N
Laizhou Company 137,891,290.52 11 January 2021 11 January 2035 N
Jingxi Company 4,880,000.00 26 October 2021 26 April 2024 N
Shuozhou Company 119,000,000.00 29 July 2021 28 July 2036 N
Huizhou Three-in-one 36,664,000.00 29 October 2021 26 September 2036 N
Enshi Company 130,788,319.00 12 April 2021 8 April 2036 N
Fengcheng Company 296,049,999.97 30 July 2019 29 July 2029 N
Total 7,280,072,374.12
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(1) Related guarantee (Continued)
The Company as the guarantor (Continued)

2020
Guaranty

Name of Commencement Maturity date of completed
guaranteed party Amount of guaranty  date of guarantee guarantee (Y/N)
Huizhou Company 130,814,527.02 13 July 2015 13 July 2027 N
Huizhou Company 21,000,000.00 13 May 2020 12 May 2024 N
Jurong Company 91,597,792.00 5 December 2014 4 December 2026 N
Taizhou Company 59,500,000.00 8 August 2018 22 December 2024 N
Jizhou Company 155,880,000.00 9 March 2018 8 March 2032 N
Jizhou Company 71,960,577.98 31 August 2020 23 August 2032 N
Ninghe Company 24,987,574.04 20 January 2016 21 June 2023 N
Ninghe Company 114,776,398.62 15 November 2016 15 November 2028 N
Tongzhou Company 16,146,701.81 20 July 2016 19 July 2032 N
Tongzhou Company 680,160,373.83 8 July 2016 7 July 2033 N
Tongzhou Company 31,216,452.08 13 January 2020 12 January 2034 N
Tongzhou Company 37,472,355.70 20 June 2019 19 June 2032 N
Rushan Company 9,400,000.00 27 October 2016 27 October 2023 N
Rushan Company 68,202,000.00 27 October 2019 27 October 2024 N
Bengbu Company 316,600,000.00 20 October 2016 19 July 2033 N
Bengbu Company 5,000,000.00 23 July 2020 22 July 2021 N
Anshun Company 138,000,000.00 28 August 2019 17 August 2026 N
Shantou Company 468,750,000.00 10 April 2018 7 March 2031 N
Shantou Company 136,066,375.53 7 September 2019 7 September 2032 N
Zhangqiu Company 331,095,265.583 4 April 2018 3 April 2032 N
Guangyuan Company 234,000,000.00 17 November 2020 17 November 2037 N
Jiamusi Company 135,000,000.00 23 December 2015 22 December 2026 N
Jiamusi Company 7,299,773.40 31 December 2020 30 December 2028 N
Zhaoging Company 274,000,000.00 27 October 2017 31 January 2029 N
Zhaoging Company 112,020,000.00 25 December 2019 24 December 2036 N
Guangdong Promising

Company 19,519,395.00 2 December 2016 1 December 2022 N
Yichun Company 274,924,362.94 28 April 2019 27 April 2032 N
Haining Expansion

Company 321,129,498.00 19 April 2019 18 April 2037 N
Huizhou Phase Il

Company 391,530,000.00 29 April 2019 28 April 2021 N
Huizhou Phase Il

Company 30,580,000.00 30 December 2020 29 December 2022 N
Huizhou Phase Il

Company 19,219,546.15 12 May 2020 12 May 2035 N
Bobai Company 148,995,000.00 24 April 2020 14 April 2028 N
Hong’an Company 247,000,000.00 19 May 2020 18 May 2033 N
Pingyang Company 10,000,000.00 12 March 2020 12 March 2021 N
Wuhan Company 10,000,000.00 22 September 2020 21 September 2021 N
Pingyang Phase I

Company 125,908,926.00 21 August 2019 20 August 2036 N
Yongjia Phase

Company 144,479,631.28 14 January 2020 13 January 2027 N
Shishou Company 194,190,606.30 9 January 2020 8 January 2021 N
Huludao Hazardous

Waste Company 147,929,788.89 30 March 2020 8 January 2037 N
Jinsha Company 111,880,080.00 27 April 2020 26 April 2037 N
Dengfeng Company 27,888,913.00 24 August 2020 23 August 2037 N
Huludao Power

Generation Company 24,000,000.00 25 November 2020 25 November 2035 N

Total

5,920,121,915.10

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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T

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(2) Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group

ltem | 2021 2020
Remuneration of key management personnel 17,596,022.72 12,991,696.64
The Company

ltem | 2021 2020
Remuneration of key management personnel 17,596,022.72 12,991,696.64

(@) Directors and supervisors
The emoluments of each director and supervisor in 2021 are as follows:

Remuneration
of Directors Salaries
and and Housing Total
supervisors allowances provident Pension Bonuses for 2021
Executive Directors
Qiao Dewei - 915,915.74 48,094.56 36,295.56  1,553,900.00  2,554,205.86
Hu Shengyong - 560,019.50 48,094.56 38,888.10  1,000,000.00  1,647,002.16
Zhong Xia - 826,945.01 48,094.56 38,888.10  1,221,175.00  2,135,102.67

Non-executive Directors

Liu Shuguang - - - - - -
Cheng Suning - - - - - -
Zhi Jun - - - - - -
Cao Jinjun - - - - - -
Zhang Zhenhai - - - - - -
LiLei - - - - - -

Independent non-executive

Directors
Ou Yuezhou (Note 1) 67,000.00 - - - - 67,000.00
Fu Jie 100,000.00 - - - - 100,000.00
Xie Lanjun 80,000.00 - - - - 80,000.00
Zhou Beihai (Note 2) 13,000.00 - - - - 13,000.00
Supervisors
Wang Meilin - 231,115.05 36,007.20 30,450.00 95,550.00 393,122.25
Yan Shiwen - 162,014.38 17,989.20 18,620.00 24,000.00 222,623.58
Total 260,000.00  2,696,009.68 198,280.08 163,141.76  3,894,625.00  7,212,056.52
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(2) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

@

Directors and supervisors (Continued)

The emoluments of each director and supervisor in 2020 are as follows:

Remuneration
of Directors Salaries
and and 2020

SUpervisors allowances Pension Bonuses Total
Executive Directors
Qiao Dewei - 914,012.24 2,471.82 1,180,900.00 2,097,384.06
Hu Shengyong - 596,540.24 2,661.96 850,000.00 1,449,202.20
Non-executive Directors
Liu Shuguang - - - - -
Cheng Suning - - - - -
Zhi Jun - - - - -
Cao Jinjun - - - - -
Independent non-

executive Directors

Ou Yuezhou 80,000.00 - - - 80,000.00
Fu Jie 104,245.20 - - - 104,245.20
Xie Lanjun 80,000.00 - - - 80,000.00
Supervisors
Luo Zhaoguo - - - - -
Wang Meilin - 254,345.41 2,310.00 96,000.00 352,655.41
He Hong - - - - -
Cai Binquan - - - - -
Total 264,245.20 1,764,897.89 7,443.78 2,126,900.00 4,163,486.87
Note 1:  Mr. OU Yuezhou resigned as an independent non-executive director on 10 November 2021.

Note 2: Mr. ZHOU Beihai was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 10 November 2021.

In 2020 and 2021, none of the Group’s director terminated his/her benefits, and no consideration
was paid to a third party for the service of directors.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(2) Remuneration of key management personnel (Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in 2021 include three Directors (2020: two), whose
emoluments are disclosed in the table above. The aggregate of emoluments in respect of the other
two (2020: three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances 1,216,228.12 1,789,620.72
Pension 77,776.20 7,985.88
Bonuses 1,910,000.00 2,540,000.00
Total 3,204,004.32 4,337,606.60
Emolument band(s) 2021 2020
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
HKD
1,000,001-1,500,000 - _
1,500,001-2,000,000 2 3
(3) Management services provided for the construction for subsidiaries

The Company

ftem Retated parties  [IIINEZD 2020

Management services provided for
the construction for subsidiaries

Dengfeng Company

14,122,641.48

Enshi Company 5,858,490.56 -
Shantou Company 5,902,169.82 -
Zhaoging Company 8,490,566.00 -
Jinsha Company 9,382,169.83 11,940,943.43
Shishou Company 4,789,320.77 12,315,396.27
Total 48,545,358.46 24,256,339.70
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(4) Service fee for project management

The Company
Item Related party m 2020
Service fee for project management Taizhou Company 9,558,163.51 9,937,874.13
Tongzhou Company 14,331,601.19 -
Total 23,889,764.70 9,937,874.13
(5) Income from technology transfer
The Company
ftem Retated party  [IIIIINEZN 2020
Provision of technology implementation
license Jinsha Company 15,000,000.00 -
Pingyang Company 7,500,000.00 -
Shishou Company 15,000,000.00 -
Anshun Company - 7,500,000.00
Hong’an Company - 15,000,000.00
Jizhou Company - 7,500,000.00
Total 37,500,000.00 30,000,000.00

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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T

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(6)

Income from guarantee services
The Group and the Company

Item Related party m 2020
Income from provision of guarantee for a
related party Yichun Company 3,609,154.76 -
Haining Expansion
Company 1,220,338.96 2,135,593.26
Services from provision of bidding
agency for related party Shenzhen Jingxiu - 2,928,234.83
Total 4,829,493.72 5,0683,828.09

(7) Related-party loans
The Group

Related parties

Borrowed from

Amount

2021
Commencement
date

Maturity date

BSAM 700,000,000.00 10 June 2021 10 June 2022
BSAM 250,000,000.00 2 June 2021 8 July 2021
BSAM 1,500,000,000.00 7 July 2021 7 July 2024
Total 2,450,000,000.00
2020
Commencement
Related parties Amount  date Maturity date
Borrowed from
BSAM 291,000,000.00 2 January 2020 25 October 2020
BSAM 540,000,000.00 24 April 2020 24 April 2021
Beijing State-owned Assets
Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited 175,000,000.00 28 April 2020 27 April 2025
Beijing State-owned Assets
Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited 250,000,000.00 11 November 2020 10 November 2023
Total 1,256,000,000.00
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

P

The Group (Continued)

The maturity dates of the Group’s related-party loans are the repayment date or actual repayment date as
agreed in relevant contracts, whichever is earlier.

Related parties

Amount

2021
Commencement
date

Maturity date

Lend to
Fengcheng Company 8,000,000.00 25 January 2021 24 January 2022
Fengcheng Company 5,000,000.00 28 May 2021 27 May 2022
Total 13,000,000.00
2020
Commencement
Related parties Amount  date Maturity date
Lend to
Fengcheng Company 2,000,000.00 17 December 2020 31 December 2020

The Company

Related parties

Borrowed from

Amount

2021
Commencement
date

Maturity date

Shantou Company 10,000,000.00 12 November 2021 11 November 2022
Guangyuan Company 10,000,000.00 18 May 2021 18 May 2022
Shenzhen Jingxiu 160,000,000.00 17 May 2021 17 May 2022
Guangdong Promising Company 122,000,000.00 17 May 2021 19 October 2022
Shuozhou Company 65,000,000.00 18 May 2021 13 October 2022
Huludao Power Generation

Company 12,000,000.00 4 June 2021 4 June 2022
BSAM 700,000,000.00 10 June 2021 10 June 2022
BSAM 1,500,000,000.00 7 July 2021 7 July 2024
BSAM 250,000,000.00 2 June 2021 8 July 2021
Pingyang Phase I Company 17,000,000.00 25 August 2021 29 December 2021
Changzhou Company 10,000,000.00 18 May 2021 12 August 2022
Zhangqiu Phase Il Company 100,000,000.00 27 July 2021 26 July 2022
Tongzhou Company 20,000,000.00 3 November 2021 2 November 2022

Total 2,976,000,000.00

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Related parties

Lend to

Yongjia Company
Huizhou Company
Huizhou Company
Huizhou Company
Wuhan Company
Wuhan Company
Wuhan Company
Wuhan Company
Rushan Company
Rushan Company
Anshun Company
Jizhou Company
Jizhou Company
Jizhou Company
Jizhou Company
Jizhou Company
Jizhou Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Bobai Company
Bobai Company
Hong’an Company

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

3,500,000.00
8,000,000.00
10,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
20,000,000.00
10,000,000.00
15,000,000.00
15,000,000.00
10,000,000.00
14,000,000.00
10,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
6,000,000.00
3,000,000.00
9,000,000.00
7,500,000.00
7,239,072.96
4,000,000.00
31,500,000.00
5,000,000.00
4,500,000.00
8,000,000.00
11,000,000.00
56,000,000.00
3,000,000.00
10,000,000.00

2021
Commencement
date

14 January 2021
10 May 2021

23 November 2021
7 July 2021

18 March 2021

31 March 2021

6 July 2021

29 July 2021

19 April 2021

19 October 2021
20 February 2021
8 January 2021

14 January 2021
18 March 2021

31 March 2021

24 September 2021
20 December 2021
31 December 2021
20 April 2021

13 May 2021

16 June 2021

17 December 2021
22 December 2021
8 January 2021

19 October 2021

3 February 2021

Maturity date

18 May 2021

28 February 2022
22 November 2022
22 July 2021

3 September 2022
14 April 2022

3 September 2022
3 September 2022
17 September 2021
18 October 2022
19 February 2022
7 July 2021

25 February 2021
17 March 2023

17 March 2023

14 December 2022
19 December 2030
31 December 2022
19 April 2022

12 May 2022

15 June 2022

16 December 2022
21 December 2022
31 December 2022
9 December 2021
30 July 2021
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

260

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

The Company (Continued)
2021
Commencement
Related parties date Maturity date

Hong’an Company 4,000,000.00 7 February 2021 30 July 2021
Hong’an Company 6,000,000.00 18 September 2021 17 March 2022
Yichun Company 3,000,000.00 23 April 2021 22 April 2024
Zhaoging Company 24,000,000.00 29 January 2021 25 May 2021
Zhaoging Company 10,000,000.00 29 January 2021 31 December 2021
Zhaoging Company 24,000,000.00 29 July 2021 2 August 2021
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 2,179,030.50 18 June 2021 2 July 2021
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 4,000,000.00 24 June 2021 23 June 2024
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 3,000,000.00 3 September 2021 2 September 2024
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 3,000,000.00 24 September 2021 23 September 2024
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 4,000,000.00 20 December 2021 19 December 2024
Zhangye Company 14,000,000.00 2 February 2021 26 July 2021
Jinsha Company 7,000,000.00 29 January 2021 18 October 2022
Jinsha Company 14,000,000.00 12 November 2021 16 February 2024
Huizhou Phase II Company 30,000,000.00 1 February 2021 1 February 2023
Shishou Company 2,000,000.00 31 March 2021 31 March 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 31 March 2021 30 March 2022
Shishou Company 900,000.00 23 April 2021 22 April 2022
Shishou Company 14,500,000.00 16 June 2021 15 June 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 13 July 2021 12 July 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 17 August 2021 16 August 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 13 September 2021 12 September 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 19 October 2021 18 October 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 12 November 2021 11 November 2022
Shishou Company 13,600,000.00 17 December 2021 16 December 2022
Shishou Company 1,000,000.00 12 May 2021 11 May 2022
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T

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
2021
Commencement

Related parties date Maturity date
Shishou Company 5,000,000.00 12 May 2021 11 May 2022
Shishou Company 4,000,000.00 13 September 2021 12 September 2022
Shishou Company 2,000,000.00 8 June 2021 29 November 2021
Shishou Company 2,000,000.00 13 July 2021 12 January 2022
Shishou Company 16,000,000.00 29 September 2021 29 September 2022
Shishou Company 4,000,000.00 29 September 2021 29 September 2022
Shishou Company 2,000,000.00 23 November 2021 22 November 2022
Shishou Company 2,000,000.00 27 December 2021 26 December 2022
Tongzhou Company 25,000,000.00 1 February 2021 2 April 2021
Tongzhou Company 15,000,000.00 18 March 2021 20 May 2021
Dengfeng Company 2,000,000.00 18 June 2021 9 July 2021
Fengcheng Company 8,000,000.00 25 January 2021 24 January 2022
Fengcheng Company 5,000,000.00 28 May 2021 27 May 2022
Total 570,418,103.46
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
2020
Commencement
Related parties Amount  date Maturity date
Borrowed from
Shuozhou Company 80,000,000.00 1 July 2020 31 December 2021
Jingxi Company 2,000,000.00 1 July 2020 16 November 2020
BSAM 291,000,000.00 2 January 2020 20 October 2020
BSAM 540,000,000.00 24 April 2020 24 April 2021
Total 913,000,000.00
2020
Commencement
Related parties Amount  date Maturity date
Lend to
Haining Company 12,000,000.00 8 May 2020 1 July 2020

Huizhou Company
Huizhou Company
Huizhou Company
Huizhou Company
Pingyang Company
Rushan Company
Anshun Company
Anshun Company
Anshun Company
Jizhou Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Ninghe Company
Jurong Company
Bobai Company
Bobai Company
Bobai Company
Shantou Company
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18,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
40,000,000.00
9,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
10,000,000.00
7,000,000.00
5,610,000.00
3,000,000.00
6,600,000.00
8,000,000.00
33,000,000.00
32,000,000.00
96,000,000.00
50,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
7,000,000.00
2,500,000.00
4,000,000.00
20,000,000.00

2 March 2020

9 March 2020

10 March 2020

10 July 2020

14 January 2020
20 April 2020

16 January 2020
19 February 2020
12 June 2020

14 January 2020
16 January 2020
16 June 2020

18 December 2020
28 June 2020

3 August 2020

15 September 2020
13 October 2020
26 November 2020
18 December 2020
16 June 2020

17 January 2020
20 January 2020
29 October 2020

3 September 2020

1 March 2021

23 March 2021

20 October 2020

9 January 2021

12 March 2020

19 April 2021

31 December 2021
18 February 2021
10 November 2020
31 August 2020

31 December 2021
31 December 2021
31 December 2021
31 December 2020
2 August 2021

31 December 2021
31 December 2020
31 December 2020
31 December 2020
31 December 2021
31 December 2020
31 December 2020
31 December 2020
30 December 2020
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
2020
Commencement
Related parties Amount  date Maturity date

Miyun Company 14,000,000.00 27 February 2020 31 March 2029
Guangyuan Company 10,000,000.00 26 February 2020 26 March 2020
Hong’an Company 10,000,000.00 3 January 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 10,000,000.00 7 January 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 10,000,000.00 10 January 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 12,000,000.00 14 January 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 3,000,000.00 16 January 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 6,000,000.00 2 April 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 3,000,000.00 15 April 2020 15 May 2020
Hong’an Company 1,000,000.00 7 July 2020 29 December 2020
Zhanggiu Company 10,000,000.00 17 January 2020 15 May 2020
Yichun Company 17,000,000.00 26 October 2020 25 October 2023
Jiamusi Company 4,800,000.00 3 April 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 4,500,000.00 13 May 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 2,200,000.00 26 May 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 20,000,000.00 4 June 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 25,000,000.00 16 June 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 2,500,000.00 3 August 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 5,800,000.00 18 August 2020 31 December 2020
Jiamusi Company 15,000,000.00 9 September 2020 31 December 2020
Zhaoqging Company 10,000,000.00 21 August 2020 31 December 2020
Zhaoqging Company 10,000,000.00 1 December 2020 30 November 2021
Guangdong Promising Company 10,000,000.00 26 March 2020 17 June 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 500,000.00 11 February 2020 1 April 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 500,000.00 19 March 2020 1 April 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 7,000,000.00 7 January 2020 1 April 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 1,000,000.00 19 March 2020 1 April 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 10,019,200.00 30 March 2020 29 March 2035
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 1,000,000.00 27 July 2020 3 August 2020
Huludao Hazardous Waste

Company 7,000,000.00 31 July 2020 3 August 2020
Shulan Company 100,000.00 3 April 2020 10 September 2020
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(7) Related-party loans (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
2020
Commencement

Related parties Amount  date Maturity date
Zhangye Company 2,000,000.00 7 January 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 800,000.00 20 January 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 2,000,000.00 20 March 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 1,000,000.00 20 August 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 1,225,000.00 20 October 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 800,000.00 4 December 2020 30 April 2034
Zhangye Company 1,300,000.00 30 December 2020 30 April 2034
Jinsha Company 2,000,000.00 14 January 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 500,000.00 20 January 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 10,000,000.00 24 March 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 2,000,000.00 24 July 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 5,000,000.00 29 September 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 10,000,000.00 15 October 2020 31 December 2020
Jinsha Company 121,471,300.00 18 December 2020 17 December 2021
Huizhou Phase Il Company 18,000,000.00 10 March 2020 2 July 2020
Huizhou Phase Il Company 10,000,000.00 20 March 2020 2 July 2020
Huizhou Phase Il Company 5,000,000.00 7 May 2020 2 July 2020
Huizhou Phase Il Company 5,000,000.00 26 May 2020 2 July 2020
Huizhou Phase I Company 80,648,200.00 23 December 2020 22 December 2021
Huizhou Phase Il Company 161,826,300.00 28 December 2020 27 December 2021
Pingyang Phase Il Company 84,859,600.00 22 December 2020 21 December 2021

Yongjia Phase I Company
Shishou Company
Tongzhou Company
Fengcheng Company

27,098,200.00
12,676,300.00
30,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

28 December 2020
18 December 2020
18 June 2020

17 December 2020

27 December 2021
17 December 2021
24 June 2020

31 December 2020

Total

1,230,834,100.00

In 2021 and 2020, the interest rates of the Company’s related-party loans ranged from 0.00% ~ 5.22%
and 0.00% ~ 5.22%, respectively.

The maturity dates of the Group and the Company’s related-party loans are the repayment date or actual
repayment date as agreed in relevant contracts, whichever is earlier.
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Financial Report (Continued)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(8)

Interest income and expense on related-party loans

The Group

Related parties

Interest received from related-party loans

Fengcheng Company

503,396.23

2020

3,830.20

Related parties

Payments of interests on related-party loans

BSAM

Beijing State-owned Assets Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

Beijing State-owned Financial Leasing Company
(tREEREHEERT)

99,641,532.89

19,580,000.00

465,659.72

2020

125,5688,733.94

8,897,722.22

1,666,852.27

Total

119,687,192.61

136,153,308.43

Payments of service fee on related-party financing guarantee

Haining Municipal Water Investment Group Co., Limited*

(BERKKREEBARAT)

12,000,000.00

Total

12,000,000.00
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(8)

Interest income and expense on related-party loans (Continued)

The Company

Related parties m 2020
Interest received from related-party loans

Anshun Company 822,717.57 248,426.62
Bobai Company - 3,2583,441.48
Fengcheng Company 503,396.23 3,830.19
Guangyuan Company - 48,675.31
Hong’an Company - 3,589,432.39
Huludao Hazardous Waste Company 585,029.90 560,623.37
Huizhou Company 1,066,617.54 998,708.73
Huizhou Phase Il Company 6,495,728.73 138,537.35
Jizhou Company 1,631,326.52 2,841,931.08
Jinsha Company 5,139,038.38 171,575.03
Jurong Company 1,772,617.93 1,121,5672.72
Miyun Company 9,296,636.16 8,257,227.49
Ninghe Company - 2,422,107.64
Pingyang Company - 240,873.27
Pingyang Phase II Company 1,282,573.07 85,615.69
Rushan Company 304,813.95 445,128.14
Shishou Company 466,807.42 17,904.94
Taizhou Company - 114,563.68
Yongjia Phase I Company 429,232.36 10,935.86
Wuhan Company 484,781.17 228,215.41
Yichun Company 894,224.33 146,255.25
Yongjia Company 31,427.55 216,775.00
Jiamusi Company 650,746.85 -
Zhangye Company 172,283.29 -
Tongzhou Company 222,464.62 -
Other subsidiaries - 85,461.08
Total 32,252,463.57 25,247,817.72
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(8)

)

Interest income and expense on related-party loans (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Related parties

Payments of interests on related-party loans

BSAM
Shuozhou Company

99,641,532.89
1,732,500.00

2020

125,5688,733.94

Total

101,374,032.89

125,588,733.94

Dividends received from subsidiaries
The Company

Related parties

Yongjia Company

2020

15,000,000.00

Haining Company - 14,000,000.00
Huizhou Company - 30,000,000.00
Changzhou Company - 67,500,000.00
Wuhan Company - 20,000,000.00
Pingyang Company - 10,000,000.00
Taizhou Company - 30,000,000.00
Bengbu Company - 10,000,000.00
Tongzhou Company - 60,000,000.00
Shantou Company - 7,500,000.00
Rushan Company - 5,000,000.00
Total - 269,000,000.00
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Financial Report (Continued)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(10) Purchases from related parties

The Group
Related parties m 2020
Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd.

(R B AT R AR AF) 1,115,536.61 6,647,801.00
Beijing Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd. - 215,000.00
Beijing Beiao Group Corporation Limited

JErItREEFREEAR) - 600,000.00
Shouxin Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.

(BEERMBERAR) 9,798.00 9,243.40
Beijing Software and Information Service Trading Co., Ltd.

EREHEAE BRBE R ZPAER A ) 317,000.00 -
Haining Municipal Water Investment Group Co., Limited*

(BETKBIRERERRAA) 12,008,850.00 -
Beijing Crystal Digital Image Technology Co., Ltd.

(KR ABFHEREER A R) 70,000.00 -
Total 13,521,184.61 7,472,044.40

Related parties

Subsidiaries

(11) The net fund transfers (except for related-party loans) with subsidiaries after
deduction of the amounts set out in note (8)

2020

179,533,520.86

(241,443,742.96)

In view of the frequent transactions of fund transfers between the Company and its subsidiaries for fund
management purposes, the Company disclosed only the net changes of such fund transfers during the

current period.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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T

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(12) Other related parties transactions

Corporate transactions amounts

Related parties

Fengcheng Company 1,684,849.36 3,005,715.82
Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd.

(YRR OBEFRRBRATF) - 200.00
BSAM 73,561.00 145,098.85
Total 1,758,410.36 3,151,014.67

6. Balance of related party transactions

The Group

(1)

@

Long-term loans with related parties

Related parties

Beijing State-owned Financial Leasing Company
JErREEmEHRERT)

Beijing State-owned Assets Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

BSAM

- 16,066,035.25

485,598,277.78 485,5698,277.78
1,502,131,250.00 -

Total

1,987,729,527.78 501,664,313.03

Short-term loans with related party

Related parties

BSAM

600,797,500.00  2,403,117,750.52
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6. Balance of related party transactions (Continued)

The Group (Continued)
(8)  Receivables from related party

Related parties m 2020
Fengcheng Company 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
(4)  Payables to related parties
Related parties m 2020
Shenzhen Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
(RYIK B AT R AR AR) 425,910.21 1,650,956.60
Beijing Crystal Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 245,067.18 485,844.00
Beijing Software and Information Service Trading Co., Ltd.
AL RBAFEBRE R ZPAER LR 105,000.00 -
Total 775,977.39 2,136,800.60
(5)  Other payables to related party
Related parties m 2020
BSAM 212,834.80 139,273.80
(6)  Other receivables from related parties
Related parties m 2020

Fengcheng Company

10,000,000.00

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.

The Company

Receivables from related parties

Balance of related party transactions (Continued)

2021 2020
Provision for Provision for
bad and bad and
Item Related parties Book balance  doubtful debts Book balance doubtful debts
Service fee for project
management Shishou Company 1,813,100.00 - 3,988,820.00 -
Service fee for project
management Shishou Company 15,000,000.00 - -
Service fee for project
management Jinsha Company 15,821,750.00 - 5,876,650.00 -
License fee for patent transfer  Jinsha Company 15,000,000.00 - - -
License fee for patent transfer ~ Anshun Company - - 7,500,000.00 -
License fee for patent transfer ~ Hong’an Company 15,000,000.00 - 15,000,000.00 -
Service fee for project
management Taizhou Company 1,518,989.68 - 2,169,893.20 -
Service fee for project
management Zhangaiu Company - - 2,325,000.00 -
License fee for patent transfer ~ Zhanggiu Company 7,825,000.00 - 25,500,000.00 -
Service fee for project
management Bobai Company 11,976,000.00 - 11,976,000.00 -
License fee for patent transfer ~ Bobai Company 24,000,000.00 - 24,000,000.00 -
License fee for patent transfer ~ Fengcheng 10,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Company
Guarantee fee Yichun Company 3,825,704.05 - - -
Service fee for project
management Tongzhou Company 1,115,570.71 - - -
Total 146,776,114.44 2,000,000.00  108,336,363.20 1,000,000.00
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.

Balance of related party transactions (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
(8)  Loans with related parties

(@)

Short-term loans

Related parties

BSAM

Shuozhou Company

Tongzhou Company

Zhangqiu Phase |l

Shenzhen Jingxiu

Shantou Company

Guangyuan Company

Guangdong Promising Company
Huludao Waste-to-energy Company

600,797,500.00 2,403,117,750.52
50,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
20,000,000.00 -
100,000,000.00 -
20,000,000.00 -
10,000,000.00 -
7,000,000.00 -
7,000,000.00 -
12,000,000.00 -

Total

826,797,500.00  2,483,117,750.52

Long-term loans

BSAM 1,502,131,250.00 -
Total 1,502,131,250.00 -

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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1

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
6. Balance of related party transactions (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
(9)  Other receivables from related parties

Related parties

Anshun Company

21,919,770.24

16,448,811.69

Jingxi Company 115,610.00 599,356.53
Bobai Company 94,686,744.64 37,416,308.03
Changzhou Company 15,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Dongguan Company 135,440.29 81,518.93
Enshi Company 2,525,391.12 830,376.77
Haining Company 6,000,000.00 ©6,000,000.00
Hong’an Company 15,615,373.93 12,721,070.72
Huludao Power Generation Company 537,643.75 149,931.14
Huludao Hazardous Waste Company 1,074,545.23 174,486.54
Huizhou Phase Il Company 130,000,000.00 242,447,272 .51
Huizhou Company 53,500,000.00 51,000,000.00
Jiamusi Company 40,357,475.88 76,509,340.60
Jinsha Company 21,841,905.40 121,653,169.53
Jurong Company 10,158,430.20 7,288,937.80

Miyun Company
Ninghe Company

42,209,149.71
391,045,307.65

40,435,854.55
327,045,307.65

Pingyang Phase II Company - 84,859,600.00
Rushan Company 19,000,000.00 17,000,000.00
Shantou Company 144,610.12 16,063.51
Shishou Company 88,156,983.57 12,695,279.24
Taizhou Company 5,000,000.00 25,000,000.00
Yongjia Phase II Company - 28,442,359.81
Zhangye Company 94,511.96 2,876,511.96
Zhanggqiu Phase I Company 717,762.13 86,771.68
Zhanggiu Company 648,106.71 603,254.37
Zhaoging Company - 20,000,000.00
Jizhou Company 33,826,832.03 19,256,007.10
Bengbu Company 495,213.65 -
Dengfeng Company 1,299,552.40 -
Guangyuan Company 135,830.24 -
Laizhou Company 409,880.51 -

Total

996,652,071.36

1,181,637,590.66
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.

Balance of related party transactions (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
(10) Long-term receivables from related parties and long-term receivables due within 1 year

(11)

(12)

Related parties

Anshun Company

Jizhou Company

Miyun Company

Zhangye Company

Huludao Hazardous Waste Company
Ninghe Company

Jinsha Company

Jiamusi Company

Jurong Company

Yichun Company

2020

32,239,072.96
158,713,094.44
22,019,200.00
57,000,000.00
59,700,000.00
29,600,000.00
20,000,000.00

21,500,000.00
25,000,000.00
179,5627,227.49
12,125,000.00
10,019,200.00
57,000,000.00
45,700,000.00
55,000,000.00
33,600,000.00
17,000,000.00

Total

379,271,367.40

456,471,427.49

Contract liabilities from related parties

Related parties

Qingdao Company
Shuozhou Company
Haining Expansion Company

2020

10,000,000.00
7,500,000.00
14,644,067.78

10,000,000.00

15,864,406.74

Total

32,144,067.78

25,864,406.74

Other payables to related parties

Related parties

BSAM
Guangdong Promising Company
Shulan Company

2020

212,834.80
186,771,016.18

139,273.80
190,271,016.18
1,812,465.00

Total

186,983,850.98

192,222,754.98

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

Xl. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The main objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that the Group can continue to operate, set prices
comparable to risk levels for products and services, and ensure that financing is financed at reasonable financing
costs, providing ongoing returns to shareholders and reducing capital costs.

The Group makes use of its gearing ratio for the management of capital structure. Gearing ratios is defined as total

liabilities divided by total assets. The Group’s strategy in 2021 is the same as in 2020. The gearing ratios of the Group
were 65.78% and 66.87% respectively in 2021 and 2020.

XIll. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. Significant commitments

(1) Capital commitments

Infrastructure construction contract authorised but not

contracted for 818,464,825.60  1,439,122,762.38
Infrastructure construction contract contracted for and is or

going to be effective 1,549,218,839.06 2,664,558,534.12
Total 2,367,683,664.66 4,103,681,296.50

2. Contingencies
The Company provided external parties with joint and several liability guarantee in regard to bank loans (Note

X.5(1)), all guarantees of which were its subsidiaries and joint ventures. The Group has no material contingency
which need to be disclosed.
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Xll. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1.

Profit appropriations after the balance sheet date

[tem Amount

Profit distributions or dividends proposed 139,344,000.00

On 29 March 2022, the Board of Directors proposed the 2021 dividend of RMBO0.1 per ordinary share to the
Company’s ordinary shareholders, amounting to a total of RMB139,344,000.00. The proposal is subject to
approval by the shareholders’ general meeting. Such cash dividends are not recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

Public issuance of convertible corporate bonds

On 24 January 2022, as approved by the Approval for the Public Issuance of A Share Convertible Corporate
Bonds of Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.* ((k2B) 1IRIREB KB BR AR’ (Zheng Jian
Xu Ke [2022] No. 132) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company publicly issued A share
convertible corporate bonds with an aggregate face value of RMB2,360 million. The convertible corporate bonds
with an aggregate face value of RMB2,360 million were issued at par with a nominal value of RMB100 each. The
total amount of proceeds from the issuance amounted to RMB2,360,000,000.00 and the amount of proceeds
after deducting the sponsorship and underwriting expenses in a total amount of RMB12,245,283.02 amounted
to RMB2,347,754,716.98. The abovementioned proceeds have been deposited in the specific account for
proceeds opened with the approval of the Board of the Company on 3 March 2022 upon receipt.

XIV. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ITEMS

Segment reporting

The Group conducted an evaluation in accordance with the requirements set out in note 111.30 for the classification of
operating segments. Based on the internal organisational structure, management requirements and internal reporting
system of the Group, its operating and strategies-making functions are run as a whole. The financial information
provided to the chief operating decision maker does not contain profit or loss information on each operating activity.
Therefore, the management considers that the Group has only one operating segment, thus the Group does not have
to prepare segment report.

The external transaction income and non-current assets(excluding financial assets and deferred income tax assets)
acquired by the Group were primarily derived from or located in Mainland China.

For the year of 2021, there was no customer the Group, the separate income from which accounted for 10% or above
of the Group’s total income (2020: nil).

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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T

XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Accounts receivable

(1) Accounts receivable by customer type:

Related parties 146,776,114.44 108,336,363.20
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,000,000.00) (1,000,000.00)
Total 144,776,114.44 107,336,363.20

The ageing is counted starting from the date when accounts receivable are recognised.

(2)  The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

Within 1 year (inclusive) 72,098,464.44 34,535,363.20
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 20,876,650.00 73,801,000.00
Over 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive) 53,801,000.00 -
Sub-total 146,776,114.44 108,336,363.20
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,000,000.00) (1,000,000.00)
Total 144,776,114.44 107,336,363.20

The ageing is counted starting from the date when accounts receivable are recognised.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Accounts receivable (Continued)
(3)  Classified disclosure by method of provision for bad and doubtful debts:
31 December 2021

Provision for bad and
Book balance doubtful debts

Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category (%) Amount (%) amount

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
individually 10,000,000.00 7%  (2,000,000.00) 20%  8,000,000.00

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
on a collective group basis
Accounts receivable from subsidiaries ~ 136,776,114.44 93% - 0% 136,776,114.44

Total 146,776,114.44 100%  (2,000,000.00) 1% 144,776,114.44

31 December 2020
Provision for bad and

Book balance doubtful debts
Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category Amount (%) Amount (%) amount
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
on a collective group basis
Accounts receivable from subsidiaries 98,336,363.20 91% - 0% 98,336,363.20
Accounts receivable from joint ventures  10,000,000.00 9%  (1,000,000.00) 10%  9,000,000.00
Total 108,336,363.20 100%  (1,000,000.00) 1% 107,336,363.20

(i) Criteria for recognition and explanations for provision for bad and doubtful debts on a collective group
basis in 2021:

The bad and doubtful debts for which the Company made provision on a collective group basis are
accounts receivable from subsidiaries of the Group.

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

)

Changes in provision for bad and doubtful debts:

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,000,000.00 500,000.00
Provisions for the year 1,000,000.00 500,000.00
Balance at the end of the year 2,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

The Group assessed and calculated the accounts receivable for impairment using expected credit loss
model, and then calculated the balance of the provision for bad and doubtful debts and reversed or
made provision for bad and doubtful debts for the year after comparing the same with the balance of the
provision for bad and doubtful debts for the preceding accounting year.

Five largest accounts receivable by debtor at the end of the year:

As at 31 December 2021, the subtotal of five largest accounts receivable of the Company amounted to
RMB113,580,850.00, representing 77% of the total accounts receivable at the end of the year, and the
provisions of bad and doubtful debts amounted to RMBO0.00.

As at 31 December 2020, the subtotal of five largest accounts receivable of the Company amounted to

RMB96,301,000.00, representing 89% of the total accounts receivable at the end of the year, and the
provisions of bad and doubtful debts amounted to RMB1,000,000.00.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Other receivables

Interest receivable (1) 48,711,316.49 40,370,526.16
Dividends receivable 61,000,000.00 96,000,000.00
Others 2) 904,704,588.21 1,053,344,286.35
Total 1,014,415,904.70  1,189,714,812.51

(1) Interest receivable
(@ Interest receivable by category:

Entrusted loan 48,711,316.49 40,370,526.16

(b) 31 December 2021, the Company had no overdue interest receivable.

(2) Others
(@  Others by customer type:

Due from third parties 16,610,127.96 20,756,079.63
Due from related parties 896,940,754.87 1,045,267,064.50
Sub-total 913,550,882.83  1,066,023,144.13
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (8,846,294.62) (12,678,857.78)
Total 904,704,588.21  1,053,344,286.35
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)
(b)  The ageing analysis is as follows:

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)

2020

381,345,873.85

879,702,667.89

Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 379,017,345.60 169,904,302.56
QOver 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive) 143,757,787.85 3,134,507.15
Over 3 years but within 4 years (inclusive) 150,209.00 2,386,903.42
Qver 4 years but within 5 years (inclusive) 2,167,988.46 281,584.76
QOver 5 years 7,111,678.07 10,613,178.35
Sub-total 913,550,882.83  1,066,023,144.13
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (8,846,294.62) (12,678,857.78)
Total 904,704,588.21  1,053,344,286.35

The ageing is counted starting from the date when other receivables are recognised.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)
(c)  Classified disclosure by method of provision for bad and doubtful debts:

2021
Provision for bad and
Book balance doubtful debts

Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category Amount (%) Amount (%) amount

Provision for bad and doubtful
debts individually (i)
- Due from former shareholders 5,973,188.35 1% (5,973,188.35) 100% -

Provision for bad and doubtful
debts collectively (i)
- Accounts receivable from

subsidiaries of the Group 886,940,754.87 97% - 0%  886,940,754.87

- Others 20,636,939.61 2% (2,873,106.27) 14% 17,763,833.34
Total 913,550,882.83 100% (8,846,294.62) 1%  904,704,588.21

2020
Provision for bad and
Book balance doubtful debts
Percentage Percentage Carrying
Category Amount (%) Amount (%) amount

Provision for bad and doubtful

debts individually
- Performance bond 5,000,000.00 1% (4,050,000.00) 81% 950,000.00
- Due from former shareholders 10,968,115.75 1% (6,391,973.82) 58% 4,576,141.93

Provision for bad and doubtful
debts collectively
- Accounts receivable from

subsidiaries of the Group ~ 1,045,267,064.50 98% - 0% 1,045,267,064.50
- Others 4,787,963.88 0% (2,236,883.96) 47% 2,551,079.92
Total 1,066,023,144.13 100%  (12,678,857.78) 1% 1,053,344,286.35

282 Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)
Classified disclosure by method of provision for bad and doubtful debts: (Continued)

(©

M

Criteria for recognition and explanations for provision for bad and doubtful debts on a separate
pasis in 2021:

Provision for
bad and Provision

Other receivables (by entity) Book balance  doubtful debts  percentage Rationale for provision
Dynagreen Environment Investment 5,160,600.00  (5,160,600.00) 100% Had long ageing and
Limited risk on collection
Dynagreen International Holding 294,835.67 (294,835.67) 100% Had long ageing and
(Group) Co., Ltd. risk on collection
Current accounts of former 517,752.68 (617,752.68) 100% Had long ageing and
shareholders — individual risk on collection

Total 5973,188.35  (5,973,188.35)

Criteria for recognition and explanations for provision for bad and doubtful debts on a collective
group basis in 2021:

The Company mainly makes provision for bad and doubtful debts of accounts receivable

from subsidiaries of the Group and other receivables classified based on the nature of the
receivables.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)
(d)  Changes in provision for bad and doubtful debts:

2021

284

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

First stage

ECL for next
12 months

Second stage

Lifetime
ECL-no credit
impairment

Third stage
Lifetime
ECL-credit
impairment
occurred

Balance at the beginning of the year 117,385.13 2,669,311.30 9,892,161.35 12,678,857.78
Transfer to the second stage - - - -
Transfer to the third stage - - - -
Tumn back to the second stage - - - -
Turn back to the first stage - - - -
Provisions/(reversal) for the year 520,830.65 (434,420.81)  (3,918,973.00)  (3,832,563.16)
Balance at the end of the year 638,215.78 2,234,390.49 5,973,188.35 8,846,294.62
2020

First stage Second stage Third stage

Lifetime

Lifetime ECL-credit

ECL for next ECL-no credit impairment
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 12 months impairment occurred Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 328,7563.73 1,368,021.45  10,042,161.36  11,728,936.53
Transfer to the second stage (247,883.66) 247,883.66 - -
Transfer to the third stage - - - -
Turn back to the second stage - - - -
Turn back to the first stage - - - -
Provisions/(reversal) for the year 36,515.06 1,063,406.19 (150,000.00) 949,921.25
Balance at the end of the year 117,385.13 2,669,311.30 9,892,161.35 12,678,857.78

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company did not write off any significant

other receivables.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)
(e)  Other receivables by nature

Nature of receivables m 2020
Performance bond 3,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Accounts receivable from subsidiaries of the Group 886,940,754.87  1,045,267,064.50

Others 23,610,127.96 15,756,079.63

Sub-total 913,550,882.83  1,066,023,144.13

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (8,846,294.62) (12,678,857.78)

Total 904,704,588.21  1,053,344,286.35

) Five largest other receivables by debtor at the end of the year
2021

Provision for

Percentage of bad and

total other doubtful

Balance receivables debts at

Nature of at the end of at the end of the end of

Entity name the receivable the'year [V 10 the year (%) the year

Ninghe Company Current accounts ~ 386,500,000.00  1-3 years 42% -
of subsidiaries

Huizhou Phase I Current accounts ~ 130,000,000.00  1-2 years 14% -
Company of subsidiaries

Shishou Company Current accounts ~ 88,156,983.57  1-2 years 10% -
of subsidiaries

Bobai Company Current accounts ~ 83,397,419.55  1-3years 9% -
of subsidiaries

Jiamusi Company Current accounts 40,357,475.88  1-2 years 4% -
of subsidiaries

Total 728,411,879.00 79% -
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Others (Continued)

() Five largest other receivables by debtor at the end of the year (Continued)

2020

Provision for

Percentage of bad and

total other  doubtful debts

Balance receivables Balance at

Nature of at the end of at the end of the end of

Entity name the receivable theyear  Ageing the year (%) the year

Ninghe Company Current accounts ~ 322,500,000.00  Within 2 years 30% -
of subsidiaries

Huizhou Phase Il Current accounts ~ 242,474,500.00  Within 1 year 23% -
Company of subsidiaries

Jinsha Company Currentaccounts ~ 121,471,300.00  Within 1 year 11% -
of subsidiaries

Pingyang Phase Il Current accounts 84,859,600.00  Within 1 year 8% -
Company of subsidiaries

Jiamusi Company Current accounts 72,509,340.60  Within 2 years 7% -
of subsidiaries

Total 843,814,740.60 79% -

Long-term receivables

Item

2021

Provision for

Book

bad and

balance doubtful debts

Interest
rate range

Carrying
amount

Entrusted loans to subsidiaries 379,058,272.96 - 379,058,272.96 0.00% - 4.90%
Less: Due within one year (74,500,000.00) - (74,500,000.00)
Total 304,558,272.96 - 304,558,272.96
2020
Provision for

Book bad and Carrying Interest rate
[tem balance  doubtful debts amount range
Entrusted loans to subsidiaries 452,444,200.00 - 452,444,200.00 0.00% - 4.90%
Performance bond 1,920,000.00 - 1,920,000.00

Less: Due within one year

(192,700,000.00)

(192,700,000.00)

Total

261,664,200.00

261,664,200.00

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4,

Long-term equity investments

Item

(1) Long-term equity investments by category:

Book
balance

2021
Provision for
impairment

Carrying
amount

Investments in subsidiaries 5,808,110,164.74 (11,149,297.53) 5,796,960,867.21
Investments in joint ventures 89,838,632.91 - 89,838,632.91
Total 5,897,948,797.65 (11,149,297.53) 5,886,799,500.12
1 January 2021
Book Provision for Carrying
[tem value impairment amount
Investments in subsidiaries 5,454,010,164.74 (11,149,297.53) 5,442,860,867.21
Investments in joint ventures 80,348,703.59 - 80,348,703.59
Total 5,534,358,868.33 (11,149,297.53) 5,523,209,570.80
2020
Book Provision for Carrying
[tem balance impairment amount
Investments in subsidiaries 5,454,010,164.74 (11,149,297.53) 5,442,360,867.21

Investments in joint ventures

66,190,681.00

66,190,681.00

Total

5,620,200,845.74

(11,149,297.53)

5,609,051,548.21
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Investments in subsidiaries

2021
Balance at the Balance at Provision for Impairment
beginning of Additions for Decreased the end of impairment at the end of
Entity name the year theyear  during the year theyear  during the year the year
Haining Company 86,000,000.00 - - 86,000,000.00 - -
Taizhou Company 180,000,000.00 - - 180,000,000.00 - -
Yongjia Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Rushan Company 100,880,000.00 - - 100,880,000.00 - -
Pingyang Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Changzhou Company 220,221,697.72 - - 220,221,697.72 - -
Wuhan Company 121,874,320.40 90,000,000.00 - 217,874,320.40 - -
Qingdao Company 63,091,383.59 - - 63,091,383.59 - (4,620,173.95)
Anshun Company 102,083,479.98 - - 102,083,479.98 - -
Zhangqiu Company 172,940,000.00 - - 172,940,000.00 - -
Jurong Gompany 100,026,752.87 - - 100,026,752.87 - -
Huizhou Company 220,954,159.23 - - 220,954,159.23 - -
Pingyao Company 20,017,204.55 - - 20,017,204.55 - -
Jizhou Company 72,000,000.00 - - 72,000,000.00 - -
Hong Kong Dynagreen 163,613,261.06 - - 163,613,261.06 - -
Ninghe Company 149,610,235.39 - - 149,610,235.39 - -
Shenzhen Jingxiu 27,047,295.00 - - 27,047,295.00 - (6,529,123.58)
Tongzhou Company 375,066,706.59 - - 375,066,706.59 - -
Hong'an Company 100,029,152.18 - - 100,029,152.18 - -
Longhui Company 20,000,000.00 - - 20,000,000.00 - -
Shantou Company 157,500,000.00 - - 157,500,000.00 - -
Bobai Company 75,000,000.00 - - 75,000,000.00 - -
Bengbu Company 166,000,000.00 - - 166,000,000.00 - -
Miyun Company 120,000,000.00 - - 120,000,000.00 - -
Huludao Hazardous Waste
Company 170,000,000.00 - - 170,000,000.00 - -
Huludao Waste-to-energy
Company 110,157,500.00 - - 110,157,500.00 - -
Huizhou Phase Il Company 350,000,000.00 - - 350,000,000.00 - -
Dengfeng Company 51,000,000.00 49,000,000.00 - 100,000,000.00 - -
Haining Expansion Company ~ 210,600,000.00 23,400,000.00 - 234,000,000.00 - -
(Guangdong Promising
Company 610,000,000.00 - - 610,000,000.00 - -
Shishou Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Pingyang Phase Il Company 110,000,000.00 - - 110,000,000.00 - -
Jinsha Company 102,360,400.00 60,000,000.00 - 162,360,400.00 - -
Jingxi Company 5,000,000.00 10,500,000.00 - 15,500,000.00 - -
Enshi Company 100,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - 105,000,000.00 - -
Yongjia Phase Il Company 51,000,000.00 - - 51,000,000.00 - -
Shuozhou Company 156,800,000.00 34,300,000.00 - 191,100,000.00 - -
Zhaoging Company 156,371,016.18 54,500,000.00 - 210,871,016.18 - -
Shantou Sludge Company 8,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - 13,000,000.00 - -
Huizhou Threg-in-one
Company 2,400,000.00 22,400,000.00 - 24,800,000.00 - -
Guangyuan Company 140,365,600.00 - - 140,365,600.00 - -
Total 5,454,010,164.74  354,100,000.00 - 5808,110,164.74 - (11,149,297.53)
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

2020
Balance at Balance at Provision for Impairment at
the beginning of Additions for Decreased theend of  impairment during the end of
Entity name the year the year during the year the year the year the year
Haining Company 86,000,000.00 - - 86,000,000.00 - -
Taizhou Company 180,000,000.00 - - 180,000,000.00 - -
Yongjia Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Rushan Company 100,830,000.00 - - 100,880,000.00 - -
Pingyang Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Changzhou Company 220,221,697.72 - - 220,221,697.72 - -
Wuhan Company 127,874,320.40 - - 127,874,32040 - -
Qingdao Company 63,091,383.59 - - 63,091,383.59 - (4,620,173.99)
Anshun Company 102,083,479.98 - - 102,083,479.98 - -
Zhangqiu Company 172,940,000.00 - - 172,940,000.00 - -
Jurong Company 100,026,752.87 - - 100,026,752.87 - -
Huizhou Company 220,954,159.23 - - 220,954,159.23 - -
Pingyao Company 20,017,204.55 - - 20,017,204.55 - -
Jizhou Company 60,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 - 72,000,000.00 - -
Hong Kong Dynagreen 163,613,261.06 - - 163,613,261.06 - -
Ninghe Company 149,610,235.39 - - 14961023539 - -
Shenzhen Jingxiu 27,047,295.00 - - 27,047,295.00 - (6,529,123.58)
Tongzhou Company 375,066,706.59 - - 375,066,706.59 - -
Hong'an Company 100,029,152.18 - - 100,029,152.18 - -
Longhui Company 20,000,000.00 - - 20,000,000.00 - -
Shantou Company 157,500,000.00 - - 157,500,000.00 - -
Bobai Company 75,000,000.00 - - 75,000,000.00 - -
Bengou Company 166,000,000.00 - - 166,000,000.00 - -
Miyun Company 120,000,000.00 - - 120,000,000.00 - -
Huludao Hazardous Waste
Company 170,000,000.00 - - 170,000,000.00 - -
Huludao Waste-to-energy
Company - 110,157,500.00 - 110,157,500.00 - -
Huizhou Phase Il Company 243,500,000.00  106,500,000.00 - 360,000,000.00 - -
Dengfeng Company 15,000,000.00 36,000,000.00 - 51,000,000.00 - -
Haining Expansion Company 163,800,000.00 46,800,000.00 - 210,600,000.00 - -
Guangdong Promising
Company 610,000,000.00 - - 610,000,000.00 - -
Shishou Company 56,000,000.00 44,000,000.00 - 100,000,000.00 - -
Pingyang Phase Il Company 39,200,000.00 70,800,000.00 - 110,000,000.00 - -
Jinsha Company 102,360,400.00 - - 102,360,400.00 - -
Jingxi Company 5,000,000.00 - - 5,000,000.00 - -
Enshi Company 100,000,000.00 - - 100,000,000.00 - -
Yongjia Phase Il Company 22,000,000.00 29,000,000.00 - 51,000,000.00 - -
Shuozhou Company - 156,800,000.00 - 156,800,000.00 - -
Zhaoging Company - 156,371,016.18 - 166,371,016.18 - -
Shantou Sludge Company - 8,000,000.00 - 8,000,000.00 - -
Huizhou Threg-in-one
Company - 2,400,000.00 - 2,400,000.00 - -
Guangyuan Company 140,365,600.00 - - 140,365,600.00 - -
Total 4,675,181,64856  778,828,516.18 - 5454010,164.74 - (11,149,297.53)

For information about the subsidiaries of the Company, please refer to Note VII.
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XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
(3) Investments in joint ventures:
For the investment in the joint venture of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
please refer to Note VII.2.

5. Capital reserve

31 December 2021

Balance at Balance at

the beginning of Additions for Decreased the end of

Item the year the year during the year the year
Capital premium (Note) 2,412,139,740.03 - - 2,412,139,740.03
Other capital reserve 47,361,993.67 - - 47,361,993.67
Total 2,459,501,733.70 - - 2,459,501,733.70

6. Retained earnings

Retained earnings at the end of last year before adjustment 497,082,209.86 482,313,483.66
Effect of changes in accounting policies on retained earnings
(Note 111.32) 12,742,220.33 -
Retained earnings at the beginning of the period after adjustment 509,824,430.19 482,313,483.66
Add: Net (loss)/ profit for the year (37,479,342.16) 145,431,918.00
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve - (14,543,191.80)
Distributions to shareholders (278,688,000.00) (116,120,000.00)
Retained earnings at the end of the year 193,657,088.03 497,082,209.86

For the actual dividend distribution of the Company, please refer to Note V. 35.
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Xll.  Financial Report (Continued)

T

XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7.

Operating income and operating costs

(1) Operating income and operating costs

ltem Note

Income

2020
Cost Income Cost

Principal activities 114,764,616.88  11,380,976.87  69,352,381.54 9,005,561.30
Including: Income generated from
contracts XV.7(2  114,764,616.88  11,380,976.87  69,352,381.54 9,005,561.30

(2) Income generated from contracts

Contract classification

Income from management service

72,435,123.16 34,194,213.83

Income from technology transfer 37,500,000.00 30,000,000.00
Income from guarantee service 4,829,493.72 2,135,593.26
Income from agency service - 3,022,574.45
Total 114,764,616.88 69,352,381.54

Investment income

Item

Income from long-term equity investments accounted for
using cost method

Income from long-term equity investments accounted for
using equity method

Unified interest income

Interest income

- 269,000,000.00
9,489,929.32 3,282,698.16
8,999,885.51 20,842,474.80

23,252,578.06 4,405,342.92

Total

41,742,392.89 297,630,515.88
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XIl.  Financial Report (Continued)

XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o.

Information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement
Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

(@)

2020

Net (loss)/profit (37,479,342.16)
Add: Impairment loss of credit (2,832,563.16)
Depreciation of fixed assets 690,423.53
Amortisation of intangible assets 191,142.54
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,874,353.03
Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 8,485.94
Gains/(Losses) from disposal of fixed assets 4,265.39
Financial expenses 132,708,980.32
Investment income (41,742,392.89)
Changes in deferred income tax assets 707,640.79
Changes in restricted deposits 4,000,000.00
Increase in operating receivables (49,931,396.46)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating payables 1,909,064.70

145,431,918.00
1,449,921.25
651,553.03
154,874.70
510,801.35
(49,069.37)
164,800,744.06
(297,530,515.88)
(987,855.13)
2,000,000.00
(32,307,620.40)
(14,837,923.58)

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities

10,108,661.57

(30,713,171.97)

Net changes in cash:

Item

Cash at the end of the year

Less: Cash at the beginning of the year

2020

203,062,050.77
(430,958,075.95)

430,958,075.95
(35,174,478.11)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

(227,896,025.18)

395,783,597.84

Dynagreen Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.
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T

XV.NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9. Information on cash flow statement (Continued)

(2) Components of cash

Cash
Including: Cash on hand - -
Bank deposits available on demand 203,062,050.77 430,958,075.95
Other monetary funds with restricted use 10,360,000.00 18,860,000.00
Balance of cash at the end of the year 213,422,050.77 449,818,075.95
Less: Other monetary funds with restricted use (10,360,000.00) (18,860,000.00)
Cash balance available on demand at the end of the year 203,062,050.77 430,958,075.95

XVI. EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

(Gains)/losses from disposal of non-current assets (1,993,136.09) 68,229.39
Government grants recognised through profit or loss (excluding
those having close relationships with the Group’s operation and enjoyed

in fixed amount or quantity according to uniform national standard) 8,483,877.31 19,894,695.13
Fund usage fee from non-financial institution recognized in profit or loss 503,396.23 3,830.20
Other non-operating income and expenses besides items above 5,265,809.70 840,538.00
Other gains and losses within the definition of extraordinary gains

and losses 237,845.56 -
Sub-total 12,497,792.71 20,807,292.72
Less: Income tax expenses (666,788.83) (1,552,708.93)
Net extraordinary gains and losses 11,831,003.88 19,254,583.79

Including: extraordinary gains and losses affecting the net
profit of the shareholders of the parent company 11,669,339.58 18,685,844.04
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XVI. RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

In accordance with “Regulation on the Preparation of Information Disclosures by Companies Issuing Securities No.9 —
Calculation and Disclosure of the Return on Net Assets and Earnings Per Share” (2010 revised) issued by the CSRC
and relevant accounting standards, the Group’s return on net assets and earnings per share are calculated as follows:

Weighted
average return Basic Diluted

on net earnings earnings
2021 assets (%) per share per share

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

Company 11.06% 0.50 0.50
Net profit excluding extraordinary gain and loss attributable to
the Company’s ordinary equity shareholders 10.87% 0.49 0.50
Weighted
average return Basic Diluted
on net earnings earnings
2020 assets (%) per share per share

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

Company 13.80% 0.43 0.43
Net profit excluding extraordinary gain and loss attributable to
the Company’s ordinary equity shareholders 13.29% 0.41 0.41
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XIll.  Five-Year Operations Highlights
Unit: RMB’000

Year m 2020 2019 2018 2017
Results
Operating income 5,056,889 2,277,619 1,752,449 1,140,074 823,755
Gross profit 1,731,716 1,309,943 945,981 671,462 497,442
Gross profit margin 34.24% 57.51% 53.98% 58.90% 58.42%
Net profit attributable to

shareholders of the

parent company 697,786 503,386 416,088 365,651 239,881
Financial position
Total assets 20,214,466 17,446,071 13,670,787 10,689,006 6,864,526
Total liabilities 13,296,885 11,665,793 10,174,272 7,616,409 4,579,183

Note: The financial data for 2017 to 2018 is the data after retroactive adjustment.
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Documents Available for Inspection

Documents available
for inspection

Documents available
for inspection

Documents available
for inspection

Amendments

The financial statements signed and sealed by the President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accountant of the Company

The full text of the annual report signed and sealed by the Chairman of the Company

The original copies of all of the documents and announcements of the Company disclosed on the
website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) and in China Securities Journal,
Shanghai Securities News, Securities Daily and Securities Times during the Reporting Period

Chairman: QIAO Dewei
Date of submission approved by the Board: 29 March 2022

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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